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AT A GLANCE

M&S is a unique retailer with a great heritage of brand values
and customers who want to see it succeed again. We operate Food,
Clothing & Home and other retall businesses using the M&S own-brand
model, focused on deliverng great value for money Although primarily
based N the UK we sell into 57 countries from 1463 stores and
20 websites around the world We employ 81000 colleagues serving
about 32 millon customers We are committed to a programme of
transformation to ensure that once again M&S can fulfil the potential
of Its brand and deliver long-term sustanable, profitable growth
to investors, collcaguces and the communitios In which we operate

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

GROUP REVENUE

£10.7bn

TOTAL DIVIDEND

18.7p

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

1.6p

+().,7% GROUP PROFIT BEFORE TAX -62.1%
£66.8m
ADJUSTED PROFIT BEFORE TAX -54%

£580.9m

Level  werpest -53.5%
£1.83bn
-77.8Y% ADJUSTED EARNINGS PER SHARE -8.6%

27.8p
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The report provides alternative performance measures (APMs) which are not defined or specified under the requirements of International
Financral Reporting Standards We believe these APMs provide readers with important additional information on our business We have
included a glossary on pages 120-121 which provides a comprehenstve list of the APMs that we use, including an explanation of how they
are calculated, why we use them and how they can be reconciled to a statutory measure where relevant
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DIGITAL FIRST

M&S is transforming

In a competitive and rapidly evotving market, accelerated change 1s
the only option We're becoming more relevant, more often to our
existing customers and appeating to new ones, especially larger
housenolds and busy larmilies

And the way we communicate s transforming toc [his report is different
We've cul down on the superfluous content so that we can cut down on
the armount of paper we use L also includes the Nolice of Meeling for our
2018 ACM which you will find at the back of the report

Like 1in every area of our business, we are thinking Digital First.
So, there is more detall and insignt avallable onbne via
www.marksandspencer.com/annualreport2018

WHY GO DIGITAL?
4 Access to more detailed and interactive content
The money saved on printing and postage will help lower our costs

Reduces our carbon footprint and saves paper

DIGITAL FIRST COMMUNITY

Jonour Digital First community and sign up for online commurications only,
Intime for next year'sreport. It's much less fuss, much more interactive and you'llbe
helping M&S to reduce its impact on our environment

Toregister, visit shareview.co.uk, a secure platform provided by our Registrar, EQuiniti
From the home page, simply click Portfolio’ followed by ‘Open Portfolio Account’ and follow
the on-screen instructions You witl need your shareholder reference number to register
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CHAIRMAN'S
SIATEMENT

“The genesis of any
turnaround starts with
the recognition of the

(]

‘unvarnished truth’

ARCHIE NORMAN CHAIRMAN

INTERIM

6.8p

FINAL

11.9p

TOTAL DIVIDEND FOR 2017/18

18.7p

Paicl on 12 January 2018

Tabepaidon 13Julv 2018

In Septermnber 2017, 1 took over as Chairman
of Marks & Spencer | did soin the belief that
the right actions and a strong management
team canrevive agamn one of the UK's most
special brands - a business much loved by
Its employees, customers, and suppliers

Stnce that time, lhave hadan opportunity to
meet with many colleagues in the business
and examine the challenges we face from
theinside There s no doubt inmy mind

that we face formidable headwinds and
transformational changesareneeded The
continued migration of clothing and home
anling, the further development of global
competition, the growth of home delivery in
food and the march of the discounters atl
amount to threats that are eroding cur
business and market position These, together
with a challenging UK consumer market,
rmean that we have aburming platform
Accelerated changeis the cnly option

These threats are not new but the tide s
running more strongly against us now
thanat any previous time And lamvery
conscicus that previous generations of
highly capable rnanagers and boards

have come and gone without arresting

the underlying drift in compebitiveness

Qur fallure to adapt has not therefore beena
result of weakness in strategic thinking, nora
lack of tatented leadership, nor of capital
expenditure Behind most underperforming
businesses there sits organisational falure
andculture that has proved resistant to
change Our caseis no exception Thatis

not to say we donot have many great and
passionate colleagues We owe it tothemto
make change an imperative, to simplify the
culture, and create a faster, lower cost, more
commercialbusiness

The genesis of any turnaround starts

with the recogrition of the unvarnished
truth’ the ability of the management to

set corporate vanity onone sideand
communicate the urgency of change

and the true state of the business internally
and externally In our case, store colleagues
onthe front Ling feel the pressures of
trading every week To thern, and indeed
many shareholders, the hard facts are
nosurprise Indeed, it comes as areliefto
hear the leadership taik about the reality
andinvite all colleagues to cimb on board
with a far-reaching programme of change

For this reascon, at the time of our Half
Year Results in Novernber, Steve Rowe set
out his diagnosis of cur problems and
anncunced the beginning of a five-year
transformation programme, Making M&S
Special Again'In this Annual Report we
set cut ngreater detail the composition
of that programme The first phase s
about restoring the basics, getting the
organisationat structure and infrastructure
of the business fit for the future

This s vital because despite years of high
spendcing, the shape of the business s cut
of date and much of our infrastructure is
inefficient Forinstance, while compebitors
have modernised their store estate, M&S
has been slow to close stores andrenew
them Cur supply chains in both Clothing &
Home and in Food require significant
re-engineenng In fast-moving fashion thig
rmeans we are slower than maost of our major
competitors to market and carry high levels
of stock Although online sales are growing,
our online capabiuty s behind the best of
our competitors, and our fulfilment centre
at Castle Donington has struggled to cope
with peak dernand Cur technology support
Isrmproving as we migrate off legacy
systermns and an old mainframe In both main
retall businesses, our customer base has
narrowed and we have lost share of younger
family-age customers

Although we will present more detail of

the transformation strategy over the next
12 months, Steve has already announced
the pillars of this first phase We are well
onthe way to closing at least 25% of our
Clothing & Home space The website s being
improved and we are investing to remedy
the problems at Castle Donington and build
asingle bier distribution network Weam
toalmost double cur onbine share of
Clothing & Home sales to over 33% We have
established a technology partnership with
TCStoimprove our IT base Tearns have
been established to address the supply
chainissues inboth rain busnesses

We are taking steps to recover our appeat

to family-age customers in clothing,

reduce the number of product Lines and
buy more stylish productin greater depth
The expansion N Food space has been
slowed while we concentrate on refreshing
the format and driving suslainable growth
Our International business has already been
rationalised and we are now creéating a



competitive network of mainly franchise-
led businesses interntones where we can
grow These are basic enabling steps which
should provide a platform for restoration
of growthn later stages

Alongside this we have announced
formative changes in the arganisation

M&S has been managed as a single business
led by functional directors However,

the Food businessis very different from
Clothing & Home Our property assets need
proactive management and M&S Bank s
clearly avery separate entity Therefore, we
are mowving from the heavyweight corporate
structure to a family of parallel businesses,
eachwith shared brand values but each led
by its ownintegrated management team
JllMcDenald has already started tobuld a
top calibre team in Clothing &Home and
Stuart Machin joined te lead the Food
businessin April Sacha Berend) willlead
the development of aproperty strategy
alongside his other responsioilities

Supporting the businesses will sita
streamlned corporate layer including a
strong digital and data analytics capakulity
At the senior levelwe are glad that
Humphrey Singer is joining us as

CFO, bringing his experience of the
transformation of Dixons Carphone
Together with Steve Rowe he will oversee a
strong but lean corporate level team

This new organisation structure should
heip break down some of the historic
organisational silos and create a faster,
more commercialand accountable M&S

“We owe It to our
people toc make
change an imperative,
and create a faster,
lower cost, more
commercial business’”
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These changes are urgent because the
worldis changing around us amacutely
aware that shareholders at M&S have heard
about similar programmes before Some
made progress, others proved to be false
dawns The chillwinds of competitionin
allour markets are now such that bimeis
running out and we cannot afford to fail

Intacklng the problems, we stillhave
severalimportant advantages First, we have
awocnderful brand which most people in

the UK stillhold in great affection Secend,
we have great operatorsin the stores and
many colleagues with extraordinary passion
for the business Third, our technical

skills in both clothing and food and our
understanding of quality, ingredients,
sourcing, size and fit rerain cutstanding
So,we have alot onwhich to buld

The purpose of the transformation plan
15 to restore the business to sustainable,
profitable growth Indoing so, the Board
remains cormmitted to mantaning the
right balance between investrment in the
business, dividends for shareholders

and balance sheet strength Given the
continued net cash generationby the
business and our strong belief in the
potential of the transformation, we intend
tomaintain the dividend atits current
level M&S hasa history of large scale
capital spending, much of which has not
generated hoped-forreturns Inthe new
crganisation we will continue to be frugal
inour allocation of capitaland assess
investment against strict returns critena

| have alarge number of board-level
colleagues tothank My predecessor,
Robert Swannell, set the platform for the
current changes and established strong
corporate governance routines Helen Weir
as CFO brought to the business much
intellectual challenge and financiat
discipline Patrick Bousquet-Chavanne has
overseen some extracrdinary marketing
campaigns over the last six years Miranda
Curtis played animportant and challenging
role as a non-executive director We thank
them all for ther contr:ibution

Aswe enter a new era with anew
managerment tear and new urgent
perspective ontheneedto change,

we needa strongbeard committedto
the roadahead |am delighted therefore
that Katie Bickerstaffe and Pip McCrostie
will be Joining shortly, subject to their
election by our shareholders at the AGM
on 10 July

Finally, at a time of dechiring profit, it1s the
colleagues on the ground who bear much
of the brunt of change My thanks gotoall
of them for their hard work and also to
our longstanding shareholders for ther
patient support

Ik /_Y\{:_?-

ARCHIE NORMAN CHAIRMAN
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
SIATEMEN T

“M&S needs to change
and change fast.
We are now in the
first phase of our

transformation,
restoring the basics
so that we can deliver
sustainable, profitable
growth to investors,
colleagues and the
communities in which
we operate’”

STEVE ROWE CHIEF EXECUTIVF

Ma&S needs ta change, and change fast

We have addressed a number of immediate
1ssues and are now embarking on the task
of transforming the business tocarrest the
declineand restart long-term growth

inNovernber,iset out our five-year
transformation plan to make M&S special
again We will execute this plan, flexing and
adapting as we go,at pace Afew miles nto
our journegy, | can see how much we need {o
do and lam deterrmined that this time M&35
will take the hard steps to make our business
avery different one in five years time

Change comes with short termpain

Group profit was heavily mpactedbya
large number of charges, most notably
those relating to the acceleration of our

UK store closure programme Profit before
adjusting items benefited from a substantial
improvement ininternationat profit, but this
was insufficient to offset the continuing
pressuras in our UK businesses

RESTORING THE BASICS IN CLOTHING
& HOME AND FOOD

For M&S to become morerelevant, mare
often to rnore British households, we have
to reshape our Clothing & Home and

Food businesses This transformation

starts with ebrminating silos and creating
accountable businesses Tolead this change,
we appainted Jill McDonald who has
strengthened the teamin Clothing &Home,
and Stuart Machin who joined us in Apritthis
year to transform our Food business

InClothing & Home, we continued our focus
onfull-price sales and removed promotions
and the number of clearance sales Sales
decuned as aresult, but for the first tirme in
five years we grew the number of customers
shopping our clothing Qurambitionis to

be the UK's essential clothing retailer —
famous for quality products that offer
contemporary wearable style, at great
prices We will continue to sharpen our
ranges, by providing better choices with
fewer options and delivering more
wardrobe essentials at the nght price

In Food, our focus on being ‘specialand
different’ saw us perform wellat Christmas
and Easter but our performance was not
good encugh throughout the year We must
broaden our appeal - getting our pricing
and product ranges right - so that we can
retain our core customers and attract busy
families who want great tasting, quality
foodat outstanding value

BECOMING A DIGITAL FIRST RETAILER

If we are to deliver major culturalchange at
M&S we have to be a Digital First business
This change in approach was evidentin

the partnership we announced with TCS
dunng the year and our migratron off the
otd mainframe system Coing forward we
will develop new partnerships whichaim

to put digital iInnovation at the forefront of
our thinking

Our store teams have cut costs and
improved customer service through the
roll-out of handheld devices in our stores,
reducing time spent on stock management
and enabling quicker response to customer
queries Inour offices we areintroducing a
Smarter Working approach, reducing the
amount of expensive office spacerequired
in central tondon by half and working better
and closer together

IMPROVING QUR CHANNELS '
TO CUSTOMERS

We accelerated our plan to cperate from
fewer, larger, more inspirational Clothung &
Home storeswith 32 stores either closed or
propeosed for closure out of a planned
reduction of over 100 An encouraging
number of customers have moved therr
shopping to nearby stores As we reposibion
our Food offer to deliver sustainable growth,
we also slowed our Simply Food openings to
focus only on the sites with the best returns

Crowth at M&S comwas behing the market
as we focused on full-price sales in ahighly
promotional market We remain behind the
market In several key areas cur download
speeds, though recently mproved, are still
slower, we are not yet mokle first,and have
an average scarch experience

We will deliver one-third of our Clothing &
Home sales online within five years to
prevent further erosion of our market share
andtoreftect the way that custormers’
shopping habits are changing

We delivered a sharp improvernent in

profits in our International business, ;
completing the planned exit of loss-making

markets, on time and under budget, and

selling our Hong Kong business to a

franchise partner We are focusedona

franchise modeland developing our offer

taensure better avalability and sharper

prices We were pleased to deliver areturn

to profitable growth



“By recognising the
challenges we face
and focusing on
our transformation
we can make M&S
specialagain’
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SUPPLY CHAIN FIT FOR PURPOSE

In order to be a faster and more commercial
business we must improve our supply chain,
whichis slow, inefficient and expensive

In Clothing & Home, the announcement

of ourinvestrnent in anew distribution
centre at Welham Green s a step towards
delivering asingle tier network of national
distribution centres This will enabile us to
reduce stock holaing pomts which make
our store delivenies slow and mean we

carry many weeks more stock than

our competitors

Qurintention to be one-third onlne means
investing in e-commerce fulflment Inthe
near term this means improving our
operations at Castle Donington so that

we serve customers better at busy times

In Focd we have atugh cost distribution
modet which imits availalnlity and increases
waste We are rolung out operationat
Improvernents across our stores with

the aim of Improving stock fite accuracy,
reducing stock held in the back of our
stores and ensuring appropriate delivenes

LOWER COST RETAILING

Curing the year, we have undertakena
forensic review of our cost base, with the
ambition toreduce it by at least £350m in
the medium term Curimtiatives in our
stores and our supply chain willdeliver a
significant proportion of these reductions
The change in cur culture and ways of
workingis also delivenng benefits in our

TRANSFORMATION TIMEFRAME

offices and our cost of goods through fewer
central Londen offices, changes to our
packaging specifications and the way we
work with our suppliers Trusis enabling us to
improve our value proposition In Food and
toreduce costs for the business as whole

LOOKING AHEAD

We have worked hard to put cut the fires
in our business over the past couple of
years and are now in the first phase of

our transformation plan,restoring the
basics so that we can deliver sustainable,
profitable growth to investors, colleagues
and the communities Inwhich we operate

[would lke tethank all of my colleagues for
their hard work and dedication We have
great people at M&S and we want to tap into
therr loyalty and passion for the brand to
help drive transformation Weredongthis
both externally through better custormer
engagement, ke our extremely popular
‘My M&S favounite campaign, and internally
through our new ‘Suggest to Steve' scheme
that allows colleagues nght across the
business to share therr ideas on how we
canimprove By working together, lam
optirmistic that by recognrising the
challenges we face and focusing on our
clear roadmap for transformation we
canmake M&S specialagain

How

STEVE ROWE CHIFF FXFCUTIVF

STEP ONE

RESTORING
THE BASICS

STEP TWO

SHAPING
THE FUTURE

2017

2021

STEP THREE

MAKING
M&S SPECIAL
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“Beginning the turnaround in Food”
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REVENUE

£5.9bn

FACING FACTS

+3.9%

LIKE-FOR-LIKE SALES

-0.3%

61%

WHAT'S HAPPENING

CONTRIBUTION TO UK REVENUE

696

WHAT'S NEXT

SIMPLY FOOD STORES
I

It has been a tough yearin Food with
underperformance against the market
The onigins of this poor performance
however are not recent Our Foodremains
unigue and customers stillrate us as their
favounte supermarket But over some
years, the range has gradually dnfted
towards becoming more premiurm and we
have lost sorne of cur appeal to broader
family-age shoppers Trus problem has been
compounded by the nsingintensity

of competition from the discounters at one
end and supermarkets at the other,both
seeking to emulate our success by copying
our fresh product ranges and innovation
This probleris further compounded by
high operating costs, high waste and
markdowns,and below industry average
avallability This, together with rising rent
and wage costs, has ercded profit so that
urgent action s now needed

We have already taken initial steps to arrest
the decline and restore lke-for-like growth
The rapid roll out of new owned space has
now been substantially slowed We have
made selectedinvestment in prices to
restore value for money Forinstance, we
reduced prices oneggs by 18% and saw
salesrise by 43% We have started to
rationalise our promotions so as to avord
losing money and obliging customers to
spend more to obtan good value With the
arrval of a new marketing tearm, we are
starting to communicate better our unigue
product credentials in freshness and
traceabiity Our food innovation pipeline
has beenre-crientated towards more
mainstream, popular family products

Aproject team, with outside help, has been
set up to address the problems in our
supply chain We believe that significant
improvement in avallability and waste can
be achieved without restructuring the
outdated network of distribution centres
and inibialresults are encouraging

UK FOOD MARKETPLACE

With the arrival of Stuart Machinas
Managing Director and the reorganisation
of 'brand marketing, we are establshinga
stronger, faster moving managernent teéam
committed torestonng the business to
like-for-like sales growth This firstly means
re-establishing our value for money
credentials M&S food should always be
great value for quality, freshness, taste
and ingredients Where it does cost a little
rmore, It sbill saves customers time and
money In the form of less waste or surplus
ingredients Where we run prornotions,
they should be with a reason, helpful to
customers and profitable for our suppliers
Trust in product and value s central to

our brand

M&S has always been famous for our
innovation, and our food sourcing and
technical skills are industry leading

Our intention s to accelerate the innovation
pipeline but focus more strongly onhigh
volume, popular family product Gourmet
and treats will always have arole inour
range,but they should not be the range
Even today, our food freshness and
authenticity 1s under-communicated,
and our marketing needs to express the
extraordinary lengths towhichwe go to
source the best product

Finally, we are now embarking ona
programme to look again at our formats
Much of our profitis made inthelarger
stores which carry the full M&S range

The UK food market is undergoing an extraordinary period
of change Although there have been some signs of growth,
maost of this has been drniven by Inflation The discount sector
willinevitably continue to grow, probably te 15% or more

of the market Horme delivery and online, where we have little
presence, are also growing at about 1% of the market a year

by 2022 Andinan effort to suppert margin, the mamstream
players are seeking to match M&S in the quality end of the
market Therefore, the competitive pressures on our business
reman intense and we do not expect this to changeinthe
year ahead Consumer budgets remain tight and the business,
with our fresh emphasis, could atso face complications from
Brexit and any boerder friction for food products

A SLICE OF DETROIT FOR BRITISH FAMILIES

INSIGHT Custorners told us they want
a deeper, more nournshing pizza without
skirnping on the fillngs, in larger pack
sizes that can feed a Family

RESPONSE In September, we launched
six new Deep & Loaded Pizzas inspired

by the famous pri7zas of NDetroit From the
Whole Hog, with srnoky sausage, spicy
pulled perk and barbooued bt ends,
Lo the Meatald Matinara, Topped wil by
mini meatballs and sautéed onions, these
deep pizzas pnced at £6 are perfect for
families to share - we sotd 1 2m Detroit
inspired pizzas in the year
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PERFORMANCE REVIEW

CLOTHING & HOME

“‘Restoring value and style in Clothing & Home”

REVENLUE

£3.7bn

FACING FACTS

-1.4%

LIKE-FOR-LIKE SALES

-1.9%

39%

WHAT'S HAPPENING

CONTRIBUTION TO UK REVENUE

CLOTHING & HOME SPACE -1,3%

11.1msqft

WHATS NEXT

Clothing & Home revenues were down
although the business successfully recovered
rmargin oy improving the percentage of
full-price sales and continuing to drive its
successful direct sourang programme

Over many years, M&S has lost positionin
the market, as, despite our strong, latent
brand credentials, our reputation for fashion
and styie has been eroded New global
competitors have grownmarket share and
far outweigh M&S in souraing scale Qur
online business s well behind market
leaders accounting for only 18 5% share of
sates The growth of new ‘pure play' online
competitors such as Amazon and ASOS has
highlighted the marked weaknessinour
online capability In platform technology we
are harmpered by the lack of a 'mobile first’
format, a search experience that's average,
and slow download speeds Theinadequacy
of our logistics means we are unabilé to fulfil
our delivery promises to customers at peak
firnes And,in our traditional 'store’ channel,
M&S has not closed and upgraded store
locations n ine with a changing high street

As aresult,althoughweretanaloyal custormer
base and very strong positions IN some
rmarkets, our customer base has narrowed

Aganst this context, the infrastructure
supporting the Clothing & Home business
needs substantialimprovernent We operate
an outdated factory to customer’ supply
chainwhichmeans we are slow to market, carry
too much stock and cannot replerish fast
moving lines The very wideranges result in
slow moving stock that has tobe transported
and filled as singles, creating extra handlng
costs The hustoric M&S bias towards high
volume popular lnesand great value has
dirninishedas successive generations of buyors
have bought flat’ instead of backingwinners

Nevertheless, the clothing business
retains great technical skills and customer
understanding, a streng modern glabal
sourcing operation and‘affection’ far the
brandremains strotig Thereismuch on
which te build

JillMcDonald joined as our new Managing
Director of Clothing & Horme in October

She has already announceda new leadership
teamincluding heads of Womenswear,
Menswear and Home, alengside anew
Supply Chain Director, Marketing Director,
Cnline Director and other important changes

Under this newteam the business has
begunto faceinto the challenges Already,
new range direction has been set te broaden
our appeal te family-age custermers Initial
steps have been taken to sharpen our value
credentials with further reducticnin
premotions and investment in lower 'first
price' Marketing tone of vaice has shifted
with the new Love it for Less campaign
Forinstance, highlighting our pure cotton
tapered chinos priced at £19 50, avallable
inachoice of 10 colours

Cood progress is being made in the closure
of ageing stores and a comprehensive
programme has been putinhand to
improve the basic performance of our
online website, searchand checkout
capabitity On supply chain,an’end to end’
programme taskforce s now in step towards
a'singte tier’ distribubion network so that
we nolonger carry warehouse space whose
mainrole s Just to store stock We are also
closing centres at Hardwick and Neasden
At our Castle Doningten onling fulfilment
centre we are Investing to ‘debottleneck’
the faclity toincrease peak capacity

CLOTHING & HOME MARKETPLACE

At heart, our recoveryinClothing &Home
depends on therestaratien of our style
credentials and broadening ourappeat toa
younger famity-age customer Of course, this
rmeans creatinga top buyingand design team
rmaking great product decisions Doing sowill
require mportant changes to the buying
processand structure of therange

M&S retains rmarket leading positionsin core
categornes such as ingerie, denim, business
shirts, suits and Back to School These already
appealto a broader, often younger customer
base CQurintentions to buld onthese positions
The strength of our brand shoutd be providing
greatvalue choices for stylish wardrobe
essentials, the simple wearabte classics that
everyone needs tohave Our strengthis to
provide great value for people at a stagen
Ufewhere they are prepared to pay a bit more
for styte and quality and move beyond the
‘throwaway’ culture

To dothis, we willembark onarestructure

of our ranges to buy deeperwith fewer slow
rmoving lines, including afurther reduction of
over 10% in theyear ahead Wewltuse our
global sourcing strength to restore more
strongly our value credentials and we will
review therole of our sub-brands, such as

per una, some of which have lost theiridentity
inrecent years

As our supply chainreforms start tosmpact,
our ambitionis t6 substantially reduce working
capitaland stock levels, reducing store labour
costs and accelerating speed to market In
time, we expect to be able to replenish in
season our fastest moving binas, Improving
avalabiity and reducing markdown

We have set a target of achieving one-third of
our sales online, which means growing double
digits each year Once we have fixed the basic
1ssues in fulfilment and website performance,
theres enormous scope for developing the
ME&S brand and product experience onling
N the UK and potentially abroad

The clothing market declined by 1.5% (KantarWorldpanel, 52 wfe 9 April
2018), with a more challenging trend in the second half of the year The
Clothing & Home markets were mpacted by three long-term trends which are
likely to continue for at least the next two to three years Firstly, the migration to
online, the UK clothingrmarket s about 25% online today and we expect it to grow
toabout 40% online Secondly, the dovelopment of price led discounters with the
continued growth of Pnmark, but alse the major grocers in clothing And thirdly.
the strength of global scale competitors such as Inditex, H&M and Uniglo

MADE TO FIT AND FLATTER

INSIGHT Customers totd us they wanted a dedic atedrange
to fit and flatter Lher curves

RESPONSE I Jarwary woe L mched oon nes Coeve collos bon
offering stytish clothing to our plus-sive customers We consulted
with imore than 2000 customers as well oz leading fashion blogger
Danelle Vamer onthe range Curves available in sizes 18-32
andall the ¢ lothes have been designed wang a size 21as the
base shape, rather thanasize 12 whichis usedin other colleclions

We sold 63,000 preces from the range durng the year

STRATECIC REPORT
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PERFORMANCE REVIEW

CHANNELS TO THE
CUSTOMER

UK STORES

1,035

STORES

M&S COM SALES

+5.2%

64%

ME&S.COM

SHOP YOUR WAY SALES

INTERNATICNAL STORES

428

INTERNATIONAL

FACING FACTS

M&S operates anageing store estatereflecting
the fact that it has been reluctant to close
marginally contnbuting stores over many
years As aresult,we carry along tail of
stores, some over 75 years old, which drag
down the Lke-for-like sales performance and
are brand damaging in their configuration
Even though soeme of these stores trade
profitability, they willnot warrant new
Investrment, not least because the tugh street
and shopping centres are changing fast

In particular, our sraller high street stores
lack range authority and some of our larger
stares carry too much space As themarket
shifts and moves online these problerns
willbecome worse unless we move fast

WHATS HAPPENING

Weare accelerating our store closure
programme which willresult in the closure
of arounda quarter of our 2016 Clothing &
Home space 32 stores havealready been
closed or been proposed for closure, out of
areduction of over 100 Some of the larger
remaining stores are being downsized so we
will converge on a more cohesive pertfolio
The closure pragramme s producing good
results with significant sales transfer to
nearby, more profitable sites Therewllbea
imited number of new openings of mid-size
stores In high potential sites InFood, we
cutback on the cpening programme, focusing
now only on the largest trading opportunities
in sites capable of good volume growth

WHAT'S NEXT

Once the reshaping of our core stare portfolo
1s wellunderway, we wiil now relook at our
format s to adapt them to a rapidly changing
shopping envirecnment Already, we can

see relatively low cost opportunibies to
modermise our stores te drive sales and
Improve customer experience Forinstance,
through our Shop Your Way service, 64% of
our online sales are picked up in-store yet many
of our collection points are inconveniently
situated Qur payment and checkout facilities
need more modernising and ratianalising
andanumber of services will be brought
together Andmany of our larger stores
have blocked sight lines and are hard for
time-pressed customers to navigate In

the year shead wewill explore ‘capital lite’
options to refresh our existing estate and
develap formats for the future

FACING FACTS

Qur digrtal capability 1s behind the best in
themarket and the state of theartismowving
rapidly Althoughwe have the secondlargest
online Clothing & Home market sharein
the UK, we are losing share and are behind
thebest of our cornpetitors Qur download
speeds are slower than the best, our
search facility 1s average and our mobile
application needsimprovement Castle
Danington was bullt at great expense but
1s never likely to achieve planned capacity,
lacks resibence and cannot currently meet
peak demand

WHATS HAPPENING

We have an urgent programme in hand te
fix our base platform capability which
should seeimprovements this year in speed
and responsiveniess Already, the majority of
our orders are collected In-store and we are
nvesting to make this process faster and
move convenient, an advantage over our
online only competition Steps arebeing
taken to'debottleneck’ Castle Donington
so that it can meet expected peak dermand
this year and next And we are extending

the cut off time (10 0C pm} for next day
deliveries Civen the need to broaden our
appeal to farnily-age customers, we are
extending our presence andreachin social
media InMarch, we were one of the first to
launch on Instagram Shoppable

WHAT'S NEXT

Given the 8% growth online in the fourth
qguarter,we believe that If we implement
these basic changes and theimprovements
we plan inrange and product, we will

see acceleration of growth towards our
one-third target Combined with store
closuras this will deliver a mare profitable
and sustainable business

Ourambihion s also tobecome atruly digital
business, not only competitive enline but
adept 2t using artficalintelligence to better
interact with custormers and develop a mare
personalised retationship Civen M&S'skills
in style and fitand our expertise infabnc

we hope Lo develop innavative ways of
helping customers to gain inspiration onling
and find the night product for their look

Try Tuesday, cur online Inspiration service,
already has 160,000 customers signed up,
of which 62% say they have bought
something as a result

FACING FACTS

Ourinternational business saw a year of ,
successful reshaping as we closed loss-

rmaking outlets and changed cur business

model Asaresult, profits more than doubled

and we now have a much more defined

platform for growth However, much work

remains to improve competitiveness and

supply chain to our franchise partners to

enable them to compete with our major \
fashion retail competitors Our ranges and |
supply chain arrangements are not yet |
flexible enough and our pricing s often high

relative to local competitors And our model

for food supply continues torely on high

cost UK exports which limits the potential

for aninternational food business

WHAT'S HAPPENING

Our model for Internaticnal s to focus
onlarge terntones whare we canbuild a
significant market presence and to operate
through alimited number of strong, aligned
franchise or joint venture partners

Accordingly, we have cormpleted our store
closure programme with exit costs under
budget In total we closed 53 owned stores
in 10 markets In December, we sold our
HongKong business to Al-F uttaim, our
Middle East and Asia franchise partner, to
build our allance further

Now the rationalisation s nearly complete,
we are setting up animproved franchise
partner support team, as there 1s huge
scope to mprove the way we work with
and support our partners Already we have
improved Clothing &Home fulfilment by
7% and modermised 58 international stores

WHATS NEXT

In the year ahead we intend to continue the
programme to greatly improve our fulfilment
and supply chainarrangements with our
major partners We willmodernise and open
over 100new stores n growth markets such
asIndia and further adapt our ranges tomove
away from our current UK centric model

We wall also roll out lower pricing across our
markets following a successful trialin Indonesia
and Cyprus which saw average order volumes
ncrease by 32% onanaverage price reduction
of 18% We will also provide effeclive online
support for our franchise partners by
providing a ‘pay and play’ local website and
ordering models as ploted n the UAE this
year We are still at the early stages of
developng our onbine strategy for terntories
not covered by franchise partners
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STRATEGIC REPORT

OUR PEOPLE

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

81,000

M&S has alongstanding tradition of
employing excellent colleagues and
creating an engaging and motivating
working environment Even today we retam
extracrdinary operating talent in cur stores
and many leng serving colleagues, with
great technical skills However, behind the
indifferent financial performance of M&S
over thelast two decades liesan mability

to change, borne out of a slow moving
orgarusation and bureaucratic culture Thisis
a consequence, in part, of the orgarisational
structure which has been bullt around very
strong functional siles, resulbng In g loss

of accountakility and a‘staff' led decision-
making process towhich toc many people
are nvelved,and there s not enough speed
and commerciality This tep-down silo
structure has been compounded by avery
strong sense of hierarchy which often
means that ideas and challenges do not
feed back tothe leadershipandthe value
of our passionate store management talent
does not get exploited

Our transformation therefore depends
onsimplifying this old culture and putting
inplace thefast moving, participative
organisabion which s close to stores and
the customer that cur cwn colleagues want
to see Thatis why we have already moved
towards our ‘family of businesses model
Inwhich accountability 1s driven down to
strong business leaders and their teams
At the centre we will retain a streamlined
top level team concentrating on strategy,
finance, the consumer branding, and the
‘digital’ customer comrnurications that
bind the businesses together At the sarme
time we are moving towards a more ‘hands

ENCAGEMENT SCORE

82%

12.3%

o participative style of trading With the
hetp of Jullan Richer, one of Britain's top
entrepreneurs, we are launching anew
suggestion programme and revitalising
two way colleague communication In the
first week of the ‘Suggest to Steve’ project
over 1,000 colleague suggestions went to
the CECGandareallreceiving responses
from store

We relaunched our Your Say Survey which
has veryhigh levels of response Despite
the difficult trading condibions and store
closures, this produced an 82% engagement
score, up sightly from 80% last year But
there was unsurprisingly strong feedback
about the need to improve ‘enablement,
with a score of 78%, and increase the speed
of decision making and change

As we reshape the business and drive
productivity we are managing considerable
change at store colleague level and within
our distribution network Most notably

- We streamlined our IT function and
transferred 166 roles to TCS, our
technology partner,

- We consulted with 311 colleagues
about store closures at six initial
closure stores in the financal year
resulting in five redundancies,

- As we completed our exit from ten
owned international markets and moved
to our new franchise model we reduced
¢ 1,800 roles, almost all outside the UK

To help manage these changes M&S
operates aunigue employee particpation
model through our Business involvernent

GENDER PAY GAP (MEAN)

EMPLOYEE DIVERSITY AS AT 31 MARCH 2018

Total employees

Fermale 58,119 Fermale 49
Male: 22,668 Male 67
ok T2 ok G2
80,787 116

Total senior managers

Total Board
Fermale 2
Male 7

Ak 22

10

MARKS & START PLACEMENTS

Croup(BIC) BIGisanetwork of elected
colleagues whe feed up to a National
Committee that works directly with the
leadership team The Charr of National

BIG personally attends the main Beard
meetings twice a year, ensuring that
colleague involverment is at the centre of
the Board process As we navigate difficult
and sometimes painful changes, BIC
provides a powerful format for consultation,
ensuring that we engage colleagues fully
onthe process

M&S always used to be a ‘University of Talent’

for the retailindustry As we make changes
it ismportant Lo attract new talent {o fuel
the exciting programme of change at all
levels We are therefore entering new
recruitment partnership arrangements,
including with MBS, the recruitment agency
and we are reinvesting in our ndustry
leading graduate prograrnme, recruiting
136 graduates last year

Althcughwe retain a gender pay gap,itis
lower than many of our cornpetitorsata

12 3% mean compared tc an industry
average of 16 4% Diversity and progressive
working practices are at the heart of our
belief systermand we are moving all of the
central tearn to open plan Smarter Working
offices, enabling working from horme and
have launcheda new diversity forumusing
our BAME, LGBT+ and other network groups

SMARTER WORKING

We continue to move forward with cur
Srnarter Working plans, where improved
use of space, technology and different
ways of workingwill create amore agile
and enabledworkforce The changes
enable our people to work more
collaboratively fromany lecation -
whether in store or from the office or
home In December, a poll showed 8/7%
of ermployees believe Srmarter Working
will enable them towork more flexibly

STRATECI REPORT
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STRATECIC REPORT

OUR BUSINESS MODEL

“The M&S Way”

Afamily of businesses joined by common brands, channels,
and customer insights and a shared set of beliefs in quality,

ethical sourcing and delivering value for money.

AN

-

CUSTOMER
DATA

Insight and loyalty building
with 32 million customers

CHANNEL
MANAGEMENT

Shared retalloutlets and
onbine commurications with
great service expenence

BRAND

Unigue own-brand model
using strong technicat and
development skills Lo create
trusted quality, value for
money preducts

Y (asat ) March 2018 Net Book value)

FOOD

Aleading fresh food own-label
supermarket focusing
on quality food for now or
tomorrow for the family

© Read more on pb

FINANCIAL
SERVICES

Through M&S Bank (managed
by HSBC) we provide trusted
services, Inctuding current
and savings accounts, cards,
nsurance, mortgages
andtravel money

CLOTHING
& HOME

Contemparary stylesand
wardrobe essentials at affordable
prices for busy famity and
“encore” custormers

© Read more onp?

PROPERTY

AfLZ 4bn property
portfolio managed to
rmaximise Investrnent

value and developrnent
opportunities ansing from
theretailbrands*
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STRATECGIC REPORT

KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

FINANCIAL

GROUP REVENUE

£10.7bn *™

14/15 103

15/16 1c4
16/17 106
17/18 107

Grouprevenues increased as aresult of new Food store openings,
offset by areduchon nIntermational revenues as we completed
the exit from ten loss-making markets

RETURN ON CAPITAL EMPLOYED {ROCE)

14.0%

14715 147
15/16 150
16/17 127
17718 14.0

The increase in ROCE largely reflects the reductioninthe carrying
value of property, plant and equipment

DIVIDEND PER SHARE

GROUP PROFIT BEFORE TAX (PET) & ADJUSTING ITEMS

£580.9m “**

14/15 6612
15/16 6841
16,17 6138
17118 580.9

Group PBT before adjusting items was down on last year, largely due
to the reduction in Food gross margin and the Increase in operating
costs asseoated with new space, volurme growth and charmel shuft

ADJUSTED EARNINGS PER SHARE {EPS)

27.8p **”

14/15 337
15/16 348
16/17 304
1718 278

Basic EPS before adjusting items decreased primarily due to

the lower ad)usted profit generated in the year The weighted
average number of shares in1ssue dunng the period was 1,624 0m
{last year 1,623 1)

FREE CASH FLOW (PRE SHAREHOLDER RETURNS)

18.7p '

14/15 180
15/16 187
16/17 187
17/18 187

Theboard s recommending a final drvidend of 119p per share,
resulting inatotald vidend of 18 7o

L417.5m =

14/15 5242
15/16 5393
16/1/ 5854
1718 N7s

We delivered free cashflow down 28 7% on last year primarily due to
the cash outflows nrespect of adjusting items and working capital
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS CONTINUED

STRATEGIC KPls

FOOD

LIKE-FOR-LIKE SALES

VALUE FOR MONEY PERCEPTION

Like-for-like performance was down While performance in
key events was strong, our everyday performance was poor,
with intense competition reflecting the progressive decline in

value competitiveness in core ranges
O . 3 /)

O8% YT

-0.3% 1718

AVAILABILITY

A project tearm with outside help has been set up to address the
problems in our supply chain, Including improving our availatility

92.4% -0.3%

There was a margnal improvernent in customer feedback on the
value for money of M&S Food ™ As part of our transformation we
are re-establishing our value for money credentials

+1%

QUALITY PERCEPTION

Customer festdback on the quality of M&S Food contimues
to improve in the year

+3% |

CLOTHING & HOME

LIKE-FOR-LIKE SALES

VALUE FOR MONEY PERCEPTION

| ike-for-like performance was down, as we elirminated two

clearance sales
-1.9%

-34% 16/17

-1.9% 17h8

CLOTHING & HOME SPACE

There was a slight improvement in custorner feedback on the value
for money of MBS Clothing & Home ™ We have takenimitial steps to
sharpen our value credentials in promotions and investrment into
lower ‘first price”

+2%

STYLE PERCEPTION

We are accelerating our UK store closure programme, which will result
n the reductian of around 25% of aur 2016 Clathing & Home space

16/17 1 3 0/
17/18 . (4

113m sqft
1M.am sq ft

Customer feedback on the style of M&S Clothing '/mproved but we
have much more to do to restore our style credentials to broaden
our appeal to a younger family-age customer

+3%

= Nel promater scare (MPSiequals fans (thosesconng 3-10out of 10} munws concs (those sconngG-8ona | I-pont stale question of 0-10
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STRATEGIC KPis

STORES

We are accelerating our UK store closure programme, whicch will result in the
reduction of around 25% of our 2016 Clothing & Home space

FOOTFALL
{AVERACGE PER WEEK)

TRANSACTIONS
{AVERAGE PER WEEK} NET PROMOTER SCORE*

19.5m " 11.Im ™" +5

ONLINE

We aim for a third of Clothing & Home sales to be online by 2022

PERCENTAGE OF SALES ONLINE

TRAFFIC (VISITS PER WEEK) NET PROMOTER SCORE*

18.5% " 8.3m " +8

INTERNATIONAL

RETAINED MARKETS SALES

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION SCORES

+2.8%

16/17 Jek:1e0}
17/18 £09bn

Sates from the International business
including sales from owned business
and sales to franchisees Excludes sales
fromn owned exit markets and Hong
Kong following transition to franchise
At constant exchange rates

71% +6%

Overall satisfaction score provided by
custorners as part of the customer
satisfaction survey conducted across
the International business, ncludng
both owned and franchise stores

DEOOny
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PEOPLE & PLAN A

PEOPLE

ENGACEMENT

EMPOWERMENT ENABLEMENT

2% +2%

Our annual Your Say Survey was completed
by over 70,000 colleagues, with engagerment
scores slightly higher than last year at 82%

We ntroduced two new measures to our annual Your Say Survey whether our people feel they
are supported and trusted in ther role (empowerment) and whether our colleagues have the

night tools and environment to do their job (enablement) Feedback showed colleagues wanted
us to Increase the speed of decision making and change

DIVERSITY & INCLUSION

NON-DEMOGRAPHIC
GENDER PAY CAP

M3S SENIOR MANAGEMENT DIVERSITY

1.5%

We are firmly committed to closing our
non-demographic gender pay within M&S

In the UK, this 1s the gap adjusted for different
gender dermographic by grade and the
mpact of dispropor tionately high fermale
numbpers in our retall operation

1%

Members of the Board drawn
from ethmc minorities

Female members of the Board

By 2022, we aim to have 50% female representation and at least 15% BAME (Black, Asian and
Minority Ethnic) representation on the M&S senior management team As of 31 March 2018,
22% of our Board and 42% of employees in senior management positions across our global
business were women and 11% of our Board was drawn from ethnic minorities

PLAN A

PRODUCTS WITH A
PLAN A QUALITY

OPERATIONAL GREENHOUSE

GAS EMISSIONS VOLUNTEERING HOURS

83% ™

The proportion of M&S products sold
worldwide that has additional social or
environmentat benefits bult into their
specifications This represents an
improvement of 4% on last year Cur target 1s
to have at least one Plan A guality in all M&S
products by 2020, and by 2025 every product
will have attributes which address all priority
social, ethical and ervironmental iImpacts

430,000

The gross carbon dioxide emissions resulting
frorm MB&S stores, offices, warehouses and
vehicles warldwide are down 10% on last year
In addition, we purchase renewable energy
and carbon cffsets to match these emissions,
making us the only major carbon neutral
retailer In the world

30,500

iIn 201718, we provided at least 30,500 hours
of work-tirme volunteenng, including our
Making Every Moment Special in the
Comrunity event, which was run across
the UK and Republic of Ireland in June 2017
Between 2017 and 2015, we are committed
Lo supporting M&S colleagues worldwide

to provide one millior hours of work-tima
community volunteenng
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STRATEGIC REPORT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

FULL YEAR REVIEW

52 weeks ended

3 Mar 18 1Apr17 Change
£m £m %
Group revenue 10,698.2 10,6220 0.7
Food 5.8699 56490 39
Clothing & Home 37411 3,7927 -4
UK 96110 a447 18
Internaticnal 10872 1,1803 -79
Group operating profit
before adjusting items 6706 6906 -29
UK 5354 6262 -145
International 1352 644 1099
Net finance costs (897) (76 8) 168
Profit before tax &
adjusting items 580.9 613.8 5.4
Adjusting itermns (514.1) (4374) 175
Profit before tax 66.8 176.4 621

CONSUMER AND RETAIL ENVIRONMENT

In 2017/18, consumer confidence remained broadly stable according
to data from GFK However, there continued to be a divergence
between consumers views on therr personal financiat situation
which remained strong and their views on the economy as a whole,
whichwere more fragile Against this backdropthe clothing market
declined 15% (Kantar Worldpanel, 52 w/e 9 April 2C18), with amare
challenging trend in the second half of the year The grocery market
returred to growth of 4% (Kantar Worldpanel, 52 wfe 25 March 2018),
although this was largely driven by inflation

UK: CLOTHING & HOME

Clothing & Homerevenue declined 1 4% with Like-for-Uke revenue
down 19%,as we removed two clearance sales Full-price sales
were broadly level Revenue declined inthe secondhalfina

more challenging market with unseascnal weather conditions

We delivered solid growth in strategic focus areas such as Kidswear,
bras and footwear

Gross margm was in Lne with expectations, up 5Cbps year-on-year
We offset significant currency headwinds by working with our
supply base and through our direct sourcing program me We put
€ B% less stock Into salé acrgss the year as a result of the planned
rermoval of two clearance sales However, challenging trading
conditions in the second half resulted in anincreased depth of cut

M&S comrevenues increasad by b 2% at constant currency
Performance was adversely impacted by the reductionin the
number of clearance sates and capacity rermmained constrained at
our Castle Donington warehouse in quarter three

In the year ahead, we are bullding on early improvernents in
Clothing & Home by further focusing our ranges and building
our style credentials, our offer in wardrobe essentials and our
appeal to family-age customers We are also investing selectively
invalue as we buy fewer iterms in greater depth

In this first phase we are undertaking enabling actions including
fixing core elements of our website, improving our delivery
proposition and investing to increase the capacity of Castle
Donington at peak penods

We have accelerated the reshaping of our store portfolio to address
the decline of the legacy estate and move to a more cohesive,
modern space and layout, resultingin a charge to adjusting items
of £321 1m We anticipate further charges of up to £150m as we
complete this programme We continue to expect cash costs of
the prograrmme to be ¢ £200m We have been encouraged by

the proportion of sales transferred to nearby stores fromthose
which have closed

UK: FOOD

Foodrevenue increased 3 9% as we opened 62 new Simpty Food
stores, however, ke-for-tike revenue was down 0 3% While
performance in key events was strong, our everyday performance
was poor, with intense cornpetition and reflecting a progressive
decline in competitiveness in the core ranges Market share was
level year-on-year (Kantar Worldpanel, 52 w/e 25 March 2018)

The decline in gross marain of 140bps year-on-year was more
than we expected During the second half we continued toabsorb
Input costinflation

In the year ahead, our focus 1s on repositioning the business

to bemorerelevant, more often to our customers, to drive
sustainable sales growth We are changing our approach to
product development to ensure we shift back to our strengthin
key shopping missions, with new lines which have a broad appeal
to family-age customers and everyday occasions

QOur repositioning will require renewed investment in trusted value
We believe however that this will be offset by cost reduction, volume
opbrmisation opportunities, removing excessive packaging costs,
and tacklingissues which impact availability and waste

Asindicated at the half year we have reviewed cur Simply Food
opening programme to imit future store expansion to only the
highest returning locations Inaddition, our accelerated UK slore
estate closure programme willresutt in a further reduction in the
number of FullLine stores
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

UK OPERATING COSTS

52 weeks ended

31 Mar 13 TALe 1S Change

£m £rm %

Store staffing 1,070.6 10103 60
Other store cost\s 992 1,0007 -09
Distribution & warehousing 538.0 5196 35
Marketing 151.6 1627 -68
Centralcosts 698.0 6971 o1
Total 3,450.3 3,3904 1.8

UK operating cost growth was 1 8%, which was below expectations
Costs associated with new space and volume droveac 2%
ncrease overall Wage and other nflation-related increases and
nvestment in store staffing were largely offset by marketing and
retall efficlencies

Other store costs reduced Favourable rates settlements, lower
depreciationand reduced charges for utilities helped to offset the
costs of new space

The growthin distnbution and warehousing costs was largely
driven by nflation, volurne and the costs of channel shift

In Clothing & Home we delivered improved costs per single as
we increased utibsation of our Bradford warehouse

Central costs increased inanumber of areas including IT and the
introduction of the Government’s apprentice levy However, these
were offset by reduced costs following the head office restructunng
and lower incentive Costs year onyear

ME&S BANK

M&S Bank income before adjusting items was down £99m to

£40 3 This was aresult of changes to the assurmed effective
Interest rate in both years and the implementation of IFRS 8, which
resulted in tugher bad debt provisioning There was alse amodest
reductioninunderlying interest-beanng batances

INTERNATIONAL
52 weeks ended Change
31 Mar 18 1 Apr17 Change Change CC%exc
£m £m % CL % HongKong
Franchise 360.6 3140 14 8 132 g3
Owned Retained' 660.2 6740 20 -18 -11
Total Retaned 1,0208 9880 33 o9 28
Owned Exit! 66.4 1923 -655 667 -667
Total 1,087.2 1,180.3 79  -10.2 -104
Operating profit
before adjusting
items
Franchise 86.1 819 51
Owned Retained' 531 168 2161
Total Retained 139.2 987 490
Cwned Bt {40) (343) 883
Total 135.2 644 1099

1 Last yearrestated for closure of our online buziness in Cnna Hong kongresults reported
inownedreta red urti' the beoiness was sold to aur frarchse partner

ReportedInternational revenue decreased 79% This was driven
by the exit from loss-making owned markets and the sale of our
operations m Hong Kong to our franchise partner

Excluding these effects, revenue at constant currency was up

2 8% We generated strong growth in franchise revenue, with an
improved performance inthe Middle East, Russia and Turkey and
from expansion of our Food business Revenue in owned retained
markets was down 1 1% with a strong performance inindia where
we opened seven new stores, offset by difficult tradinginthe
Republic of lreland

International operating profit before adjusting items maore than
doubled We completed the planned exit of loss-rnaking market s
and generated improved margins in owned retained markets,
largely driven by transactional currency gains

NET FINANCE COST

52 weeks ended

31 Maris 1 Apri7 Change
£Em £m im

Interest payable {95.9) (100 2) 48
Interest ncome 6.0 66 06)
Net interest payable (89.4) {93.6) 4.2
Penston net finance income 177 293 {116}
Unwind of discount on Scottish
Lirmited Partnership babiity {10.9) (126) 17
Unwind of discount on
ProviSions (5.2) 02 (503
Hedge ineffactiveness on
financial instrurments {1.9) 03 22)
Net finance cost (89.7) (76.8) {12.9)

Net finance costincreased by £129m to £83 7m targely due to
reduced pension net finance Income as a result of the lower UK
defined benefit scherme surplus at the start of the year and the
unwind of discount on property provisions Net interest payable
reduced by £4 Zrm primarily due to the repayment of the
US$500m bond which maturedin December 2017
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GROUP PROFIT BEFORE TAX AND ADJUSTING ITEMS

Croup profit before taxand adjusting items was £5809m, down
5 4% on last year The decrease was due to the reduction in UK gross
profitand the increase in operating costs n the year

ADJUSTMENTS TO PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Croup rmakes certan adjustments to statutory profit measures
in order to derive alternative performance measures that

provide stakeholders with addibional helpfulinfermation on the
performance of the business For further detail on adjustingitems
and the Croup's policy for adjusting items please see Note Sand
Note 1 te the financial staternents respectively

52 weeks ended
31 Mar 18 1Apr17 Change
m £m £m
Strategic programmes
- UK store estate {321.1) (516) (2695)
- UK orgarusation {30.7) (240) (&7)
-ITrestructure {15.5) - (155)
-UKlogistics (13.1) 98 (229)
—Changes to pay and pensions (12.9) {1560) 1431
- International store closures
andimpairments {5.0) (1325) 1275
UK storeimpairments,
asset write-offs and onerous
lease charges (63.4) 488} (146)
M&S Bank charges incurred in
relation to the insurance
rmis-selling provision (34.7) (441} 94
Other (17.7) 98 (275)
Adjusting items {514.1) {437.4) (76.7)

We have recogrised a numiber of charges in the penicdrelating
to the implementation of cur strategic programmes

- Acharge of £321 1mn relation to the mpairment of assets,
accelerated depreciation and estimated onercus lease and
ctosure cests relating to our UK store estate prograrmme,

- Acharge of £30 7m primarily relating to the consolidation of
our central London Head Office buildings,

= Acharge of £15 5min relation to our technology transformation
programme reflecting costs associated with the simplification
and consolidation of our technology supplier base,

- Anet charge of £131m as we continue to transition to a single
tier Clothing & Home UK distribution network,

- Acharge of £129m for the first year of transitional payments
to employees impacted by the closure of the UK defined benefit
scheme to future accrual, and

- Acharge of £50m retating to the international exit programme

UK store impairments, asset wnte-offs and onercus lease charges
since the announcement of the new UK store estate strategy,

the Group conducted a review of the £4 8bn nat book value of
the property, plant and equipment on its balance sheet as at

1 April 2017 A one-off non-cash adjustment to depreciation of
leasehold builldings assets was made of £45 8rm Additionally,

we recognised charges inrelation to UK store impairments and
other asset disposals

We continue to mcur charges inrelation Lo M&S Bank iInsuranc o
mis-selling provision resulting m areductionin income of
£347m during the year

On 30 December 2017, we completed the disposalof theretal
business in Hong Kong and Macau to the AlFuttaim Croup resulting
inanet profit on disposal of £5 8m We also incurred charges for
potential liabilities for certain employee-related matters

TAXATION

The effective tax rate on profit before tax and adjusting items

was 21 6% (last year 199%) This s hugher than the UK statutory rate
of 190% (last year 20 6%) due to the recapture of previous tax relief
under the Marks and Spencer Scottish Limded Partnership ('SLP")
structure The effective taxrate on statutory profit before tax was
56 4% (last year 34 4%) due to the impact of the SLP structure and
disallowable adustments items

TOTAL TAX CONTRIBUTION

Corporation Lax 9%
Customs outies 6%
Ermployer s NI 9%
Frmployees NI 7%
Other taxes 1%
Bus ness rates 20%
Exc se duties 16%
VAT 19%

PAYE 13%

£921m

In 2018 our total cash tax contribution to the UK Excheguer was
£921m (2017 £881m), split between taxes ultimately borne by the
Company of £421m (2017 £423m} (1e corporation tax, customs
duties, employer's NIC, business rates and sundry taxes) and taxes
attributable to the Company's economic activity and which are
collected on behalf of the Government of £500m (2017 £458m)
(1e PAYE, ernployees’' NIC, value added tax, excise dutiesand
sundry taxes)

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earmings per share decreased by 778%to 1 6p,as aresult

of the lower adjusted operating profit and the increase in adjusting
items due to the Croup's strategic transformaticn programmes and
the increase in effective taxrate The weighted average number of
shares inissue during the period was 1,624 0m (last year 1,623 1m)

Basic earnings per share before adjusting items decreased by
8 6% to 27 8p due to the lower adjusted profit generated in the year

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

52 weeks ended

31 Mar 18 1Ap-17 Change
£Em £m £m
UK store environment 26.6 2286 40
New UK stores 72,1 750 29
International 11.6 134 18)
Supply chain 238 340 (10 2)
IT &ME&S com 21.9 1229 {310}
Property mantenance 729 903 (174)
Capital expenditure
hefore disposals 2989 358.2 {59.3)
Proceeds from
property disposals {3.2) (270) 238
Capital expenditure 2957 3312 {35.5)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

Croup capital expendifure remains well controlled resultingina
further 17% reduction year-on-year, before disposal proceeds

UK store environment spend reflects the rebalancing of in-store
layouts towards strategic growth prionties such as Kidswearand
the rebranding of a nurmber of Foodhalls

Spend on UK store space was slightly down Whilst we opened
A0 new owned stores cornpared with 35 last year, the reduction
reflects a freehold purchase in the prior year and stightly higher
landlord contrnibutions

Supply chain expenditure reduced, reflecting the completion
of larger projects such as the Bradford distnbution centrein the
prior year During the second half we began investmengin the
new Walham Creen distribution centre as we move towards
completing our single tier network for Clothing &Home

The decline in IT and M&S com expenditure reflects the ongoing
move towards rmore cloud-based software solutions and the
investment in handheld devices and store technology in Retail
Inthe prior year We are alsc investing to rigrate from our
manframe system

L.ower property disposal proceeds reflect thereceipt of the
finalinstalment from the sale of the White City warehouse
recewved inthe prnior year

CASHFLOW & NET DEBT

52 weeks ended
31 Mar 18 | Apr 7 Change
£m £fm frn

Adjusted operating profit 670.6 690.6 (20.0)
Deprecation andamortisation
before adjusting iterms 5806 5845 (1071)
Working capital (96.8} 75) (8% _3)
Defined benefit schemea
penston funding (41.4) (366) (48}
Capexand dispasals (346.0) (383 2) 372
Interest and taxation (200.5) (202 6) 21
Non-cash share based
payment charges 18.9 106 83
Share transactions (3.0 55 (85)
Free cash flow before
adjusting items 5824 666.3 {83.9)
Adjusting items cash outflow {164.9) {809) (840)
Free cash flow 4115 585.4 (167.9)
Orchnary dmadends pad (303.4) {30300 04
Special drvidend - (745} 745
Free cash flow after
shareholder returns 14 2079 {93.8)
Opening net debt (1,9347) (2,138.3) 2036
F xchange and other
non-cash moverments {6.9) {43) (26)
Closing net debt (1,822.5) (1,934.7) 107.2

The business generated free cash flow before adjusting iterns of
£582 4m, down £83 3rnonlast year primarily as aresult of lower
adusted operating profit anda higher cash outflow onworkang
capital partially offset by lower capex The working capital outflow s
driven by the impact of International market exits, a lower incentive
accrual year-on-year and higher Clothing & Heme stock at year end

Defined benefit scheme pension fundingin the year reflects the
£36 4rm second imited partnership mterest distribution to the
pension scheme in the current year as well as the final contribution
for tha defined benefit scheme pard after the prior year end

Adgiushing iterns in cashflow during the year include amounts
relating to the closure of stores ininternaticnal markets of £857m,
the transttion payrments inrespect of pensions and pay prermia of
£36 7mand M&S Bank of £34 7m These were partially offset by the
cash inflow assaciated with the disposal of the Hong Kong retait
business of £229m

Despite the significant cash outflows associated with our strategic
programemes, net debt was down £107 2montast year

DIVIDEND

We have announced a final dindend of 11 9p (full year dwigend

18 7p, level year-on-year) This willbe paid on 13 July 2018 to
shareholders on the register of members as at close of business
on 1 June 2018, subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual
Ceneral Meeting, to be held on 10 Juiy 2018

PENSION

At 31 March 2018, the (AS 19 net retirement benefit surplus was
£948 2m (last full year £692 8m) The increase n the surplusis
largely due to anincrease in the discount rate and a change in
mortality assumplions

InMarch 2018, the UK defined benefit pension scheme entered
nto pensioner buy-in policies with two insurers for £1 4bnwhich
reduced its longewvity exposure to around one third of the
pensioner cash flow Labilities

The Strateqic Report, including pages 19-24, was approved by a duly
authonsed Cornmitiee of the Board of Directors on 22 May 2018,
andsigned onits behalf by

STEVE ROWE CHIEF EXECUTVE
22 May 2018
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STRATEGIC REPORT

NON-FINANCIAL
INFORMATION

Creating shared social and environmental
value continues tobe animportant part
of cur transformation strategy and s
underpinned by 100 non-financiat
commitments contained in our Plan A
2025 programme The social, ethycaland
environmental content contaned in this
report complements more detajled
information avallable in our 2018 Plan A
Report which canbe found online via
www.marksandspencercom/plana2018

IMPACT

Approach We employ 81,000 colleagues
directly and are supported by hundreds of
thousands mare inour franchised
operations and supply chaninthe UK and
acrossthe globe Andwe sell over 3 billion
food, clothing, home and beauty products
to 32 milion customers each year at our
1,463 stores worldwide and online Many
different social, environmental and ethical
15sUes have an impact on our business,
either directly or through our global supptly
chain Consequently, we have tomanagea
continually evolving set of Issues andhave a
number of commitments and polcies in
place toaddress these challenges

To read any of the policies isted on this
page visil marksandspencer.comy/
thecompany

ENVIRONMENT

Approach We aim to offer our custormers
great value, quality products while also
caring for the environment cnwhich we all
depend As part of Plan A 2025, we am to
ensure 100% of the M&S products we sall
eachyear address 100% of therr matenzl
socialand environmental impacts

We will further improve the efficiency of our
own operations as wellas cut 13 3m tonnes
of CO e from our wider value chan We will
continue toinvest incarbon offsets for our
own operations N order teremaimn carbon
neutral And we aimto be zero wasteacross
allthat we do - our operations, our supply
chains and when our customers cometo
remove packaging anduse owr products

© Plan A Report 2018
© Plan A 2025 Commitments

SOCIAL MATTERS

Approach M&S has a long tradition of our
stores, offices and warchouses supporting
thertocal community We believe we can
achieve more together than we can on

our own As part of Plan A 2025, we are
committed to transforming 1,000
communities that we serve We know
supporting vibrant communitiesis essential
to our own future success

We arealso committed to helping 10million
peoplelive happier and healthier Lives

We have a particular focus on addressing
1ssues of mental wellbeingand will work
hard to ensure support for colleagues and
customers with cancer, heart disease,
dementia and mental healthissues

© Plan A Report 2018
© Plan A 2025 Commitments

PEOPLE

Approach We are commutted to making
M&S a great place towork, with a safe
working environment anda culture
which promotes diversity, nclusivity,
personal development andrespect

We know It's our people who make M&S
successful Ther tatent, comrmitment to
our customers and pride N M&S are key
toour long-term growth

© Cender Pay Gap Report 2018

@ People Principles

© Equal Opportunities Policy

© Read more on Our People on pg

@ Read more on Board Diversity Policy
on p35

HUMAN RIGHTS

Approach M&5 has along history of
respecting human rnights inthe UKand
standing up for those values Internaticnally
Qur commitment to human nghtsis
reinforced in our Hurman Rights Policy

and Code of Ethics and Behaviours and,
forall suppliers and business partners,

n our Clobat Sourcing Principles We are

also a signatery to the pnnciples of the
United Nations Clobal Compact We strive
tobe afar partner by payinga fair price to
suppliers, supporting tocat communities
and ensunng good working conditions

for everyone workingin cur business and
supply chains We are committed to building
our employee and supplier knowtedge and
awareness on human rights, encouraging
thermn to speak up about any concerns
without fear of retnibution

© Human Rights Policy

@ Code of Ethics and Behaviours

© M&S Clobal Sourcing Principles

@ M3s People Principles

© Responsible Marketing Principles
© Code of Practice on Ethical Trading
@ Child Labour Procedure

@ M&s grievance procedure for Food
and Clothing & Home supply chains

© Moadern Slavery Statement 2018
© Plan A Report 2018

ANTI-CORRUPTION AND ANTI-BRIBERY

Approach M&3S1s committed to the
highest standards of ethics, honesty
andintegrity Our Anti-Corruption and
Anti-Bnbery Policy outlines the expected
standards of conduct that employees,
contractors, suppliers, business partners,
andany other third parties who act for and
on behalf of M&S, are obliged to follow
The policy also includes detailed
procedures around giving and receving
gifts, hospitality and entertainment,
procedures for engaging new suppliers
and partners, specifically those who are
based in tigher risk jJunisdictions and
standard contract clauses, and clear
reporting channels, including confidential
reporting For colleagues who work in
areas which may pose ahigher risk we
provide mandatory Anti-Bribery and
Anti-Corruption e-learning

© Anti-Bribery Policy
@ Code of Ethics and Behaviours
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STRATEGIC REPORT

RISK MANACGCEMENT

As with any business,
we face risks and
uncertainties on a
daily basis. Effective
risk management is
essential to support
the achievernent of
our strategic and
operational objectives.

© See our Principal Risks on p22-24

APPROACH TO RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board 1s accountable foridentifying
the principat risks facng the Company,
ncluding those mpacting its business
performance, custormers, paople,
values, operations and cngoing viabiity
On behalf of the Board, the Audit
Committee reviews the effectiveness
of the risk management process, which
1s lllustrated in the diagram below

Eachbusmess areais responsibie for
formally identifying and assessingits nsks
half-yearly, measuring them against a
defined set of criteria, and considening the
liketihood of occurrence and potential
impacttothe Group The Croup Risk
function facilitates a similar exercise with
members of the Operating Committee,
before combiring these perspectives to
createa consclidated view Incompiling
this risk profile, consideration is given to
risks that are external to cur business,
core to our day-to-day operations,
shaped by business change, or any other
that may impact achievernent of our
strategy Current ssuesand areas

of change emergng outside the
half-yearly review are also rnenmitored

OUR APPROACH TO RISK MANACEMENT

Toensure the most significant risks are
managed effectively, we have enhanced
our key nsk analysis and reporting during
the year The charges provide more
transparent insight into how these nsks
are being managedand to what extent
performance s beingimpacted

These improverments aiso drive clear
accountability and ownership for nisk at
the most senior levels and improved
monitonng at the Cperating Commuttee

The principal nsks identified by this process
form our Group Risk Profile, which s agreed
by the Operating Commmittee anead of
approval by the Board In addition to this
formal review, significant areas of risk are
subject to regutar oversight and challenge
by the Operating Committee and, where
appropriate, by the Beardand Audit
Committee, dunng the course of the year

The directors assessment of the long-term
viability of the Company 1s also reviewed

annually, mindful of the principat nsks faced
I urther detail on our approach to assessing
long-term wiability can be found on page 21

BUSINESS AREA RISK REGISTERS

~ Updated by the business

—Content owned by business area leadership

KEY RISKS: DETAILED ANALYSIS
- Deep dive analysis of allnsks included on Group Risk Profile

- Content owned by incividual Cperating Committee members

CROUP RISK PROFILE
~ Croup level summary including Lkelhood/impact
- Internally monitored by Operating Committee
—Process and output reviewed by Audit Committee

PRINCIPAL RISKS

Externally disclosed in the Annual Report
approved by the Boarg

BUSINESS UNIT/
FUNCTION OWNED
RISK REGISTERS

DETAIL OF RISKS,
MITICATION & KPIs

ONILYOdIY TYNYILNI

KEY RISK ALLOCATED
TO CPERATING
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

EXTERNAL
DISCLOSURE
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HOW OUR RISKS AFFECT ONE ANOTHER

Werecognise that there s significant interdependency between our key risks This diagram illustrates how changes to one nsk might
impact those connected to it By understanding this relationship, we are better placed to ensure we are managing them appropriately
and to understand our broader risk exposure This is especially important when assessing the Company’s long-term viability

Cur business continuas to operateina
trading environment that 1s unpredictable
and highly competitive

As part of our mprovement programme, we invest
in technology to respond ta changes in customer
preferences and behaviour, and drive operational
offoc Uveness Meamwdule, inptoving our brand

and customer expeérience ensures we become
more relevant, maore often, to our target customers
While our busmess transformatien, such as
reshaping our store estate, ensures we create

an envirenment that is relevant for today

TECHNOLOGY

© Read more
onpz4

TRADING
ENVIRONMENT

BUSINESS
TRANSFORMATION

AN CORPORATE
@ Read more © Read more COMPLIANCE &
onp23 on p23 RESPONSIBILITY

The strength of our brand is based, in part, on the way
we run our Company Customers have high expectations
of us i terms of how we manage Informatian security,
Tood safety and nlegrily, and « arporate complan:
and responsibility risks

INFORMATION
SECURITY

© Read more
onp24

@ Read more

BRAND &
CUSTOMER
EXPERIENCE

© Read more
on p24

onp23 FOOD SAFETY

& INTEGRITY

@ Read more
on p23

Operational execution is dependent on attracting. retaining and rewarding the right peaple -

and effectively working with our third party suppliers and partners.

QUR APPROACH TO ASSESSING LONG-TERM VIABILITY

The UK Corporate Governance Code
requires us toissue a ‘viability staternent’
declaning whether we believe the Company
15 able to continue to operate and meet its
lizbilities, taking into account its current
position and pnncipal risks The overrniding
aim s to encourage directorsto focus

on the longer termand be more actively
involved Inrisk managerment and

internal controls

The Boardisreguired to assess the
Company's viability over aperiod greater
than 12 months The increased levels of
uncertainty within the global economic
and political environment and the macro-
economic challenges being experienced
within theretail sector, mean the Board
continues to believe a three-year period
1s appropnate for business planning,
measunng performance and remunerating
atasenior level Our assessment of
viability therefore continues to align

with this three-year outlook

110 process adopted te assess the viabilly
of the Company Involves cellaborative
input froma number of functions across the
business to model severe but plausible
scenarios nwhich anumber of the Croup's
principalnsks and uncertanties maternalise
wthinthe period of the three-year plan

We have modelled scenanos which group
together principal risks where we believe
interdependencies exist between the rnisks,
inaddition to scenarics where unconnected
risks occur simultaneously These scenaros
focused on both external facters, such as
Brexit and lower than expected market
growth,and internal factors, such as
strategic programmes delivering lower
than expected benefits The scenario with
the most significant adverse impact was
reviewed against the current and projected
hquidity position to conclude on the
Company's viability The assessment
alsotockaccount of additional potential
rrntigations avallable in the event of further
downside factors, including areductionin
capital expenditure and reduced returns to
shareholders The Audit Committee reviews
the output of the viability assessment m
advance of final evaluation by the Board

Inassessing viability the Board considered
anumber of key factors, including our
business model (see page 10}, cur strategy
(see pages 4-5), risk appetite (see page 72)
and our principal nsks anduncertainties
{sce pages 22-24) These have beenreviewed
it the context of our financal plans,
specifically the Annual Budget and
Three-Year Plan

The directors also satisfied themselves that
they have the evidence necessaryto
support the statement in terms of the
effectiveness of the nternal control
environment inplace tomitigate risk

In making the staterment, the directors
have applied the following assumptions
N preparing the scenanos

- Bonds maturing during the assessment
period will be repaid through our existing
bank facilities

- The actions included in our plan to grow
sales are not fully realised or are offset
by lower than expected market growth

- The actions included in our plans to
mitigate input cost increases that we
expect are not delivered in full or the
nput cost increases are greater than
expected

- The UK government's notification of its
ntention to exit the European Union will
have adverse financial impacts, including
Input cost inflation from increased tanffs
and a weakening In sterlng, as well as
reduced UK consumer spending

The Board's assessment 1sthat M&S s a
viable business The Viabiliby Statement
canbe found onpage 67

=
o
[+%
i
=4
=}
5
2
[
=]
j=q
£
1’8




22

MARKS AND SPFNCFRCGROUPPIC

RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

PRINCIPAL RISKS &
UNCERTAINTIES

Our Croup Risk Profile
evolves as circumstances
and priorities change.
This year we have
aggregated risks that
share common causes,
impacts or mitigation

RISK APPETITE

The details of cur principat risks and
uncertainties and the key mitigating
activities can be found onipages 23 and 24
We disclose those we believe are likely to
have the greatest impact on our business
at this moment in time Cur nisk profile
continues te evolve as we transform our
business and, while our principal risks and
uncertainties remam broadly consistent,
we have refined our disclosure to ensure
they remainrelevant andreflect the
changinglandscape The diagram below
shows how our disclosure has evolved
since the prior year

The Company 1s exposed (o a wide range

of rsks in addition to those isted Theseare
maonitored forany mcrease in ikelihood

or impactand to ensure that appropriate
rmitigations are in place We also continue

to monitor current issues as they develop to
ensure they are being effectively managed

While our capacity to influence external
risks I1s often imited, we recognise the
importance of operating a business maodel
that has the potential to flex and adapt
toachanging environment For example,
the consequences of the UK's decision
toleave the Eurcpean Union s expected
toimpact our businessinavariety of
ways While thisimpact s not vet fully
understood or quantifiable, we have
considered Brexit within each Croup
levelnsk wheret1s expected tohave an
influence We acknowledge the need to
be proactive, taking action as implbications
are better understood and we therefore
rmonitor the Brexit risk profile of our
business at both a Group and business
area level

EVOLUTION OF PRINCIPAL RISKS & UNCERTAINTIES

2016/17

Clothing & Home recovery
Profitable growth

Margin

UK store estate

Food safety & integrity

Corporate responsibility
Information security {Including cyber)
Technology

Talent & succession

Brand

Customer proposition & experience

Third party management

Risk key Consalidaton of risks

Change in scope

Technology

DYy

No/ Limited change yedr oniyed”

Talent & capability

2017/18

Trading environment

Business transformation

Food safety & integrity
Corporate compliance & responsibility

Information security (ncluding cyber)

Brand and customer experience

Third party management
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PRINCIPAL RISKS & UNCERTAINTIES

RISK

oW

oL

[

Risk key

DESCRIPTION & CONTEXT

TRADING ENVIRONMENT

The performance of our business will be impacted if we fail to meet customer
expectations or respond to the continued pressures of a changing retail
environment. Aggressive competition, cost pressures and the consumer impact
of the UK's departure from the Furopean Unien all contribute to the challenge that
1s faced

Qur Clothing & Home business muust respond to the continued shift in customer
preferences towards online and mobile shopping Consequently, our strategy (s
focused on the creation of a seamless, relevant customer experience and the need
tobe digital firsl' We must also continue Lo strengtlhen capobilily across all arcas of
our Clothung & Horne business to ensure we debiver contomporaty, wearable style
and wardrobe essentials that our customers want

I ood consutners contnue to be drven by value and swe neod to ensure our produdl
rangoes rosonot e and are avadable at the right poce Whide we have irmited influenoe
over a number of contnbutory factors, for example raw matenal prices and the
impact of Brexit, we recognise the need to manage costs, drving efficiencies and
delivering savings in areas such as packaging and waste

This new risk s a conselidation of a number of nsks, which were disclosed separately
in the prior year, to better reflect the increasingly challenging conditions facing
our business

BUSINESS TRANSFORMATION

As we build a platform for change, the successful delivery of our busingss
transformation programme is critical - a farlure to execute faultiessly and

at pace will hinder progression. Our business s undertaking a number of
transformation projects, many of these are significant in their own nght but the level
of nterdependency also requires careful ahgnment Transferming our business will
generate cost savings but also underpins the delvery of our strategic objectives

~ The reshaping of our UK store estate continues at an accelerated pace
We need to ensure that the programme delivers sgainst agreed targets and
that we incorporate changes in custemer preferences into decision making
onatimely basis

- We must deliver on our digital first ambitions — improving custamer expenence,
reducing costs and working smarter across the business

— Cur supply chain must be At for purpose It 1s currently stow, outdated and
expensive, and must be iImproved

This new risk 1s an expansion of the prior year s specific risk around our store estate
programme and now incorporates a far broader range of transformational projects

FCOD SAFETY & INTEGRITY

A food safety or integrity related incident occurs or is not effectively
managed. Food safety and integrity rernains vital for our business We need to
manage the potential risk to customer health and confidence that faces all food
retailers, white alsc considenng how external pressures facing the food industry
could influence the ntegrity of our food, our reputation and shareholder value

Many of these pressures, including inflationary costs, labour guality and avallability,
increased regulatory scrutiny and the as yet unknown impact of Brexit are outside
of our contral

We also recogrise the cnibicality of internalinfluences including the level of
change underway in our Food business and the significant levels of new
product development

This all places greater demand on the techrical team and suppliers to complete
required raw matenal testing and product safety checks to guarantee provenance,
safety and integrity

CORPORATE COMFLIANCE & RESPONSIBILITY

Failure to deliver against our regulatory obligations, social commitments or
stakeholder expectations undermines our reputation as a responsible retailer.
Responsible « orporate bebaviour ks a basic expectation ot all businesses, especially
those that are consumer facing Public sentiment can shift rapicly, especially as the
traditional influencers of pubhic perception evolve and 1ssues can escalate rapidly
throcgh seoal mede

There are also many examples of where goud corporate behaviour has, over time,
become alegal or regulatory requirement Human Right s, Modern Slavery,
Anti-Brbory and Data Protee bionare just a ew examplos mmpac i cur business

The roandat ory nabure of anine roasinegly bBroad aned stongent logaland reqguilatony
framework creates pressure on both business performance and market rea<tion
While our business operates appropriate controls we rec ogrise that potential non-
complianc e s ansk for all busnesses and that there can be noroom for complacency

Civen the high level of trust we have with customers and stakeholders coupled
with cur high media profile, we must get thas night

Coamali-atirnofr ke Lhange inscope

MITIGATING ACTIVITIES

Developrment of,and delivery against, the five-year transformation plan

Targeted recruitment to strengthen capabiliies of our senor
leadership tearmns in both Clothing & Home and Food

Full strategic reviews and setting of clear short- and medium-term
pricrities for our businesses

Debvery of our international strategy

Refining our operating model to eliminate silos and create devolved,
ac counLable busmnesses

Rewvised disciptines around store prices, ranges and prornotions across
our business

Implementation of our digital fist intiatives

Improved alignment of business needs and engagement with the
UK store estate team, and changes to our Property leadership

Cormpletion of a forensic review of costs and commencernent of
our cost delivery plan

Acceloration of our plan Lo operate from fewer, Largor Clothing &
tHome stores

Keassessinent of Lhe Sirnply | oods store openmg prograrmme

Implementation of a Technology Transformation Programme,
leveraging the support of key third-party relationships

Improvernents to our website

Cornmencement of an end-to-end review of our supply chainand
logistics network across both businesses to deliver iImproved
efficiency of picking, improved trade utibsation and a faster more
reliable service for stores and customers

Cperational Improvements at Castle Donington

Strong programme governance Lo track progress against plan,
resourcing and capabibty and to monitor critical interdependencies.

High levels of cross functional engagement to ensure consistency
and collaboration in sething and achieving objectives

Independent audit reviews of key programme delivery

Clearly defined requirements through Terms of Trade, Codes of
Practice, Standard Operating Procedures and Specifications from
farm to fork, including in-store processes

Qualihied and capable technical tearn Professional status maintained
through traming and Technologist Continual Professional
Development programme (independently vatdated by Institute

of Food Science and Technology)

Clear accountabilities for policy and standard development at
technical leadership level coupled with indivicddual accountability
for product safety at technologist level

Long establshed store, supplier and depot audiling programme in
place, including unannounced audits and raw material testing

Quarterly review of control framework by the techrucal leadership

Clear and tested crisis management plarin place to respond
Lo idenits

Sector teading initiatives, such as over the provenance of our beef
Membership of Food Industry Intelugence Forum

Clear policies and procedures in place, including Human Rights,
Modern Slavery ard Glebal Sourcing Principles

Mandatory induction briefings and annual trainng for relevant
colleagues for key regulations

Oversight from established cornmittees where necessary, including
Data Protection, Fire Health & Safety and Mlan A

Expernencedin-house regulatory legal teamwith external expertise
sought as needed

Dochic atedd regualatory of fiers o place across tho busmess rosponsiblo
for diving « ormpliance

Strong and transparent engagement with regulators

Forward locking Plan A 2025 corormilment s with associated
governance to anticipate future environmental and social 1ssues

Fstablished audit and momitonng systerns mplace

Customer contact centre maight and analyss of lve social media 1ssues

Mo fLirruted o ange year on year @ LNk to strate 3y
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PRINCIPAL RISKS & UNCERTAINTIES CONTINUED

RISK

- Jor

0 ~J

® 0

|_JNe)

DESCRIPTION & CONTEXT

INFORMATION SECURITY (INCLUDING CYBER)

Failure to adequately prevent or respond to a data breach resulting
business disruption, brand damage or loss of information for our customers,
stakeholders or our business. The Increasing sophistication of potential
tyber-attacks, coupled with the General Data Protection Regulation, ighlight
the escalabing information secunty nsk facing all businesses Our reliance ona
numbier of thard-parLies L host and hold data also moans the sk prolite of

our mlormalion secunly s ¢hangeahle

We recognise the importance of ongaing education and wiglance within M&S

to reduce the ikelhood of atLack or breachm () aninteral coviconmoent Lt s
Gndergoing signific ant transtorrnation aged (i an oxternal cinareninient tiat s
changing at pace We must ensure that our control envaronment evolves and that
our systems operate effectively A data protection breach woutd not only impact
aur reputation, but would atso cause business disruption and could result ina
significant fine

TECHNOLOGY

To support future profitable growth, we need to keep pace and develop our
technology and innovation capability. The digital world continues to evolve at
an unprecedented rate, nfluencing consumer behaviours and setting a high bar
in terms of 1T infrastructure reguirements

We have clearly commuricated our aim to be digital first,and recognise the need
to invest to achieve this

Qur existing IT frastructure needs Lo be more flexible to lower costs,
leverage developments and enable us to move with pace to meet customer
and colleague needs

In addition to developing our technology, we must develop the skilts and
capabilities of our people This will be critical to providing a top quartile,
seamless custorner experience

TALENT & CAPABILITY

We need to attract, develop, motivate and retain the right individuals to
achieve our operational and strategic ohjectives to transform the culture
and the business. As we transfonn our business the calibre of our people s
integral to delivering operational and strategic objectives, and s especially
impertant in our drive to be Digital First

Attraching, doveloping and retairing quabty mdividuals sanfluens ed by meany
factors, a number of which are outside of our control (rowing mMmarket labour
shortages, which may be further compounded by Brexit, and the percerved
fraglity of UK retail could mfluence our ability to attract external talent

However our facus cannot selely be outwards looking - our existing workforce
1s one of our greatest assets We need to ensure that our colleagues and culture
are developed to drive a Digital Frst and customer centric rundset, colleagues
reed to feel empowered to drive change at pace

BRAND AND CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE

Qur brand and underpinning customer experience need to evalve with
consumer lifestyles and attitudes for us to remain relevant and successfully
attract and retain customers. Consurner Ufestyles and atttudes continue to
ovalve ot pacemanncreasngly diversificdand compettive retal covionment

We are proud of our strong brand recognition, but external pressures rmake it
more difficutt for alt businesses to dnive brand retevance and attract and retain
cuslomers, falire to doso creates Lhe very teal sk of a docine inomarkel share
We must attract and retain our core customer segments

Our intention tobe a customer-centric, digital first business has been clearly
cormmgnic ated We peed o cnsuare that our orgatisalionasl desigryand opoerating
model support this aim and that we put 1he customer at the farafront of all our
decision making Cur Sparks loyalty programme, rmarketing strategies and Cross
functional ways of working will be key enablers inachieving this, supported by
meaningful measurement of customer experience

THIRD PARTY MANAGEMENT

To drive value for our business we need to successfully manage and leverage
our third-party relationships and partners Our business s increasingly engaged
in signuficant third-party partnerships These span our full operating model, from
products and services to franchise management and our nternational joint vernture

To fully leverage these relaticnships, we need to have clear, consistently applied
processes to track performance, ensuring comnmercial expectatons are delivered
We also recogmise the importance of managing the business interruption risk
conferred by such dependencies, and of maintaning appropriate contingency
plansinresponse

We cannot lose sight of the expertise and effort that s required ta etfectively manage
thirdt parties, especially as we move through cur transformation prograrme

MITICATING ACTIVITIES

Established security controls, including policies, procedures and use
of security technologees

Head of Data Governance and Data Governance Groupin place

Dedicated Carporate Secunity team with ongaing focus onimproving
the physical secunty environment

Oedicatod | foad of Cyber Secunty, leading a team of cybor security
experts and analysts, with 24/7 monitoring and defence tools

Third-party cyber maturtty assessinents performed and refreshed

Ongoing menttoring of developments in cyber secunty threats,
engaging with third-party specialists as appropriate

Penodic testing by Internal Audit

Control of sensitive data through iimited and monitored access and
the roli-out of systems with enhanced security

Dedicated workstrearn focused on information secunty as part of
the Technology Transformation Programme

Technology lransformation Programme in place, supported by strong
governance principles, to enable the Digital Fust ambitions and to
delwver improved customer exgenence

New Technology Operating Model to drive clear accountabiliies and
efficiencies, including the adoption of Ndustry standard agile methods

Appointment of a leading technolegy company as our principal
partner, coupled with smpuhcation and consolidation of the
technology supplier base

Proactive simplificabion of 11 infrastructure through clearly
defined techniology roadmaps for all business areas and strong
gOvernance processes

LCross channel rechnology investmant strategy inplace and aligned to
the farmly of businesses to mutuaily agreed prionties

Quarlorly revicws 10 ensute beneits are bomg delivered

Talent identified as a ¢ritical companent of our People Strategy
and 3 key enabler mthe delivery of cur overall business strategy

People KPIs In place supported by talent review at all levels of
the argarusation

tstablshed biannuat employee engagement survey, enhanced
during the year to provide additionalinsight

Clear focus and transparent action on faw pay, including gender,
ethnicity, disability and age

Launch of a new diversity forum

Simpbfied, cutputs foc used framework introduced for
performance rmanagement

Commencement of externally faciitated culture assessment
Active engagement with our Business Involvernent Group

Targeted external hires to strengthen capability

Revised operating model te better align brrand and marketing with
the specific needs of our two businesses

Investment in capability to measure customer expanence through
Iintraduction of an end to end and multichannel Net Promoter Score
programme, supported by third party expertise

tstablished Customer Insght Unit and focus groups i place

Review of Sparks loyalty programme underway, supported by
proposihion mprovements 1o strengthen memiber engagement

Increasing our relevance and proacleve moniterng of social media
toobserve and respond to trends in Custormer experence

Clear pracurement and supplier management pobcies in place,
including specific requirements for strategic suppliers

Donned sorace ovel acrecinents and Rey perlormiand o gy ators
n place for key contracts

Defined contract governance and oversight standards, includng
dedie aled supplier owner s nanaguig key contrac i s

Strong engagement with in-house legal and procurerment teams
Key supplier business cantingency planning
Internal audir engagement

Risk key @ Consoldationafrsks @ Change nscope @ No/Umited change year anyear (8} Link to strategy



SUPPORTING STAKEHOLDERS:
CHAIRMAN'S OVERVIEW

‘As we embark on the
journey ahead it is
important we have a highly
engaged board; one that
is close to the business,
able to both support and
challenge the executive
team and is well-equipped
to oversee governance,
financial controls and
risk management’

ARCHIE NORMAN CHAIRMAN

AN ENGAGED BOARD

As we ermnbark on the journey aheadit s
important we have a highly engaged
board, one that s close to the business,
able to both support and challenge the
executive team, and s well-equippedto
oversee governance, financial controls
andrisk management

There have been a number of changes

to the Beard this year In July, Humphrey
Singer will join as CFO following Helen Weir's
departure at the end of March InAprit,
Patrick Bousquet-Chavanne stepped
down from the Board, following the
incorporation of the marketing teams inte
the Clothing & Home and Food businesses
Finally, Miranda Curtis left the Board in
February More information onthese
changes s avallable on pages 34-35

We havea strong non-execubive tearnwith a
breadth of experience and perspectives We
recently added to this with appaintrments
of Katie Bickerstaffe and PipMcCrostie

MBS has long championed the benefits of
adworse hoard bongone of the Nirst Listed
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COVERNANCE

companies teappont a female director and
with strong female representation over the
last decade

As aresult of the departures of Miranda
Curtis and Helen Werr, at the time of
publication of this report, we are below
our target of 30% fernale directors

In May 2018, we announced that Katie
Bickerstaffe and Pip McCrostie would join
the Board, subject to their election at the
Annual Ceneral Meetingin July 2018
Following these appointments, female
directors will compnise 30% of our Board

BOARD ACTIVITIES

During the year we complied with all of

the provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code In keeping with the

rest of this Annual Repoert, this year's
Covernance section 1s more concise, with
greater detall on the Board moving cntine to
www.marksandspencercom/thecompany
in support of our future digitalambibions

We will continue to drive the digital
experence for our shareholders and
reduce the clutterin curwrittenreports
going forward A summary of the Board's
activibies and discussions dunng the year
1spresented cn pages 28-29

Owver the last few months, the Board has
reviewed Its activibies and the rotes of its
commitiees to ensure that it can focus on
driving transformational change at pace
In particular, the Rernuneration Committee
was asked toincrease its remit to cover
senior leadership reward, pay policy,
gender pay and employee engagement
This change was implemented ahead of
the FRC's consultation on the revised

UK Corporate Governance Code

The Committee’s activities and its
considerations on remuneration are
outbinedin detaill on pages 42-62

SUCCESSION, AUDIT AND TALENT

Following the externalindependent
evaluation last year, this year’s Board
Review was conducted by our

Croup Secretary Asurmmary of this
and the actions for the year aheadare
set out on page 33 of this report

COLLEAGUE ENGAGEMENT

Engagement with and feedback from

our colleagues across the business s wital,
especially as we drive our transformation
A culture of transparency and open
dizlogue is key to this, which s why | spend
my time as Chairman hosting numerous
listening groups with colleagues from
stores, distrnbution centres and offices

We were debghted toinvite the chair of

our Business Involvernent Group (BIG?,
which represents the interests of all our
81,000 colleagues, toattend one of our
Board meetings and share with us colleague
perspectives on theissues under discussion

Coing forward, we have agreed that the
Chair of BIGwillbe invited to attend two
Board meetings a year and willalsc be
invited to attend at least one Remuneration
Committee meeting each year

Cood engagement with our colleaguesis
vital as we embark onthis pencd of change,
and to support this we will look at ways

to step up cur communication with them
during the year ahead Details of the waysin
which we engage with our stakeholders are
available on pages 30-31

SOVERMAMNCE

RETAIL SHAREHOLDERS

The Audit Committee’s activities,
consideraticns and judgments, ncluding
its review of our cylber and data protection
environment, inctdent management and
health & safety processes are set out on
pages 36-41

The Board and Norunation Committee's
senior talent changes to build a first-class
tearnto succeed inthe rotall environment
of the future are set cut cnpage 34

Our Private Shareholder Panel hadagood
first year, meebing with members of the
Operating Committee and Board and
discussing a diverse range of topics
covering Brexit preparedness, food pricing,
customer trends and our Plan A community
challenges The candour, challenge and
Insights provided by these discussions
validates this initiative as part of our broader
stakeholder engagernent programme
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We have an active programme to drive the
panel’s engagement in the year ahead

b il o

ARCHIE NORMAN ( HAIRMAN

IR AN



26

MARKS AND SPENCFRGROUPFI C
DIRECTORS' REPORT: GOVERNANCE

LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS

OUR BOARD

CHAIRMAN

Key strengths and experience

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Archie Norman
Chairman

Appointed:
September 2017

o®

- Extensive retalland business leadership experience

— Long-term track record of value creation and change in major
British companies

Archie s an experienced Chairman and former Chief Executive having
led major transformation programmes at 1TV, Lazard UK, Asda, Energis
and Hobbycraft and Deputy Chairman of Coles Limited In 2016 he was
apponted as Lead Director at the Department for Business, Energy
and Industrial Strategy

Key strengths and experience

Steve Rowe
Chief Executive

Appointed:
Chuef Executive in April 2016

®

- Very extensive m-depth commercial and retail experience

~ Extenswve knowledge of M&S hawving worked in all mayor areas
of the business

Steve Joned M&S in 1989 and worked in senior roles across all mpaortant
areas of the business prior to his appomntment as CEQ, Including
Director of Horne, Director of Retail, Director of Retail and E-commerce,
Executive Director, Focd and Executive Director, Ceneral Merchandise

Humphrey Singer
Chuef Finance Officer
(Designate)

Appointed
Incoming July 2018

- Strong financial background and extensive retal expertise

- Significant experience N delivering the transformational strategies
of large lsted businesses

Humphrey will join M&S in July from Dixons Carphone, where he 1s
currently Croup Finance Director He was previously Croup Finance
Director of Dixons Retai prior to its merger with Carphone Warehouse
Croup, and has also held senior finance roles at Cadbury Schweppes
and Coca-Cola Enterprises UK Humphrey s 2 non-executive directar
of Taylor-wWimpey plc

BOARD DIVERSITY

GENDER DIVERSITY

SECTOR EXPERIENCE

NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR TENURE

DEPARTURES SINCE
1 APRIL 2017

31 March 2008
{as at year end}

Male 7%
Fernale 22%

22 May 2018

(as at date of Annual Report)

Male

Fernale 14%

86% 100%

Retal Consurner

57% 43%
Finance E-commerce

& technology

Robert Swannell Chairman

0-3 years 33% Retired: ) September 2017

3-6years 50%
6-7 vears 17% Miranda Curtis Non-Executive
Director

Retired: 1 February 2018

Helen Weir Chief Finance Officer

Resigned: 31 March 2018

Patrick Bousquet-Chavanne
Exacutive Director, Customer,
Marketing & M&S com
Resigned: 18 Apnl 2018

UK CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The UK Corporate Covernance Code 2016 (the “‘Code”) 1s the standard aganst which we measured ourseives in 201718 A copy of the Code is available
from the Financial Reporting Council s website

We are pleased to confirrm that we complied with all of the prowvisions set out inthe Code for the perod under review

Tokeep thisreport concise, we have focused onthe key governance 1ssues only Further detail on how we comply with the Code, ncluding full biographies
of our directors and our corporate gover nance staternent, 1s available on our corporate website, marksandspencer.com/thecompany More information is

avalable onpages 63-64
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KEY TO COMMITTEES

® Remuneration . Committee Char

@ Audit

Full siographical details of each direcor are avalable on marksandspencer.comfthecompany

® Normination

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Key strengths and experience

Vindi Banga
Senior Independent Director

= Extensive consumer brand knowledge and global biusmess experience
— Stronglisted company board experience
Vindr's n-depth knowledge of both UK and international trade and

Appointed.

Non-Executive Director in ndustry was gained over 33 years spent with Unilever, where he held a
September 2011 number of senior positrons and was a member of the Executive Board
Senior Independent Director In He has been a non-executive director at M&S since September 201
March 2015

0D

Andy Halford - Significant recent and relevant financial experience

Non-Executive Director

Appointed:
January 2013

o0®

- International, consumer and digital experience

Andy's strong finance background and broad knowledge of the UK

and international consumer market was gained from CFO positions
heldin global lsted companies He s Chief Financial Officer of Standard
Chartered, which he joined after 15 years at Vodafone, nine of which
were spent as Chief Financial Officer

Alison Brittain
Non-Executive Director

Appointed.
January 2014

®©

= Financial and cemmercial experience
- Considerable knowledge of running large-scale consumer businesses

Alison 1s CEQ of Whitbread, an international organisation with a broad
portfalio of hospitality brands, and was previously Group Director at
the Retall Division of Lloyds Banking Croup, with responsibility for its
retal branch networks as well as its Retail Business Banking and UK
Wealth businesses

Richard Solomons
Non-Executive Director

Appeinted:
April 2015

®®

- Strong global consumer experience

- Extensive financial and branding experience

Richard's breadth of consurmer experience and considerable knowledge
of global businesses was acquired from nurmerous senior roles held

at IHG, where he was CEQ until June 2017 and served as CFO prior to that,
as well as ininvestment banking earlier nhis career

Andrew Fisher
Non-Executive Director

Appointed:
December 2015

O®

— International consumer and technology sector experience
- Extensive knowledge of high-growth digitsl businesses

Andrew is Executive Chairman of Shazam, where he has been
instrumental i developing and executing a growth strategy to establish
one of the world's leading mobile consumer brands, and brings over

20 years' expenence leading and growing numeroeus technology-
focused enterprises

COVFRNANCE

Katie Bickerstaffe
Non-Executive Director

Appointed,
tnceming July 2018

Extensive experience of retail transformation
from a career in a variety of functions in
leading UK retalers and consumer comparies
Katie will bring deep understanding of
retalland cperaticns, as well as experience
inmarketing, pecple, property, and as a
non-executive director, to M&S

With strong experience of finance and
transachions from a career at Ernst & Young
where she transformed and led the

Global Corporate Finance business, Pip's
understanding of global businesses, M4,
corporate transactions, and as a non-
executive director, will bring financial anc
analytical discipline and skills to our Board

Pip McCrostie
Non-Executive Director

Appointed.
Incoming Juty 2018

GROUP SECRETARY

Amanda Mellor
Croup Secretary and

Head of Corporate Governance

Appointed:
July 2009
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LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS

BOARD ACTIVITIES ‘

The Board is responsible
for the stewardship of
the Company, overseeing
its strategy, conduct

and affairs to create
sustainable value growth
for its stakeholders.

The following pages summarise the Board's
activibes over the course of the year
Although by no means exhaustive, the table
below provides a flavour of the discussions
and debates that take place within the
Boardroom and getails some of the ways in
which the directors have discharged ther
duty to promote the success of the Company

Dunng the year, the Board reviewed in
depth the challenges facing each of

the businesses and agreed with the
executive tearm to embark on a five-year
transformation programme designed to

make far-reaching changes to restore the
businesses to profitable growth With the
executive team it has overseen significant
changes in structure, people and
organisation to enable the first phase

of transformation

The Board has debated the Group's key rnisks,

alongwith external market nsks, ncluding

the rnplications of Brexit and mitigating

actions based on our understanding of '
the potentialimpact on the market, retail

environment, our custorners, our people

and communities and our supply base

STRATEGY & TRANSFORMATION

GOVERNANCE & RISK

BOARD DISCUSSIONS,

TOPIC BOARD PISCUSSIONS, DECISIONS AND ACTIONS TOPIC DECISIONS AND ACTIONS
Strategic — Discussed the ongoing transformation strategy with a continued focus Regulatory - Oiscussed developmentsinthe UK regulatory
pnorities on dnving sustainable, profitable growth, addressing extant structural environment  ervironment and the internal governance

Store estate

International
operations

Supply chain

Technological
capabilities

Finance

challenges and restoring the basics

Agreed the next phase of our transformation, focusing on establishing
M&S as the UK s essental clothing retailer, repositioning our F ood busingss,
growing International and substantiatly reducing our cost-base

iscussed business performance and the key strategic prioriies for
Food, Clething & Home and Internationat with a focus onmaking our
shopping expenence specal improving store service and simplifying
our head office structure

Agreed our strategic objective to become a digital first organisation,
with a third of our Clothing & Home sales anline

Discussed the store eslate programme, including criteria for further
openings, redevelepments and closures, and the critical need to adapt
our portfolioin a rapidly evolving market

Reviewed the necassary actions and costs associated with delivering the
strategic plan for the UK store estate

Agreed the acceleration of the Clothing & Home space ratienalisation
plan and slowing of the Simply Food store opening plan

Re-affirmed our commitment 10 retaining our position as an internationat
retaiter, and working with our key international franchise partners te builld a
growing, profitable mternational business in gur chosen markets
Discussed the evolution of the franchise modelin International, including
pricing, risks and the longer-term structure of the international business

Aggreed the sate of our wholly-owned retail business inHong Kong Lo an
existing franchise partner

Lise ussed Lhe ond=to-end supply ¢hanm | eod and eapact anavailabibty,
waste ahd polenbial e ost of licenees

Discussed our digital fulhilment capability and the need to continue to
Wvest 1 modenisng our supply ¢ham o enable ropig growth and helo
Hs matchine reasmgly fast compeliton fulfdrment rotes

Discussed the ongoing transformation of our technelogical capabilities

and ts impact on bustness culture and our suppliers

Reviewed and agreed the next stage of the technology strategy with further
debate around future requirements and areas for further development
Ongomng progress made with strategic imbiatrves focused on simplification
and reduction of costs

Discussed the Croup's capital structure and assessed the Croup s ongoing
funding reguirements under the transformation strategy

Reviewed Group perfarmance versus budget and the agreed targets

far the year and approved the budget and targets for the year ahead

Reviewed cash flow, dividend cover and sharehaolder returns, agreeing a
full-year dividend of 18 7p

processes that support key projects

- Recewed regular updates on meetings of the
Board’s prin¢ipat comimittees and discussed
the key 1ssues and topics raised

Board ~ Reviewed the Board s composition, diversity
succession and succession plans
&diversity  _ Faciilaled the Uansthion [or Lhe new ¢ hairman,
including his Induction process
— Agreed the appantment of Humphrey Singer
as Chied finance Offe er
Board - Reviewed progress against the 7017/18
Actien Plan Board Action Plan and set the Action Plan for
and review ZOIR/19, with a clear process Tor monilopng
ongoing progress
— Conducted an internally facibitated Board
rewview cavenng the Board's of fec biveness,
processes and ways of working
Risk - Conducted half-yearly reviews of the Group
Risk Profile covenng ¢ orentermal ang exdetreal
risks, risks drniven by business
change and areas of emerging risk
— Aqeeed Lhe Group-levelnsks and approgriate
rwtigating activities and reviewed the
processes and pelicies supporhing these
- Onwgang robust debale around sk, mc lodineg
nisk tolerance and factors contnbuting to any
re-evaluation of the severity of particular risks
Data = Diveussed the Gronap s cybor seclnly
governance infrastructure inught of perpetually
and cyber evolving threats
security = Receved regularn updates onthe Companiy s
preparations for compliance with GDPR
ahead of May 2018, when the regulations
come into effect
Modern - Approved the Company's Modern
Slavery Slavery Statement for publcation on

the corporate website
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of the Board, see p33

© For more information on the role

OUTSIDE THE BOARDROOM - PRIVATE SHAREHOLDER PANELS

Outside of their scheduled Board meetings, the Chief Executive, Chairman
and members of the Operating Committee attended meetings of our
Private Shareholder Panels held throughout the year, strengthening inks
between the Company and our retall nvestors

The paneldiscussed a range of topics important to our retail investors
and feedback from these meetings has been extremely positive

For more information on how we engage with investors and our other
stakeholders, see pages 30-31

PEOPLE & CULTURE

CUSTOMERS, INVESTORS
& SUPPLIERS

BOARD DISCUSSIONS,

TOPIC BOARD DISCUSSIONS, DECISIONS AND ACTIONS TOPIC DECISIONS AND ACTIONS
People - Reviewed the people strategy and current priorities in terms of succession, Retail - [nscussed the challenging retal rmarket,
strategy & talent development and diversity across the business environment rmarket share, store footfall, competition
capabilities - Discussed changes during the year inkey rotes and appomntments and and market dynamics
erganisational structure to support the strategy = Discussed the announced store closure
program me and impact on customer,
Culture & = Discussed the necessary shift required in the culture and values of investor and colieague sentiment
way:.of :fwehbu5|l}ess to drive our tra?sformat\on strategy and become a - Discussed the key drivers For consumer
working nigh-performance orgarisation sentiment, impact on consurmer confidence,
- Approved the consobdation and reconfiguration of our office space to spending intentions and the economy
better align with our ‘Smarter Working principles
Brand and - Discussed the viabilty of an M8S online
Employee - Continuedto encourage strong engagement between leadership and customer tood delivery offer and approved a limited
engagement colleagues across the business proposition trial ko run aver the course of the year
- Roeviewoed and evatuated Lie results of the annual Your Say survey - Bvaluated the customer insight research
completed by colleagues fromacress the business andhdentified areas conducted during the year and assessed
of mprovernant resulting recommendations, Including those
= st ussed colleagae sentiment, key areas of concermand the cmployoee i respect of our brand posttioning, store
perspechve of M&S's future opporturities and risks environments and customer offer
- Inwted the Charr of the Business Invalvernent Group (BIC), our employee Investors - Reviewed independent study of major
representative body, toattend @ Board mechingto discass the € ompany s Investors’ views on our management
strategy and future plans from the perspective of colleagues from and performance, conducted by KPMG
across the Company's stores and offices Makinson Cowell
Communities & = [etlecled ot e mpact andd acbuevernents of Plan A over Ehe Lo years - Reviewed the Company s financial results
Plan A since launch, and discussed how Plan A can be shaped to benefit our and press releases and approved the
customers and the commursties in which we operate over the next decade Annual Report and year-end disclosures
= Reviewed the progeess made towarcds our Plan A ammitmonts i 200 /148 Suppliers - Continued toincresse the breadth and depth
of our work inthe area of modern slavery
Cender pay — Discussed the Company's gender pay gap inthe context of the - Reviewed codes of practice nrelation to
wider market our foed suppliers
Diversity & - Discussed our agenda to address the pipeline of women into serior AGM - Reviewed specificissues raised by
inclusion roles and to drive greater diversity and inclusion, in terms of gender, shareholder s to be addressed in the

ethricity and social background, within the business

Chairrmans AGM statement

Agreed the key topics raised by shareholders
to be communicated together with an update
onthe Company s progress in these areas

=
:

COVERNANCE
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HOW WE =ENCAGE
& RESPOND

Qur rich network of
stakeholder relationships
upholds the values on
which M&S was founded.
These relationships are
even more vital during
this period of change.

OUR APPROACH

SHAREHOLDERS

COLLEAGUES

Engaging with our stakeholders is
fundamental to the way we do business

at M&S We have over 160,000registered
shareholders, 81,000 colleagues and 32
rmillion customers We source our products
from suppliersin over 70 countnas These
indnaduals, businesses and comrnunities
are allintegral to our business We will only
be able to successfully transform M&S
with ther nput, cooperation and trust

As a Board, stakeholder considerations are
woven throughout our discussions and
decisions Like any business, sometimes we
have to take decisions that adversely affect
one or more of these groups and,in such
cases, we always ensure that those
Impacted are treated farrly

We have invested in the development
and involvement of our stakeholder
communities as we believe itis tha nght
thing to do, not only for our stakeholders
but for our business These pages provide
a snapshot of jJust some of the ways In
which we do this

COLLEAGUE ENGACEMENT SCORE

2%

While the Annual GeneralMeeting has
traditionally been seen as the highlight
of the shareholder calendar, we believe
that engagement with our private
shareholders and institutionalinvestors
should be an ongoing process, not
something we think about once a year
We connect with shareholders onan
ongoing basis through a vanety of
channelsincluding face-to-face
meetings, webcasts, and anincreasing
arnount of onbne content

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM)

Qur 2017 ACM was well attended and all cur proposeg
resolutions were paszed, w thvotes nfavour -anging
fror= 8357%to 33 39% We have been croviding live
webcasts of our ACM: and preliminary and inter m
anno.ncements for over a decade, bringing theze
events te thousands of shareholder: all over the world

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS

We go beyond our statutory obligations to provide
what we hopeis aholistcand engaging view o° the
businessinalanguage that everybody canunderstang
Addedtsthiz sawealth of anbne content which s
publicly available onour corporate web:ite

ONCOING ENCAGEMENT

Members of our senior management and Investor
Relatinrs teamsz held 450 meet ngs w th 272 different
mst tubions during 2017718 Inaddition, Arch e Norman
met with a number of our sharehziders prior tohis
appointme~t az Charman and continues Lo meet
with institutionalinvestors to dizcuss keyissues

INVESTOR PERCEPTION STUDY

Fach year the Board recerves anindependent report
Irorr Makinson Cowell on our Majar imvestors views
onour management and performance This enables
us to mont or what we re doing nght and where we
needioincreare ourfocus

PRIVATE SHAREHOLDER PANEL

Following a successfultriallast year, we have now
formalised these regular meeting s witn groups of
private shareholders ~hese are typically attended by
eithor the CEQ or g member of sentor management
and give private sharehalders the rare opportunity
to shasa thesr views i an mformal sething

ASSET REUNIFICATION

Trough search programmes and changes 1o how
wo pay dividends we proactively seek to unite
sharaholder- promplly with therr shares and
dradend payrments

We are committed to making M&S a great
place towork To do thys, it1s vital that
colleagues are engaged with the
business, especially now at the start

of this period of change

BUSINESS INVOLVEMENT GROUP (BIC)
Engagement with our ¢ 81,000 calleagues 1s

fac nated through BIG a network of ¢ 3400 elected
representatives from across all parts of the business
Laca' BiGteamsregularly feed back to Natisnal BIG,
whaose charman inturnrepresents the collective
colleague voce throughregular meetings with

the Charman and CEG This year, BiGaztended a
Board mectingand go ng forward willalso attenda
Rernureration Zommitree meeting each year

BIC played a2 keyrolein the store closure programme
1N 2017/18 helping to mitigate personal mpact to
colleagues while supporting the business objective
of rationzlisng t-e UK s'are estate

COLLEAGUE UPDATES

Colleagues are kept informes or performance and
strategy through reguiar busimess area’huddles as
well as ezl Skype and socalmeda updates from
menbers of tne Board and 56 or management Store
colleaguesalsn tharet~eir views with directors and
senior managers through listening groups in-store
reundtsbles andonline forums Deoicated nformation
Isatso Proviaes ongur pension schemes

© DIVERSITY & INCLUSION

This year we wereagainrecognised inthe T mes
Top 50 Empleyers forwomen (eight years rurring)
Weran four employee-led hetwaorks on gender,
ethricity {BAME) sexual orentahon (LCBT+) and
health conditionz These networks grve avoice b
under-represented groups provide oeer-to-peer
support and heip toinfluence the Company to
becormemoreinclusive We alsohetd our second
Drversity & Inclusion fectival engaging thousands
of colleaguer across MES

TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

Awide number of Initiative~ and prog-ammeas are
availlabte to coldeagues ocres: the business including
subyect-specific czurses, nspirabional talks, and
me-torng programmes

© VOLUNTEERING

Dugpmieg 2017 1= thousands o1 colleague. volunteoted
ovnt 3000 s Tworktire tohelp hundreds of
corrmnunity projged Us Our stares rgised over Limfor
 hanily and distyibuted over one mithon mieats Lo

laye duorgani-abions

YOUR SAY SURVEY

Gurannual Your Say' survey gives Lsaninformes
picture o now colleagues feet about the business
Qver 68 000 of our col eagues choose to particicate
and sharethey feedback Theengagement scoreth s
year was strongat 82%



CUSTOMERS

31
ANNUA| REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATFMFNTS 2018

COMMUNITY

Key

o Fink Lo Nan A

SUPPLIERS

Our Insight tearm constantly gathers and
analyses feedback from our customers
to understand what they want from M&S
In addition te sharing key findings with
the directors, we focusedin 2017/18 on
making our wealth of nsight avallable
throughout all levels of the business to
ensure decisions are based on facts This
has enabled us tomprove the shopping
experience and to better understand
how we need to position the business

DIRECT FEEDBACK

We getd rect feedback fromour customersthroagha
variely of channets including surveys face-to-faze
interviews a~g online nput Dunng the year we
launched 3 new - tat ve which g ves customers the
oppoert.nity ts ‘eed back, either on ine or by telephane
onevery transactic~ uzing information from their
online or storereceipt Thizinformatiois collated
centrally and allows us to wpot commen tnemes

quick v Insight s “henrouted tot~e relevant .eams
within M&S so that achion can be taken

CURVE

F~gaging whour plus-sized customersto better
underst and the  clathing needs 1ae~bified thst they
aftenfelt gnoredinthec sthing market and were
unable to fima siylish clothesthat fit we | We worked
cires tly with hesecgstomers boe ratl arange
sprogific ally designed ton shapely fguares, on ginecred
terfil gnid Mgt e with dos g thal arenight crifrend

RETAILER CHOICE

52 000 pecpletook patt in curcomprehensive siudy
nto why customers choose o~eretaler over another
Crtically, this ersuredthat the gap between M&Sand
key competitors was well understood and hasinformed
curdecisions avout where toinvest surresources

QUICK TO COOK

Insight abo.t cur customersled us todevelop a rew
range zf part-presared meal solutions that satisfy our
customers needfor ultra-fass, proten-packed meals

FOOTWEAR NAVIGATION

Customers told u- that we <k su dsimpl “y how
we display our footwear a~g arrange it by end u<e
{e g work orcatiz~ spors} Wetook ther feedback
on board and custorners now “ nd it easier to iind
what they want

@ SPARKS CARD

HEmitlon Spacks card hatders currently receve
taloresoffercplusthe chance toengLgewitha Plan A
char typartner of thew chore Owver f2mhas been
rased to date

At the heart of M&S's engagement with
the community s Plan A, our socialand
environmentat sustanability
programme Building on tensuccessful
years of this initiative, we launched Plan A
2025 inJune last year, with three man
goals to help 10 million people ive
happier and healthier ives, to help
transform 1,000 communities,and to
become a zero-waste business Find out
more at marksandspencer.com/plana

© COMMUNITY TRANSFORMATION

We aim Lo secure meaningfu economic soc aland
emaronmenta beneftsto 1200 cornmu~ Tes around
our stores and bey~nd by 2025 We held face-to-face
consultations withreprasent atives fromten pitot
communibies this year te find out what treywant us
to achieve and now Fave detailed actionplans and
measurement sys ems in place for these

© TOWN CENTRE REGENERATION

Bulding ontre Businessin the Community-tacked
Healthy High Streets progra—™e 58ofourreta .
rmanagers have p ayed hands-on lead rolesin
collaborations toimprove town snd city centres,
during the year inciuding 2 w.de range of activities

te support the developme~L of Business Imcrovement
Dstricts (BIT s} across the UK

© WORK EXPERIENCE

o Marks & 5 ar Lwe provid o work exppenens e
tear thotsaneds of disadvantaged peop'c acrass the
UK and infermabionatly Thisyear we ol ored over 3,600

work placements worldwade, with cver 60% of -nose
completing a placerment nthe UK 2r Regublic of Ireland
going o~ tofind work

@ LOCAL FUNDRAISING

This year, 502 of our storesin the UKand the
Republic of I-eland adopted a char ry o “he year
andhelpedtoraise over £1m 514 ~f pur stores
donated surplus foodto localchanties M&S stares
ini~oiaalsoraizea inexcess of F40000ma d of
twoIndian ¢ nanties

M&S COMPANY ARCHIVE

- Over 43,000 peacle enjoyed discoverning the MRS
story hrough our Marks in Tirme Exhitit onand the
Archive z excit ngprogramme of eventsin 2017418
Vizit marksintime.marksandspencer com

- Qur sward-winning pregramme now ha, anstwork
of50speca ly tra nedHeritage Ambassadors in
<tgresacres: the K de wennginspiring
heritage taseo sessionsinlocy' schoals

- \We we expanded “he Archive - -upport for peop ¢ with
dermentioby exte ~cing ourrange of archive basedd
mermnany boxes whic = ase freete corrowfor care
home: andday cenre across the UK

- ndarch 2014 the Archive wao Tucceosfulinattaming
sccreditea status from Nabionzl Archives the fiest
ever retal ar-hive te oo se

As one of the most trusted brandsin

the high street, we believe we have a
responsibility to be afar partner to our
supphers This covers the prices we pay
our suppliers to the support we provide
to the communities where we trade

It also means ensuring good working
conditions throughout our supply chans
and sourcing our products with integrity

g
§
8
E
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PREVENTING MODERN SLAVERY

We ~ave continpedtc ncrease the depth and breadth
of ourwork nthe area of rmodern slavery ensunng we
have nplace the most effective responses to potential
nsk Further details o* our efforts to eradicate modern
slavery throughout our supply chains and operations
are avaloble in cur 2018 Modern Slavery statement
which s available online

© GLOBAL COMMUNITY PROGRAMME
Fhe MAS Clobal Cormmunty Prograrmime aumn . to
mprove the bives sConemil e peeplomour sapphiods’
com munibesty 20259 Duningihe yoear thoe prograrmeme
ncluded projectsacress ~ine coustriesonissues
ncluding heath finance farm ngandgender equality

GLOBAL SCURCING PRINCIPLES

Allour suppliers of goods a~d services aserequired
ta cornply vath our Clobal Sourcng Principles whizh
recuire them te provide good wor king co~aiticns,
respect workers "umannignts a~abe subject to
apuropriare ethicatmonitenng Fozd suppliersare
atso considered as part of cur annual CSCTPreport

GCOVERNANCE

SUPPLIER COLLABORATION

Through collacorative workshops andtzol«its wework
wath suppliers to streamline processes and optimise
volumeas The resyltant savings are reinvestedin price
and auality and shared with supptiers to help them
create further efficiere es

TRAINING AND SUPPORT

We offer cur supplersand partners arange of
traming and developr-ent crportunities includi~g
co~fereces and practical workshops Thesecover o
range of topics ncluding lozallaws and sharing best
prachice examplesto accelerate embedding respect
forhuman nghtsinto therr businesses

DAIRY FARM INITIATIVES

We conti~ e to guarantee our pool of ded.cated d siry
far~ers g se” price forfresh milk u~oe-our '™ kP edge
Mus progra——¢ Durning the year we al-obecamethe
fir-t major facd retaler to have allitz milk procucing
daryfarmeaswuredbythe RSP2AfO- animal welfare

SUPPLIER SATISFACTION '
Mea urirgsuppliersatiofact ~amonticaltooor
urserstanding _f howwell we e engazing with thom
We . retheindependont Advantage Report Mrror
to survey a propar bion of Gur Zwn brand (MAS Brand)
Lpplier batc eachyear In 201/ we wererinked
cocn s roveralloat of theveve ~particpating retaler
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SOARD COMPOSITION
& Al TENDANCE

BOARD COMPOSITION, ROLES AND ATTENDANCE AS AT YEAR END

MAX UNKED TO
CHAIRMAN ATTENDED POSSIBLE INDEPENDENT  RESPONSIBIUTY IN 2017/18 REMUNERATION
Archie Norman 6 6 Board governance and perfarmance, shareholder engagement
Robert Swannell 2 2 Board governance and performance, shareholder engagement
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Chief Executive Strategy and Group performance o
Steve Rowe 8 8
Chief Finance Officer Group Finanaial Performance, Property, o
Helen Weir 8 8 IT and Clothing & Home distribution
Executive Director Customer, Marketing and M&S com o
Patrick Bousquet-
Chavanne 8 8
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Vindi Banga 8 8 0 Independent non-executive directors assess, challenge and monitor the executive

directors delivery of strategy within the nisk and governance structure agreed by the Board
Alison Brittain 8 8 o As Board Committee members, they also review the integrity of the Company s financial
informaticn, recommend appropriate succession plans and monitor Board diversity

Miranda Curtis [ 6 9
Andrew Fisher 8 8 [ /]
Andy Halford 8 8 o
Richard Solomons 8 8 (]

This table provides details of scheduled meetmgs heldin the 201 718 financial year

© For information on what the Board did during
the year, see Board Activities on p28-29

BOARD MEETINGS

INDEPENDENCE OF DIRECTORS

The Board held eight scheduled meetings
during the year, and individual attendance
15 set out above Sufficient irme s provided
atthe start and end of each meeting for
the Charman to meet privately with the
Senior Independent Director and the
non-executive directors to discuss any
matters ansing

The Beard reviews the independence The Board considers that all of the

of its non-executive directors as part of non-executive directors bring strong

its annual Board Effectiveness Review independent oversight and continue

The Charrmanis committed to ensuring to demonstrate Independence The Board
the Board comprises a majority of recognises the recommended term within
Independent non-executive directors the UK Corporate Covernance Code

who objectively challenge managernent, It 1s mindful of the neead for suitable
balanced against the need to ensure succession, and therefore mantains
continuity on the Board None of the aclear record of the time each non-
non-executive directors have served execubive has served the Company

more than seven full years on the Board and the skill-set that each provides

@ See details and experience of each director onp26-27
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RESPONSIBILITIES AND
OVERSIGHT

ROLE OF THE BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES

The Board i1s responsible for the
stewardship of the Company, overseeing
Its strategy, conduct and affars to create
sustainable value for the benefit of its
shareholders The Board recogrises that
tobe successfulover the long-term, it has
awder duty to a broader stakeholder
community whose supportis required to
create sustainable value It 1s therefore
essential that the Board constders the
impact of the business and its decisions on
our colleagues, customers, shareholders,
supplers and the communities inwhich
the Company operates Pages 30and 31
highlight how we consider and engage
with our stakeholders

The Board discharges some of its
responsibilities directly and others through
its Board Committees and management
Board and Cornrittee Terms of Reference
areincluded in our Governance Framework,
published on our corporate website

The Board agrees, and has coilective
responsibibty for, the strategy of the
Company, whichis outlined on pages )
to 24 The Board delegates the execution
of the Company’s strategy, day-to-day
management and operation of the
Company’s business to the Operating
Commuttee, andis responsible for
overseeing, guidingand holding to
account managermeant In carrying out
theseresponsibilities

The Board s responsible for

= Ensuring leadership through effective
oversight and review Supported by its
Board Committees, the Board sets the
strategic direction and aims to deliver
sustainable shareholder value over
the longer term,

- Overseeing the mplementation of
appropriate nsk assessment systems
and processes to identify, manage
and mitigate the principal risks of the

BOARD REVIEW

Company's business Much of this work
1s delegated to the Audt Committee
(see pages 36-41),and

- Effective succession planning at Board
level and for assessing the processes in
place to ensure that there 1s appropnate
succession planning amongst senior
rmanagement Much of this work 15
delegated to the Nomination
Committee (see pages 34-35)

Inaddtion to the other mattersreferred to
inits framework, the Boardis responsible
for specific matters relating to strategy,
finance, sk management, culture, ethics
and behaviours, legal, reputaticn and
public company management,internal
controland audit These matters, along
with the individualroles of the Board
members, are covered by the ‘Schedule
of Matters Reservedto the Board in our
Governance Framework, which is available
on our corporate website

Qur annual Board Review gives us the
opportunity toreflect on the effectiveness
of cur activities, the range of our
discussions, quality of our decisions

and for each member to consider therr
own performance and contribution

Thus year our review was faciitated
internally by our Group Secretary and Head
of Corporate Governance, Amanda Mellor
Amandawas considered a suitable and
independent sounding board for this
process, given her insight into the day-
to-day workings of the Board andits
Committees and the support and acvice
provided to Board mermbers throughout
the year In line with previous years, focused
one-te-one discussions were held with
each director around the following topics

~ Compositicn, skills, balance, experience
and dwersity of the Board,

~ Cullure and quality of contrnibutions,
- Strategic and nsk debate,

~ Succession planning,

- Effectiveness of decision making,

- Resourcing of meetings, agenda
planning, guality of information,

- Corporate governance, regutatory
compliance and associated support,

- Bvaluation of indmdual performance
and areas for improvement, and

- Committee effecbiveness and
communications to the Board

Following the Board review, the Senior
Independent Director meet with directors
toreview the Chairman's performance This
review)s then shared with the Chairman

Allrecommendations are based on
best practice as descnbed inthe UK
Corporate Governance Code and
other current guidelines

Qwerall the Board 1s considered a high
calibre team, with a breadth of skils and
experience contributing awide range of
perspectives and challenge Thereisa
deep sense of commitment to M&S

The Chairmanship of Archie Normanis
viewed highly positively infocusing the
business agenda and purpose Board
discussions are generally considered
openand challenging, with participation
of members actively encouraged

The Board awayday was muchimproved
and considered more productivemn terms

of theissues covered, with better
discussion and debate with the additional
involvement of the Operating Comrrittee
and other colleagues The quality of papers
alongwith comprehensive pre-reads to
support discussions were substantially
improved on previous years Talentand
succession was considered wellmanaged
during the year Continued exposure to
colleagues across the business s
considered essential to ensure greater
insight on talent developrment and
capabilities Covernance knowledge,
information and engagement with
stakeholders was considered good and
Board members felt well supported

Board committees were all considered to
work wellwith thorough debate, a clear
grasp of issues and subject knowledge
Committees are considered to be well
chaired and managed

The Board has agreed anaction plan for
the year ahead, with actions addressing
the key areas of board oversight and focus
ondriving the transformation, reviewing
key performance indicators and ensuring
these are linked to the business objectives
Further imibatives to drive Board
involverment inthe business are in progress

[
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LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS

NOMINATION
COMMITTEZ REPORT

“The Committee is
focused on supporting
the development of
capabilities and talent
across the business”

ARCHIE NORMAN CHAIRMAN OF THE
NOMINATIONC OMMITTEL

INTRODUCTION

In my introduction to the Governance pages
of this report on page 25, | referenced the
importance to the business of an engaged
Board that offers both support and robust
challenge to our executive management,
an approach that underpinned the work
undertaken by the Nomination Committee
{the *Committee ) inlight of the numerous
changes tothe Board over the past year

In September 2017, my predecessor,
Robert Swannell, retired after almost
seven years as Chairman Miranda Curtis,
anon-executive director since 2012,
stepped downin February 2018 Helen Werr
and Patrick Bousquet-Chavanne left the
Board nMarch and April 2018 respectively
Helen will be replaced by Humphrey Singer
when he Joins the business in the surmnmer
On behalf of the Beard, lwould Uke to
thank Robert, Helen, Patrick and Miranda
for thewr significant contributions during
their tenures

This year the Committee’s actvities covered
director capabilities and succession
planning The Board has long believed that
diversity, together with the night blend of
skills and expenence, 1s an essential element
of an effective board This was a key
consideration of the Committeeinits
search for additions to our team

In May 2018, we announced that

Katie Bickerstaffe and Pip McCrostie
wouldjoin the Board, subject to ther
election at the Annual General Meeting
n.July 2018 Following these appointments,
fermale directors willcornprise 30% of

our Board

The Commitiee also continues to take
anactive Interestin the guality and
development of talent and capabilities
below board tevel, ensuring that appropnate
oppoertunities are inplace to develop
high-performing individuals and to buld
diversity In senior roles across the business

EFFECTIVENESS OF THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE REVIEW

NOMINATION COMMITTEE ACTIVITY

The Committee's performance was
reviewed within the framework of the
2017/18 internal Board Review The
Committee s regarded as engaged and
chaltenging It was particularly neted
for the additional tme provided by 1ts
members for a number of unscheduled
meetings to support key Board and
senior management appaintments
during the year

During the year, the Comrmittee held
nurnerous unscheduled meetings

in support of the search for senicr
appointments and continued to support
the ongoing guality, development
and capabilities of our senicr talent
The Committee recommendedthe
appointment of the Chairman, two
non-executive directors andthe
appointment of Humphrey Singer as
CFCto the Board

Archie Norman met with colleagues from
stores, distrnibution centres and cffices,
alongwith shareholders and other
stakeholders as part of hus induction

ACTION PLAN 2018/19
For 2018/19, the Committee plans to

- Continue to review succession plans
for the Board and key roles across
the business

— Continue to review future talent pipeline

- Review development intiatives
for directors

MEMBER NUMEER OF MAXIMUM % OF MEETINGS
SINCE MEETINGS POSSIBLE ATTENDED
ATTENDED MEETINGS
MEMBER ATTENDANCE
Robert Swannell 40ct2010 1 1 100%
Archie Norman 1 Sept 2017 2 2 100%
Vindi Banga 3Sept 201 5 5 100%
Alison Brittan 1 Jan 2014 5 5 100%
Miranda Curtis 3Fek 2012 4 4 100%
Andrew Fisher 1 Dec 2015 5 5 100%
Andy Halford 1Jan 2013 5 5 100%
Steve Rowe 72 Apr 2016 5 5 100%
Richard Sclomons 13 Apr 2015 5 5 100%
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Our objective of driving the benefits of
a diverse Board, senior management
team and wider workforce is
underpinned by our Board Diversity
Policy ("the Policy’), which can be
viewed on our corporate website.

The Board keeps the Policy under
review to ensure it remains an effective
driver of diversity in its broadest

sense, having due regard to gender,
ethnicity, background, skill-set and
breadth of experience.

BOARD DIVERSITY: PROCRESS UPDATE

Maintain a level of at least 30%
female directors on the Board

over the short- to medium-term.
Following the departures of Helen Weir
andMrranda Curtis during the year, the
level of fernale representation on our
Beardreduced from 30% in February
2018 to 14% In May 2018 In May 2018,
we announced that Katie Bickerstaffe
and PipMcCrostie would join the Board,
subject to ther election at the Annual
General Meetingin July 2018 Following
these appointments, female directors
will comprise 30% of our Board

The Board s commutted teits target for
fermale representation and s mindful of the
target set out In the Hampton-Alexander
Review of 33% fermale representation by
2020 The Committee will continue to make
recommendations for new appointments
to the Board based on mernit, with
candidates measured against obyjective
criteria and with regard to the skills and
expernence they would bring to the Beard

Cur principles for board diversity also
apply to cur Operating Committee where
fernale representation currently stands

at 33% The Board continues to strengthen
the pipeline of senior female executives
within the business, and ensure that there
are nobarners to women succeeding at the
highest levels within M&S We are pleased
that M&S was listed in The Times Top 50
Employers for Wormnenin 2018 for the
eighth year running

@ See p20 of our Plan A Report for further
information on diversily actoss M&S avallable
at marksandspencer.com/planaz018

Ensure long lists of potential
non-executive directors include
50% female candidates.

Alllong Lists for potential future
non-executive director appointments
include at least 50% female candidates

Consider candidates for appointment
as non-executive directors from a wider
pool, including those with experience
outside of traditional listed boards.
During the year, the Nomination
Committee discussed non-executive
director appointments and succession

It worked closely with executive search
agencies:ncompiling long and short lists
of candidates fror vanous backgrounds
and industnes Candidates weredentified,
nterviewed and measured agamst
pre-deterrmined cnteria Althcugh we
donot currently openly advertise our
non-executive director positions, we

keep this under review

Only engage executive search firms who
have signed up to the Voluntary Code
of Conduct for Executive Search Firms
an gender diversity and best practice,
The Board supports the provisions of the
Voluntary Code of Conduct for Executive
Search Firms and enly engages executive
search firms whoare signateries to

this code During the year, ourwork on
suUCCessIon was supported by Russel
Reynolds and JCA Neither firmhas any
other connection with the Company aside
from the prowision of recruitrment services

Assist the development of a pipeline of
high-calibre candidates by encouraging
a broad range of senior individuals
within the business to take on additional
roles to gain valuable board experience.
The Roard continues te support and
encourage initiatives that strengthen

the pipeline of executive talent inthe
Company It continues tc learn from
existing programmes, while ntroducing
new initiatives to provide development
oppertunities to drive the quality of

talent throughout the business

Key activities include

- Acomprehensive talent review
presented to the Board, mapping
successional candidates and
opportunities across all senior
roles within the business

- Initiatives for high potential talent to
identify and partner key senior talent
across the business, broadening thair
skill-sets and expenence to prepare
thern for future opportunities This
has been supported through greater
Boardroom exposure, nan-executive
and Trustee roles outside of M&S,
involvernent in senior pipeline
pregrammes and parbicipation in
mentoring schemes

- Access to business school traming

= Senior management mentoring
and coaching schemes and
execubive director-sponsored
engagement forums

Report annually against these
objectives and other initiatives
taking place within the Company
which promote gender and other
forms of diversity.

Diversity and inclusion have continued
to be prormnoted across the business
with a numker of Initiatives

~ Employee-led networks on gender,
ethrucity (BAME), sexual onentation
(LCBT+) and health conditions This year,
we held our second Diversity & Inclusion
festival, engaging thousands of
colleagues across M&S

= Continued involverent in the 30% Club,
an organisation committed to increasing
fernale representation on UK boards

- Active involvernent in key campaigns
including LGBT+ Pride celebrabons,
International Women's Day, Black
History Month, Nationat Inclusion
Week, Mental Health Awareness Week
and World Disability Day, raising
awareness and our profile as an
inclusive place to work

- Our programmes to help people n cur
communities, ncludmg Marks & Start
and Marks & Start International, continue
to support young people, the homeless,
{cne parents and those with disabilities
in finding work in our stores and
distribution centres

3
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ACCOUNTABILITY

AUDIT COMMIT EE

“The Committee plays
an essential role in
safeguarding the interests
of shareholders through
continual review,
challenge and debate”

ANDY HALFORD CHAIRMAN (OF THE
AU OMMITILL

REPORT

INTRODUCTION

As Chairman of the Audit Committee
(the“Committee”), lam pleased to present
the Committee's report for the year ended
31 March 2018 The following pages
provide aninsight iInto how the Committee
discharged its responsibiities during the
year and the key topics that it considered
Indoing so

There were no significant changes to the
Committee’s primary functions this year,
which included monitoring the integnity of
the Company’s financial statements and
maintairmng anappropnate relahonship
with Deloitte, the Company’s Auditor Also
corewas reviewing the Company’s internal
controls and systems of internal control
and risk managernent, which included

the alignment of risk and strategy in the
context of sector disruption thproviding

MEMBERSHIP AND MEETINGS

this Independent oversight, the Committee
continued to ensure that shareholder
interests in relation to the Company’s
financial reporting and systerns of

internal controlare protected

This year, preparations for the
mplermentation of GDPR necessitated
the Committee's ncreased focus on the
nterrelated 1ssues of data governance,
cyber security and business continuity,
with one or more of these subjects
considered at each of our meetings
Another major area of consideration was
the UK store estate and in particular the
accountingjudgements in relationto
store closures Further nformation en
these and other key areas considered
by the Committee during the year can
be found within this report

MEMBERSHIP

MEETINGS

The Committee s cormnpnsed solely of
independent non-executive directors,
whose names are set out below Miranda
Curtis retired from the Board and the
Committee on 1 February 2018 Detalled
infermation on the experience, skills and
qualifications of all Committee members
can be found on pages 26 and 27

MEMBER ATTENDANCE

The Board has confirmed that it s satisfied
that Committee memiers possess an
appropriate level of ndependence and
offer a depth of financial and commercial
experience across various industries,
including the sector inwhich the Company
operates The Board has also confirmed
that it 1s satisfred that Andy Halford
possesses recent and relevant financial
experience and thereguisite competence
Inaccounting

MEMBER NUMBER OF MAXIMUM % OF MEETINGS
SINCE MEETINGS POSSIBLE ATTENDED
ATTENDED MEETINGS
Andy Halford 1Jan 2013 5 5 100%
Alison Bnttamn 11 Mar 2014 5 5 100%
Miranda Curhig' 4Mar 2015 3 4 75%
Andrew Fisher 3Fek 2018 5 5 100%

 Miranda Zurt s was unable to atte ~d the meeting on 14 Septe~cer 2017 due Lo an external business commitme-t She
retred frz-nthe Board and the Committee on 1 February 2018 sowas no” eligible to attend the neeting on 13 Mare~

The Committee held five meetings during
the year Members of sermor management
were invited to attend these meetings as
andwhen their specialist technical
knowledge was required

The Committee also met without
management present before each full
meeting We also met privately with the
lead Audit partners, and separately with
the Head of Internal Audit & Risk, after
each Committee meeting

As Committee Chairrman, itis important
that | fully understand any key areas of
concern sothat | canfacilitate a meaningful
dialogue during Committee meetings

To support this,imeet regularly ona
one-to-one basis with the Chief Finance
Officer, Director of Group Finance, Head

of Internal Audit & Risk, other members

of senior management, and the lead

Audit partners
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COMMITTEE EFFECTIVENESS

EFFECTIVENESS REVIEW

2018/19 ACTION PLAN

TheCommittee's performance was
reviewed within the framework of the
20718 internal Board review (discussed
onpage 33 Feedback on the breadth of
oversight, level of challenge and quality of
Beoard updates provided by the Committee
was highly positive The Committeeis
considered to function well, with structured
meetings and good engagement and
¢hallenge prowided across its remit by all
rmembers It continues to be regarded as
thorough and effective, although rmundful of
the timeimplications of its expanding brief

It continues to provide the Board with a
high level of assurance that audit matters
are dealt with appropriately

The Cemmittee made good progress on
the 2017/18 action plan, particularly in
relation to the Internal Audit effectiveness
review and implementation of the key
findings The Committee was also
cormmended for its review and challenge
inrelation to GOPR preparedness and
cyber secunty protocols The Committee
will build onthisin 2018/19

COMMITTEE ACTIVITIES

- Continue to monitor the
recommendations of the internal

Audit effectiveness review undertaken

N 2017/18

- Continue to oversee the company-wide

nsk and assurance mapping

- Continue to monitor oversight of data

governance and cyber security controls

CORE ACTIVITIES

The Committee undertock the following
core actvities during the year

- Monitored the integnty of the annual
andg intenm financial statements,
with a focus on key accounting
policies and Judgements

- Reviewed the Company's internal
controls and risk management
processes

- Maintained the relationship with the
external auditor, ncluding monitoring
ther Independence and effectiveness

- Monitored and reviewed the
effectiveness and independence
of the Comgpany’s Internal Audit
and Risk function

- Reviewed the effectiveness of the
Company's whistlebtowing procedures

- Reviewed and approved the Company's
staternent of compliance with the
Crocenes Supply Code of Practice

- Reviewed the Board's approach
to assessing the Company's
long-terrmn viability

- Assessedwhether the Annual Report,
taken as a whole, is farr, batanced and
understandable

INTERNAL CONTROL UPDATES

The Committee receives updates on
internal control matters at each meeting
This regular monitoning of theinternal
control framework allows timely
identification of 1Issues and formal tracking
of remediaticn plans Instances where the
effectiveness of internal cantrols was
considered insufficient were discussed
during the year, either by the Audit
Committee or the full Board These have
included controls inrelation to furniture
returns, fixed asset classification, corporate
gift cards, and UK store estate strategy

The Committee also monitors those
elements of the control framework that,
by necessity, are subject toregular review,
challenge and update, most notably

N relation to cyber secunity As part of

the annual review of internal control,

the Committeerevisits these matters
toensure agreedactionsare being
implemented to support a pregramme of
maintaining and improving internal control

The Committee noted the findings
highlighted inthe External Auditor Report
and confirms that it 1s satisfied that there
1sno matenal misstatement and that
relevant actions are being taken to resolve
the control matters raised

MANAGEMENT UPDATES

The Committee recaives detalled updates
from one or more business areas at each
of its meetings These presentations are
schaduled onarolling 12-month basis, with
additicnal matters identified by Internal
Audit added throughout the year as they
arnise The foliowing is an overview of scme
of the updates presented during 2017/18

Data Governance and Cyber Security

- Recevedregular updates on the
Cornpany's extensive programme
of work towards CDPR compliance,
challenged assumptions and
rmethodologies inrelation to
readiness and milestones

- Recewved updates on initiatives to drive
dataand cyber security awareness and
cultural change across the business

- Discussedand challenged the
Company's Cyber Operations
Crisis | scalation Processes end
the communications polcies and
procedures to be invoked in the
event of an Incident

Business Continuity

- Recewved updates an the continued
strengthening of crisis managerment
and business recovery capatility across
all retal and distnibution operations

Discussed key mtiatives undertaken
dunng the year, ncluding a number
of wide-reaching crisis management
exercises and the successful
introduction of increased incigent
reporting capabiity

Endorsed the pnionties for 2018/19,
including a review of the Company’s
top 30 cnitical supplers, ongoing
assessment and testing of global
terronism and cyber security
preparedness, and continued
enhancerments to the My Safety app

Fire, Health and Safety

- Updated on performance across all
aspects of trading safely and legally
and progress made in driving
compliance standards

- Discussed recent enhancements
to internaticnal reporting Lines
and procedures

- Updated on the approach to Fire,
Health and Safety at the Castle
Donington distribution centre

- Foliowing the identification of a
masonry 1ssue at one store, discussed
action taken to review and monitor
the condition of a number of buldings
of similar age and construction

Food Safety and Integrity

- Received an update on enhancements
to the Company's approach to food
safety governance and discussed the
expected outcomes and practical
considerations

- Discussed the Company's approach
in the context of the wider food market,
rapidly evolving regulatory backdrop
and inflationary pressures

- Discussed the actions intended to
preserve the frichionless mport and
export of goods post-Brexit

- Discussed the Company's continued
efforts toinvest in the development
of technical staff

VERNANCE

o

[




38
MARKS AND SPENCFR CROUPPI C
DIRECTORS’ REPORT COVERNANCE

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

SIGNIFICANT ISSUES

The Audit Committee has assessed
whether suitable accounting policies
have been adopted and whether
management has made appropriate
judgements and estimates.

Throughout the year, the Finance team
has worked to ensure that the business

Is transparent and provides the required
levelof disclosure regarding significant
issues considered by the Cornmitteain
relation te the financial statements, as well
as how these 1ssues were addressed, while
being mindful of matters that may be
business-sensitive

This section outlines the mam areas of
Judgement that have been considered by
the Committee te ensure that appropnate
rigour has been applied Allaccounting
policies can be found innote 1 tothe
financial statements Where further
informationis provided in the notes to

the financial statements, we have
Inciuded the note reference

Eachof the areas of judgement has been
dentified as an area of focus and therefore
the Committee has alsc received detaled
reporting from Deloitte

PRESENTATION OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Committee gave consideration to the
presentation of the financial staterments
and,in particular, the use of alternative
performance measures and the
presentation of adjusting items in
accordance with the Croup accounting
policy This policy states that adjustments
are only made toreported profit before
tax whereincome and charges are
significantin value and/or nature The
Committee receved detailed reports from
management cutlining the judgements
applied Inrelation to the disclosure of
adjusting items In the current year,
management hasincluded in this category
the reducttonin M&S Bank income for
theimpact of the M&S Bank provisicn for
financial product mis-selling, net costs
assocated with the implementation of
strategic programmes inrelation to UK
store estate, UK organisation, UK logistics,
IT transformational change and the closure
of International owned businesses,
impatrments and write-of f of the carrying
value of UK stores (including assoclated
onerous leases), charges ansing N relation
to changes to pay and pensions, potential
claims/legal settlerments, and the net profit
on disposal of the Hong Kong retail
business This was an area of major focus for
the Committee, which was cognisant of the
need to ensure external disclosures are
fulsome given the significance of the

aggregate values (£514 1m charge)and the
recent guidelines en the use of alternative
performance measures issued by the
Eurcpean Securities and Markets Authority

future performance of the business are
board approved The Committee 1s satisfied
that appropriate mparment of tangible and
ntangible assets has been recognised

@ See note 5 on p83-90

PROPERTY MATTERS (INCLUDING
ASSET WRITE-OFFS, ONEROUS
LEASE CHARGES AND USEFUL
ECONOMIC LIVES)

The Committee has considered the
assessments mademnrelation tothe
accounting associated with the Group's

UK store estate strategy The Committee
receved detated reports from
management outlining the accounting
treatment of the relevant charges including
impairment, accelerated depreciation, strips
and dilapidations, redundancy and onercus
lease costs (including void periods) The
Committee has reviewed the basis for the
key assumptions used inthe estimation of
charges {most notably inrelation to the
costs associated with property exit/sub-let
costs, the sale proceeds expected to be
recovered on exit, where relevant, and the
cash flows to be generated by each CGUIn
the period to closure) The Committee has
challenged management and 15 satisfied
that these areappropriate The Comrmitiee
1s satisfied that appropriate costs and
associated provisions have beenrecognised
inthe current financial year The Committee
has considered the controls findings raised
inthe Independent Auditor’s Report on
page 68 to 76

@ Seenotes 1,5, 15and 22 on pB81-86,
P89-30, p103-104 and pll11

@ Seenotes 5, 14and 15 on p83-90
and p101-104

INVENTORY VALUATION AND
PROVISIONING

Inventory provisions include absolete
stock, net realisable value below cost and
stock loss provisions The Committee

has exammed management papers
outlimng the judgements made regarding
provisiening for inventory balances andis
satisfied that a sufficiently robust process
was followed to confirm guantities of
nventory and that net realisatle of
nventory exceeds its cost at year end

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Cornmittee has reviewed the actuaral
assurnptions such as discount rate, nftabion
rate, expected raturn of scheme assets and
rmortality, which determine the pension
costand the UK defined benefit scheme
valuation, andhas concluded that they are
appropriate The assumptions have been
disclosed inthe financial staterments The
Committee has considered the accounting
for the annuity buy-ins as disclosed on
page 83 and considers ttobe appropriate

@ Seencte 11 on p95-98

REVENUE RECOGNITION IN RELATICN
TO REFUNDS, GIFT CARDS AND
LOYALTY SCHEMES

IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL, BRANDS,
TANGIBLE AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Committee has considered the
assessments made inrelationtothe
impairment of goodwill, brands, tangible
and intangible fixed assets including tand
and buildings, store assets and software
assets The Committee receved detailed
reports from management cutlining the
treatment of iImpairments, valuation
methodology, the basis for key assumptions
{e g discount rate andlong-term growth
rate)and the key drivers of the cash flow
forecasts The Committee has challenged
managernent and is satisfied that these

are appropriate The Committee has

also understood the sensitivity analysis
used by managerment in its review of
impairments Inaddition, the business plans
detaling management’s expectations of

Revenue accruals for sales returns and
deferredincome in relation to loyalty
schere redemptions and gift card

and credit voucherredemptions are
estimated based onhistoncal returns
andredemptions The Committee has
considered the basis of these accruals,
atong with the anatysis of historicalreturns
andredemptionrates and has agreed with
the judgements reached by management

SUPPLIER INCOME

The Cormmittee s satished that this
continues to be monitored closely by
management and robust controls are in
place to ensure appropnate recognition in
the cerrect penod The financial statements
include specific disclosures in relation to
the accounting policy and of the effect

of supplier income on certan balance
sheet accounts
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FAIR, BALANCED AND UNDERSTANDABLE

At the request of the Board, the
Committee has considered whether,

in its opinion, the 2018 Annual Report
and Financial Statements are fair,
balanced and understandable, and
whether they provide the information
necessary for shareholders to assess
the Group's position and performance,
business model and strategy.

The structure of the report continues

te focus strongly on the key strategic
messages In the Strategic Report It was
therefore important for the Committee

to ensure that this emphasis did not dilute
the overall transparency in the disclosures
made throughout the report, which we
krow our stakehotders find useful, and that
the messages presented by the business
are both clear and reflective of the
Company as a whole

The Committee receivedafull draft of

the report Feeaback was provided by the
Cormmittee, highlighting the areas it was felt
would benefit from further clanty The draft
report was then amended to incorporate
this feedback ahead of finat approval

The Committee was provided with a list of
the key messages included in the Annual
Report, highlghting which were positive
and whichwere reflective of the challenges
from the year A supporting document was
also provided, specifically addressing the
following bsted ponts, highuighting where
these could be evidenced within the report

When forrmingits opimien, the Committee
reflected on the information it had received
and its discussions throughout the year.

In parbicular, the Committee considered

IS THE REPORT FAIR?

- s the whole story presented and has
any sensitive matenal been omitted
that should have been included?

- Is the reporting on the business
performance in the narrative
reporting consistent with those
used for the financial reporting in
the financial statements?

- Arethe key messages n the narrative
reflected n the financial reporting?

- Arethe KPls disclosed at an appropriate
level based on the financial reporting?

IS THE REPORT BALANCED?

- Is there a good level of consistency
between the narrative reporting in
the front and the financial reporting
in the back of the report, and does the
messaging presented within each
remain consistent when one s read
independently of the other?

- Is the Annual Report properly a
docurment for shareholders?

- Arethe statutory and adjusted
measures explained clearly with
appropriate prominence?

« Are the key judgements referred to in the
narrative reporting and the sigruficant
1ssues reported in this Audit Committee
Report consistent with the disclosures
of key estimation uncertainties and
critical judgerments set out inthe
financial statements?

~ How do the significant issues identified
compare with the rnisks that Deloitte
plans toinclude in its report?

IS THE REPORT UNDERSTANDABLE?

- Is there a clear and understandable
framework to the report?

- Are the mportant messages highlighted
appropnately throughout the document?

- Is the layout clear with good Unkage
throughout iIn a manner that reflects
the whole story?

CONCLUSION

2
:
;

Follewing its review, the Committee

was of the opinion that the 2018 Annual
Report and Financial Statements are
representative of the year and present
a fair, balanced and understandable
overview, providing the necessary
information for shareholders to assess
the Group’s position, performance,
business model and strategy.

COVERNAMNCE
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

TENURE

Deloitte was appointed by shareholders
as the Group’s statutory auditor in

2014 following a formal tender process.
The lead audit partner, lan Waller, has
held the position for four years. Following
the 2018/19 audit (his fifth year as lead
audit partnet) a new lead audit partner
will be put in place. The external audit
contract will be put out to tender at

teast every ten years.

The Committee recormmends that Deloitte
bereappointed as the Cornpany’s statutory
auditor for the 2018/19 financial year We
believe the Independence and objectmity of
the externalauditor and the effectiveness
of the audit process are safeguarded and
rematn strong The Company has complied
with the Statutory Audit Services Order for
the financal year under review

The FRC's Audht Quality Review (AQR)

team selected to review the audit of the
Company's 2016/17 financial staternents

as part of their 2017 annual nspection of
audit firms The focus of the review and their
reportingis ohidentifying areas where
improvemeants are required rather than
highlighting areas performedto or above
the expectedlevel The Charmnan of the
Audit Committee received a full copy of the
findings of the AQR team and has discussed
these with Deloitte The fincings have also
been discussed by the Audit Committee
Some matters were identified as requinng
improvermnent and we have agreed an action
plan with Deloitte to ensure the matters
dentified by the AQR have been addressed
inthe audit of the Company's 2017/18
financial staterments

EFFECTIVENESS

The effectiveness of our external auditor
isassessed in accordance with a process
agreed by the Audit Committee, which
mvolves gathening information through a
series of questionnarres tallored to the
following target groups

1. Heads of Finance: Food, Clothing

& Home and International: Short
questionnaire focusing on the audit team,
planning, challenge and interaction with
the business

2. Chief Finance Officer and Director

of Group Finance: | onger questionnaire
coverng all areas of the audit process and
taking into account the questionnaires
completed by the Heads of Finance

3. Audit Commiittee: Ahigh-level set

of questions with specific focus on
planning, execution, value, communication
and challenge The Committee was
provided with a summary of the Chief
Finance Officer and Director of Croup
Finance respenses and had access to
coples of the completed management
questionnaires (sechions 1 and 2 above)
toassist with its own considerabions

Feedback from each of the target groups
was positive overall It was agreed that the
audit partners have a good understanding
of our business as well as our values and
culture, with an ncreased awareness of
propertyissues for which specialists within
Deloitte have been leveraged Areas of
focus for the year ahead will be on driving
analysis and challenge around finance, nsk
management and internal controls findings

Adding a further Director to the teamhas
addressed previous issues with availlability
and the team now appears to be well
resourced It was also widely agreedthat a
more critical lens was now being applied,
withincreased evidence of challengen
current jJudgernents

NON-AUDIT FEES

To safeguard the independence and
abjectivity of the external auditor, the
Committee has put in place a robust
auditor engagement policy which it
reviews annually. The policy is disclosed
on marksandspencer.com/thecompany.

The Committee s satisfied that the
Cornpany was compliant dunng the year
with boththe UK Corporate Governance
Code and the FRC's Ethical and Auditing
Standards in respect of the scope and
maximum permitted level of fees incurred
for non-audit services provided by Deloitte
Where non-audit work)s performed by
Deloitte, both the Company and Deloitte
ensure adherence torobust processes to
prevent the objectivity and independence
of the auditor from being comprormised

All non-audit work performed by Deloitte
was put to the Audit Committee for
consideration and approval, regardless of
size Further details on non-audit services
provided by Deloitte can be found innote 4
tothe financal statements

The non-audit fees to audit fees ratio for
the financial year ended 31 March 2018 was
0111, compared with the previous year's
ratioof G161 The majonty of the £0 2mmn
non-audit fees paidin total to Deloitte
during 2017/18 was incurred for assurance
services provided durning the year These
comprised fees in respect of the Half Year
review, turnover certificates, the annual
Euro Medium Term Note (EMTN)
programime renewal, reviews of quarterly
trading statements and assurance services
for overseas entities itis normat practice for
suchassurance services to be provided by
the Company's statutory auditor

No additicnal recurring or one-off non-audit
services were provided durning the year

Business Consulting Services (BCS),

part of BDO Bangladesh, have been
providing employee payroll services (o
our Bangladesh regional office since 2008,
acting as a sub-contractor of Cendian

UK until March 2012 and subsequently
under a payroll service agreerment agreed
directly between M&S and BCS InMarch
2018, Deloitte UK were informed of ther
Indian firrmys intention to acquire BCS

on 1 June 2018, at which point BCS

would becormne subject to the global
ndependence restrictions for M&S which
are applied across the Deloitte network

As aresult, the payroll service will not be
permissible from 1 June 2018 This was
immediately reperted to M&S and the
Bangladesh regional office have confirmed
that these services willbe transitionedtoa
now provider before 1 June 2018
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ASSURANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL ENVIRONMENT

The Board assumes ultimate
responsibility for the effective
management of risk across the Group,
determining its risk appetite as well
as ensuring that each business area

implements appropriate internal controls.

The Group’s risk management systems
are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

@ See p22-24 of the Strateqic Report for
more information on our material risks

@ See p20-21 for further nformation on our
risk management processes

The key features of the Croup's internal
control and risk management systems
that ensure the accuracy andreliabitity of
financialreporting, nclude clearly defined
Uines of accountability and delegation

of authority, policies and procedures that
cover financial planning and reporting,
preparing consolidated accounts, capital
expenditure, project governance and
nforrmation security, and the Group's
Code of Ethics and Behaviours

SOURCES OF ASSURANCE

The Board has delegated responsibility

for reviewing the effectiveness of the
Croup's systems of internal control to the
Audit Committee This coversallmatenial
controls including financial, operational and
compliance controts and risk management
systems The Committee s supported by
anumber of sources of nternal assurance
fromwithin the Croup in order to complete
these reviews, in particular

1. Internal Audit The Croup's primary
scurce of Internal assurance remans
delivery of the Internal Audit Plan, which

15 structured toalign with the Croup's
strategic prionties and key rnisks andis
developed by Internal Audit with input frem
management Recommendations from
Internal Audit are cornmunicated to the
relevant business area forimplementation
of appropnate corrective measures, with
results reported to the Committee

During the year, the Internal Audit function
was subject to an effectivenessreview by
the Committee to ensure appropriate ways
of working Resultant actions continue to
be closely monitored by the Committee
The work completed by Internal Audit
during the year has been directed towards
key areas including informationand data
security and cross-business risks mitigation
such as management of third parties

2. Management updates Focusing
primarily on the key risks identifisd in the
Croup Risk Profile, managernent provide
updates to the Committee on how these
rnisks are managed in individual business
areas These updates are complemented
by independent reviews conducted by
Internal Audit

3. Functional assurance Responsible for
rmantainng contrel over cntical areas of
risk, the processes and controls of these
functions are tested by Internal Audit & Risk
duringrelevant audits

4, Committees Relevant committees within
the organisation provide regular updatesto
the Audit Commuttee, ncluding the Plan A
Committee, whichalsoreperts directly to
the Board

GOVERNANCE

The Group was compliant throughout the
year with the provisions of the UK Corporate
Covernance Code relating to internal
controls and the FRC's revised Guidance

on Audit Committees and Guidance on Risk
Management, Internal Controland Related
Financialand Business Reporting

The Comrmittee has considered the controls
findings raised inthe Independent Auditor's
Report on pages 68-76 No other significant
fallings or weaknesses were identified
during the Cemmittee's review inrespect

of the year ended 31 March 2018 andup to
the date of this Annual Report

Where the Committee has dentified areas
requIrnng iMmprovement, processes are in
ptace to ensure that the necessary action
15 taken and that progressis monitered

Further detatls of these processes can

be foundwithin our detaiied Corporate
Covernance Staterment whichis avallable to
view in the Corporate Governance section
of cur website

INTERNAL ASSURANCE FRAMEWORK

Scurce of Information

Internal - Internal Audit Plan
Audit - Regularreports against Plan
= lollowup of remediation

- Updates on fraud, whistleblowing
and other irregulanty

Papers submitted on a range of
issues including

Management

updated - Information Securty

~ UBnbory

- Code of Fthics and Behaviours

~ CSCOP (Grocery Supplier
Code of Practice)

Functional audit activities

undertaken, including

- loodSafety & Integrity

- Ethical Audits

~ Trading Safely & Legally

Functional
assurance

Committees - Fire, Health & Safety Committee
- PlanACommittee*

- Business Conbinuity Committee

* Mote alsorepor sdires-lytothe Board

Frequency/nature of reporting

Formal updates presented
to the Committee at
each meeting

Updates to Audit
Committee Chairman

Formal updates presented
to the Committee annually
and as appropriate

Updates provided to the
Committee as requested
or appropriate

Direct reporting lines

to the Committee, with
annual updates from
the relevant executive

w

SOVERMNANC
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REMUNERATION 5

OVERVIEW

VINDI BANGA CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

INTRODUCTION

On behalf of the Board, lam pleased to

"Remuneration in M&S is
aligned with the business
performance andis in
the best interests of
the Company and
its shareholders’”

VIND| BANGA CHAIRMAN OF THE
REMUNZRATICN COMMITTEE

iN THIS SECTION

present our 2018 Remuneration Report

The Cormmittee’s report covers therequired
regulatory infarmation, balanced against
commerciat sensitivities, and also provides
further context andinsight iInto our director
pay arrangements

The report provides a comprehensive
picture of the structure and scale of our
remuneration framewaork, its alignment
with the business strategy and the rest of
the workforce, as well as the payments
approved by the Committee as a result of
business performance for this year

M&S’s Remuneration Policy was approved
by an overwhelming majarity of 92 08%

of shareholders at the 2017 ACM In keeping
with the moere concise reporting adopted
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this year across the Annual Report,

a summary overview of the directors’
annual remuneration framework,
including recruitrment and termination
policies reflecting the changes made

to the top team during the year.1s provided
on pages 46-49 The full Policy canbe
viewed on the Company's website at
marksandspencer.com/remuneration

Detail of the approved Remuneration
Palicy naction during the year, the
Committee’s considerations and the
Intended arrangements for 2018/19are
set cut on pages 50-62 of thisreport

BOARD CHANGES

The Commuttee was closely involved

with the arrangementsinrelationtc a
number of executive director changes
announced durng the year, including

the appointment of Humphrey Singer as
CFO and the departures of Helen Weir and
Patrick Bousquet-Chavanne Details of the
leaving arrangements for Helen and Patrick
can e found on page 59 of this report

lam pleased that we not only secured the |
employment of Humphrey Singer under
our normal framowork but that we were
able to further simplify our pay structures,
removing any additional aliowances for
pension or car from his arrangements

Reflecting on these arrangements, the
Committee believes that our Remuneration
Policy continues to provide appropriate
flexibiity, while providing certainty that any
payments made in the implementation of
the Policy are in the best interests of both
the Company and our shareholders |

CONTEXT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

As referenced earlierin this Annual Report,
anumber of necessary steps taken to
transform the business impacted the
financial results for 2017/18 Group profit
was mpacted by the acceleration of the
UK store closure programme, sales in
Clothing and Home declined as aresult

of the continued focus on full-price sales,
the removal of promotions and the number
of clearance sales Food performance was
not strong enough throughout the year
Asillustrated on page 43, there s a strong
alignment between a number of M&S's

key performance indicators (KPls)and

the performance measures Used in the
drrectarsincentive awards As | descrbe
later, it therefore follows thatas a
consequence of the above, total payments
made to directors were lower this year
thanlast year
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STRATEGIC ALIGNMENT OF REMUNERATION FRAMEWORK WITH KPIS

Adjusted earnings
per share (EPS}

Return on capital
employed {ROCE}

Group profit before

tax (PBT) and
adjusting items

Online sales
growth

Like-for-like
sales in Clothing &
Home and Food

PERFORMANCE
SHARE PLAN

ANNUAL
BONUS
SCHEME

;
E

Free cash Aow
{pre shareholder returns)

International
sales growth

Plan A including
preducts with a
Plan A quality and
greenhouse gas
emissions

2017/18 PERFORMANCE

Clothing & Home space

@ seeKPIsonpll-14

GROUP PBT BEFORE
ADJUSTING ITEMS

£580.9m

Croup PBT was below the threshold
for bonus payments in the business
tobegin As such, the Committee
exercised its discretion and ne bonus
payments were made to directors

STRATEGIC ALICNMENT OF PAY

RETURN ON CAPITAL

14.0%

Average three-year ROCE
performance of 14 2% (including
14 0% for 2017/18) waz below the

threshold required for this elernent
of the 2015 PSP award to vest

To support the transformation plans
outlined by management, the Committee
has conaidered the measures and targets
usedin M&S's incentive schemes, to ensure
alignment of the Performance Share Plan
and Anndal Bonus Scheme with the KPIs
being used within the business This s
designed toensure that performance
outcomes and any assoctated payments
are aligned with business performance
and the transformationaljourney of M&S
1heiltustration above demonstrates

EMPLOYED PER SHAR

this strong linkage between the KP's,
payments to directors, and business
performance over the short- and long-term

As outlined earlier inthis Annual Report,
M&S's focus s resolutely on the journey of
transformabion The Cormmuttee s mmndful
of the strategic business discussicns when
considening Incentive structures and
performance assessments for the senior
leadership team As aresult, and as outlined
onpages 11-14 of the Annual Report, KPIs
have been sharpenedand focused to
alignwith and support the transformation

ADJUSTED EARNINGS

27.8p

EPS growth was -5 6% over the
three years ending in 2017/18 based
onthe outturn above) This was
below Lhe 50% growth reguired for
any vesting under this elernent of
the 20018 12512 owand

FREE CASH FLOW
{PRE SHAREHOLDER RETURNS)

£417.5m

Cumulative cashflow performance
for the three-year penod ending in
7017/18 was F1,542m, which included
f4175mfor 2017118 Asa result,

5 3% of the 2015 PSP sward will vest

These changes have beenmirrored by the
reduction of the measures used within the
senior remunerabion framework which are
disclosed on pages 53-55 of thisreport

The Commitiee will continue to thoraughly
review the pay structures and incentive
arrangements for the senior leadership
team to ensure strong abgnment between
the delivery of business performance and
the associated remuneration arrangements
as the business goes through the five-year
transformaticn programme
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GOVERNANCE CONTINUED

SINGLE FIGURE REMUNERATICN FOR 2017/18

Steve Rowe £1040
Patrick Bousquet-Chavanne era7
Helen Weir

£754

Fixed pay PSP

© See Single figure remuneration on p50
@ See Annual Bonus Scheme tbelow and p52

© See PSP on psSs

TERMS OF REFERENCE AND WIDER
WORKFORCE PAY ARRANGEMENTS

Theroleandremit of the Remuneration
Committee was reviewed this year and
broadened toinclude a more formal and
wider consideration of our reward
framewark andfarrness across the
organisation The key focus remains on
ensyring that the M&S Remuneration Policy
15 mplemented and applied in such away

to attract, retan and motivate its leadership,
within a framework designed to promote
the long-term success of M&S whilst being
aligned with shareholder iInterests However,
ME&S 15 a business of around 81,600 people
and it 1s essential that the context of the
wider workforce 1s taken into consideration
when the Remuneration Committee s
making decisions

As aresult of the review, the Committee
will how regularly debate and discuss
oversight of key people policy areas such
as performance management, diversity
andmnclusion as well as gender pay
reporuing and reward framewaork and
budgets Furthermore, to demonstrate the
Committee’s commitment to meaningful
and transparent engagement on pay
practices in the wider workforce, the chair
of M&S's employee representative body
will peinvited toattendand contribute to a
Committee meeting each year We welcome
the opportunity this direct engagement
will bring to the continued rigour of the
Committee’s discussions

More detail around the remit and activities
of the Commuttee can be found on

page 61 and the Company’s website at
marksandspencer.com/thecompany

COMMITTEE JUDGEMENT
AND DISCRETION

The Remuneration Committee decided

that it would exercise its discretion such that
no payment would be made to any director
under the Annual Bonus Scherme for
2017/18 This decision was not taken Lightly
and was the result of careful consideration
of anumber of factors, including the PBT

Total bonus

outturn for the year against the financial
plan and annual bonus payments tobe
rmade elsewhere within the business In
addition, the PBT achieverment of £5809m
was below the threshold required to pay
bonuses to colleagues elsewhere inthe
busness and the Committee decided,

N the interests of farness, it would not be
appropriate to pay a bonus to directors,
irrespective of any achievernent aganst
each director's individual objectrves

This decision not to pay a bonusisinine
not only with the Company’s approved
remuneration policy, but also the Bonus
Scherne rules ncluding the terms and
conditions, which expressly allow the
Remuneration Committee wide discretion
to consider factors including the overall
Company performance, indvidual
contribution, future prospects of the
Company and external market conditions,
n deaiding what, f any, bonus is payable

In particular, any discretion applied allows
alteration, reduction or withholding of
payment even in arcumstances where
targets are achieved

However,in order to ensure continued
strong governance and transparent
reporting to shareholders, the Committee
discussed each director’s achievernent
against the relevant performance targets,
noting their wider performance within the
respectve areas of responsibility and also
achievernent against Plan Atargets and
M&S values, which once again underpinned
the Scherne Finalachieverment aganst
each director’s indwrdual objectives, as
noted by the Committee, s detailed on
page 52 ofthisreport

SINGLE FIGURE

The graph above summarises the total
payments made to executive directors

for 2017/18, itlustrating the figures detailled
inthe single figure chart set out later inthis
report on page 50

Overall pay levels for the executive
directors were ¢ 33% lower than last year,
reflecting the Committee’s decision to

Tatal £00G

£76 £1,120

E70 £777

£72 £826

apply discretion to not award bonus
payments to executive directors guring
the year Inaddition, 8 2% of the 2015
Performance Share Plan (PSP) awards
willvestin July 2018, for the three-year
performance penodup te 31 March 2018
The Coemmittee s satisfied that incentive
payments made to executive directors
during the year are fair in the context of
business performance for 2017/18 and
payments made elsewhere in thebusiness

PERFORMANCE SHARE PLAN VESTING

Performance Share Plan awards granted in
July 2015 will vestin July 2018 to the extent
that the respective performance conditions
have been achieved

At the time that measures and targets
were set, the Committee debated the
appropriateness of any metrcs and targets
intinewith the strategic and financial plans
of the Company It determined that the
measures used for the 2015 award would
e EPS, ROCE and a financial strategic
scorecard, ncluding International business
performance and Clothing & Home gross
margin Thesemeasuresreflected the key
drivers of sharehclder value as well as the
strategic prionties and key growth areas
for the business

The llustration oppoesite shows that 8 2%

of the 2016 award will vest in July With

the excephon of Clothing & Home

gross marginand cumulative cash flow,
performance against allmeasures was
below the threshold required for vesting
under any other element of the award Page
55 of this report provides further detail on
the specifics of the targets set and the
respective achieverment under each
measure Theremit of the Committee s to
ensure that targets set are considered to be
stretching yet achievable, rewarding the
detivery of sustainable, ambitious long-
termperformance While this vesting s
disappointing, thie Commmittee s satisfied
that thus vesting isreflective of the
disappointing cusiness performance

Steve Rowe and Archie Norman have both
hughlighted earlier in this Annual Report
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PERFORMANCE SHARE PLAN (PSP) VESTING 2018

Free Cashflow Growth

Maximum performance  7.5%
Actual performance 5.3%

Clothing & Home Cross
Margin Growth

Maximum possible 7.5%
Actual performance 2.9%

M&S.com Cash Sales Growth

Maxirmum possible 7.5%
Actual performance 0%

© See Perfermance Share Plan on pS5

PAY ARRANGEMENTS FOR 2018/19

To ensure a consistent approach, when
reviewing salary levels, the Committee
takes intc account anumbper ofinternat
and external factors, ncluding Company
performance during the year, external
market data and the salary review principles
applied to the rest of the organisation
Despite no increase to Steve Rowe's satary
since appointment, nline with salary
freezes applied for the broader leadership
teamn, the Committee determined,and
Steve Rowe agreed, that it would not be
appropriate to award any salary increase
to the CEO for July 2018 Humphrey Singer
will not be eligible foran annual salary
review unbilJuly 2019

The Annual Bonus Scheme remains
unchanged from 2017/18 and will continue
to be based oncorporate financal targets
{currently 70%) and ndividual objectives
{currently 30%) The maximum opportunity
will remain at 200% of salary The main
financial measure of bonus performance
will continue to be PBT As we enter the first
phase of our transformation plan torestore
the basics to detiver growth in the medium
term, it 1s considered appropriate that PBT
continues torepresent the largest element
of bonus potential Individual objectives,
detaled on page 53, have been designed
to draw sharp focus to the activities that
are most critical to our future survivaland
success The PSP willbe mamtamed inits
curtent form for 2018/1% The conbnued
nclusion of Relative TSR(TSR) as a measure
within the PSPrenforces the aigniment

of executive Interests with shareholders,
representing the sharehcider experience
of M&S's performance Inaddition, the

w i
[V 2
(v
&

financial measures of EPS and ROCE will
continue to give focus to profitable and
efficient business performance Each of
the three measures will continue to have
egual weighting

For this year, and reflecting the
transformation expected from the business,
the Committee has approved awards of
250% of salary to Steve Rowe and Humphrey
Singerunder the 2018 PSP This decision

was not taken lghtly by the Committee and
involved very carefut considerationand
discussion It was agreed that maintaining
the 2017 grant value, despite a disappointing
business performance in 2017/18, would
represent a clear signat to the most senior
rmanagement that whilst there s hard work
ahead as we move along the transformation
Jjourney to make M&S special agam, truly
excellent performance will be rewarded

Civen the continued challenges faced wathin
theretail secter and the challenges faced
by M&S during the 2017/18 financial year,

the Committee believes that the targets set
for the 2018 award represent stretching
business performance Masarmurn vesting
would be representative of outstanding
performance, both against the internal
measures of EPS and ROCE but alscagainst
our peer group used for Relative TSR
Maximum achievernent of the 2018 PSP
targets would represent significant

added value to both the business and
shareholders Whilst the appropriateness of
targets and measures have been carefully
considered, senior management shoutd be
under nollusion that the Comrmittee, as
demonstrated under 2017/18 Annual Bonus
Scheme, would not hesitate to exeraiseits
discretion to ensure that the 2018 PSP only

Annuslised EPS Growth

Maximum performance 50%
Actual performance 0%

Average ROCE

Maximum possible 20%
Actual performance 0%

International Cash Sales Growth

Maximum possible 7.5%
Actual performance 0%

vests to the extent that the Committee
deems justified when considering the
overall performance of the business across
the relevant performance penod

Together with the rest of the Board, | lock
forward to hearing your views on the
remuneration arrangements | have
summarised on the preceding pages
Iwill be available to answer any guestions
you may have at the ACM

Vm&; ?amju
—

VINDI BANGA
CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

E

COVERNANCF
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REMUNERATION

SUMMARY

REMUNERATION POLICY

This report sets out a summary of M&S's policy on remuneration for executive and non-executive directors The full policy was approved

by shareholders at the AGM on 11 July 2017 and can be found on our website at marksandspencer.com/thecompany The oolicy took effect
from this date and may operate for up to three years The policy s designed to attract, retain and motivate our leaders and ensure they

are focussed on delivering business prionties within a framework designed to promote the long-term success of M&S, aligned with our

sharenolders’interests

SUMMARY EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY (AS APPROVED ON 11 JULY 2017)

FIGURE 1: SUMMARY EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY TABLE

ELEMENT OPERATICN

BASE SALARY Salanes are reviewed anhually by the Commuttee, considenng a number of factors, including
- Salaryincreases i the wider M&S workforce
- The experience, responsibility and contnbution of the indrdual

= Salanes for comparable roles in appropnate comparator groups (such as major retailers and
similarly-sized listed companies)

BENEFITS It Line with our policies, executive drectors are eligible to recewve benefits which may inclugde
= Acar or cash allowance and a driver
- Ufeassurance
- Relecabion and tax equabsation allowances in line with our mobility policies
As with all employees, directors are also offered other benefits including
- Employee discount
- Salary sacrifice schemes
-~ Participanion in our all-employee share schemes

i e
PENSION M&S may choeose to offer
BENEFITS ~ Participation in our defined comribution pensien scheme or
~ Cash payments in lieu of pension contnbutions

The defined benefit pension scheme is closed to new members Directors who are members of this
scheme will continue to accrue benefits as a deferred member

ANNUAL All directors are eligible to participate in the Annual Bonus Scheme, which s a dhscretionary, non-
BONUS contractual scheme Performance is measured against quantifiable one-year financialand indiadual
performance targets linked with the sustanable delivery of our business plan Targets are set at the

SCHEME start of the year and approved by the Remuneration Commuttee At (east half of awards are measured
IDNCIEURDLNDG agams! financal measures whc b typi ally ngludes Croup PBI betore adjostigitems (P31}
SEf\RERBONUS Corporate and individual elements may be earned mdependently, but no part of the indidual objectives
PLAN (DSBP) may be earned unless a threshold level of PBT has been achieved For threshaold performance, up to

A% of (axmem may be payabte for the acievemoent of ndiviciual obged tives urrontly 3K}

Mot less than 50% of any bonus earned 1s paid in shares which are deferred for three years The value
of any dividends during the deferrat period will be payable to the extent that the award vests

The Committee retains the nght to exercise discretion, both upwards and downwards, to ensure that the

level of award payable 1s appropriate and fair in the context of the director s indvmdual performance, the

Company's overall performance and relative bonus payments across the organisation Where exercised,
e rationibe Tor this disorotion wtl e fully dise tobmi to shareholdors mihe stpsogaent /\nn(m Repserl

The Commi{tes can, In crcumstances it behevesappropnate reduce ta zero unvested deferrEd share
awards In certain circumstances, the Committee canatso reclaimafli or part of the cash bonus for up to
Lhrews years aller the payment dates

PERFORMANCE To encourage long-term shareholding, to retain directors and ko provide greater alignment with shareholders

SHARE PLAN nterests, all directors are sligible to participate in the Performance Share Plan This is 3 non-contractual,
P discretionary scheme and 1s M&S's main long-term incentive scheme Performance may be measured
(PSP} against appropriate financial, nen-hnancial andfor strategic measures Financial measures must comprise

at least 50% of awards Measures currently include Adjusted Earmings Per Share (EPS), Return on Capital
Employed (ROCE) and Relative Tolatshareho(d@r Return {TSR}

The value af any dwldends dunng the vestmg penod \mll be payable subject to the award vesting

The Committee can, In crcumstances it believes approprlate reduce to zerc unvested PSP awards

In addition, the Cammittee canreclaim all or part of vested awards for up to two years after the
vesting date N certain speaified circumstances

Awards granted after 11 July 2017 will be subject to a turther two-year holding penod after the vesting
date Diractors may sell sufficient shares to satisfy the tax Liability on exercise but roust retan the net
number of shares uritil the end of this twe year penod

QFFORTUNITY

Annual increases are normally ih ing
with those in the wider workforce,
although no maxrmum s set

Individual adjustments may be made
nappropriate circumskances (eg
where e role se ope bas changed
o s part of salary progression for
newly-appointed directars)

There s no set maximum,
however any provision will be
commensurate with local markets
and for all-employee shares
sehermes, the local stalutory limits

Cash payments are capped at

25% of salary for executive directors
appomniled pror La b July 2017

For directors appointed tothe
Board after 11 July 2017, the cash
altermative will be cappedata
maximnum of 20% of salary

Total maximum annual bonus
opportunity s capped at 200% of
salary for each executive director

The maxirmum annual value of
shares at grant s capped at 300%
of salary for each executive director
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SUMMARY EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY CONTINUED

FIGURE 2: RECRUITMENT POLICY & SERVICE CONTRACTS

The table below summanses the Company’s policy onthe recrutment of new executive directors Similar considerations may

also apply where a director s promoted within the Board

ELEMENT

SERVICE
CONTRACT

BASE SALARY

BENEFITS

PENSION
BENEFITS

ANNUAL
BONUS
SCHEME

PSP

BUY-QUT
AWARDS

Inaddibion, the Committee in exceptional arcumstances has discretion to include any other remuneration component or award which it
feels1s appropniate, taking nto account the specific circumstances of the individual, subject to the imit on variable remuneration set out
above Therationale for any such component would be appropnately disclosed For example, for internal promotional appointments to
the Board, the Committee would henour any pre-existing contractual remuneration arrangements which may be outside of the standard

APPROACH

All executive directors have rolling contracts for service which may be terminated by M&S grang 12 months’ notice
and the indmidual giving six menths notice

Salanes are set by Lhe Comnmitiee, Laking into consideration a number of Taclors ingluding the carrent pay for other
execuhive directors, the experience, skill and current pay level of the indimvidual and external market forces

The Committee may choose to set the salary below that of the market or the other directors with the intention
of applyihg slaged g reases

The Conmittoe wall offor a benoefits package m hne wth our benefits polie y for oxecutive directors The benehils provided
willappropriately retiec C the ndivdual’s circumstand es

Maximurm contrisutionin ine with our policy

Maximum bonus potential will be capped at 200% of salary in line with our policy

Maxamum award of up to 300% of salaryin Line with our policy

The Committee may offer compensatory payments or buy-out awards where anindividual for feits outstanding variable
pay opporturities or contractualnghts as aresult of therr appontment with M&S

The specifics of any buy-out awards would be dependent on the indimvidual circumstances of recruitment and would be
determined on a case-by-case basis On assessing such awords, the Committee will seek to make awards ona Lke-for-like
basts to ensure that the value awarded would be no greater than the value forfeited by the ndividual The Committee
may choose to apply performance conditions to these awards

policy summarised withinthis report

STRATEGIC REPORT

TOVERMANCE

i




48
MARKS AND SPENCFR CROUPPLC
DIRECTORS' REPORT. GOVERNANCE

GOVERNANCE CONTINUED

SUMMARY EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION POLICY CONTINUED

FIGURE 3: TERMINATION POLICY

The Company may choose to terminate the
contract of any executive directorinlne
with the terms of ther service agreement
either by means of a payment in leu of

The Cormpany’s policy toward exit payrents
allows foravanety of circurnstances
where a director may leave thebusiness
Inall ercurnstances, the Committee does

The table below summanses our
termination polcy for executive directors
under ther service agreement and the
incentive planrules

notintend to reward failure and will

make deaisions based onthe Individual
crcumstances ensuring they ara i the best
interests of the Company and shareholders
at that time, and reflect the director’s
contractual and other legalnghts

notice or through a series of phased
payments subject to mitigation Service
agreements may be termimated without
notice and, In certan crcumstances, such
as gross misconduct without payments

ELEMENT APPROACH
BASE SALARY, — Payment made up to the termination date
>
BENEFITS AND
PENSION
BENEFITS
ANNUAL - There s no centractual entitlernent to a bonus payment If the director 1s under notice or notinactive service at either the end of the bonus
RONUS year or on the payment date, awards {and any unvested deferred bonus shares) may lapse The Committee may, however, use its discretion
SCHEME to make a bonus award, typically pro-rated for tme and based on the performance assessed at the end of the bonus year
LONG-TERM - The treatment of outstanding share awards 1s determined in the accordance with the respecove plan rules
INCENTIVE ~ For performance share awards beld for at least 12 months, awards typically vest at the end of the relevant performance perod (to the extent
AWARDS to which any performance conditions are met) and are pro-rated for time The plan rules aliow for the Cornmittee 1O perrit these awards to vest
at the ume the director teaves and to not apply time pro-rating Awards which have not beer held for 12 menths upanleaving will lapse infull
REPATRIATION - M&S may pay for repatraton where a director has beenrecrutted from overseas
LEGAL — Where a diees Lo leaves by inutual consent, MES may roumibiarse (o reasonable legat fees and pay for professional outplac etnent setvces
EXPENSES &
OUTPLACEMENT

The full policy sets out further detail on the treatment of the executive directors' pay arrangements, including the treatment of share
schernes inthe event of a change of control or winding-up of the Company and some legacy long-term incentive plans which the
Company operates No current executive director holds unexercised awards under these legacy plang

CONSIDERATION OF WIDER WORKFORCE PAY & SHAREHOLDER VIEWS

The Committee maoritors and reviews the
effectiveness of the senior remuneration
pobey and has regard tots impact and
compatibility with remuneration policies in
thewider workforce During the year the
Committees provided with information
and context on pay inthe wider workfarce
to enabie its decision-making Thisincludes
the approach for UK pay review, the total
annual bonus cost budget and PSP awards
tobe made to directors below the Board

shareholders Where appropnate,

the Committee will actively engage
with shareholdgr s and shareholder
representative bodies, seeking views
which may be takeninto account when
making any decisions about changes
to the directors' remuneration policy

including our annual “Your Say’ employee
survey which asks employees about the
relevance and recognition of excellence
within employee pay and benefits
tmployee representatives N our Business
Involvernent Croups are annually provided
with an explanation of the executive
drectors pay arrangements during the
year,and are able to ask guestions onthe
arrangerments and therr fitwith the other
reward polices at this ime

The Cornmittee Chairman s avarlable to
answer questions at the Annual General
Meeting (AGM) and the answers to speafic
questions are posted on our website

The Committeeis committed toan

open and transparent dialogue withts

The Committee receves updatesona
variety of emnployee engagerment initiatives
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SUMMARY EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY (AS APPROVED ON 11 JULY 2017)

FICURE 4: SUMMARY OF REMUNERATICN POLICY

The diagram below llustrates the balance of pay and tme penod of each element of the rernuneration policy for executive directors,
approved in July 2017 The Committee believes this mixture of short-and long-term incentives and fixed-to performance-related pay s

appropriate for M&S's strategy and nsk profile

FIXED
PAY

ANNUAL
BONUS
SCHEME

TOTAL PAY

psP

FIGURE 5: SUMMARY NCN-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY (AS APPROVED ON 11 JULY 2017)

Year | Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Years

Base salary
Benefits

Pension benefits

Up to 100% salary Up to 100% salary
One-year performance Three-year deferral period
Clawback provisions No further performance conditions
apply .
Malus provisions apply
Maximum 300% of salary Two-year holding period post vesting
Three-year performance No further performance conditions
Malus provisions apply Clawback provisions apply

The table below summarises our policy for the operation of non-executive director fees and benefits at the Company

ELEMENT

SERVICE
AGREEMENTS

CHAIRMAN'S
FEES

NON-
EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR'S
BASIC FEE

ADDITIONAL

FEES

BENEFITS

RECRUITMENT

OPERATION AND CPPORTUNITY

- All non-executive directors have an agreerment for an imtial three-year term The Chairman s agreement requires six months notice by
aither party The non-executive directors agreements may be terminated by either party gving three maonths' notice

| s are reviewed antitally by Lhe Comemtiee Laking into consideration

— Time commutment, dermands and responsibility of the role

— External market practice

The maximum aggregate fees for the Charrman and non-executive directors fees s £750,000 pa as sel oul inour Articles of Association

Fees are reviewad annually by the executive directors taking into consideration
— Tnnecommitlee, scopo and responsibibly of the role
— Fxternal market practice

The maximum aggregate fees for the non-executive directors fees, including the Charman's fee 1s £750000 pa as set out inour
Articles of Association

Additional fees are paid for undertaking the extra responsibilities of
— Board Chairman
— Semor Independent Direc tor

— Commuttect larman

In ine with our other employees, the Chairman and non-executive director are entitled to receive employee discount
The Chairman may also be entitled to the use of a car and driver
No further benefits are provided to the Charrman or non-executive directors

The Committee takes Into account a number of factors when deternining an appropriate fee level for the Charman The CFO and
executive directors determine appropnate fee levels for the non-executive direclors and take Inte account the time commitment,
role responsibility and rmarket practice in our comparator groups when doing so

M&S may offer benefils Lo the Charman in hine with our policy

:
:
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REMUNERATION REPORT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Remuneration Comrnittee annually
reviews the senior rermuneration framework
and considers whether the existing
incentive arrangerneants remain
appropriately challenging inthe context

of the business strategy, current external
guidelines and a range of internal factors
including the pay arrangements and

pchcies throughout the rest of the
orgamsation INits discussions, the

Remuneration Committee aims to ensure

that not only 1s the framework strategically
alignedto the delivery of business prionties,
but also that payments made during the
year fairly reflect the performance of the
busmess and individuals As illustrated on
page 45,a significant proportion of the
performance measures usedinthe
incentive schemes are integrated with
M&S's key performance iIndicators (KP(s)

detalled on pages 11 to 14 The chagram

FIGURE 6: REMUNERATION STRUCTURE 2017/18

below illustrates the achievernent of each

execubive director under the Company's
ncentive schemes as aresult of short-and
long-term performance to the end of the
reported financial year and summarisas the
rmain elements of the senicr remuneration
framework Further details of payments
rade during the year are set outinthe
single figure table below (Figure 7)and
laterinthusreport

@ seekPlsonpli-4

. + + - Total pay
Fixed pay Annual bonus PSP for 2017/18
200% satary maximum 250% salary awarded
se sal,
Basesalary bionus opportunity N 2015
twith 50% deferral)
Benefit Measured against adjusted EPS
netts Measured against a (EPS), average ROCEand a Total
batance of Group PBT before scorecard of other strategic payments
Pansion benefits adjusting items (PBT) and priorities Achievernent was are between 23% and
indwvidual performance B 2% against targefs set 24% of maximum
potential
No salary increase No bonus payment 8.2% of award vested
@ For more information see ps2 © For more information see p5%
FIGURE 7: TOTAL SINGLE FIGURE REMUWNERATION {AUDITED)
Salary Benefits Total Total PSP Pension Total
bonus vested benefits
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
[yrectar Year
Steve Rowe 200718 810 31 0] 76 203 1,120
20016/17 809 32 599 Q0 202 1,642
Patrick Bousquet-Chavanne 2017718 546 24 g 70 137 777
2016/17 546 22 459 ¢l 137 1,164
Helen Weir 2017718 o590 16 0 72 148 826
2016/17 590 19 496 4] 148 1,253

Helen Werr left M&S on 31 March 2018 Patrick Bousquet-Chavanne left the Board on 18 April 2018 and will leave M&S on 31 May 2018
Further details of therr leaving arrangements can be found on page 59 of thisreport

The fallowing sections detall addimonal disclosures regarding each of the components set out in the above single figure table




81

ANNJAL RFPORT AND FINANCIAL STATFMENTS 2018

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION CONTINUED

SALARIES

Whenraviewing salary levels, the Committee
takes into account a number of Internat

and external factors, including Company
performance during the year, external
market data, historicincreases made to

the individual and, to ensure a consistent
approach, the salary review principles
applied tothe rest of the organisation

Asreportedinlast year's report, all
executive directors were awarded a salary
increase by the Committee of 2% for

FIGURE 8: SALARIES

salaries effective July 2017 but, in support of
the proposed pay changes made elsewhere
inthe UK organisation, they chose to decline
thisincrease

For salaries effective July 2018, onty Steve
Rowe was eligible tobe consideredfora
review Inline with salary freezes for the
broaderieadership team, the Comrmittee
decided, and the CEO agreed, that it would
not be appropriate toaward any salary
increase to the CEQ for July 2018, despite
noincreasen Steve Rowe's salary since

his appomntment to CEO N 2016

Helen Weir and Patrick Bousquet-Chavanne
willnc longer be employed by M&S 1n July
2018 Therefore, they were not eligible fora
salary review

The nextannual salary review for the CEO
and CFO will be effective in July 2019

The table below details the executive
directors salaries as at 1 April 2018
and salaries which will take effect
from 1 July 2018

Annyal
salary as of
Annual 1 July 2018 {for
salaryazof date of Change
1Apr 2018  appontment) insalary
£000 £000 % Increase
Steve Rowe 810 810 0%
Humphrey Singer (July 2018) - 600 -

BENEFITS (AUDITED)

PENSION BENEFITS {AUDITED)

The Remuneration Policy permits that each
executive director may recerve a car or cash
allowance as well as being offered the
benefit of adnver During the year, Steve
Rowe and Patrick Bousquet-Chavanne
receveda carand the benefit of a driver
HelenWerr received a cash allowance

Humphrey Singerreceves neither a car
nor cashallowance, andwill not have the
benefit of adriver

FIGURE 9: PENSION BENEFITS (AUDITED)

The Company provides each director with
life assurance

In line with all other employees, executive
directors recewve employee product
aiscount andare eligible to participate
insalary sacnfice schermes such as
Cycle2wWork

All executive directors dunng the year
received acash payment in leu of
participation in an M&S pensicn scheme
Inaddition, Steve Rowe 15 a deferred
member of the Marks & Spencer UK Pension
Scheme Details of the pensionaccrued
during the year ended 1 Apnil 2018 are
shown below

Humphrey Singer is eligible to participate in
the M&S pension scheme Hewillnot receve
any additional payments if he chooses not
to participate in this scheme

Accrued Increase Transfer

pensi.n Adatonal naccrued val.eof

e-titlemnent value Increace value total

Normal asat anearly inaccrued {net of accrued

ret rement year end retirement value nflation) pension

age £000 000 £Qc0 £000 f000

Steve Rowe 60 153 0 4 8] 4,714

The accrued pension entitlerment 1s the deferred pension amount that Steve Rowe would receive at age 601f he left the Company on

1 April 2018 Alltransfer values have been calculated on the basis of actuarial advice in accordance with the current Transfer Value
Regulations The transfer value of the accrued entitlernent represents Lhe value of the assets that the pension scheme would transfer
to another pension provider on transferring the scherne’s Llability in respect of a director’s pensicn benefits It does not represent sums
payable toa director and therefore cannot be added meaningfully to annual rermuneration

&
[~
&
4
3
&
:

COVERMANCE




52
MARKS AND SPENCFRGROUPFIC
DIRECTORS' REPORT GOVERNANCE

REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

ANNUAL BONUS SCHEME

ANNUAL BONUS SCHEME 2017/18 (AUDITED}

Annual performance for the year was
again primarily measured aganst Croup
PBT before adusting items (PBT) (F0%)

and individual performance (up to 30%)
PBT s used as a core bonus measura as

itis considered to be animportant
measure of overall performance andis
consistent with how business performance
15 assessed internally by the Board and
Operating Commnittee

Individual performance was measured
against amuxture of collective objectives
(10%) and performance aigned with each
director's specific areas of respansibility
(20%) These measures were aligned with the
key strategic business priorties dentified
pnor to the start of the financial year and
compnsed abalance of financiatand
quantitative non-financial measures

PBT outturn for the year was £5809rmwhich
was balow the threshold set to tnigger
payments under the corporate element of
the Scheme This level of PBT performance
meant that no bonuses would be paid
elsewhere in the organisation As such, it was
decided that the Committee would exercise
its discretion such that there would not be
any bonus payment toany directors asa
resutt of this overall level of business
performance, irrespective of any

performance againstindmnadual cbjectives
Thus decision was made following careful
and thorough consrderation of several
factors, including the breader expacted
and actual fimancial performance of the
Company together with the farness of,
and lkely impact on colleague morale,
where no bonuses would be awarded
e(sewhere The Committee decided,

and the CEQ agreed, that it would not be
appropriate to pay any director abonus
under these circumstances

As aconsequence of the Committee's
application of discretion, no bonus
payments will be paid to directors in relation
to 2017/18 performance The total bonus
paid column n Figure 1015 zero for ail
directors Thus figure directly corresponds
to the value shown in the single figure

table on page 50

That saud, the Committee did continue to
review the achievernent of the individual
ohyectives set at the start of the financial
year to fulfilits rermit and to enable
transparent disclosure to shareholders
For completeness, the table below the
achiavement agamist each directar’s
indmvidual oljectives, as noted by the
Commuttee In noting this performance,
the Committee considered not only the

FIGURE 10; ANNUAL BONUS SCHEME QUTTURN 2017/18 (AUDITED)

achievernent against the pre-determined
targets, but also the wider performance
within these specific areas ta ensure that
any achievement noted was representative
of overall performance Inaddition, and
consistent with prior years, success towargs
Blan Atargets and M&S values which
underpinned the scheme was also taken
into account The Coammittee noted that,
while Plan Aremains an impaortant
carnerstone of the way ME&S does business,
the drive towards the transforrmation plan
has meant that at the end of the first year
of the new Plan A 2025 strategy, 12% of
targets are currently behind plan

The Cornrmittee ensures that targets set

are therelevant drivers of required annual
performance, recogrising that it operatesin
the context of a highly competitive market
Some of the specific targets set for 2017/18
remain toc commercially sensitive to
disclose as they are not disclosed elsewhere
inthisreport Tothe extent these targets
areable to bereported, they have been
described The Cornmittee will continue to
assass the commercial sensitivity of targets
with the aim of disclosure wherever possible,
while ensuring that any measures set are
those most appropriate to restore the
business to profitable growth

Total bonus
tollowing application
af RemCo
Director Corparate (70%) Custorner [10%} Strateqi; (10%) Fimancial { 0%)
Steve Rowe Customer Satisfaction: Succession Planning UK Like for Like Sales £0k
PET Clothung & Homea Net Promoter Key semor appomtments made Contnued reduction in
Score (NPS) significantly improved during the year, n particular within pramotional actiity and / £162m
¢ hieving above strete by Clothing & Home and L ood, to riarkdovens led Lo boelow
pertormans e although this aid supprort and drve continged Largot LI Uke-or-tke sialos Overall% of Salary
not translate to above Plan sales transformationand demonstrating of -09% {200% max}
Threshoid Stretch Food NPS was below target a commitment to huilding strong 0%
resho retcl on P °
£585m £663m internai succession planning
E£580.9m % 5% 5% 0%
Patrick Bousquet-Chavanne ¢ giomer satisfaction: Sparks Activity M&S.com UK Revenue and £0k
PET Clothing & Horme Net Promater Increased active user numbersand  Operating Profit
Score (NPS) sigmificantly improved resultant sales Taking nto account Disappointing sales through the 7 £1.05m

achreving above stretch
performange, although this chd
not translate to above Plan sales
Food NPS was below target

Hhieshold Slroteh
L8N Lab
£580.9m 0% 5%

Helen Weir Customer Satisfaction:

PBT Clothing & Homie Net Promoter
Score (NPSYsignificantly improved
achieving above stretch
pertormance, although this did
not translate to above Plan sales
Food NPS was below targel.

Threshald Streteh

£585m £663m

£580.9m 0% 5%

this performance, plus wider
Sparks strategic progress, target
achievennent agreed

5%

Property:

UK store estate praogramme
delivered the change N space
within budget and birnelines
However, t was determmned that
some of this delivery was a result
of disappointing overall M&S
pretenrriane oand soonly Largot
athwevernent noted

5%

UK M&S com channel against
targets set led to below target

Overall % of Salary

revenue and operating profit (200% max)
forthis year

0%
0%
Costs:
Cost savings target for the year EOk
were achyeved A future cost / £1,18m

saviNgs programme was also
nitiated, but not all project
rmilestones and deliverables
achieved within agreed timelines

5%

Ovoerall % of Salary
(LU X}

0%
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ANNUAL BONUS SCHEME CONTINUED

DEFERRED SHARE BONUS PLAN
(AUDITED)

Currently 50% of any bonus payment is
computsorly deferred into nil-cost options/
conditional shares These awards vest

after three years subject to continued
employment as well as malus provisions

The table opposite provides details of

share awards made duning the year in
respect 6f bonus payments made in 2016/17
The face value of each award reflects half

of the value shown for 2016/17 borus
payments in the single figure table

ANNUAL BCONUS SCHEME FOR 2018/19

FIGURE 11; DSBP AWARDS MADE IN 2016/17 {AUDITED)

Facevalue
of award Endof
Basis of award jasiels] deferral period
Steve Rowe 50% of bonus £300  23/06/2020
Patrick Bousquet-Chavanne 50% of bonus £229  23/06/202¢¢
Helen Weir 50% of bonus £248  23/06/202(¢

The face value of awards is calculated as the number of ni-cost options/conditional shares awarded muttipled by the

average mud-market share price onthe five dea ing days prior to the date of grant For this year the share price was
calculated as £3 433, being the average share price between 16 June 2007 and 22 June 2017

~y

As previously reported, Helen Wer left M&S on 31 March 2018 Patnick Bousquet Chavanne will leave the business on

31 May 2018 11 Une with our remuneration policy, all deferred bonus awards, ncluding trose above will vest early upon
leawing See Figure 24 for mere rformaton Fullleaving arrangements are deta led on page 59

During the year, the Committee reviewed
the 2018/19 Scheme, considerng the
five-year transformation programme,
‘Making M&S Special Again’ and bonus
arrangements elsewhere in the business
It determined that the structure of the
2018/19 Scheme remained broadly
appropriate, with some necessary minor
amendments to further align the Scheme
with the pillars of transformation cutlined
elsewherein this repert and with bonus
arrangements in the arganisation The
201718 Scheme s designed to focus
onrestoring the business to profitable
growth with an emphasis not only on
profits but also other key financial areas
which drive this transformation journey

Performance will be again focused on Croup
PBT before adjusting tems (PRT) (70%) with
incdividual measures set against key areas of
deltivery of the transfarmation plan which
are deemed most critical to the future
sustainable success of MRS

For 2018/19, indmidual performance

will again be measured independently

of PBT performance, bbut, mirroring
arrangements elsewhere in the business,ne
individual element may be earned untilthe
threshold needed to secure payment under
the corporate elernent 1s similarly achieved

As llustrated below, 70% of awards will once
again be measured against PBT under the
corporate element Theremaining 30%

of the bonus witl be measured against a
scorecard of individual objectives

The individual element of the Scheme

will comprise of anumber of measures
identified as the measurable key priornities
required to drnive the continued
transformation of M&S

For the CEQ, the measures within the
individual scorecardwill focus onthe
bullding and bedding-in of a strong new
management team, improverments in M&S's
online sales and fulfilment capability, supply
chainimprovernents and the successful
evolution of the Sparks loyalty programme

FIGURE 12: ANNUAL BONUS SCHEME TARGETS 2018/19

For the CFQ, the scorecard measuras will
facus on belping to deliver the financial
plan of the business, with an emphasis on
M&S's operating costs,and control of capital
costs and expenditure across the business
Inaddition, in this first year with M&S,
Hurnphrey's objectives willalso include a
review of the capabilities and cantrols within
his teams with a strong focus on talent
management and succession planning

The performance targets for the

2018/19 Scheme are deerned by the Board
tobe too commercally sensitive to disclose
at this time but, where possible, will be
disclosed in next year's report

The Committee, inits absclute discretion,
may use Its Judgement to adjust outcomes
to ensure that arny payments made reflect
cverall business and inchividual performance
during the year

Achievernent against areas such as Pian A,
M&S's ecolegicaland ethical plan for
creating long-term sustainable business
vatue and delivery of the piltars of
transformation willalso inforrm the
Committee's decision makingwhen
approving final payments for 2018/19

CORPORATE TARGETS

Croup PBT before adjostingterns {PB1)

INDIVIDUAL OBJECTIVES

Scorecard of

Individual Measures

Iiree tor Lot Hbonus Measare
Steve 70% 30% Success of new management team
Rowe Online capabilities
Supply chan
Evolution of Sparks
Humphrey 70% 30% Operatingcosts
Singer Controlof capital costs and expenditure

Talent review
Review control environmenit

&
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REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

PERFORMANCE SHARE PLAN (PSP)

The Committee believes that long-term share awards reward executives for the delivery of long-terrn business goals and so makes annual
awards under the PSP to incentivise executive directors and M&S's most senior managers

PSP AWARDS MADE IN 2017/18 (AUDITED)

Aswas reported last year, having considered
the extent towhich the long-termincentive
framework rermnained relevant, the
Committee determined that whilst the
existing structural arrangerments remamed
appropnate, during this period of
transformation the business must continue
to ensurea focus or returns ta sharehotders
As such, a Relative TSR (TSR) measure

was introduced, forming one-thira of
performance conditions for PSP awards

TSR s measured against a bespoke group
of 15 companies taken from the FTSE 350
General and Food & Drug Retailers indices
andare believed to be appropriately abigned
to M&S's business operations to reflect the
value of shareholder investment in M&S
over the performance penod{see Figure 14
for details of these companies)

The remander of the award s measured
equally against Adjusted EPS (EPS)yand
Average ROCE This balance of measures
has been designed to ensure an equal
focus onall three performance metncs

Aswasreportedlast year, each executive
director was granted an award of conditional
shares of 250% of salary The grant was
rmade on 14 August 2017 In ine with policy,
awards will vest three years after the date of
grant, to the extent that the performance
conditions are met, and must then be held
far a further twe years

Consistent with previous years, 20% of
awards will vest for threshold performance
Increasing to 100% on a straight-ine

basis between threshold and maxirmnurm
performance Detaledtargets can be
seeninFigure 13

FIGURE 13: PERFORMANCE CONDITIONS FOR PSP AWARDS MADE IN 2017/18 (AUDITED)

Average ROCE

Adjusted EPS (2007/18 - 2019/20}

. . n 2019720 (%] Relative 1SR
2017/18 award s of award Yeof award /1 of award
Threshold performance 3IN7p 130% Median
Maximum performance 387p 170% Upper guartie
FIGURE 14; TSR COMPARATOR GROUP 2017/18 AND 2018/19 AWARD (AUDITED)

J Sainsbury B&M European ingfisher
Wrn Morrisons Debenhams N Brown Group
Tesco Dixons Carphone Next
Ocado Group Ounelm Croup Sports Direct international
ASOS JD Sports Fashion WHSmith
FIGURE 15: PSP AWARDS MADE IN 2017/18 (AUDITED)
Faca value Endof
Basis o7 award of award performance
% of salary £000 penizd vesting dste
Steve Rowe 250% 2025 28/03/2020 14/08/2020
Patrick Bousguet-Chavanne 250% 1,365 28/03/2020 14/08/2020
Helen Weir 250% 1,475 28/03/2020 14/08/2020

| Asprevicysly raported, Helen Weir left M&S on 31 March 2018 Patrick Bausquet Chavanne will leave the businass on 31 May 2018 Inbne withthe Perfermance Share Flan Rules
PS” awards made in 2017/18 willtapse in full ypo~ leaving the company See Bigure 24 for more mformation Full leaving arrangement s are detailed onpage 59

When calculating the face value of awards to be granted, the number of conditional shares awarded s multiplied by the average mid-rmarket
share price on the five dealing days prior to the date of grant For this year, the share price was calculatedas £3 297, being the average share
price between 7 August 2017 and 11 August 2017
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PERFORMANCE SHARE PLAN (PSP) CONTINUED

FIGURE 16: PSP AWARDS VESTING IN 2017/18 (AUDITED)

For directors in receipt of PSP awards granted in 2015, the awards will vestin June 2018 based on three-year performance over the penod
to 31 March 2018 Performance has been assessed and it has been determined that 8 2% of the total award will vest

Details of performance against the specific targets set are shown in the table below
The total vesting values shown below directly correspond to the figure ncluded in the single figure table on page 50

Financal strategic scorecard

Clothmeag &
Anc galised Interaationat MEScam Home gross
Adpistod Average cast salos cash sales margin I recoashilow
LPS growl b’ ROCL growih' Growih? agrewlh G owlh®
) (%) (K} £4) {hps) (L]
Total vesting
% of award
2015/ 16 awarc 50% of award 20% o award 75% of award 75% of award 75% of award 7 5% of awara
-
Threshold performance 50% 15 0% 50% 110% 350bps £1,350m 3
Maximum performance 120% 16 5% 150% 180% 550bps £1,650m E
Actual performance achieved -56% 14 2% -06% 106% 396bps £1,542m g
Lud
Percentage of maximum achieved 0% 0% 0% 0% 29% 5 3% 8.2% E

1 ExcluzingM&S com/including Republic of Ireland
2 FxVAT post returns

3 Pre-dividends,e~ha~ced shareho.ger returns a~d strategic options

FIGURE 17: VESTING VALUE OF AWARDS VESTING IN 2017/18 (AUDITED}

Cngrant At the end of performance peniod (21 March 2018)

Total vesting

of award

Nu~ber of % of salary Number of Number of £000

shares gra~ted granted shares vesting shares lagsi~g

Steve Rowe 260,826 250% 21,387 239,439 E76
Patrick Bousquet-Chavanne 255,905 250% 19,818 236,087 £70
Helen Weir 276,527 250% 20,155 256,372 £72

Total vesting values are based on a share price of £294 {the average share price from 2 January 2018 to 28 March 2018) plus adwidend
equivalent of £061 per share To prowide anaccurate indication of the total vesting value for Helen Werr and Patrick Bousquet-Chavanne,
the column detailing the number of shares tapsing takes Intc consideration shares lapsing due to the pro-rabion applied to therr awards on
leaving M&S Further details on the treatment of share awards upon leaving can be found onpage 59

PSP AWARDS TO BE MADE IN 2018/19

During the year, the Committee reviewed
the long-termincentive framework at M&S,
assessing the extent to which it remained
appropriate After consideration, it was
decided that the current structural
arrangerments continue to be aligned to the
focus on maxirnising shareholder value by
restoring the business to profitable growth
The three performance measures usedin
the 2017 PSP award, Relative TSR(TSR),
Adjusted EPS (L PS)and Average ROCE
{ROCE), are still considered to be the key
drivers to deliver these core prionities Inline
with last year's award, these measures willbe
equally balanced to ensure an appropriate
focus onallthree metrics

TSRwill once again be measured against the
bespoke group of 15 comparies taken from
the FTSE 350 Ceneraland Food &Drug
Retallersindices This group was reviewed
during the year to ensure the constituents
remain appropriately aligned to M&S's
business operations tobest reflect the value
of shareholder's investment in M&S over
therespective performance period These
companies are Ustedin Figure 14 overleaf

Targets set forthe 2018 PSP award are inline
with those set for the 2017 award, and M&S's
financial plan, reflecting the continued
Journey of the programme to Make M&S
Special Again Targets werereviewed andare

considered toremain a balance of achievable
but stretching Achievement of maximurm
vesting would be iIndicative of exceptional
performance against these metrics

The Committee s mindful of the needto
strongly Incentivise the most senior leaders
of M&S T ollowing careful consideration and
discussion, for the 2018 PSP a grant of 250%
of salary was approved It was agreed that
this award level woutd represent a clear
signal to the executive directors that whilst
Lhere s hard work ahead as we move along
the transformation journey to make M&S
specialagain, truly exceptional performance
will be rewarded

FIGURE 18: PERFORMANCE CONDITIONS FOR PSP AWARDS TO BE MADE IN 2018/19

Average ROZE
Adjusted EPS (018119 2020/21}

N 2020721 (%) Relative TSR
2018/19awnd Jof award frof award Jrof award
Threshold performance 3 7p 130% Median
Maximum performance 387p 170% Upper Quartile
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REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

FIGURE 19: DIRECTORS' SHAREHOLDINGS {AUDITED)

The table below sets out the total number of shares held at 31 March 2018 by each executive director serving on the Board during the year
Shares owned cutright include those held by connected persons

There have beenno changes inthe current directors iInterestsin shares or opbions granted by the Company and its subsidiares between the
end of the financial year and 22 May 2018 No director had an interest in any of the Company's subsidiaries at the statutory end of the year

Unwvasted
Wikh Without
performance performance
conditions conditions Vestacbut
Shares owned Performance DeferredShare unexercised
outright Share Plan Bonus Plan shares
Steve Rowe 253,408 1,430,660 179,231 ¢}
Patrick Bousquet-Chavanne 123,098 1,044,459 138,459 0
Helen Weir 50,000 1,128,628 159,238 0

FIGURE 20: SHAREHOLDING REQUIREMENTS (AUDITED)

Allexecutive directors are required to hold shares equivalent in value Lo a rinirmum percentage of thewr salary within a five-year penod from
their appontrment date For the CEQ, this requirement 1s 250% of satary and for other executive directors the requirement s 150% of salary
Similar guidelines of 100% of salary also apply to all directors below Board level

The chart below shows the extent to which each executive director has met their target shareholding as at 31 March 2018 For Steve Rowe,
his 250% shareholding reguirement s measured from the date he was appointed CEO

For the purposes of the requirements, the net number of univested share awards not subject to performance conditions is includad andis
reflected inthe chart below The Committee s satisfied that the current level of shareholding requirement provides an appropnate level of
investrment in M&S for each director The Comrmittee will continue to keep this Issue under review and willamend accordingly if necessary

150% of salary% 250% of saLary%

Steve Rowe 116.1%

Patrick Bousquet-Chavanne 1N.0%

Halen Weir 61.5%

Key Shares owned o.tnight Unvested DSBP s hares vested a d unexercised { Sharenclding requirernent

EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEMES

ALL-EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEMES
(AUDITED)

DILUTION OF SHARE CAPITAL BY EMPLOYEE SHARE PLANS

Executive directors may participate in both
ShareSave,the Company’s Save As You Earn
Scherne,and ShareBuy, the Company's
Share Incentive Plan, on the sarme basis as
all other eligible employees Further details
of the schemes are set cut innote 13to the
financial statements on pages 99and 100

Awards granted under the Company's
Save As You Earn Scherme and the
Executive Share Option Scherme are met
by thessue of new shares when the
options are exercised

All other share plans are currently met by
market purchase shares The Company
monitors the number of shares issued
under these schernes and therr mpact on

FICURE 21: ALL SHARE PLANS

dilution birmits The Company's usage of
shares compared to the ciilution imits set
by The Investment Association in respect
of all share plans (10% in any rolling ten-year
period) and executive shara plans (5% inany
rolling ten-year period) as at 31 March 2018
s as follows

FIGURE 22: EXECUTIVE SHARE PLANS

Actual 5.14%

Limit 10%

Actual 0%

Limit~ 5%
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION CONTINUED

FIGURE 23: EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN THE COMPANY’'S SHARE SCHEMES {(AUDITED)

Maxirnum
recevableat
Maxirnurm 3 March 2018
recelvableat Awarded dunng Exert sed during Lapsedduring (or date of
2 Apnl 2017 the year the yea~ the year rebirerment}
Steve Rowe
Perforrmance Share Plan 1,116,809 614,194 o] 300,343 1,430,660
Deferred Share Bonus Plan 91932 87,299 0 0 179,231
SAYE 5,683 0 0 2,222 3,461
Total 1,214,424 701,493 0 302,565 1,613,352
Patrick Bousquet-Chavanne
Perforrnance Share Plan 930,790 414,012 ¢} 300,343 1,044,459 5
Deferred Share Bonus Plan 7166) 66,798 ¢ o 138,459 2
SAYE 2,222 3,448 9] 2,222 3,448 S
Total 1,004,673 484,258 o] 302565 1,186,366 E
&
Helen Weir
Perfarmance Share Plan 681,252 447376 ¢} 0 1,128,628
Deferred Share Bonus Plan 87057 72,181 0 0 159,238
SAYE 3,461 o] ¢ 0 3,461
Total 771770 519,557 0 O 1,291,327

No directors exercised awards during the financial year 2017/18 and s there are no aggregate gains to report The market price of the shares
at the end of the financial year was 270 2p, the highest and lowest share price during the financial year were 395 5p and 265 3p respectively

Helen Weir retired frorm the Board and left the Company on 31 March 2018 Patrick Bousquet-Chavanne refired from the Board on

18 April 2018 and will leave the Company on 31 May 2018 Details of therr leavingarrangements are set out on page 52.For both cutgoing
executive directors, the impact of therr departure on therr share awards falls within the 2018/19 financial year This impact is therefore not
reflected in Figure 23 above

However, to provide an accurate and transparent overview of directors interests in discretionary share awards, Figure 24 below shows
the tme horizons of cutstanding discretionary share awards for all directors serving on the Board dunng the year, including Helen Weir
and Patrick Bousquet-Chavanne As can be seen, all directors continue to hold significant interests In M&S's performance over the
forthcoming years

FIGURE 24: VESTING SCHEDULE OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' OUTSTANDING DISCRETIONARY SHARE AWARDS

Maximumreceivable at 201819 2019/20 2020/21 %

31 March 2018 s

{alld screticnary Maxa~urm Maximum Maximum c

schernes) Recewvable Lapsed Recevable Lapzed Recevable Lapsed Z

Steve Performance Shg(e Plan 1,430,660 21,387  (239439) 555640 - 614194 - ©
Rowe Deferred Share Bonus Plan 179,321 59,556 - 32376 - 87,299 -
Patrick Performance Share Plan 1,044,459 19,819 (236,087) 176,867  (197.675) 0 414012)
Bousquet-Chavanne Deferred Share Bonus Plan 138,459 138,459 - - - - -
Helen Performance Share Plan 1,128,628 20155  (256,372) 168,635 (236,090) 0 (447376)
Weir Deforred Share Bonus Plan 159,238 156,238 - - - - -

Asreported onpage 55, the 2015 PSP awards included within the totals shown in Figure 23 will vest at 8 2% in July 2018 for all executive
directors This has beenreflecled above inthe 2018/19 Lapsed' coturnn

As detalled earlier in this report, upon leaving M&S the awards held by Helen Weir and Patrick Bousguet-Chavanne under the Deferred
Bonus Schemne vestin full following their departure from the Company This has been reflected above in the 201819 Maximurm Recevable’
column Outstanding awards held by Helen and Patnck under the 2015 and 2016 PSP are pro-rated for tirne held upon leaving Thisis
reflected by year of vestin the applicable ‘Lapsed’ column In line with the Plan rules, upon leaving PSP awards granted in 2017 lapse in full
This s reflected above inthe 2020/21 'Lapsed column
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION CONTINUED

FIGURE 25: PERFORMANCE AND CEO REMUNERATION COMPARISON

This graph llustrates the Cornpany's performance against the FTSE 100 over the past nine years The FTSE 100 has been chosenas the
appropriate comparator as M&S1s a constituent of this index The calculation of TSR is in accordance with the relevant remuneration
regulations The table below the TSR chart sets out the rernuneration data for directors undertaking the role of CEO during each of the last

ninefinancial years

2008/09 200910 2050/11 201412 201213 2013714 2m415 2015/16 2016417 0718
—= Marks and Spencer
Group plc
= FTSE 100 Index 300
Source Thomson Reuters 283015 01/0417 318
250
200 02109012 2900312 02/04/16
300313
150 7500311
‘00 R0 30
50
o
CECr
CEQ single figure of Steve Rowe - - - - - - - 1,642 1,12C
remuneration {£000) Marc Bolland - 5998 3324 2142 1568 2095 2015 - -
Stuart Rose 4,294 269 - - - - - - -
Annualbonus payment Steve Rowe - - - - - - - 3698% 000%
(% of maxirnum) Marc Bolland - 4580% 3400% 4250%  0OOD%  30SE%  3)90% - -
Stuart Rose 9700%  5740% - - - - - - -
PSP vesting Steve Rowe - -~ - == - -~ DO0%  820%
(% of manarmurm) Marc Bolland - - 3196%  GO0%  760%  470%  A80% - -
Stuart Rose 000% 000% - = - = -~ - -

1 Marz Bollano was appointes CEO on | May 2000 Hiz single figure for 20 /11 include: recru trment awards made to him at that time to compen:ate himforincentive awards forfeited or
cessation from his previous employer Stuart Rose undertook the role of CEO from 31 May 2004 to 33 Apnl 201Q

FIGURE 26: PERCENTAGE CHANGE IN CEQO'S REMUNERATION

The table oppoesite sets out the changein
the CEQ's remuneration e salary, taxable
benefits and annual bonus) compared with
the change inour UK-based employees
This group has been chosen as the majonity
of ourworkforce s UK-based

%change 2016/17- 201718

Basezalary Benefits Annual bonus
CEO (Steve Rowe) 0% 12% -100%
UK employees (average per FTE} B8 4% 1 5% -100%

The 8 4% percentage change iInbase salary
for UK employees s a consequence of a
review of the total reward offering to
customer assistants whichincluded a
significant increase to base rate pay,
effective April 2017

FIGURE 27: RELATIVE IMPORTANCE OF SPEND ON PAY

This review alsoincluded the integration

of sorme histonc allowances Into base pay
The camparator data for 2016/17 UK
employee salaries has been adjusted to also
include such allowances so as to provide an
accurate year-on-year comparson

The table cpposite llustrates the
Company's expenditure on pay in
companson to profits before tax and
distnbutions to shareholders by way of
dividend payments and share buy back

Totalemployee pay s the total pay for
all Group employees Greup PBT before
adjusting items has beenusedasa
companson as this is the key financial
rmetric which the Board considers when
assessing Company performance

2006117 01718

£m £m % Crange
Total employee pay 15526 1,578.9 1 7%
Totalreturns to shareholders’ 3775 3034 -196%
Croup PBT before adjusting items 6138 5809 -5 4%

1 lotalteturns to shareholders for 2016417 s inclus ve of specral awv dend
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FIGURE 28: SERVICE AGREEMENTS

Inline with our policy, directors have rolling
contracts which may be terminated by the
Cempany giving 12 months notice or the
director giving six months’ notice

Date of
appointment Notice pericd/unexpired terrmi
Steve Rowe 02/04/2016 12 months/é months
Humphrey Singer July 2018 12 ronths/6 months

CHANGES TO EXECUTIVE MEMBERSHIP OF THE BOARD DURING 2017/18

DIRECTORS APPOINTED TO THE BOARD
There were ne directors appointedto the
Board dunng the 2017/18 financial year

PAYMENTS FOR THE LOSS OF OFFICE
{audited)

Helen Weir left M&S on 21 March 2018
Reruneraticn terms on leaving were inline
with the approved Remuneration Policy
Aswasreportedat the ime, Helen will
receive salary and benefits, including
nension, by way of phased monthly
payments {subject to mitigation) from

1 Apriluntil 8 November 2018, reflecting
the remaining penod of contractual notice
The Cormmittee determined good leaver
treatmentinbine with tha plan rules and
therefore her unvested nil-cost options
granted under the Deferred Share Bonus
Plan vested in full onleaving Unvested
nit-cost opticns, awarded under the 2015
and 2016 PSP were time pro-rated to
March 2018 and will vest, to the extent the
perforrmance conditions are met, onthe
normal vesting date The PSP award

made in 2017 lapsed in ful{ onleavingin
accordance with the Plan rules

As detaled earlier in this report, 8 2% of
PSP awards granted in 2015 will vest in
July 2018 Helen has one further unvested
PSP award, granted in 2016 To the extent
that performance conditions are met,

the subsequent vesting of this award will
bereportedin next year'sreport

FIGURE 29: EXTERNAL APPOINTMENTS

PAYMENTS TO PAST DIRECTORS
{audited)

Laura Wade-Gery retired from the Board
on 30 September 2016 Laura had onemaore
outstanding award under the Performance
Share Plan In accordance with the rules

of the Performance Share Plan, 8 2% of her
2015 award (8,496 shares) will vest in July
2018 Thisis estimated to be circa £30,200,
based on the average share price between
2 January 2018 and 29 March 2018, Including
dividend equivalents Laura has nofurther
outstanding awards

Marc Bolland retired from the Board on

2 April 2016 and had two outstanding
awards under the Performance Share

Plan Inaccordance with the rules of the
Performance Share Plan, 8 2% of hus 2015
award (17695 shares) will vest in July 2018
Thisis estimated to be circa £62,899,

based on the average share price between
2 January 2018 and 29 March 2018, including
dividend equivalents Marc has no further
outstanding awards

CHANGES TO THE BOARD IN 2018/19
Humphrey Singer s expected tojointhe
Board in July 2018 as Chief Finance Officer
His remunerationis inline with the approved
Recruitment Policy detailed on page 47

As has already been disclosed, on
appointment Humphrey's basic annual
salary will be £600,000, he will recerve
nerther 2 car allowance nor a pension cash
allowance Therest of Humphrey's incentive
arrangements will be aigned with the other
executive directors He s eligible fora PSP
grantin July 2018 inaccordance with the
Annual Remuneration Policy (see page 55
for Further details) No share awards have
been granted to Humphrey nrelation to
his appointment

Patrick Bousquet-Chavanne retired from
the Board on 18 Apnl 2018 and will leave
M&S on 31 May 2018 Remuneration terms
on leaving were in ine with the approved
Remuneration Policy As was reported at the
time, Patrick will receive salary and benefits,
including pension, by way of phased
monthly payments (subject to mitigation}
from 1 June 2018 until 28 February 2019

It has been announced that Patrick has
subsequently secured alternative
employment and so these monthly
paymeants will cease once his new
employment commences The Committee
determined good leaver treatment in

lne with the plan rules and therefore his
unvested canditicnal shares granted under
the Deferred Share Bonus Plan will vest in
fullon leaving Unvested conditional shares,
awarded under the 2015 and 2016 PSP will
be time pro-rated to 31 May 2018 and wll
vest, to the extent the performance
conditions are met, on the normal vesting
date The PSP award made in 2017 willlapse
N fullon leaving in accordance with the
Planrules

Asdetalled earlier inthis report, § 2% of PSP
awards granted in 2015 willvest in July 2018
Patnck has one further unvested PSP
award, granted in 2016 To the extent that
performance conditions are met, the
subsequent vesting of thisaward willbe
reported innext year's report

The Company recognises that executive
directors may be invited to become non-
execubive directors of other companies
and that these appointments can broaden
ther knowledge and experience tothe
benefit of the Company The policyis for
the indwvidual cirector toretain any fee

The table opposite sets cut the detalls
for these fees earned for the period
2 April 2017 to 31 March 2018

Fea
Cirector Company 000
Patrick Bousquet-Chavanne Brown-Forran 3641
Helen Weir Rugly Football Union £30

STRATEGIC REPORT
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

FIGURE 30: NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ TOTAL SINGLE FIGURE REMUNERATICN (AUDITED}

Non-executive directors receive fees

Basic fees Additional fees Benefits Total
reflecting the time commutrment, demands £000 £000 £000 £000
and responsibiities of the role The table Director Year
opposite details the fees pad to the Archie Norman 2017/18 a1 309 0 350
non-executive directors and Board from 1 September 2017)

Chatrran for 2017718 and 2016/17 ¢ P 2016/17 o g o 0
Duringth ¢ the feas for ail Robert Swannell 201718 29 159 9 197
: © year, thefeesfora to 1 September 2017
non-axecutive directors were reviewed { — P ) 201617 70 380 21 A7
Taking Into account the relevant market Vindi Banga 20078 70 30 ¢} 100
dataand salary freezes for senior managers 2016/17 70 30 0 100
within M&S for July 2018, no increase to Alison Brittain 201718 70 ) a 70
fees was awarded Feelevels will be
reviewed again during 2018/19 201617 70 0 o 70
i i 17 8 o}
Ropert Swannell retired frorm the ?:ér?:ggrg::;' ;018) 201718 > o 58
Boardon 1 September 2017 and 2036/17 70 9 o 70
Miranda Curhisretired from the Board on Andrew Fisher 201718 70 0 8] 70
1 February 2018 As such, the payments 2016/17 70 Is) 0 70
shownin the table retate to those made
7 1
unti these respective dates Andy Halferd 2017118 (o} 5 0 85
. to Archie N ; his o ‘ 201617 70 15 O 85
eesto Archie Norman are frem his date o "

appomntment to M&S on 1 September 2017 Richard Solomons 2017/18 70 0 0 70

201617 70 0 O 70
FIGURE 31: NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' SHAREHOLDINGS (AUDITED)
The nan-executive directors are nat Lireckar Nurnber of shares held

permitted te participate inany of the
Company's incentive arrangements All
non-executive directors are required to
buld and maintain a shareholding of at least
2,000 shares in the Company within two
manths of their appointrment to the Board

The table opposite details the shareholding
of the nan-executive directors wha served

on the Board during the yearas at

31 March 2018 (or upen therr date of retiring
from the Board), ncluding those held by
connected persons

There have beenno changes in the current,
non-executive directors’ interestsin
shares in the Cormpany and its subsidiaries
between the end of the financial yearand
22 May 2018

FICURE 32: NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' AGREEMENTS FOR SERVICE

Archie Norman 43,000
Robert Swannell 169,298
Vindi Banga 93,700
Alison Brittain 5096
Miranda Curtis 5,500
Andrew Fisher 3536
Andy Halford 21,000
Richard Sotomons 5,000

Non-executive directors have an agreement
for service for aminttial three-year term
which can be terminated by either party
giving three months notice (sixmonths'

for the Chairman)

The table opposite sets out these terms
for all current members of the Board

Director [ate of appontment Notice aenodfunexpired term
Archie Norman 01/Q9/2017 6 months/6 months
Vindi Banga 01/Q9/201 _ 3months/3months
Alison Brittain /G204 2 months/3 months
Andrew Fisher OT/IZ/ZOISA 3 rnonths/3 months
Andy Halfprd 01/01/2013 3 months/3 months
Richard Solomons 13/04/2015% amenths/3 months

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CHANGES TO THE BOARD DURING 2017/18

DIRECTORS APPCQINTED TO THE BOARD
Archie Norman joined the Board as
Charrmanon 1 Septernber 2017, upon
Robert Swannell'sretirement fromthe
business Inlinewiththe policy set out on
page 49, Archie receives the standard
non-executive director fee plusan
additional fee as the Board Chairman
Archie's totalannual fee 1s £600.000

DIRECTORS RETIRING FROM THE BOARD CHANGES TO THE BOARD 2018/19

Robert Swannellretired from the Board on
1 September 2017 There were no payments

forloss of office payable to Robert

Miranda Curtis retired from the Board on
1 February 2018 There were no payments
for loss of office payable to Miranda

Katie Bickerstaffe and Pip McCrostie will
jom the Board as non-executive directors,
and members of the Normination
Comrmittee, on 10 July 2018 Both Katie

and Pipwill receive the standard annual
non-executive director fee of £70,000
Inaddition to being appointed to the
Nomination Committee, Katiewill join the
Remuneration Cormmittee and Pip will
becorne a member of the Audit Committee
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REMIT

During the year, the Remuneration Committee, under the chairmanship of Vindi Banga, agreed that the publication of the proposed
revisions to the UK Corporate Governance Code by the Financial Reporting Councit, along with the appointment of Archie Nerman to
Chairman of the Bozard and mernber of the Remuneration Committee, provided an excellent opportunity toreview the Committee’s
Terms of Reference Following athorough review of the existing remit, new broader Terms of Reference were agreed

Therole of the Committee continues to be ensuring that the Senior Executive Croup are appropnately rewarded, through making
recemmendations regarding senior remuneration strategy and framework to the Board Reflectingmarket direcbion and anticipating
ncoming regulation, the revised Terms of Reference further extends the Committee’s rermit to include greater responsibility for
dernonstrating how pay and incentives align across the Cornpany, along with defined mechanisms for workfarce engagement
Further demonstrating the Committee's commitment to meaningful and transparent engagement on pay practices in the wider
workforce, the charr of M&S's employee representative body willbe invited to attend and contnbute to a Committee meating each
year The broadened rernit alsoincludes oversight of key people policy areas such as performance management, diversity and
inclusion, and gender pay The full Terms of Reference for the Committee can be found on the Company's website at

marksandspencer.com/fthecompany

KEY RESPONSIBILITIES

- Settinga strategy that ensures the most talented -
leaders are recruted, retained and maotvated to
deliverresults

- Considening the appropriateness of the
senior remuneration framework when reviewed -
against arrangements throughout the rest of
the orgarysation

- Rewiewing the effectiveness of the Group
remuneration frameworks with regards to -
their impact

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AGENDA FOR

Determining the terms of employment and
remuneration for the Seror Executive Croup,
including recruitment and terminaticn
arrangements

Approving the design, targets and total payments/
awards for performance-related pay schemes
operated by the Croup, seeking shareholder
approval where necessary

Assessing the appropriateness and subseguent
actievement of performance targets relating
to any share-based incentive plan for the
Senior Fxecutive Group

201718

Reacemving direct feedback from the Croup's
employee representative body, employee
engagement surveys and management reports
to ensure employee views on Croup culture,
including remuneration strategy, are considered
Reviewing initiatives relating to dwersity and
inclusion and reviewing and approving the
Group's diversity policy

Rewviewing and noting employee-related external
reporting, ncluding Gender Pay reporting

REGULAR ITEMS -

Pay arrangements

- Inline with Company policies, annual review of
base salanes and benefits of the Senior Executive
Caaup and approval of any salary ine rease

= Review of, and agreement to, remuneration
packages for new members of the Sermor
Lo alve Group and Lerminalion anangoment s
of outgoing members

= Review of updated pay arrangements across
the Groug

Annual Bonus Scheme -

— Rewiew of achievement of Group PBT before
adjusting lkems against 2017/18 Annual Bonus
Scherne targets

- Approvaltoapply discretion Lo reduce bonus
payments to zero

— Rewview of achievement of the Senior Executive -
GCroup against 2017/18 indwidual objectives

= Rewview ponciples of 2017/ 1R Bones atlex ation
across the Croup

Review of the structural design, measures and
approach to targets for the 2018/19 Annual
Bonus Scheme for the Senior Executive Croup
and the wider workforce

Performance Share Ptan {PSP)

Approval of the measures and targets for the
PSP awards granted during the year andin the
next year for the Semor Executive Group

Review and approvat of awards made 1o executive
and cperating committee directors under the
2018 PSP, taking into account the total value of

all awards rmade under tas plan

Regular review of allin-flght performance plans
against targets

Approval of vesting levet of the 2G15 PSP awards
including clear artrculation of the Committee s
consideration for vesting and payment levels to
oxecutive dired Lors and semor managers

Consideration and depate of the senior

rernuneration framewaork in the context of
oxbernal guidane e and transformation plan

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE ACTION PLAN 218/19%

G

overnance and external market

Approval of the Directors Remuneration Report
for 2017418 and review of the AGM voting outcome
for the 7C17/18 Report

Review of Committee performance in 2017118

Review and update of Committee Terms
of Reference

Approval of the renewal of the M&S Save As
Your Earn Scheme, with final approval given by
shareholders at the 2017 ACGM

Consideration of external market developments
and best practice in remunerationincluding the
proposed revisions to the UK Corporate
Covernance Code

Assessment of the external environment
surrounging the Company s current remuneration
arrangements

Consideration of remuneration arrangements for
the wider workforce, including review of Gender
Pay reporting cutcomes

VERMANCE

~- Ensure the principles of the revised lerms of -
Reference and broader remit of the Committee
arc ermbedded within Committee oversight

- Fnsure the continued strategic alignment of -
the directors’ Incentive arrangements g support
and drive M&S's transformation

-~ Debate and agree the appropriateness of
the semor remuneration framework in the
context of the rest of the organisation and
oxternal governance

Fnsure a formal annual review of the wider
workforce reward framework, including reporting
onissues such as Cender Pay

Review the effectiveness and transparency of
remuneraticn reporting
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FIGURE 33: REMUNERATION COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The table opposite detals the
independent non-executive
directors that were members

of the Commuttee during 2017/18.

COMMITTEE ADVISERS

Member Maximum Number of % of
since possible meetings meetings
meetings attended attended
MEMBER
Vindi Banga 1 September 2011 3 3 100%
({Chairman)
Archie Norman 3 November 2017 1 1 100%
Robert Swannell 1 March 2015 2 2 100%
until 1 Septernber 2017
Miranda Curtis 1 February 2012 3 3 100%
until 1 February 2018
Richard Sotomons 21 July 2018 3 3 100%

In carrying out its responsibilities, the
Committee s independently adwsed by
externaladvisers The Committee was
adwised by PwC during the year PwCisa
founding member of the Remuneration
Consultants Group and voluntarnly operates
under the code of conduct inrelation to
executive remuneration consulting inthe
UK The code of conduct canbe found at
remunerationconsultantsgroup.com

The Committee has not expliaitly
considered the ndependence of the advice
It receives, although it regularly reflects on
the quality and objectivity of this advice
The Committee s satisfied that any
conflicts are appropriately managed

PwC was appointed by the Committee as its
independent advisers in 2014 following a
rigorous and competitive tender process
PwC provides ndependent commentary
onmatters under consideration by the
Committee and updates on legislative
requirements, best practice and market
practice PwC's fees are typically charged
onan hourly Basis with costs for work
agreed inadvance During the year, PwC
charged £ 38,700 for Rernuneration
Committee matters Thisisbased onan
agreed fee for business as usual support
with additional work charged at hourly rates
PwC has provided tax, consultancy andrisk
consuling services to the Group inthe
financial year

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE STAKEHOLDER AND SHAREHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Committee atso seeks internal support
from the CEQ Croup Secretary, HR Director
and Head of Performance &Reward as
necessary Allmay attend the Committee
rmeetings by invitation but are not present
for any discussions that relate directly to
therr own remuneration

The Committee alsoreviews external survey
and bespoke benchmarking data including
that published by New Bridge Street

(the trading narme of Acn Hewtt Limmited),
KPMG, PwC, FIT Rermuneration Consultants
and Witlis Towers Watson

The Committee s commitled to ensunng
that executive pay remains competitive,
appropriate and farr inthe context of the
external market, Company performance
and the pay arrangements of the wider
workforce Incollaboration with the Head
of Performance & Reward, the Committes
gives employees, through employee
representatives, the opportunity to raise
questions or concerns regarding the

remuneration of the executive directors
During the year, employee representatives
were given the opportunity to discuss

In detail the directors pay arrangements
Details of the directors pay arrangements
were discussedin the context of the reward
framework for the rest of the organisation
and external factors, no concerns

were raised either during these discussions
or subsegquently

SHAREHOLDER SUPPORT FOR THE 2016/17 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT

The Committees committed to 4
continuous, openand transparent dialogue
with shareholders on the issue of executive
remuneration Although the Committee did
not formally consult with sharehotders in
201718, numercus conversations were held
onthe subject of executive remuneration,
including the appointment of Archie
Norman to the position of Chairman

At the Annual General Meetingon

11 July 2017,92 0% of shareholders voted
n favour of approving the Directors’
Remuneration Report for 2016/17
Inaddition, 99 08% of shareholders

voted in favour of the Remuneration Policy
The Committee believes this Wustrates
the strong level of shareholder support for
the senior remuneration framework

The table below shows full detalls of
the voting outcomes for the 2016/17
Directors' Remuneration Report and
Remuneration Policy

FIGURE 34: VOTING OUTCOMES FOR 2016/17 REMUNERATION REPORT AND REMUNERATION POLICY

Votes for % Votes for Votes against % \Motes against Votes withneld
Remuneration Report 942,558,230 9201% 81,901,767 799% 7972863
Remuneration Policy 1,020,561,621 99 08% 9,498 526 097% 2368860

APPROVED BY THE BOARD

VINDI BANGA CAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

london,2? May 2018

ThisRem.neration Pa; oy and these remuneration reports have been preoared n accordance with therelevant prowision of the Compames Act 2006 and anthe basis prescribedin the
Large and Mediu~-sizad Comcanies and Groups (Accounts and Tepor tsj (Amendment} Regulation, 23 3{the Regulatio”s} Where required, data figs been auditea by Deloitte and this

1sindicated sppropriately
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OTHER DISCLOSURES

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Marks and Spencer Group plc {the
*Company™)1s the holding company of
the Marks & Spencer Craup of companies
(the "Group™)

The Directors Report (whichis also the
Managernent Report for the purpose of
Disclosure and Transparency Rule (DTR)

41 8R) for the year ended 31 March 2018,
comprises pages 25 to 67 and pages 130to
131 of thisrepart, together with the sections
of the Annual Report Incorporated by
reference As permitted by legislation,
some of the mattersrequired to be included
inthe Directors' Report have instead been
included n the Strategic Report on pages 1
t 24,as the Board considers them to be of
strategic importance Specifically, these are

- Future business developments
(throughout the Strategic Report)

= Risk management on pages 20to 21

- Detalls of branches operated by
the Company onpages 6tc 9

Information relating to fnancialinstruments
canbefoundonpages 105to 111

For information on our approach to social,
environmental and ethical matters, please
refer to our Plan A Report, available onling
at marksandspencer.com/fplana

Other information to be disclosed inthe
Directors Reportis givenin this section

Both the Strategic Report and the Directors’
Report have been drawn up and presented
Inaccordance with andin rebance upon
applicable Cnglish company taw, and the
liabilities of the directors in connection

with those reperts shallbe subject to the
Limitations and restrictions provided by
such law

The membership of the Board and
biographical detals of the directors are
provided on pages 26and 27 Changes to
the directors dunng the year and up to the
date of this report are set out below Details
of directors' beneficial and non-beneficial
interestsin the shares of the Company are
shown on pages 57 and 60 Options granted
to directors under the Save As You Earn
(SAYE) and Executive Share Option
Schemes are shown on page 57 Further
information regarding employee share
option schermesis providedinnote 13 to

the finzncial statements

' 7 Effective date of

appontment/
Name Role departure
Departures
Patrick Executive 18 April 2018
Bousquet-  Director
Chavanne
Helen Weir  Executive 31 March 2018
] ] Director

Miranda Non-Executive 1 February
Curti; Director 2018
Robert Charman 1 September
Swannell 2017
Appointments
Archie Charrrman 1 September
Norman 2017
Proposed App_ointments
Humphrey Executive Effective
Singer Chrector 10 July 2018
Katie Non-Executive Effective
Bickerstaffe Director 10 July 2018
Pip Non-Executive Effective
McCrostie  Director 10 July 2018

The appontrment and replacement of
directors 1s governed by the Company’s
Articles of Assoniation (the “Articles™), the UK
Corporate Governance Code (the "Code”),
the Comparies Act 2006 and related
legislation The Articles may be amended
by a special resclution of the shareholders
Subject to the Articles, the Companias Act
2006 andany directions given by special
resolution, the business of the Company
will be managed by the Board who may
exercise all the powers of the Company
The Cormpany may, by ordinary resolution,
declare dvidends not exceeding the

amount reccrmmended by the Board
Subject to the Companies Act 2006, the
Board may pay intenm dividends and
also any fixed rate dividend, whenever the
financial position of the Company,in the
opinion of the Board justifies its payrnent

The directors may frem time to time
appoint one ormore directors The Board
may appoint any person to be a director
(sclongas the total number of directors
does not exceed the brmit prescribedin
the Articles) Under the Articles, any such
director shatl hold office only until the
next ACM where they will stand for
annual election

DIRECTORS’ CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

The Company has proceduresin ptace for
managing conflcts of interest Shoulda
director becorme aware that they, arany
of their connected parties, have aninterest
nan existing or proposed transaction
with Marks & Spencer, they should notify
the Board in wnting or at the next Beard
meeting Internal controls arein place te
ersure that any related party transactions
involving directors, or their connected
parties,are conducted on anarm's length
basis Directors have a continuing duty to
update any changes to these conflicts

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

The Company maintains directors and
officers’ bability insurance which provides
appropnate cover for legal action brought
againstits directors The Company has atso
granted indemnities to each of its directors
and the Croup Secretary to the extent
permitted by law Qualifying third party
indermnity provisions (@s defined by Section
234 of the Companies Act 2006) were n
force during the year ended 31 March 2018
and remainn force inrelation to certan
losses and liabilities which the directors

{or Group Secretary) may incur to third
parties inthe course of acting as directors
or Group Secretary or employees of the
Company or of any associated company
Qualifying pension scheme indernnity
provisions {as defined by Section 235 of the
Companies Act 2006) were inforce during
the course of the financial year ended

31 March 2018 for the beneht of the Trustees
of the Marks & Spencer Pension Scheme,
bothinthe UKand the Republic of Iretand

STRATECK: REPORY

COVERNANCE
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OTHER DISCLOSURES CONTINUED

PROFIT AND DIVIDENDS

SHARE CAPITAL

Qur compliance with key areas of the Code
1S summarised as follows

J

Independence Cver half of our Board
comprises independent non-executive
directors and the composition of all
Board Committees cormplies with

the Code

Senior Independent Director QOur Senior
Independent Director s Vind) Banga

Accountability and election Clear
separation of duties between Chairman
and CEOroles, all the directiors are to
stand for annual re-eiection

Evaluation Aninternally facilitated
performance evaluation of the Board
and its Committees was undertaken
during the year inaccordance with

the requirernents of the Corporate
Governance Code, following an external
evaluation undertaken the previous year

Attendance The directors have all
attended an acceptable level of Board
and Committee meetings

Experience The Audit Commuttee
chairman met the specific requirements
with regard to recent and relevant
financial experience throughout 2017/18

Auditor tenure We changed our
auditor in 20 4/15, following a thorough
tender process

Non-audit policy This is disclosed on our
website, along with the limited non-audit
work undertaken dunng 2017118

Auditor appointment We disclose our
external auditor appointment policy
on our website

Internal Audit Details on the Internal
Audht function are provided within
this report

Performance-related pay A sigrificant
part of performance-related pay 15
delivered through shares Our reward
framework 1s simple, transparent and
designed to support and drive our
business strategy

The profit for the financial year, after
taxation,armounts to £29 1m (last year
£1157m) The directors have declared

dividendsas follows

Qrdinary shares

Paid interim dividend

of 6.8p per share

(last year 6 8p per share)
Proposed final dividend

of 11.9p per share

(last year 11 9p per share)
Total dividend of

18.7p per share for 2017/18
(last year 18 7p per share)

£1703m

£1931m

£3034m

Subject to shareholder approval at this
year's ACM, the final ordinary dividend
willbe paid on 13 July 2018 to shareholders
whose names were on the Register of
Members at the close of business on

1 June 2018

The Company’s 1ssued ordinary share
capitalas at 31 March 2018 compriseda
single class of ordinary share Each share
carries the nght to one vote at general
meetings of the Company

Dunngthe period, 28,500 ordinary shares in
the Comparniy were 1ssued under thaterms
of the United Kingdom Employees Save As
You Earn Share Option Scheme at prices
between 260p and 369p

Detals of movementsin the Company's
1ssued share capital can be found onpage
112 Innote 24 to the financiai staternents

RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFER
OF SECURITIES

There are no specific restrictions on the
transfer of securities in the Company,

which 1s governed by its Articles of
Association and prevaiung legistation

The Company s not aware of any
agreements between holders of secunties
that may result inrestnictions on the transfer
of securities or that may result inrestrictions
onvobing rights

INTERESTS IN VOTING RIGHTS

Information provided to the Company
pursuant to the Financial Conduct

Authority's (FCA) Disclosure and

Transparency Rules (OTRs)is published
onaRegulatory Information Service

and on the Company's website As at

31 March 2018, the following information
has beenreceived, inaccordance with
DTR 5, from holders of notifiable interests
nthe Company'sissued share capital

Noti"able interests

Ordinary shares

The information provided belowwas
correct at the date of notification, however,
the date received may not have been
within the current financial yvear It should
benoted that these holdings are likely

to have changed since the Company was
notified However, notification of any
change isnot required until the next
notifiable thresholdis crossed

% of capital
disclesed  Nature of holding as per disclosurg

Schroders plc

Majedie Asset
Management Limited

Blackrock, Inc

Armeriprise Financal, Inc
and ts group

The Wellcome Trust

1,624.741572
81070667

90,664,081

82,524,463

47,464,282

5549  Indirectinterest (5547%),
CFD(0001%)

499  DirectiInterest

558 IndirectInterest (4 85%),
Securities lending (0 65%) &
CFD (006%) ‘
K079  IndirectInterest (5 054%),
Direct (0025%)

301 Directinterast




VARIATION OF RIGHTS

Subject to applicable statutes, rnights
attachedto any class of share may be vaned
with the written consent of the holders of at
least three-quarters in nomimal value of the
1ssued shares of that class, or by a special
resolution passed ata separate general
rmeeting of the shareholders

RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS ATTACHING
TO SHARES

Subject to the provisions of the Companies
Act 2006, any resolution passed by the
Company under the Cornpanies Act 2006
and other shareholders nights, shares may
bessued with such rights and restrnctions
as the Company may by ordinary resclution
decide, or (If there 1s no such resolution

or sofarasit does not make specific
provision} as the Board (as defined in

the Articles} may decide Subjecttothe
Articles, the Companies Act 2006 and
other shareholders rights, unissued

shares are at the disposal of the Board

POWERS FOR THE COMPANY ISSUING
OR BUYING BACK ITS OWN SHARES

The Company was authorised by
shareholders at the 2017 ACM to purchase
i the market up to 10% of the Cormpany's
Issued share capital, as permitted under
the Company's Articles No shares were
bought back under this authornity during
the year ended 31 March 2018

This standard authority 15 renewable
annually, the directors will seek to renew
this authority at the 2018 AGM Itis the
Company's presentintention tc cancel
any shares it buys back, rather than hold
themintreasury

The directors were granted authonty at
the 2017 ACM to allot relevant secunties
up to a norminal amount of £135,394,136
This authority will apply until the conclusion
of the 2018 ACM At this vear's ACM,
shareholders will be asked to grant an
authority to atlot relevant securities
(Nuptoancminalamount of £135,397,323
and (u) comprising equity secunties up to
anorminalamount of £270,794 647 (after
deducting from such lirmit any relevant
securities allotted under (1)), in connection
with an offer of anghts 1ssue (the Section
551 amount), such Section 551 amount to
apply until the conclusion of the ACM to be
held in 2019 or, If eartier,on 1 October 2019
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Aspecialresolutionwill alsc be proposed
torenew the directors’ powers to make

non pre-emptive issues for cashin
connectionwith rights issues and otherwise
up toanocrminal amount of £20,309,599
Aspecial resolutionwill also be proposed
torenew the directors’ authonty to
repurchase the Company’s ordinary shares
i the rmarket The authority will be bmited
toamaximurn of 162 millien ordinary shares
and sets the mimnimum and maximum prices
whichwill be paid

DEADLINES FOR EXERCISING
VOTING RIGHTS

Votes are exercisable at a generalmeeting
of the Company inrespect of which the
business being voted uponis being heard
Votes may be exercised in person, by proxy,
or,in relation to corporate members, by
corporate representatives The Articles
provide a deadline for submission of proxy
forms of not less than 48 hours before the
time appointed for the hotding of the
meeting or adjourned meeting However,
when calculating the 48-hour penod,

the directors can,and have, decided not

to take account of any part of a day thats
not a working day

SIGNIFICANT AGREEMENTS -
CHANGE OF CONTROL

There are anumber of agreements to which
the Cormpany 1s party that take effect, alter
or ferminate upon a change of control of the
Company following a takeover bid Details
of the significant agreements of this kind

are as follows

- The £400m Mediurm Term Notes issued
by the Company on 30 November 2009,
the £300m Medium Term Notes issued
by the Company on 6 December 2011,
the £400rm Mediurn Term Notes issued
by the Company on 12 December 2012
and the £300m Medium Term Notes
1Issued by the Company on 8 December
2016 to vanous institutions (MTN) and
under the Croup's £3bn euro Medium
Term Note (EMTN) programme contain
an option such that, upen a change
of control event, combined with a
credit ratings downgrade to below
sub-investment level, any holder of
an MTN may require the Company o
prepay the principal amount of that MTN

-~ The $300m US Notes issued by the
Company to varous institutions on
6 Decernber 2007 under Section 144a
of the US Secunties Act contain an option
such that, upon a change of control
event, combined with a credit ratings
downgrade to below sub-investment
tevel, any holder of such a US Note may
require the Company to prepay the
principal amount of that US Nate

- The amended and restated £1ibn
Credit Agreement dated 16 March 2016
(onginally dated 29 September 2011}
between the Company and various
banks contains a prowvision such that,
upon a change of control event, unless
new terms are agreed within 60 days,
the facility under this agreement will
be cancelled with all cutstanding
amounts becoming immediately
payable with interest

~ The amended and restated Relationship
Agreement dated 6 October 2014
(originally dated 9 Novemnber 2004 as
amended on 1 March 2005), between
H3BC and the Company and relating to
M&S Bank, contains certain provisions
which address a change of control of the
Company Upon a change of control the
existing nights and obligatiens of the
parties in respect of M&S Bank continue
and HSBC gains certain bmited additionat
rights in respect of existing customers
of the new contreller of the Company
Where a third party arrangernent s in
place for the supply of financial services
products to existing custemers of the
new controller, the Company 1s required
to procure the termination of such
arrangement as soon as practicable
{while not being required to do
anything that would breach such
athird party arrangement)
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~ Where a third party arrangement 1s so
terminated, or does not exist, HSBC has
the exclusive ight to negehate proposed
terms for the offer and sale, of financial
services products to the existing
custormers of the new controller by
HSBC on an exclusive basis

- Where the Company undertakes a
re-branding exercise with the new
controller following a change of control
(which includes using any M&S brand in
respect of the new controller’s business
or vice versa), HSBC may, depending
on the nature of the re-branding
exercise, have the nght (exercisable at
HSBC's election) to terminate the
Relationship Agreement

COVERNANCE

The Company does not have agreements
with any director or employee that would
provide compensation for loss of office

or employment resulting from a takeover
except that provisions of the Company's
share schemes and plans may cause
options and awards granted to employees
under such schemes and plans to vest

on a takeover




COLLEAGUE INVOLVEMENT

We remain cormmitted to colleague
involverment throughout the business
Colleagues are kept well informed of

the performance and strategy of the
Croup Examples of colleague involvernent
and engagement are highlighted
threughout this Annual Report and
specifically cnpage 9

Share schemes are along-established and
successful part of colleagues total reward
packages, encouraging and supporting
ernployee share ownership The Cormpany
operates both anall employee Save As

You Earn Schemne and Share Incentive Plan
Approxmately 23,000 colleagues currently
participate in ShareSave, the Company’s
Save As You Earn Scheme Full details of all
schemes are given on pages 99 and 100

There are websites for both pension
schemes - the defined contribution
Scheme (Your M&S Pension Saving Plan)
and the defined benefit scherme {the M&5
Fension Scheme)—which are fully accessible
to ernployees and former employees

who have retained benefits in either

scheme Employees are updatedas

needed with any pertinent information

an therr pension savings

EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES

The Croup s committed to an active equal
opportunities policy from recruitment
and selection, through training and
gevelopment, performance reviews and
promotion ta retirement The Company’s
policy 15 to promote an ervironment free
from discrimination, harassment and
victimisation, where everyane willrecewve
equaltreatment regardless of gender,
colour, ethnic or nationat orngin, health
condition, age,marital or civil partner status,
sexuat onentation or religion Alldecisions
relating to employment practices willbe
objective, free from bias and based solely
uponwork criteria and individual ment
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OTHER DISCLOSURES CONTINUED

The Company 1s responsive to the needs
of its employees, customers and the
community atlarge M&S s an organisation
which uses everyone's talents and abitities
andwhere diversity1s valued

M&S was one of the first major companies
to remove the default retrement age in
2007 and has continued to see an Increase
n employees wanting to work past the
stateretirement age

EMPLOYEES WITH DISABILITIES

The Company is clearin its policy that
people with health conditions should have
fulland fair consicdleration for allvacancies

M&S has continued to demonstrate its
comrnitment to interviewing those people
with disakalities who fulfil the minimum
critena, and endeavounng to retain
ermployeesin the workforce if they becorme
disabled during employment M&S will
actively retrain and adjust employees’
environment s where possible to allow

them to maximise their potentialand will
continue towork with external organisations
to provide workplace cpportunities through
ourinnovative Marks & Start scheme and

by working closely with Jobcentre Plus

The Marks & Start scherme was introduced
into the distribution centre at Castle
Donington in 2012/13, working with Rempioy
te support people with disabiliies and
health conditions into wark

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT

Research and inrovatian remain key

to our Food offer and the development

of mproved preduct and fabric in

Clothing & Homie Further nformation s
providedinthe Plan Areport, available online

TOTAL GLOBAL M&S GREENHCUSE GAS EMISSIONS 2017/18

GROCERIES SUPPLY CODE
OF PRACTICE

The Groceries (Supply Chain Practices)
Market investigation Qrder 2009 (the
‘Order”)and The Crocenes Supply Code of
Practice (the "Code™) Impose obligations on
M&S relating to relationships with its
suppliers of grocenes Under the Crder and
Code, M&S3 s required to submit an annual
compliancereport to the Audt Committee
for approval and then to the Competition
and Markets Authority and Groceries

Code Adiudicator [GCAT}

M&S submitted its report, covering the
period from 2 Apnil 2017 to 31 March 2018
to the Audit Committee on 17 May 2018

M&S believes that ithas compliedin full with
CSCOPand the Order during the relevant
period No formal disputes have arisen
during the reporting penod There have
been eight instances i which suppliers have
either alleged abreach of the Code or made
ah express orimplicit reference to potential
non-cormpliance with the Code M&S does
not believe that any breaches took place
and has worked with suppliers to address
theissuesraised

Adetalled summary of that compliance
report 1s avalable on our website

POLITICAL DONATIONS

The Company did not make any politicat
donations or incur any political expenditure
durning the year ended 31 March 2018

M&S has a policy of not making donations
to political organisations or independent
election candidates or incurring political
expenditure anywhere in the world as
defined inthe Political Parties, Elections
and Referendums Act 2000

The disclosures regquired by law and additional information relating to the Group’'s greenhouse gas emissions are included in the table below
For full details of calculations and performance, see the 2018 Plan A Report.

2007018 2006417 %

Q00tonnes DD0tonnes change
Direct emissions {scope 1) 182 246 -26
Indirect emissions from energy (scope 2) 248 394 -37
Total gross/location-based emissions (scope 1 and 2) 430 640 -33
Carbon intensity measure {per 1,000 sq ft of salesfloor) 23 40 -42
Creen tanffs and bio-methane procured 273 0 -
Remaining market-based emissions 157 640 -75
Carbon offsets 157 0 -
Total net operational emissions 0 640 -

Emissions are from operationalty controtted activities in accardance WRI/WBCSD CHG Reporting Protocols (Revised edition) and 2015
Scope 2 Guidance using 2017 BEIS conversion factors As these erissions account for less than 10% of M&S's total carbon footprint we
also engage with suppliers to address the most sigmficant scurces M&S has anapproved Stence Based Target for reducing ernissions



GOING CONCERN

In adopting the gong concern kasis for
prepanng the financal statements, the
directors have censiderad the business
activities as set cut on pages 2 to 14 as
wellas the Group’s principat nsks and
uncertainties as set cutonpages 22 to 24

Based on the Croup's cash flow forecasts
and projections, the Board s satisfied that
the Group will be able to operate within
the level of its facilities for the foreseeable
future For this reason the Board considers
it appropriate for the Group to adopt the
going concern basts Inprepanng its
financial statements

@ See note 20 to the Financial Staterments for
more Information on our Facilities

LONG-TERM VIABILITY STATEMENT

The directors have assessed the prospects
of the Company over a three-year period to
March 2021 This has taken into account the

business medel, strategic aims, nisk appetite,

and principal nisks and uncertainties, along
with the Company's current financial
position Basedon thisassessment, the
directors have areasonable expectation
that the Company willbe able to continuen
operationand meetits liabilibies as they fall
due over the three-year period under review

© See our approach to assessing long-term
viability on p21

AUDITOR

Resclutions toreappoint Deloitte LLP as
audrtor of the Company and to authorse
the Audit Committee to determine its
remuneration wilibe proposed at the
2018 AGM

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The ACM of Marks and Spencer Croup plc
willbe held at Wernbley Stadium, Wembley,
Londonon 10 July 2018 at 11am The
Notice of Meetingis given, together with
explanatory notes, on pages 122 to 131

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board is of the view that the Annual
Report should be truty representative of
the year and provide shareholders with
the information necessary to assess the
Group's position, performance, business
modeland strategy

The Board requested that the Audit
Cornmittee review the Annual Report and
provide its opinion on whether the report
15 fair, balanced and understandable The
Audit Cormmittee’s opinion s on page 39
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The directors are also responsible for
preparing the Annual Report, the
Remuneration Report and Policy and the
financial statements naccordance with
applicable law and regulations Company
law requires the directors to prepare
financial statements for each financial

year Under that law, the directors have
prepared the CGroup and Company financial
statermentsinaccordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as
adopted by the EUJ Under company law,

the directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Croup and the Company and
of the profit or loss of the Group and the
Company for that peniod Inpreparing these
financial staterments, the directors are
required to

- Select surtable accounting policies
and then apply them consistently

- Make judgements and accounting
estimates that are reasonable
and prudent

- State whether applicable RS
(as adopted by the EU) have been
followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained
in the financial staterments

- Prepare the finanoal staterments on
a going concern basis unless it is
Inapprepriate to presume that the
Cormpany will continue In business

The directors are responsibte for keeping
adequate accounting records that are
sufficient to show and explain the
Company's transactions and disclose,
atany time and with reascnable accuracy,
the financial pesition of the Company and
the Group and to enable therm to ensure
that the financial statements and the
Remuneration Repert comply with the
Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the
Croup financial statements, Article 4 of the
1AS Regulation They are alsc responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the Group
and the Company and hence for taking
reascnable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregulanties

The directors are responsible for the
maintenance and integrity of the
Company's website Legislationinthe

UK governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may
differ from legislationin other junsdictions

Each of the current directors, whose
names and functions are Lsted on pages 26
and 27, confirms that, to the best of their
knowledge

- The Group financial statements, prepared
In accordance with the applicable set
of accounting standards, give a true and
fair view of the assets, liabitities, financial
position and profit or loss of the
Company and the undertakings included
In the consolidation taken as a whole

- The Managernent Report includes
a fair review of the development
and performance of the business
and the position of the Company and
the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole, together
with a description of the principal risks
and uncertainties that they face

- The Annual Report, taken as a whole,
15 fair, balanced and understandable,
and provides the necessary information
for shareholders to assess the Group’s
position, performance, business model
and strategy

3
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DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION
TO AUDITOR

Each of the persons whoare directors at the
tmewhen this Directors Report s approveg
confirmsthat, so far as hefshe s aware, there
15 norelevant audit information of which the
Company's auditoris unaware and that he/
she has taken ali the steps that he/she
ought te have taken as a director to make
himself/ herself aware of any relevant

audit information and to establish that

the Company's auditor is aware of

that information

The Directors’ Report was approved by a
duly authorised committee of the Board
of Directors on 22 May 2018 and signed
on its behalf by

GOVFRNANCE

Mo

AMANDA MELLOR GROLUF SECRETARY
London, 22 May 2018

L TR S TR
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INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR'S REPORT

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IN QUR CPINION:

BASIS FOR OPINION

the financiat statements give a true
and fair view of the state of the group’s
and of the parent company's affairs as
at 31 March 2018 and of the group’s
profit for the 52 weeks then ended;

the group financial statements have
been properly prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union and IFRSs as issued
by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB);

the parent company financial
statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with IFRSs
as adopted by the European Union
and as applied in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies
Act 2006; and

the financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies
Act 2006 and, as regards the group
financial statements, Article 4 of
the IAS Regulation.

We have audited the financial staterments
of Marks and Spencer Croup pic {the
‘parent company’) and its subsidianes
(the ‘groug’) which compnse

- the Consolidated Income Statement,

- the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income,

- the Consolidated and Company
Staterments of Financial Position,

- the Consabdated and Company
Statements of Changes in Equity,

the Consolidated and Company
Statements of Cash Flows,

the Reconciliation of Net Cash Flow
to Movernent in Net Debt, and

therelated notes 1 to 28 and C1 to C6

We conducted sur audit in accordance with international Standards on Auditing (UK)
{ISAs (UK)) and applicable law Our responsibibities under those standards are further
described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
sechion of our report

We are independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial staterments in the UK,
Including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to lsted public nterest entities, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
We confirm that the non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were
not provided to the group or the parent company

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained s sufficient and approprate to
provide a basis for our opinion

SUMMARY OF OUR AUDIT APPROACH

KEY AUDIT MATTERS SCOPING

The key audit matters that we identified in
the current year were

We perforrmed a full scope audit on three
cornponents of the busingss (UK, India and
Ireland) representing 7% of the Group's
revenue, 99% of the CGroup's adjusted profit
before tax, 95% of the Group’s profit before
tax and 86% of the Croup's net assets

- Reporting financiat performance,

Accounting far the UK store
rationalisation programme,

- Impairrment of UK store assets, SIGNIFICANT CHANGES
IN OUR APPROACH

UK Clothing & Horne inventory provision,

- Retirement benefits, and Our audit approach 1s consistent with the

previous year, with the exception of

Manual adjustments to reported revenue

- Accounting for the UK store
raticnatisation prograrnmea has been
included as a new key audit matter due
to the level of estimation uncertamty
(as disclosed in Note 1Yand the level
of audit effart required in evaluating
management’s estimate,

Within this report

Any new key audit matters
are identified with

Any key audit matters which

are the same as the prior

year identified with

=~ Exit costs of certain wholly owned
international businesses has been
removed as a key audit matter as

MATERIALITY

The materiality that we used for the group

financizal statements was £24 5 million
which was determined on the basis of 5%
adusted profit before tax excluding certain
iterns based on their nature We capped
matertality to £24 5 mullion so that it was
not ugher than the prior perod given

the Group’s international closure
programme s substantially complete,

- Accounting for supplier rebates has
been removed as a key audit matter due
to the lirmited level of judgerment, and

- Inthe current penod India and Ireland

The financial reporting framework that

has been applied In their preparation is
applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union and, as regards the parent
company financial statements, as applied
inaccordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006

the group’s trading performance in the

current period were subject to full scope audits

and France had specific audit work
performed inrespect of the remaining
store closure provision The change
compared with the previous penod
reflects the reduction in scale of the
group's owned international business
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CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING CONCERN, PRINCIPAL RISKS AND VIABILITY STATEMENT

GOING CONCERN

We have reviewed the directors’ statement
innote 1 to the financial statements about
whether they considered it appropriate

to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting in preparing them and their
identification of any matenal uncertainties
to the group's and company’s ability to
continue to do so over a penod of at least
twelve months from the date of approval
of the financial statements

We are required to state whether we have
anything matenal to add or draw attention
to inretation to that statement required
by Listing Rule 98 6R(3) and repaort If the
statement 1s materially Inconsistent with
our knowledge obtained in the auait

We confirm that we have nothing
material to report, add or draw attention
to in respect of these matters.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND
VIABILITY STATEMENT

Based solely on reading the directors’
statements and considenng whether they
were conststent with the knowledge we
obtained in the course of the audit, Including
the knowledge obtained in the evaluation of
the directors assessment of the group’s and
the company's ability to continue as a going
concern, we are required to state whether
we have anything material te add or draw
attention to in relation to

- the disclosures on pages 22-24
that describe the principal nisks and
explain how they are being managed
or mitigated,

- the drectors' confirmation on page 22
that they have carned out a robust
assessment of the principal risks facing
the group, Including those that would
threaten its business model, future
performance, solvency or liguidity, or

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

= the drectors explanation on page 21
as to how they have assessed the
prospects of the group, over what
period they have done sc and why they
consider that penod to be appropriate,
and therr statement as to whether they
have a reasonable expectation that
the group will be able to continue n
operahicn and meet its labilities as
they fall due over the period of therr
assessment, Including any related
disclosures drawing attention to any
necessary quatifications or assumptions

We are also required to report whether

the directors' statement relating to the
praspects of the group required by Listing
Rule 9 8 6R(3) 1s matenally inconsistent with
cour knowledge cbtainedin the audit

We confirm that we have nothing material
to report, add or draw attention to in
respect of these matters.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial staternents
of the current penod and Include the most significant assessed nisks of materat misstaterment (whether or not due to fraud) that we
identified These matters included those which had the greatest effect on the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the
audit, and directing the efforts of the engagement team

These matters were addressed in the context of cur audit of the financiat statements as a whole, and in forrming our opirmon thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters

KEY AUDIT MATTER

1 REPORTING FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

KEY AUDIT MATTER DESCRIPTION

The Croup has reported adiusted profits
of £581 million, which 1s dernived from
statutory profit before tax of £67 million
and a number of adjustrments for items
which the company considers meet

their definition of an adjusting iterm
Judgement s exercised by management
in determining the classificaticn of items
as adjusting itermns This s a significant
1ssue considered by the Audit Committee
on page 38

Explanations of each adjustment are set
out in nete 5 to the financial statements
and are summarised in the graphic below
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In calculating adjusted profit, we consider that there s a nisk of

- items being included in the adjustrments inappropriately, distorting the reported

adjusted earnings, and

- Items being omitted from the adjustments which are matenal, one-off or significant in
nature which distort the reported adjusted earnings

HOW THE SCOPE GF QUR AUDIT RESPONDED TO THE KEY AUDIT MATTER

For adjusted profits, we evaluated the
appropriateness of the inclusion of iterns,
both individually and inaggregate, within
adjusting items, Including assessing the
consistency of items included year on
year and ensuning adherence to IFRS
requirements and latest Financial
Reporting Councit (FRCY guidance

We also agreed a sample of these tems
to supporting evidence

We assessed all iterns, either highlighted
by management or identified through the
course of our audit, which were regarded
as significant in nature or value, but
included within adjusted profit to
deterrmine whether these are not maternial
either indivdually or in aggregate

For all adjustments recorded in calculating
profits before adjusting items, we:
thscussed the appropriateness of the

itermn with the Audit Committee and
any disclosure considerations

Key observations

We are satisfied that the items excluded
from adjusted profil, and the related
disclosure of these iterns in the financial
statements, are appropriate
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT CONTINUED

KEY AUDIT MATTERS CONTINUED

KEY AUDIT MATTER

2 ACCOUNTING FOR THE UK STORE RATIONALISATION PROGRAMME

KEY AUDIT MATTER DESCRIPTION

On 8 November 2017, as part of the internm

shortened economic bives of the stare

~ The accuracy and completeness of the

results statement, the Croup announced
the acceleration of the UK store
rationalisation programme, including
closures, space reduction and relocations
At 31 March 2018, the Group had dentified
anumber of stores for potential closure,
space reduchon or relocation, and
recogrised a charge of £321 million for
impairments, accelerated depreciation
and associated provisions Further detall
of the charge 1s set cut innote 5 Thisis

assets and, for certain stores, the closure
of the store prior to lease expiry Where the
affected store has been formally approved
or publicly announced, alt associated
restructuring provisions (ncluding any
lease exit and redundancy costs) have
been recogrused Where the closure of

the affected store has not been formally
approved or publicly announced,
impairment charges are recognised to the
extent that the store’s cash flows do not

Lst of affected stores and anthicipated
closure dates,

The appropriateness of specific
assumptions in the discounted cash flow
models, Including sublet income, sublet
lease incentives, void periods, freehold
sates proceeds and store closure costs,

The mechanical accuracy of the
discounted cash flow models and
integnty of source data (such as lease

a significant issue considered by the
Audit Commuittee on page 38

For each of the stores expected to be
impacted by the programme, the
company prepared a discounted cash
flow model to determine the required
impairments and pravisions to reflect the

support the carrying value, with an
onerous contract provision being
recognised where appropriate

We pinpointed our key audit matter to the
following elements of accounting for the
UK store rationalisation programme

HOW THE SCOPE OF OUR AUGIT RESPONDED TO THE KEY AUDIT MATTER

terms and rental values), and

- The accuracy and completeness of
associated provisions, Including
provisions for dilapidations and strip
out costs, onerous contracts for (oss~
making stores, and restructuring where
closures have been publicly announced

We focused our audit work on assessing the company’s store exit model and evaluating the appropriateness of the key assumptions
used in caleulating the charge of £321 rnillion As part of our audit procedures, we

Made mquines of management and
reviewed property board minutes

te evaluate the accuracy and
completeness of the store closure

list, and considered the cormmerciat
rationale for exiting certain stores
whilst excluding other poor performing
stores from the store closure list,

Inspected the minutes of Board
meetings and relevant sub-committees,

Ingpected supporting documentation
for each assurnption in the store exit
model which included lease agreements,
agent valuations, surveyor plans and
rent invoices,

- BEvaluated the company's Judgements
for a sample of propertiesin
censultation with retalreal estate
experts and with reference to
benchmarked external data,

- Tested the mechanical accuracy of
the cash fiow models and other
key calculations,

Checked the integrity of lease data to
onginat lease agreerments for a sample
of properties,

- Recalculated the provisions required for
a sample of stores and checked the
mechanical accuracy of provision
calculations, and

- Evaluated the completeness of
reguired provisions for a sample of
stores based on the status of the
store in the closure programme

Key observations

We are satisfied with the company’s
estirmate of the impairment charge but
note that this 1s at the prudent end of cur
acceptable range The disclosure of the
closure provisions recorded in the financial
staterments 1s appropriate

We have reported to the Audit Committee
where improvements are raquired to key
internal review controls over store closures
and significant property transactions
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS CONTINUED

KEY AUDIT MATTER

3 IMPAIRMENT OF UK STORE ASSETS

KEY AUDIT MATTER DESCRIPTION

The CGroup held £2,979 rmilion of UK store
assets at 31 March 2018 inrespect of stores
not considered for closure In the UK stere
rationalsaticn programme The company
has undertaken an annual assessment

of indicators of impairment in respect

of these stores and has recogrised an
impairment charge in the year of £12
rmillon This is a significant 1ssue considered
by the Audit Cormmittee on page 38

As described in note 15 of the financial
statements, the company has estimated
the recoverable amount of store assets
based on value in use calculations These
rely on certain assumptions and estimates
of future trading performance which

involve a high degree of estimation
uncertainty (as disclosed in Note 1}
particularly in light of current retait
market conditiens

The key assumptions applied by the
drrectors in the imparrment reviews are

- forecast penods in the context of
strategic decisions made to exit a
location,

- future revenue growth,
- gross margin,

- store costs, ncluding the impact of the
National Living Wage, and

- discount rate

HOW THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT RESPONDED TO THE KEY AUDIT MATTER

The company constders that each retall
store constitutes its own cash generating
unit {CGL), with the exception of the
outlet stores which are used to clear old
season Clothing and Home inventories
stock at a discount The outlet stores are
considered to represent one CGU N
aggregate and strategic stores are
evaluated as part of a country-wide
IMPAalrmMment review

The group's accounting pelicy sets out a
relevant shelter penod for new stores to
be taken into account when assessing
indicators of impairment during imtial
years of trading to emable the store to
establish itself in the market

We considered the appropnateness of the
methaodaology appled by the company in
calculating the imparment charges, and
the judgements applied in determiming
the CCUs of the business In addition, we
assessed the design and implementation
of controls inrespect of the imparment
review process, and considered the
adequacy of disclosures madeinthe
financial statements

We assessed the imparrment models and
calculations by

- checking the mecharical accuracy of
the impairment models,

~ assessing the discount rates applied to
the imparrment reviews with support
from cur internal valuations specialist
and comparing the rates to our nternal
benchmark data,

- comparnng forecast growth rates to
econormic data, and

~ evaluating the information included in
the imparrment models through our
knowledge of the business gained
through reviewing trading plans,
strategic intbiatives, minutes of property
board and investment committee
meetings, and meeting with regional
store managers and senior trading
managers from key product categories
and our retail industry knowledge

We assessed the appropriateness of the
shelter period for each store opened within
that time frame, and compared the onginal
investrnent case for the store against its
current trading performance Where stores
were tracing significantty below the
original case, we considered the evidence

avaitable to support future improvements
in performance, specifically by assessing
the trading plans and actions beaing taken
on an individual store basis

Key observations

We assessed the level of impairment
recorded in respect of the UK business
and are satisfied that the judgerments
applied by the company and the level
of impairments recorded in the year
are appropriate
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT CONTINUED

KEY AUDIT MATTERS CONTINUED

KEY AUDIT MATTER

4 UK CLOTHING & HOME INVENTORY PROVISION

KEY AUDRIT MATTER DESCRIPTION

At 31 March 2018, the Croup held UK
Clething & Home inventories of £591
mitlien (2017 £541 millklon) As descnbed
in the Accounting Policies innote 1 to
the Financial Staterments, iInventories
are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value As aresult, the drectors

apply jJudgement in determining the
appropriate provisions for obsolete stock
and stock below cost based upon a
detalled analysis of old season inventory
and net realisable value below cost based
upon plans for inventory to go into sale
We consider the assessment of inventory

HOW THE SCQPE OF QUR AUDIT RESPONDED TO THE KEY AUDIT MATTER

provisions within UK Clothing & Home to
require the most judgement, with the risk
Increased due to recent trading
performance and the increase IN gross
inventory This 1s a significant 1ssue
considered by the Audit Committee on
page 38

We obtained assurance over the
appropriateness of the company's
assumptions applied in calculating the
value of the inventory provisions by

~ performing audit analytics on stock
holding and movernent data o dentify
product Lnes with indicators of low
stock turn and post-period negative
margin sales,

- assessing the validity, accuracy
and completeness of the infermation
used by management in cormputing
the provisicn,

- verfying the mathematical accuracy
and logic of the models underpinmng
the respective provisions,

- meeting with buyers to valdate the
assurmptions applied by the company

compared to the current purchasing
strategy and ranging plans, and

- festing the validity and completeness
of the stock flags and season codes
appled to indvidual inventory items

Key observations

The resuits of our testing were satisfactory
and we concur that the level of UK
Inventory provisions is appropriate

KEY AUDIT MATTER

5 RETIREMENT BENEFITS

KEY AUDIT MATTER DESCRIPTION

As described in the Accounting Policies in
note 1 and in note 11 to the Financiat
Staternents, the Group has a defined
benefit pension plan for its UK employees
This schermne s closed to new entrants and
penefits no longer acerue to members
following the move of all active members
to deferred members on 1 April 2017

At 31 March 2018, the Croup recorded a net
retirament benefit asset of £959 million
(2017 £702 million), being the net

of scheme assets of £9,989 million

(2017 £10,135 million) and scheme babilities

of £2,030 milucn (2017 £9,433 million)
£8.908m of this liability relates to the
UK scheme

Our key audit ratter was pinpointed to
the valuation of UK scheme llabiilies as it1s
sensitive to changes in key assumptions
such as the discount rate, inflation and
mortality estimates

The setting of these assumpticns s
complex and an area of significant
Judgement, changes in any of these
assumptions can tead to a matenal
movement in the net surplus

HOW THE $COPE OF OUR AUDRIT RESPONDED 7O THE KEY AUDIT MATTER

The increase /fdecrease) in scheme surplus
caused by a change in each of the key
assumptions 1s set out below

2018 207
£m £fm

Adecrease in the discount
rate of 0 25% (70} (70)
A decrease in the nfation
rate of 0 25% (25) (20)
Adecrease in the average lfe
expectancy of one year 305 37c

This 1s a sigruficant 1ssue considered by the
Audit Cornmittee on page 38

We evaluated the directors’ assessment of
the assumptions made in the valuation of
the scheme habilibies, and evaluated the
information contained within the actuaral
valuation reports for each scheme We
assessed the design and implementation
of controls N respect of the pension
scheme valuation process

With support from our own actuarial
specialists, we considered the pracess
appled by the Croup's actuares, the scope
of the valuation performed and the key
assumptions applied and evaluated

their expertise We benchrnarked and
performed a sensitivity analysis on the

key variables in the valuation model

Key cbservations

We are satisfied that allassumptions
applied nrespect of the valuation of the
liabiities 1s appropnate
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS CONTINUED

KEY AUDIT MATTER

6 MANUAL ADJUSTMENTS TO REPORTED REVENUE

KEY AUDIT MATTER DESCRIPTION

As described in the Accounting Policies in
note 1 to the Financial Staterments, the
group’s revenue recogmtion policies
reguire the directors to make g number of
adjustrnents and esbimates in determining
the reported revenue for the penod

The most sigrificant adjustments are

- gift cards and vouchers - the directors
apply an expected redemption rate
to the total value of gift cards
and vouchers inissue based on
historic trends

- returns - customers are entitled to
return most products up te 35 days
after purchase, giving nse to arnsk
that sales recognised dunng the penod
will be reversed in the next financial
period The directors apply Judgement
n determining the provision required
for returns based on actual sales
data and recent product return rates
Returns from online sales are commenly
at a higher level than traditional store
retailing, resulting in this judgement

HOW THE SCOPE OF QUR AUDIT RESPONDED TO THE KEY AUDIT MATTER

becorming more significant
N determining the level of
provision required

There 1s the potential for possible
rmanipulation of the rates applied to the
company's estimate of gift card and
voucher non-redemptions and custormer
returns given the significant amount of
Jjudgement involved

This is a significant 1ssue considered by
the Audit Committee onpage 38

We have considered each revenue-
impacting manual adjustment, and
assessed the appropriateness of the
assumptions and judgements applied

In deriving the rnaterial adjustments to
revenue We assessed the design and
implermentation of controls Inrespect of
these revenue judgements, in adgdition to
testing the effectiveness of key revenue
controls operating across the UK business

For the key assumptions used in the gift
card and voucher, and loyalty scherne
provisions, we assessed the histonc rates
of redemption and compared these to
the directors’ judgements

We assessed the appropnateness of
the methodology and inputs used in
calculating the returns provision

Key observations

We are satisfied that the key assumptions
applied In calculating the returns, gift card,
voucher and loyalty scheme provisions are
approprnate although note management'’s
Jjudgements are at the prudent end of our
acceptable range
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{NDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT CONTINUED

OUR APPLICATION OF MATERIALITY

We define matenality as the magnitude of
misstatemnent in the financial statements
that makes it prebabile that the econonic
decisions of a reascnably knowledgeable
person would be changed or influenced
We use materality both in planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating
the results of our work

Based on our professional judgement, we
determined materiabty for the financial
staternents as a whole as follows

The matenality appled by the component
auditors for full scope audits (see below)
ranged from £2 2 millon to £22 1 million
(2017 £25 millon to £22 5 millon)
depending on the scale of the component's
operations and our assessment of

risks specific to each location

We agreed with the Audit Cormmittee
that we would report to the Committee
all audit differences in excess of £1 millon
(2017 £1 million) for the group and parent
company, as well as differences below
that threshold that, in cur view, warranted
reperting on gualitative grounds We

also report to the Audit Committee on
disclosure matters that we dentified when
assessing the overall presentation of the
financiat staternents

Group financial statements

Parent company finanaisl
statements

Materiality  £245 rmilion (2017 £24 5 mallion) £221 milion
2017 £221 mullion)

Basis for Croup materiality was based on 5% reported We used 3% of net
determining adjusted profit before tax of £581 million excluding  assets as the basis of
materiality certamiterns based on ther nature. The profit matenabty and then

used In our determination was £520 million further capped this

The items we excluded from our determination at 90% of Group

are listed below and explaned further innote 5 materiabty

to the financial staternents

~ M&S Bank PPl charge - £35 million

- Logistics restructuring - £13 mithon

~ UK store impairments and associated charges

within £63 millon adjusting item in note 5 —
£13 million
We capped matenality to £24 5 million so that it was
not higher than the prior penod given the group's
) trading performance in the current period

Rationale Adjusted profit before tax has beenused asitis The Parent Company
for the the primary measure of performance used by acts principally as a
benchmark the group We have used adjusted profit measures  holding company and
applied that exclude certain items from our determination  therefore net assetsis

to ad the consistency and comparability of our akey measure

materiality base each year

MATERIALITY
Group matenality
£520m £245m
Adjusted FBI Component

fzr determ ~img
materality

[LE)

£24.5m Croup materalty

Fozlm

matenality range
£2.2m to £22.1m

Audit Committee
reporting threshold
£1m
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AN OVERVIEW OF THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT

Cur group audit was scoped by obtaining
an understanding of the group and its
environment, iIncluding group-wide
controls, and assessing the nsks of material
misstatement at the group level

Based on our assessment we focused our
group audit scope on the retall businesses
inthe UK, Republic of Ireland and India,
which were subject to a full audit We also
performed audit procedures on specific
balances for the remaining store exit
provisions in France This work was
performed by the group audit team Inthe
prior penod, China, Hong Kong and Czech
Republic were also subyject to a full audit
but our scope changed following the
group's reduction in scale of ts owned
international business

These components were selected to
provide an appropnate basis for
undertaking audit work to address the risks
of matenal misstatement identified above
All other wholly cwned and joint venture
businesses were subject to analytical review
procedures Whilst we audit the revenues
receved by the Group from franchise
operations, which account for 3% (2017 3%)
of the Group’s revenue, we do not audit the
underlying franchise operations as part of
our Group audit

At the parent entity level we also tested
the consolidation process and carnied out
analytical procedures to confirm our
conclusion that there were no significant
risks of material misstaterment of the
aggregated financial information of the
remaining components not subjectto a
full audit

3% 5%
97% 95%
R=VENUE PROFIT BEFORE TAX
1% 1a%
9% Be%
ADJUSTED PROFIT MNETASSETS

BEFCRE TAX

Spechied audit procedures and
review at group level

Ful audit scope

The most significant component of the
group s 1ts retail business in the United
Kingdom, which accounts for 90% (2017
89%) of the Croup's reported revenue of
£10,698 million, and generates operating
profit of £23 rillon (2017 £328 miluon) The
group audit teamn performs the audit of the
UK business without the involvermnent of a

OTHER INFORMATION

component team During the course of cur
audit, the group audit tearm, conducted 15
distribution centre and 35 retall store visits
in the UK to understand the current trading
performance and, at certain locatiens,
performed tests of internal controls and
valdated levels of Inventory held

We operate a programme of planned visits
to overseas locations so that a senior
member of the group audit team visits each
of the components subject to a fullaudit
or specific audit procedures at least once
every two years, and the most significant of
thermn at least once a year The programme
of visits are set out below, with future years
subject to change as the Croup’s
operations continue to evolve

2017 2Me 2019
Component (_ast year] {This year) (Next year)
India v v v
Republic of Ireland v v

In addition to our programme of planned
visits, we send detailed instructions to our
compenent audit teams, iInclude themn
our team briefings, discuss their nisk
assessrnent, attend closing meetings,
and review therr component reporting

The directors are responsible for the

other information The other imformation
compnses the information included in

the annual report other than the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon

Gur opinion on the iinancial statements
does not cover the other information and,
except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated In cur report, we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon

In connection with our audit of the financial
statements, our responsibility 15 to read

the other iInformation and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information s
rmatenally inconsistent with the financial
statements or cur knowledge obtained
Inthe audit or otherwise appears tobe
materally misstated

If we identify such matenalinconsistencies
or apparent matenal misstatements, we are
required to determine whether there s a
matenal misstaternent in the finanaal

staterments or a matenal misstaterment
of the otherinformation If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude
that there 1s a matenal misstatement of
this other nformation, we are required to
report that fact

In this context, mattears that we are
specifically required to report to you as
uncorrected matenal misstatements of
the other information include where we
conclude that

- Fair, balanced and understandable -
the statement given by the directars
that they consider the annual report and
financial staternents taken as a whole s
farr, balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary
for sharehclders to assess the group’'s
position and performance, business
modeland strategy, 1s materially
inconsistent with ocur knowledge
obtained i the audit, or

- Audit committee reporting - the section
describing the work of the audit
committee does not appropriately
address matters communicated by us
te the audit committee, or

- Directors statement of cormpliance with
the UK Corporate Governance Code — the
parts of the directors staterment required
under the Lisbing Ruiles relating to the
cornpany's compliance with the UK
Corporate Governance Code containing
provisions specified for review by the
auditor N accordance with Listing Rule
9810R(2)do not properly disclose a
departure from a relevant provision of
the UK Corporate Governance Code

We have nothing to report in respect
of these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT CONTINUED

USE OF OUR REPORT

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

This report s made solely to the company’s
members, as a body, In accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006 Our audit work has been undertaken
so that we might state to the company’s
rmembers those matters we are required to
state to them in an auditor's report and for
no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or
assurne responsibility to anyone other than
the company and the company’s members
as a bedy, for our audit work, for this report,
or for the opinions we have formed

As explaned more fully in the directors’
responsibilities staterment, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the
financial staternents and for being satisfied
that they give a true and fair view, and for
such internal control as the directors
deterrine is necessary to enable the
preparation of fimancial statements that
are free from material misstaternent,
whether due to fraud or error

In prepanng the financial staternents, the
directors are responsible for assessing the
group's and the parent company's ability
to continde as & going concern, disclosing
as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the gong concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the group or the parent
company or to cease operaticns, or have
ne realistic alternative but to do so

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qur objectives are to olxtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial
staterments as a whole are free from
matenial rmisstaternent, whether due to
fraud or error, and to 1ssue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion
Reasconable assurance 1sa high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with
1SAs (UK) will abways detect a mateniat
misstatement when it exists Misstaternents
can anse from fraud or error and are

considered materalif, indvidually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected toinfluence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements

Afurther description of our responsibitities
for the audit of the financial staternents i
located on the Financial Reporting
Council's website at wwwe.fre.org.uk/
auditorsresponsibilities This descnption
forms part of our auditor’'s report

REPORT ON OTHER LECAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

OPINIONS ON OTHER MATTERS
PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES
ACT 2006

In our opinion the part of the directors'
rermuneration report to be audited has
been properly prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 2006

In our opirion, based on the work
undertaken in the course of the audit

- thenformation given in the strategic
report and the directors' report for the
financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared 1s consistent
with the financal staternents, and

- the strategic report and the directors’
report have been prepared in accordance
with applicable legal requirements

In the Light of the knowledge and
understanding of the group and the parent
company and therr environment obtained
In the course of the audit, we have not
dentified any matenal misstaternents in
the strategic report or the directors report

IAN WALLER (SFNIOR STATUTCRY AUDITORY

FCRANDONBEHALFOF ZE1OITTE LLP
STATUTORY AUDRITCR, LONDON, UNITED KINGDOM

22 May 2008

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE
REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

Adequacy of explanations received
and accounting records

Unider the Caompariies Act 2006 we are
required to repert to you if,in our opinion

- we have not receved all the inforrmation
and explanations we require for our
audiit, or

- adequate accounting records have not
been kept by the parent company, or
returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited
by us, or

= the parent company financial statements
are not In agreement with the accounting
records and returns

We have nothing to report in respect
of these matters.

Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also
reguired to report if in our opiNIon certain
disclosures of directors remuneration have
not been made or the part of the directors’
rernuneration report to be audited s not I
agreement with the accounting records
and returns

We have nothing to report in respect
of these matters.

OTHER MATTERS

Auditor tenure

Following the recommendation of the audit
commitiees, we were appointed by the
shareholders on 8 July 2014 to audit the
financial statements for the penod ending
28 March 2015 and subseguent financial
periods The penod of total uninterrupted
engagement including previous renewals
and reappointments of the firm s 4 years,
covering the periods ending 28 March 2015
to 31 March 2018

Consistency of the audit report with the
additional repert to the audit committee
Qur audit opinion 1s consistent with the
addibional report to the audit cornmittee
we are required to provide In accordance
with ISAs (UK)
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

52 weeks ended 31 March 2018 i wecks ended 1 ApnL20/
Profit before Profit before
adjusting items Adjusting items. Total adjusting rems Adjusting tems Total
Notes Em £m £m £ £m £m
Revenue 2,3 10,698.2 - 10,698.2 106220 - 10,6220
Operating profit 2,35 670.6 {514.1) 166.5 6906 (4374) 2532
Finance ncome 6 241 - 24.1: 362 - 362
Finance costs 6 (113.8) - (113.8) M30) - M3o)
Profit before tax 4.5 580.9 {514.1) 66.8 6138 (437 4) i 1764
Income tax expense 7 (125.4) 877 (37.7) (122 4) 617 (607) ]
Profit for the year 455.5 (426.4) 29.1 491 4 (3757) 1157 E
o
Attributable to: ﬁ
Owners of the parent 452.1 (426.4) 25.7 4928 (3757} . n7i é
Non-controling interests 34 - 34 {14) ~ (04
4555 (426.4) 29.1 49 4 (3757} ns7
Basic earnings per share 8 27.8p 1.6p 304p 72p
Diluted earnings per share 8 27.8p 1.6p 302p 72p
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended
31 March 2018 1Aor L2017
Motes £m m
Profit for the year 291 157
Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of retirement benefit schemes n 200.9 689
Tax charge onitems that will not be reclassified (39.0} 253
161.9 (4386)
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Foreign currency translation differences
—-movements recognlsed in other comprehensive income (23.4) 310
-reclassified andreported n profit and loss {36.2) E
Revaluation of available for sale asset 6.9 -
Cash flow hedges and net investment hedges
—farr value movermnents recognised in other comprehensive Income {208.7) 561
~reclassifiedandreportedin profit orloss 85.0 {724
—amount recognised in inventories 52.5 (201
Tax credit on cash flow hedges and net Investment hedges 19.7 41
(99.2) (13}
Other comprehensive income/(expense) for the year, net of tax 62.7 (449)
Total comprehensive income for the year 91.8 708
Attributable to:
Owners of the parent 88.4 722 %
Non-controlling interests 3.4 (14 g
91.8 708 £
2
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FINANCLAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at Asal
31 March 2018 | Apal 201/
Notes £m L
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 14 599.2 7090
Property, plant and equipment ) i 15 4,393.9 48378
Investment property ) 15.5 55
Investment in joint ventures 70 70
Gther F{nanctatassets ) 16 ) 2.9 30
Retirerment benefit asset X n 970.7 7060
Trade and other recelvables 17 209.0 2341
Derwvative financial instrurments 21 27 568
Deferredtaxassets 23 - -
6,232.3 6,569 2
Current assets
Inventories 7810 7585
Other financialassets 16 13.7 145
Trade and other receivables 17 308.4 3186
Denvatrve financialinstruments 21 71 1631
Current tax assets i - -
Cash and cash equivalents 18 2077 468 6
1,317.9 17233
Total assets 7,550.2 8,2925
Liabilities
Current liabitities
Trade and other payables 19 1,405.9 15538
Partnership Labiuty to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme 12 7.9 i 719
Borrowings and other financial Labiibies ) 20 125.6 5180
Dervative financialinstruments Zi 738 105
Provisions 22 98.8 1472
Current tax labilities 50.0 666
1,826.0 23680
Non-current liabilities
Retirernent benefit deficit 1 225 132
Trade and other payables ) . o o . e 3338 3285
Partnership lability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme 12 263.6 3246
Borrowings and other financiat labiuties ) 20 16706 17117
Derivative financial instruments 2] 307 [0}
Provisions . ) 22 193.1 135
Deferred tax iabilities 23 255.7 2818
2,770.0 27741
Total liabitities 4,596.0 51421
Net assets 2,954.2 3,1504
Equity . )
Issued share capital 24 406.2 4062
Share premium account 416.4 1164
Capitalredemption reserve ) ) 2,2105 22105
Hedgingreserve {65.3) V73
Other reserve i (6,542.2) (6,542 2)
Retained earnings 6,531.1 65,6481
Total shareholders’ equity i 2,956.7 3,156 3
Non-controlling nterests in equity (2.5) (59)
Total equity 2,954.2 31504

The fimancial statements were approved by the Board and authorised for issue on 22 May 2018 The financial statements alsc comprise the
notes on pages 81 ta 114

Steve Rowe Chief Executive Officer
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Ordinary Share Caoral Foreign Non-
share premum redempticn Hedging Cther exchange  Retamed conzrelling
capttal  azcount reserve  reserve reserve! reserve  earnings? Total interest Total
£m £m £m £m £ fm Em £m £m £
As at 3 April 2016 4058 4113 22105 323 (65422) 48 69323 34452 (18) 34434
Profit/(loss) for the year - - - - - - n7 n71 (] nes7z
Other comprehensive (expense)income
Foreign currency translation - - - “43) - 353 - 310 - 310
Remeasurements of retirement
benefit schemes - - - - - - (689) 689) - {689)
Tax credit oniterns that will not be reclassified - - - - - - 253 253 - 253
Cash flow hedges and net investment hedges
—farr value movement recognised in other
comprehensive income - - - 777 - - (216) 561 - 561
-reclassified and reported in profit or loss - - - (7249 - - - (724) - (724)
—amount recognised ininventares - - - (200 - - - {201) - (201)
Tax oncash flow hedges and net
investment hedges - B - 41 - — - 4) - 41
Qther comprehensive Incorme/{expense) - - - (509 - 353 (652) (449 - 449
Total comprehensive income/fexpense) - - - (150) - 353 519 722 (14) 708
Transactions with owners
Dividends - - - - - - (3775) (3775) - (3775)
Transactions with non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - 27 27)
Shares issued on exercise of employee
share cptions g4 51 - - - - - 55 - 56
Purchase of own shares held by
employee trusts - - - - - - - - - -
Credit for share-based payments - - - - - - 135 135 - 135
Deferred tax on share schemes - - - - - - (26) (26} - {2 6}
As at 1 April 2017 4062 4164 22105 173 {6542 2) 305 66176 31563 (59) 3,504
As at 2 Aprit 2017 406.2 4164 2,2105 173 (6,542.2) 305 66176 3,156.3 (5.9} 3,150.4
Profit/(loss) for the year - - - - - - 257 257 34 291
Cther cormprehensive (expense)income
Foreign currency translation
—movement recegrisedin other
camprehensive Income - - - 0.2 -  {23.6) - (234 - (23.4)
~reclassfiedand reported inprofitand loss - - - - - (36.2) - (362 - (36.2)
Remeasurements of retirement benefit schemes - - - - - - 2009 2009 - 2009
Tax credit onitems that wilt not be reclassified - - - - - - (39.0) (39.0) - (39.0)
Revaluation of available for sale asset - - - - - - 69 69 - 6.9
Cash flow hedges and net investment hedges
- fair value movermnent recognised in other
comprehensive Income - - - {211.0) - - 23 (2087) - (208.7)
-reclassifliedand reported in profit or loss - - - 510 - - 340 B85.0 - 85.0
—-amount recognised in inventories - - - 575 - - - 57.5 - 875
Tax on cash flow hedges and net
nvestrent hedges - - - 197 - - - 197 - 19.7
Other comprehensive ncomefexpense) - - - {82.) - (59.38) 2051 62.7 - 62.7
Total comprehensive incomef{expense) - - - (8286) - (59.8) 2308 88.4 3.4 91.8
Transactions with ownor s
Dividends - - - - - - (3034) (3034) - (303.4)
Transactions with non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - - -
Sharesissued on exercise of erployee
share options - - - - - - - - -~ -
Purchase of own shares held by
employee trusts - - - - - - (3.0) (3.1) - (3.1}
Credit for share-based payments - - - - - - 18.5 185 - 18.5

Deferred tax on share schemes

As at 31 March 2018

4062 4164 22105 (65.3)(6,542.2)

(29.3) 6,560.4 2,956.7

(2.5) 2,954.2

1 Ihe Otnerreserve was onginally credtedas part of the capital e structuring that t- ok place in 2002 [ represent s tha difference © etween the nominalvalue of the share. ssyed pricr
Lo hecapitalred b ontythod ompoany (o the carryingvalae o ihemsa toenl o Marksand Soe cor ey Ahesboeee gpetal share proron i aneds apil ot ceadeomplion e serve of

Mok andSpencer ple g ihodato ol the tran cohon

2oAmounts e Lasohied o e ted i prohl or

At Dl Thoresealie oot Thee pose cirvor y o wps, ol

L thebescaluabione tho U=Dhedaed bondswillun e an oot
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

52 weeks ended 52 weeksended

31 March 2018  Apritzar 7
Noles £m m

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 26 9441 11657
Income tax paid (94.3) (980}
Net cash inflow from operating activities 849.8 10677
Cash flows from irivesting activities
Proceeds on property disposals 3.2 270
Purchase of oroperty, plant and equipment (274.9) (309 1)
Proceeds on disposal of Hong Kong business 229 -
Purchase of intangrble assets ) {74.3} o
Reduction of current financial assets 0.8 46
Interest received 6.0 66
Net cash used in investing activities {316.3) {3720)
Cash flows from financing activities ) ‘
Interest paid’ ‘ {nz2.2) {11 2)
Cash mnflow/{outflow) from borrowings 43.8 (327)
Repayment of syndicated loan - (215 3)
Decrease n obligations under finance leases (2.6) 740)]
Payment of Llability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scherne (59.6) {579)
Equity dividends pad i (303.4) (3775)
Sharesissuedon exercise of employee share options Q1 5%
Purchase of own shares by employee trust (a0 -
{Redemption)/issuance of madium-term notes (328.2) 3000
Net cash used in financing activities {765.2} {491 1)
Net cash {outflow)/inflow from activities {(231.7) 2046
Effects of exchange rate changes ) ) (3.5) 56
Opening net cash 406.2 1960
Closing net cash 27 171.0 406 2

o includes mterest o the partners-rtability to the Marks & Spencer X Pens-on Schermie

52 weeks ended 52 weeks endad

31 March 2Gi18 VApril 2077
Notes £m £m

Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt X
Opening net debt (1,934.7) (21383)
Net cash (outflow)/ nflow from activities {(231.7} 2046
Decrease in current financial assets (0.8) 46)
Decrease in debt financing 346.6 79
Exchange and other non-cash movements (6.9) 43)
Movement in net debt 107.2 2036

Closing net debt 27 (1,827.5) (19347
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The financial staterments have been prepared in accordance with
Intermational Financial Reparting Standards (IFRS) and IFRS
Interpretations Committee (IFRS IC) interpretations, as adopted
by the European Union, and with those parts of the Companies
Act 2006 applicable to companies reparting under IFRS

Inadopting the going concern basis for preparing the financial
statements, the directors have considered the business activities
as set out on pages 5 to 24 ncluding the Group's principal nsks and
uncertainties as set out on pages 22 to 24 Based onthe Group’s
cash flow forecasts and projections, the Board 1s satisfied that the
Group has adeguate resources to continue in operational existence
and therefore itis appropnate to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the censolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2018

The Marks and Spencer Scottish Limited Partnership has taken

anexemption under paragraph 7 of the Partnership (Accounts)
Regulations 2008 from the requirement to prepare and deliver
financial statements naccardance with the Comparies Act

New accounting standards adopted by the Group

There have been no significant changes to accounting under
IFRS which have affected the Group's results The IFRSIC has
15sued the annualimprovernents to IFRS 2014-2016 cycle

The majonty of amendments in this cycle are effective for
annualpenods onor after 1 January 2018 with the exception

of the changes tc IFRS 12 which have already beenimplemented
and have not impacted the Group

New accounting standards in issue but not yet effective
The following IFRS have beenissued but are not yet effective

- IFRS9'Financialinstruments’ replaces 1AS 39 Financial
Instruments Recognition and Measurement’ The standard
1s effective for pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2018
and therefore will be effective in the Croup financial statements
for the 52 weeks ending 30 March 2019

The standard intreduces changes to three key areas

-new requirements for the classification and measurernent
of financial instruments,

—-anewimparrment model based on expected creditiosses
for recogrising provisions, and

-simplified hedge accounting through closer alignment with
an entity’s risk management methodotogy

The Group has completed an assessment of the impact of

IFRS 9 and has concluded that adoption willnot have a materal
impact on either the Congolidated Income Statement or the
Consolidated Balance Sheet The Group willapply all aspects
of the new standard at the transition date of 1 April 2018 by
adjusting openingretained earnings in the balance sheet and
norestatement of comparative penods

The Croup has an economic interest in M&S Bank which entitles
the Croup to a 50% share of the profits of M8S Bank after
appropriate deductions M&S Bank adoptedIFRS 9with effect
from 1 danuary 2018 The Group's share of profits for the period
ncludes the post implementation impact of adopting the
expected creditloss model for provisioning In accerdance
with the requirements of IFRS ¢

- IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers’is effective for
pernods beqinning on or after 1 January 2018 and therefore will
be effectve in the Group financial statements for the 52 weeks
ending 3GMarch 2019 The standard establishes a principles based
approach for revenue recognition andis based on the concept of
recognising revenue for performance obligations only when they
are satisfied and the control of goods or services 1s transferred
In doing so, the standard applies a five-step approach to the
timing of revenue recognibion and applies to all contracts
with customers, except those in the scope of other standards
It replaces the separate models for goods, services and
construction contracts under the current accounting standards

The Croup has completed its assessment of theimpact of

IFRS 15 and based on the straightforward nature of the Group's
revenue streams with the recognition of revenue at the paint
of sale and the absence of significant Judgament required in
determining the tirming of transfer of contrel, the adoption of
IFRS 15 will not have amateralimpact on the timing or nature
of the Group's revenue recogniticn

- IFRS 16°Leases' is effective for pericds beginming on or after

1 January 2019 and therefore witl be effective in the Croup
financial staterments for the 52 weeks ending 28 March 2020
Transihon to IFRS 16 will take place for the Group on 31 March
2019 The standard introduces a comprehensive model for the
dentification of lease arrangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees and will replace the current lease
accounting requirements INcluding 1AS 17 Leases and the
related nterpretations

For lessees, IFRS 16 remaoves distinctions between operating
leases and finance leases These arereplaced by amodelwherea
right of use asset and a corresponding liability are recognised
for all leases except for short-term leases and low value assets

In contrast to lessee accounting, IFRS 16 substantially carnes
forward the lessor accounting requirements in 1AS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease eitheras an
operating lease or afinance lease

The Group has established a steering committee to oversee

the governance of the implementation project, which regularly
reports to the Croup Audit Committee During the current period
the Group has rmade progress in anumber of areas iIncluding the
identification of leases and contracts that could be determined
to include alease, the collation of lease data required for the
calculation of the impact assessment, iIdenbfication of areas of
complexity orjJudgement relevant to the Croup, identification of
necessary changes to systems and processes required to enable
reportingandaccounting in accordance with [FRS 16,and
development of initial estirmates for discount rates

Fromthe work performed to date andbased on the
undiscounted lease commitments presented innote 25,

it 1s anticipated that implementabion of the new standard will
have a significant impact on the reported assets and liabilites

of the Group Inaddition, the implementation of the standard
willimpact the iIncome statement and classification of cash flows
Areliable estimate of the financialimpact on the Croup's
consoldated results s dependent ona number of unresclved
areas, nclucing, choice of transition optien, refmement of
approach to discount rates, estimates of lease-term for leases
with options to break and renew and conclusion of data collection
Inaddition, the financialimpact i3 dependent enthe facts and
crreumstances at the tirme of transition F or these reasons, it 1s not
yet practicable to deterrmine a reliable estimate of the financial
Irmpact on the Group
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

T ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

Alternative Performance Measures

Inreporting financial Information, the Group presents alternative
performance measures, "APMs”, which are not defined or specified
under the requirements of IFRS

The Croup believes that these APMs, which are not considered tobe
asubstitute for or superior to IFRS measures, provide stakeholders
with addibienal helpful inforration on the performance ofthe
business These APMs are consistent with how the business
performances planned and reported within the internal
management reporting to the Board and Operating Committee
Some of thase measures are also used for the purpose of setting
remuneration targets

The key APMs that the Group uses include Lke-for-like sales, gross
rmargin, profit before tax and adjusting items, adjusted earnings

per share, net debt, free cash flow, and return on capitalermployed
Each of these APMs, and others used by the Croup, are set out in

the Glossary onpages 120to 121 including explanations of how they
are calculated and how they can bereconciled to a statutory
measure whererelevant

The Croup reports some financial measures, primanly (nternatienat
sales, on both areported and constant currency basis The constant
currency basis, whichis an APM, retranslates the previous year
revenues at the average actual penodic exchange rates used in

the current financial year This measure 1s presented as a means

of ebrminating the effects of exchange rate fluctuations anthe
year-on-year reportedresults

The Croup makes certain agjustments to the statutory profit
measures in order to denve many of these APMs The Croup’s policy
15 to exclude items that are considered to be significant in nature
and/or guanturn or are consistent with items that were treated as
adyusting In pnor penods Treatment as an adjusting item provides
stakeholders with additicnal useful information to assess the
year-on-year tradng performance of the CGroup Onthis basis,

the following iterns were included within adjusting iterns for the
57-week penod ended 31 March 2018

- Net charges associated with the strategic programme in relation
to the review of the UK store estate

- Significant restructuring costs and other associated costs ansing
from strategy changes that are not considered by the Croup to
be part of the norrmal operating costs of the business

- Significant pension charges ansing as a result of the previous
year's changes to the UK defined benefit scheme practices

- Imparrment charges and provisions that are consideredto be
significant In nature andfor value to the trading performance
of the business

- Charges arising fromadustiments to deprectation of leasehold
assets and write-off of assets that are considered to be significant
nnature and/or value

- Adjusiments to income from M&S Bank due to a provisian
recognsed by M&S Bank for the cost of providing redress to
customers inrespect of possible mis-selling of M&S Bank
financial products

- Other adjusting iterns ncluding profit on sale of Hong Kongand
charges for potential labilihies for employee related matters

Refer to note § for asummary of the adusting items

Asummary of the Company's and the Group's accounting policies
1S given below

Accounting convention

The financial statements are drawn up on the historical cost
basis of accounting, as modified by financial assets and financial
liabibities (including derivative instrurments) at fair value through
profitand loss

Basis of consolidation

The Croup financial statements incorporate the financial
staterments of Marks and Spencer Group plc and all its subsidianes
made up to the penod end date Where necessary, adjustments
are made to the financial statemants of subsidianes to bring the
accounting pobicres used in line with those used by the Group

Subsidiaries

Subsidiary undertakings are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies This power I1s generally accompanied by the
Croup having a shareholding of more than one half of the vating
nghts Subsidiary undertakings acquired during the year are
recorded using the acguisition method of accounting and their
results are included fram the date of acqursttion

The separable net assets, including property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets, of the newly acquired subsidiary undertakings
areincorporated into the consolidated financial statements anthe
basis of the fair value as at the effective date of control

Intercernpany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between Group cornpanies are eliminated

Revenue

Revenue comprises sales of goods to customers outside the
Groupless an appropriate deduction for actual and expected
returns, discounts and loyalty scheme vouchers, and 1s stated net

of value added tax and other sales taxes Revenue s recogrised
when goods are delvered to our franchise partners or the customer
and the significant nsks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer

Supplier income

Inlne with industry practice, the Group enters into agreements
with supplers to share the costs and benefits of promotionat
actwvity and volume growth The Group recerves incorne fromits
suppbers based on specific agreementsin place Thus supplier
Income received is recognised as a deduction from cost of sates
based on the entitlernent that has been earned up to the balance
sheet date for each relevant supplier agreement Marketing
contributions, equipment hire and other non-judgemental, fixed
rate supplier charges are not included in the Croup's definition of
supplier ncome

The types of supplier income recognised by the Group and the
associated recognition policies are

A.Promoational contribution: Includes supplier contributions to
promoticnal giveaways and pre-agreed contnbutions to annuat
‘spendand save activity

Income 15 recognised asa deduction to cost of sales aver the
relevant promotional pericd Income s calculated and invoiced

at the end of the promotional penod based on actual sales or
according to fixed contribution arrangements Contriputions earned
but not invoiced are accrued at the end of the relevant penod

B. Volume-based rebates: Includes annual growth incentives,
seasonal contributions and contributions to share economies of
scale resulting from moving product supply

Annual growth incentives are calculated and invoiced at the end of
the financial year, once earned, based on fixed percentage growtt
targets agreedfor each supplier at the beginning of the year They
arerecogmised as areductionin cost of sales nthe year towhich
they relate Other volume-based rebates are agreed with the
supplier and spread over the relevant seascn/contract penodto
which they relate Contributions earned but notinvoiced are
accrued at the end of the relevant period
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

Uncollected supplier income at the balance sheet dates classified
within the financial staterments as follows

A. Trade and other payables: Tha majonty of income due from
suppliers s netted against amounts owed to that suppler as the
Group has the legal nght to offset these balances

B. Trade and other receivables: Supplier ncome that has been
earned but notinvoiced at the balance sheet date 1s recognised in
trade and other recevables and primarily relates to volume-based
rebates that run up to the perniod end

In order to provide users of the accounts with greater understanding
In this area, additional balance sheet disctosure s provided in note 17
to the financial statements

Dividends

Final dividends are recorded in the financial staterments in the
pernod inwhich they are approved by the Cormpany's shareholders
Internim dividends are recorded in the penodin which they are
approved and paid

Pensions
Funded pension plans are in place for the Group's UK employees
and some employees overseas

For defined benefit pension schermes, the difference between the
fair value of the assets and the present value of the defined benefit
obligation s recogrused as an asset or lability in the staternent

of financial position The defined benefit obligationis actuanally
calculated using the projected unit credit methoed

The service cost of prowviding retirement benefits to employees
during the year, together with the cost of any curtallment, 1s charged
to operating profit in the year With effect from 1 Apnl 2017 the
Croup no longer Incurs any service cost or curtallment costs related
to the UK defined benefit pension scheme as the scheme 1s closed
to future acecrual

The net interest cost on the net retirement benefit asset/uability s
calculated by applying the discount rate, measured at the beginming
of the year, to the net defined benefit asset/lability and s included
as a single net amount infinance income

Rerneasurements, being actuaral gains and losses, together with
the difference between actual investment returns and the return
implied by the net interest cost, are recognised immediately in
the staterment of comprehensive ncome

During the year the UK defined benefit {DB) pension scheme
purchased annuibies in order to hedge longevity nisk for pensioners
withinthe scheme As permitted by 1AS19,the Group has opted to
recognise the difference between the farr value of the plan assets
and the cost of the policy as an actuarialloss in the statement of
comprehensive INncome

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
are charged as an expense onan accruals basis

Intangible assets

A. Goodwill Coodwillansing on consolidation represents the
excess of the consideration paid and the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree over the farr value of the
identifiable assets and liabilibies (including ntangible assets) of the
acquired enbity at the date of the acquisition GCoodwillis recognised
asan asset and assessed for imparrment annually or as triggenng
events occur Any iImpairment in values recognised within the
income staterment

B. Brands Acquired brand values are held on the statement of
financial position inibially at cost Definite Lfe intangibles are
amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives
Indefirite Life intangibles are tested forimparrment annually or as
triggering events occur Any iImpairment in valueis recegnised
within the incorne statement

C. Software intangibles Where computer software s notan
integral part of arelated item of computer hardware, the software 1
treated as an intangible asset Capitalised software costs include
externaldirect costs of goods and services, as well as internal
payroll-related costs for employees who are directly associated
with the project

Caprtalised software development costs areamortisedon a
straight-line basis over their expected economic lives, normally
between three and ten years Computer software under
development is held at cost less any recogmised impairment loss
Any impairment invalue s recogmsed within the income staterment

Property, plant and equipment

The Group's policy 1s to state property, plant and equipment at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any recognised imparrment
loss Propertyis not revalued for accounting purposes Assetsin
the course of construction are held at cost less any recogrused
impairment loss Cost includes professional feesand, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs

Depreciation 1s provided to write off the cost of tangible non-
current assets (Including investrnent properties), less estimated
residual values on a straght ine basis as follows

- Freehold land - not depreciated,

- Freehold and teasehold buldings with a remaining lease term
over 50 years—depreciated to ther residual value over ther
estimated remaining economic lives,

- Leasehold buildings with aremaining lease term of less than
50 years —depreciated over the shorter of therr useful ecenomic
lives or the remaining period of the lease.and

- Fixtures, fittings and equipment - 3 to 25 years according to the
estimated economic life of the asset

Residualvalues and useful economic lives are reviewed annually
Depreciation s charged on alladditions to, or disposals of,
depreciating assetsin the year of purchase or disposal

Any imparrment in value s recognised within the income staternent

Leasing

Where assets are financed by leasing agreements and the risks and
rewards are substantially transferred to the Group {finance leases)
the assets are treated as If they had been purchased outright,and
the correspending Liability to the leasing company s included as
an oblgationunder finance leases Depreciation on leased assetsis
charged to the income statement on the same basis as owned
assets, unless the term of the lease 1s shorter Leasing payments
aretreated as consisting of capital and interest elements and the
interest 1s charged to the ncome statement

All other leases are operating leases and the costs inrespect of
operating leases are charged on a straight-Une basis over the lease
term The value of any lease incentive receved to take onan
operating lease (for example, a rent free pericd)1s recognised as
deferred income and s released over the Ufe of the lease

STRATEGIC REPORT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

Leasehold prepayments

Payments made to acquire leasehold land and builldings are
includedin prepayments at cost and are amortised over the lfe
ofthe lease

Cash and cash equivalents

Cashand cash equivalents includes short-terrm deposits with banks
and other financialinsbitutions, with animbial maturity of three
months or less and credit card payments received within 48 hours

Inventaries

inventories are vatued on a weighted average cost basis and carried
at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost includes all direct
expenditure and other attributable costs Incurred In bringing
inventories to their present location and condition Allinventories
are finished goods Certain purchases of inventories may be subject
to cash flow hedges for foreign exchange nsk The Croup appliesa
basis adjustment for those purchases in a way that the cost s inibially
established by reference to the hedged exchange rate and not the
spot rate at the day of purchase

Provisions

Provisions are recegnised when the Croup has a present obligation
asaresuit ofapast event,andtis probable that the Croup wilibe
required to settie that obugation Provisions are measured at the
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation
at the end of the reparting perod, and are discounted to present
value where the effect s maternal

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain
employees Afarr value for the equity-settled share awards s
measured at the date of grant The Group measures the fair value
of each award using the Black-Scholes model where appropriate

The fair value of each award s recogmised as an expense over the
vesbing period on a straight-line basis, after allowang for an estimate
of the share awards that will eventually vest The tevel of vesting s
reviewed at each reporting penod and the charge s adjusted to
reflect actual and estimated levels of vesting

Foreign currencies

The results of overseas subsidianies are translated at the weaighted
average of monthly exchange rates for revenue and profits

The staterments of financial position of overseas subsidianes are
translated at year end exchange rates Theresulting exchange
differences are booked into reserves and reported in the
consolidated staterment of comprehensive ncome

Transactions denorminated in foreign currencies are transtated at
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction Foreign currency
monetary assets and Labibties held at the end of the reporting
period are translated at the closing balance sheetrate Theresulting
exchange gamn or toss 1s recogrused within the incorne staternent,
except when deferred in other comprehensive ncome as qualifying
casth flow hedges and qualifyting netinvestmeant hedges

Taxation

Tax expense cormprises current and deferred tax Tax1s recognised
inthe income statement, except to the extent it relates toitems
recogrised in other comprehensiveincorme or directly in equity,
inwhich case the related taxis recognmsed in other comprehensive
income or directly inequity

Provision is made for uncertain tax positions when it 1s considered
probable that there will be a future cutflow of funds to atax
authonty The provision s calculated using the single best estimate
where that outcomeis more bkely than not and a weighted average
probabiity in other circumstances The positionis reviewed onan
ongoing basis, to ensure approprate provision 1s made for each
known tax risk

Deferred tax is accounted for using a temporary difference
approach,andis the tax expected to be payable or recoverable
ontemporary dfferences between the carrying amount of assets
and babrlities inthe statement of financial position and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable proft
Deferred tax s calculated based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carryingamount of assets and
labilities, applying taxrates and laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting penicd

Deferred tax lialbiities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences ansing oninvestments in
subsidiaries, assocates and Jjoint ventures, except where the
reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled by the
Croup and it is probable that the difference will not reverse inthe
foreseeable future

Deferred tax Labilities are not recognised on temporary differences
that arise frorm goodwill whichis not deductible for tax purposes

Defarred tax assets are recognised to the extent it s probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
termporary differences can be utiised The carryingamount of
deferredtax assets s reviewed at the end of each reporting pariod
andreduced to the extent that itis ne longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits willbe avalabie to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised in respect of
temporary differences that arise oninitial recognition of assets and
latiities acquirad other thanina busmness combination

Financial instruments

Financizlassets and babitities are recognisedin the Group's
statement of financial position when the Croup becornes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument

A_Trade and other receivables Trade receivables are recorded
nitially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost Subsequently, thisresults in therr recognition at nominal
value less anallowance for any doubtful debts

B. Other financial assets Other financial assets consist of
Investments in debt and equity securities and short-term
investments and are classified as either ‘available-for-sale or farr
value through profit and loss Avanlable for sale financial assets are
nitially measured at fair value, ncluding transaction costs directly
attnbutable to the acquisition of the financial asset Financial assets
held at far value through profit and loss are inthially recognised at
farr value and transaction costs are expensed

Where secunties are desighated as fair value through profit and
loss, gains and losses ansing from changes in farr value are included
nthe income statement for the period For ‘available-for-sale’
nvestments, gains or lesses ansing from changes in fair value are
recogrsed in other comprehensive income, until the secunty s
disposed of or 1s determined to be impaired, at which time the
cumulative gan or loss previously recogrised in other
comprehensive income s included in the income statement for
the pericd Equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose farr value cannot be rebiably
measured by other means are held at cost,

€. Classification of financial liabilities and equity Financial
Uabilities and equity Instruments are classified according to the
substance of the contractuat arrangements entered inte An equity
instrument s any contract that evidences aresidualinterestin

the assets of the Group after deducting all of its babilities
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

D. Bank borrowings Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are
initially recorded at fair value, which equals the proceeds received,
net of directissue costs They are subsequently held at amortised
cost Finance charges, including premiurmns payable on settlement
orredemption and direct Issue costs, are accounted for using an
effective nterest rate method and are added to the carrying
armount of theinstrument to the extent that they are not settled

in the penod inwhich they anse

E. Loan notes Long-termloans are nitially measured at far value
net of direct1ssue costsandare subsequenttly held at amortised
cost unless theican s designatedin a hedge relaticnishup, inwhich
case hedge accounting treatment will apply

F. Trade payables Trade payables are recorded initially at fair
value and subseguently measured at amortised cost Generally
this results in their recognition at their nominal value

G. Equity instruments Equity Instruments issued by the Company
arerecerded at the consideration received, net of direct 1ssue costs

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

The Group pnmarily uses Interest rate swaps, Cross CUrrency swaps
and forward foreign currency cantracts to manage its exposures to
fluctuations ininterest rates and foraign exchange rates These
instruments are inibially recognised at farr value on the trade date
and are subsegquently remeasured at their fair value at the end of
the reporting period The methad of recognising the resulting gain
or toss 1s dependent onwhether the dervative 1s designated asa
hedginginstrument and the nature of the item being hedged

The Group designates certamn bedging dernvatives as either

- Ahedge ofahighly probable forecast transaction or changein
the cashflows of arecogmised asset or Liability {a cash flow hedge),

- Ahedge of the exposure to change inthe fair value ofa
recognised asset or liability (@ faw value hedge), or

- Ahedge of the exposure on the translation of net Investments in
foreign entities (a net nvestrment hedge)

At the inception of a hedging relationship, the hedging nstrument
and the hedged itern are documented, along with the risk
management chjectives and strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions and prospective effectiveness testing s
performed Duning the Ufe of the hedging relationship, prospective
and retrospective effectiveness testing s performed to ensure the
instrurnent remains an effective hedge of the transaction Changes
in the fair value of derivative financialinstruments that do not
qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the income
statement asthey arse

A. Cash flow hedges Changes in the fair value of dervative
financialinstruments that are designated and effective as hedges
of future cash flows are recogrized in other comprehensive Incorme
inthe hedging reserve and any Ineffective portion 1s recognised
immediately n the incorme statérment If the firm commitment cr
forecast transaction that 1s the subject of a cash flow hedge results
inthe recognition of a non-financial asset or Lisbility, then, at the
time the asset or Liability 1s recogrised, the associated gains or
losses on the derivative that had previously been recogrised in
other comprehensive Income are included in the mitiat
measurernent of the asset or bahility

Forhedges that do not result nthe recogniton of anasset ora
liability, amounts deferredin cther comprehensive Incorme are
recognisedin the ncome staternent in the same pencdinwhich
the hedged iterns affect net profit or loss

B. Fair value hedges Changes in the fair value of adenvative
instrument designated ina fair value hedge, or for non-dervatives
the foreign currency component of carrying value, are recognised
inthe income statement The hedged itemis adyusted for changes
in fair value attnbutable to the nsk being hedged with the
corresponding entry in the Inccme staterment

C. Net investment hedges Changes inthe far value of dervative
or non-dernvative financial nstruments that are designated and
effective as hedges of net investments are recognisedin cther
comprehensive income in the hedging reserve and any Ineffective
portionis recognised mmediately in the income statement

Changes in the fair value of denvative financial nstruments that
do not qualify for hedge accountingare recogrised in the income
statement as they arise

D. Discontinuance of hedge accounting Hedge accounting s
discontinued when the hedginginstrument expires oris sold,
terminated, or exercised, the hedge relationship no longer
qualifies for hedge accounting, the forecast transaction s

no longer expected to occur or the Group de-designates the
hedge relationship

STRATEGIC REPORT

When a cash flow hedge s discontinued, any cumulative gain or loss
on the hedging instrurment recogrised in cther comprehensive
income s retained in equity untiLthe forecast transaction occurs
Subsequent changes i the fair value of the hedging instruments
when the forecast transaction s no longer highly probable buts still
expectedto occur arerecognisedinthe iIncome statement Ifa
hedged transaction s no longer expected to occur, the net
cumulative gain or loss recognised i comprehensive income 1s
transferred to the income statement for the period

When a far value hedge s discontinued, the fair value adjustment o
the carrying amount of the hedged item arising from the hedged
rnsk 1s amortised to the ncome staterment from that date

When anet Investment hedge 1s discantinued, the subsequent
changes in fair value of a denvative {or foreign exchange gains/
losses on recognised financial labilities) are recognised in the
income staterment The gain or toss on the hedging instrument
recognised in other comprehensive income s reclassified to the
income staternent only on disposal of the net Investment

The Croup does not use dernvatives to hedge ncome staterment
translation exposures

Embedded derivatives

Derwvatives embedded in other finanaial Instruments or other host
contracts are treated as separate dervatives when their risks and
charactenstics are not closely related to those 6f the host contracts
and tha host contracts are not carned at fair value, with unrealised
gains or losses reported in the income staterment Embedded
dervatives are carried in the staterment of financial position at
fairvalue from the inception of the host contract

Changesn fair value are recognised within the income statement
during the periodin which they anse
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

Critical accounting judgements and sources of

estimation uncertainty

The preparation of consolidated financral staterments requires
the Croup te make estimates and jJudgements that affect the
applcation of policies and reported amounts

Critical judgernents represent key decisions made by management
in the application of the Croup accounting policies Wherea
sigrificant nisk of rmatenally different outcomes exists due to
management assumptions or sources of estimation uncertanty,
thiswill represent a cnticalaccounting estimate Estimates and
Judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are bellieved to be reasonable under the crcumstances
Actualresults may differ fromn these estimates

The estimates and judgernerits which have a sigrificant risk of
causing a matenaladjustment to the carrying amount of assets
and Labilities are discussed below

Critical accounting judgements

Adjusting items The directors believe that the adjusted profit and
earrings per share measures provide additional useful inforrmation
to shareholders on the performance of the business These
measures are consistent with how business performance s
measured internally by the Board and Operating Cormrnittee The
adjusted profit before tax measure s not arecogrised profit
measure under IFRS and may not be directly comparable with
adjusted profit measures used by other companies The classification
of adusting items requires significant management jJudgement after
considering the nature and intentions of a transaction The Group's
definitions of adjusting items are cutlned within both the Group
accounting policies and the glossary on pages 120to 121

These defimtions have been applied consistently year on year

Note 5 provides further details on current year adjusting items and
their adherence to Group policy

Sources of estimation uncertainty

UK store estate The Croupisundertaking a significant strategic
programme to review 1ts UK store estate resuiting manet charge
of £321 iminthe year Asignificant level of estimation has been
used to determine the charges toberecogrisedin the year The
most significant judgernent that impacts the charge s that the
stores identified as part of the programme are more bkely than
nat to close Where a store closure has been announced there s a
reduced level of estimation uncertainty as the programme actions
are tobetaken pver a shorter and more immediate timeframe
Further significant estimation uncertainty anses inrespect of
determining the recoverable amaount of assets and the costs to be
incurred as part of the programme Significant assumptions have
beenmade ncluding

- reassessment of the useful bves of store fixed assets,

~ estimationinrespect of the expected shorter-term trading
value inuse, ncluding assurmptions with regard to the period of
trading as well as changes to future sales, gross margin and
operating costs,

- estimation of the sale proceeds for freehold stores whichis
dependent upon location specific factors, timing of Likely exit and
future changes to the UKretail property market valuations,

- estimation of the value of dilapidation payments requred for
leasehold store exits, whichis dependent ona nurnber of factors
including the extent of modifications of the store, the terms of
the lease agreement,and the condition of the property, and

- estimaticn of future contractuallease costs tobe incurred
ncluching uncertainty with regards to the cost of termimation
and/or potential sub-let (including estimation of nature, timing
andvalue inctuding any potential void periods and based on
assessment of location specific retail property market factors)

See notes 5and 15 for further detail

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment and intangibles Depreciation and amartisation are
provided to write down the cost of property, plant and equipment
and intangioles to their estimated residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as set out above The selection of the residual
values and useful ives gives rnise to estimation uncertainty,
especally nthe context of changing economic and market factors,
the channel shift from stores to online, ncreasing technological
advancerment and the Group's ongoing strategic transformation
prograrnmes The useful ives of property, plant and equpment and
intangibles are reviewed by managernent annually See notes 14
and 15 for further details Refer to the UK store estate sectionabove
for specific sources of estimation uncertanty inrelation to the
useful ives andresidual values of property, plant and equiprnent
within stores identified as part of the UK store estate prograrmme

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangibles
Property, plant and equipment and computer software ntangibles
are reviewed for impairment if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable Goodwill
and indefinite lived brands are reviewed for imparrment onan
annual basis When a review forimpairment s conducted, the
recoverable amountis determined based on the higher of valuein
use and far value less costs to sell The valuein use method requires
the Group to determine appropnate assurmptions (which are
sources of astimation uncertainty) inrelation to the cash flow
projections over the three-year strategic plan penod, the long-term
growthrate tc be applied beyond this three-year period and the
risk-adjusted pre-tax discount rate used to discount the assurmed
cash flows to present value The assumption that cash flows
continue Into perpetuity (with the exception of stores Identified as
part of the UK store estate programme) is a source of significant
estimation uncertainty Afuture change to the assumption of
tradinginto perpetuty for any CGU would result inareassessment
of useful econornic bves and residual value and could give nise to a
significant impairment of property. plant and equipment and
ntangibles particutarly where the store carrying value exceeds far
value less cost to sell See notes 14and 15 for further details on the
Group’s assumptions and associated sensitivities

Post-retirement benefits The determination of pension nat interest
income and the defined benefit obligation of the Group's defined
benefit pension schemes depends on the selection of certam
assumptions which include the discount rate, Inflation rate,
pensionable salary growth, mortality and expected return on
scherne assets Differences anising from actual experiences or
future changes inassumptions will be reflected in subseqguent
penods The farr value of unguoted Investments within total plan
assetsis determined using fair value estimates provided by the
rmanager of the investmeant or fund Seenocte 11 for further details
on theimnpact of changes in the key assumptions and estimatesand
note 12 for critical jJudgements associated with the Marks & Spencer
UK Penston Scheme interest in the Marks and Spencer Scottish
Limited Partnership

Revenue recognition Accruals for sales returns, deferred income in
relation toloyalty scheme redemptions and gift card and credit
voucher redemptions are estimated on the basis of histoncal
returns and redemptions These are recorded so as to be allocated
agamst revenue in the same period as that in which the onginal
revenue s recorded These balances are reviewad regularly and
updated toreflect management’s latest bast estimates However,
actualreturns and redemptions could vary from those estimates

Inventory provisioning Inventory provisions are recognised where
the net reabisable value from the sale of inventory)s estimated to be
lower than its carrying valueg, requinng esbimation of the expected
future sale price The estimation inctudes judgement ona number of
factors including historical sales patterns, expected sales profiles,
potential obsolescence and shrinkage
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2 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

IFRS 8 requires operating segments to beidentified on the basis of nternal reporting on components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating deaision maker to allocate resources to the segments and to assess their perfarmance

The chief operating decision maker has beenidentified as the Operating Committee The Operating Committee reviews the Group's internal
repartingin order to assess performance and allocate resources across each operating segment The operating segrments are UKand
International which are reportedina manner consistent with the internal reporting to the Operating Committee

The UK segment consists of the UK retallbusiness and UK franchise operations The International segment consists of Marks & Spencer
owned businesses in Europe, Asia and the international franchise operations

The Operating Committee assesses the performance of the operating segments based ona measure of operating profit This
measurement basis excludes the effects of adjusting items frem the operating segments The Operating Committee alsc monitors
revenue within the segments and gross profit within the UK segrment To increase transparency, the Group has decided to include an
addmional voluntary disclosure analysing revenue within the reportable segments by sub-category and gross profit within the UK segment.

by sub-category £
The following 1s an analysis of the CGroup’s revenue and results by reportable segrnent E
52 weeks ended 31 March 2018 97 W“[‘km,‘”d‘\d I Apnl 2017 ;
Logistics Adjusting Logrstics ﬁ
Management?  Adjustment’ items Statutery Moanagement:  Adjustmient! AdJustmg\te{ns Statutory E
£m £m £m £m £m m im £fm &
Clothing &Home revenus 3,741.1 - - 3,741 37927 - - 37927
Foodrevenue 5,869.9 - - 5,869.9 56490 - - 56490
UKrevenue 9,610 - - 96110 94417 - - 94417
Franchised 360.6 - - 360.6 3140 - - 3140
Owned 726.6 - - 726.6 8663 - - 8663
Internaticnalrevenue 1,087.2 - - 1,087.2 1,1803 - - 1,1803
Group revenue 10,698.2 - - 10,698.2 10,6220 - - 106220
Clothing & Home gross profit 20167 21287
Food gross profit 1,828.7 1,8377
UK gross profit 3,9454 {370.0) - 3,5754 39664 (3608) - 36059
UK operating costs (3,450.3) 370.0 (4725) (3,557.8) (3.3904) 3605 (2545) (32844
M&S Bank 403 - (34.7) 56 502 - a41) 61
UK operating prefit 5354 - (512.2} 23.2 6262 - (2986) 3276
Internationat operating profit 135.2 - (1.9) 133.3 644 - (1328) (74 4)
Croup operating profit 6206 - (514.1) 156.5 6906 - (437 4) 2532
Financeincome 23 - - 241 362 - - 362
Finance costs (113.8) - - (113.8) (130) - - (Mso)
Profit before tax 580.9 - (514.1) 66.8 6138 - (4374) 176 4

1 Management gross profit for the UK segment excludes certa - expences result nginan adjuztment between cost of sales and seling and admiristrative expenses of £3700m
(tast year £ 3505m}

2 Mznagement profit exclude: the adjustments {income or charges) made to reported prof t befors taxthat are significant nvalue and/or nature (see note 5) Please refer tothe
accounting policy nnote | a~athe gltos-ary for more detail: an these adjustreents

Other segmental information

2018 AU

UK' International Total UK International Total

£m £m £Em £rm £m £rmn
Additions to property, plant and equipment and imtangible
assets (excluding goodwill) 3224 13.2 3356 3741 122 3863
Depreciabonandarnortisation 615.7 24.6 640.3 5491 293 5782
Imparrment and asset write-offs 228.3 53 2336 727 312 1039
Totalassets 7,242.4 307.8 7,550.2 78173 3752 8,2925
Non-current assets 6,022.32 210.0 6,232.3 6,3244 2448 6,669 2

1 UKassetsinclude centraliy he dassezs largely relaning to 1T systes that supporlthe International bus -ess of £2£3m (last year, £34 0
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3 EXPENSE ANALYSIS

2018 2007
Total Total
£m £m
Revenue 10,698.2 10,6220
Cost of sales {6,650.9) 6,5342)
Gross profit ) 4,047.3 40878
Selung and administrative expenses (3,426.2) {3,4604)
Other operating income 49.5 632
Operating profit before adjusting items 670.6 6906
Adjusting items (see note 5) (514.1) (4374)
Operating profit 156.5 2532
The selling and administrative expenses are further analysed below
2018 7017
Total Total
£m £m
Ermployee costs' 1,521.0 1,491 4
Occupancy costs 705.6 7572
Raparrs, renewal;, and maintenance of property 94.7 951
Depreciation, amertisation and asset impairments and write-offs before adjusting items 580.6 5895
Other costs 524.3 5272
Selling and administrative expenses 3,426.2 3,4604
1 Therearean addihonai £579m(last year £61 Zm)of employee cost: recorded within cost of sales These costr arencludedwithin the aggregate remunaration disciosure: note 10A
4 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
The following items have been ncludedin arriving at profit before taxation
' 2018 017
£ rm
Net foreign exchange losses/{gains) 08 an
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 5,904.1 57761
Write down of inventories to net realisable value 220.5 2349
Depreciation of property, plant, and equiprment
- owned assets 459.} 103
-under finance leases Q.5 05
Amortisation of intangible assets 1807 1674
Impairments and wnite-offs of assets 2336 1039
Operating lease rentals payable
~property ) ) 3299 3501
~ fixtures, fittings and equipment 7.4 43
Included in administrative expenses 1s the auditor's remuneration, including expenses for audit and non-audit services, payable tothe
Company's audhtor Delotte LLPand 1ts associates as follows
28 07
£m im
Annualaudit of the Company and the consclidated financial statements 13 09
Auct of subsidiary companies 0.6 07
Audit-related assurance services 0.2 03
Total audit and audit-related assurance services fees 2.1 19

Cther services

Other services
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5 ADJUSTING ITEMS

The total adjusting items reported for the 52 week penod ended 31 March 201815 a net charge of £514 1 {tast year £437 4my}
The adjustments made to reported profit before tax toarrive at adjusted profit are

2018 207

Notes £m £m

Strategic programmes - UK store estate 15,22 {321.1) (516)
Strategic prograrmmes - UK organisation 15,22 (30.7) 240)
Strateqic programmes - [T restructure 22 {15.5) -
Strategic prograrmmes - UKlogistics 15,22 {(13.1) 58
Strategic programmes - Changes to pay and pensicns 22 (12.9) (156 0)
Strategic programmes - International store closures and Impairments 22 (5.0) (1325)
UK store Impairments, asset write-offs and onerous lease charges 15,22 (63.4) (488)
MA&S Bark charges incurred inrelation to the insurance mis-selling provision (34.7) (a47)
Other 22 {(17.7} 98
Adjustments to profit before tax {514.1) (437 4)

In the prior year, the Group announced a wide-ranging strategic review across a number of areas of the business including customer,
brand, UK organisation, UK store estate and Internaticnal which has resulted in the Group recognising significant charges in both the prior
and current financial years

Strategic programmes - UK store estate (£321.1m)

In Novernber 2016, the Croup announced a five year strategic programme to transforrm the UK store estate During the year the Croup
announcedits ntention te accelerate this programme inline with the strategic aim of significantly growing the online share of sales, as well
as better than expected levels of sales transfer achieved from recent store closures This acceleration of the UK store astate programme
has resulted in an accelerabion of the timing of recognibion of the assoctated costs, primarily driven by a shortening of the useful economic
ife, for impairment testing purposes, of those stores identified as part of the transformation plans

The Group has recagrised a charge of £321 1mn the year in relabon to those stores identified as part of its transformation plans The charge
includes the impairment of assets freflecting the shortening of the useful econcmic life), accelerated depreciation of buldings, fixtures and
fittings and management’s best estimate of closure costsincluding onerous contracts and leases, dilapidations and, where closure has
beenapproved and announced, redundancy costs Referto notes 15 and 22 for further detaill on these charges

Whilst costs relabing to the closure and re-configuration of the UK store estate will recur across future financial years, the Group considers
that they should be treated as an adjusting item given they are part of a strategic programme and are significant in value to the results of
the Group

Strategic pregrammes — UK organisation (30.7m)

During the year the Group recognised a charge of £28 2min relation to the centralisation of its London Head Office functions intc cne
bullding The remaining £2 5m charge in the penod represents redundancy costs associated with changes to the UK Head Office structure
These costs are considered to be an adjusting itermn as the total programme cestis significant in value and relates to a sigrificant strategic
transformation prograrmmae of the Group Treatment of the redundancy costs within adjusting items is consistent with the disclosure of
the onginal UK organisation charges inthe prior year

Strategic programmes - IT reorganisation (£15.5m)

As part of the five-year transformation strategy, the Group announced a technology transformation programme to create armore agile,
faster and commercial technology function that willwork with the business te deliver both growth and cost efficiency The £15 5m of
costs incurred in the year relate primarily to redundancy, transition costs associated with the implementation of a new technology
operating model and accelerated depreciation of [T assets which the Group expects to retire early as a result of the transformation
strategy Further costs will e incurred Inrespact of this reorganisation in the financial year ending 30 March 2019 These costsare
considered to be an adiustingitem as they relate to a significant strategic inviiative of the Group and are significant in value, both inthe
year and in total for the project

Strategic programmes — UK Logistics (£13.1m)

As part of the previously annaunced long-term strategic programme to transition to a single tier UK distnbution network, the Croup has
announced the opening of a new Clothing & Home distribution centre in Welham Greenin 2019 As a direct result the Croup has announced
the closure of two existing cistribution centres A net charge of £13 1m has beenrecognised in the period for redundancy, dilapidations,
accelerated depreciation, onerous contracts and project costs The Croup considers this cost to be an adjusting iterm as it s significantin
value and relates to a significant strategic initiative of the Group Further costs willbe incurred inrespect of this reorganisaticnin the
financial year ending 30 March 2019 Trealment of the costs as being adjusting items s consistent with the treatment in previous periads
inrelation to the crestion of a single bier logistics network

STRATEGIC REPORT
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5 ADJUSTING ITEMS CONTINUED

Strategic programmes - Changes to pay and pensions (£12.9m})

In May 2016, the Croup announced proposals for a fairer, ssimpler and more consistent approach to pay and premia as well as proposals
to close the UK defined benefit (DB) pension scherne to future accrual effectiva from 1 Apnil 2017 As part of these propoesals the Group
commutted to making transition payments townpacted employees in relation to the closure of the UK DB scheme, expected to be

¢ £25rmintotal over three years (commencing 2017/18) The charge inthe period for the first year of these transitional payrments to
employeesis £129m

As previously disclosed, the Croup considers the costs directly assoclated with the closure of the UK DB scheme to be an adjusting item
on the basis that they retate to a significant cost, impacting the Group results Treatment of the transition payments made in the period
within adjustingiterns 1s consistent with the disclosure of the UK DB scheme closure costs in the pror year

Strategic programmes - International store closures and impairments (£5.0m)

In the prior year the Group announced its intenbion to close its owned stores inten nternational markets, resulting In the recognition of
£132 5m of expected closure costs primarily relating te redundancy, lease exitand property ditapidations anet charge of £50m has been
recognised in the peniod reflecting the actualisation of previously estirnated closure costs and those costs which can only be recogrisedas
incurred such as legal costs The net charge g considered to be an adjusting item as it relates to a significant strategic program, which over
the two years of charges has been significant in both value and nature to the results of the Croup

UK store impairments, asset write-offs and onerous lease contracts (£63.4m}
The Group has recognised a number of charges in the year assocated with reductions to the carrying value of items of property, plant and
equipment

UK storeimparrment testing {excluding those stores which have been captured as part of the UK store estate programme) has identified
certan stores where the current and anticipated future perfermance does not support the carrying value of the stores As aresult,a charge
of £12 6m bhas been incurred primarily nrespect of the imparrment of assets associated with these stores Refer tonate 15 for further details
onthe imparrments. This imparrment charge s considered to be an adjusting item as 1t 1$ considered to be consistent with the treatment of
related imparrments in the pror period

Following the announcerment of the UK store estate strategy in November 2016, the Croup conducted areview of the £4 8bn net book value
fasat 1 April 2017} of the property, plant and equipment onits balance sheet A one-off non-cashadjustment was made to depreciation of
£45 8m Of the £45 8m, £43 2m relates to assets in the UKand £2 6mrelates to assets in Ireland Additionally, the Croup has recognised an
additional charge of £5 Om related to the write-of f of store erwironment assets that are no longer used by the Group The Group consigers
these costs to be adjusting items as the charges are significant in nature and value to the results of the Croup for the current penod

M&S Bank charges incurred in relation to the insurance mis-selling provision (£34.7m)

The Group has an economic interest in M&S Bark, a wholly owned subsidiary of HSBC, by way of a Relatienship Agreement that entitles the
Croup toa 50% share of the profits of M&S Bank after appropnate deductions The Croup does not share nany losses of M&S Bank and s not
obliged to refund any profit share receved from HSBC althcugh future income may be impacted by significant one-off deductions

Since the year endled 31 Decermnber 2010, M&S Bank has recognised in its audited financial statements an estimated lLability for redress
to customers In respect of possible mis-selling of inancial products The Croup's fee income from M&S Bank has been reduced by the
deduction of the estimated tability in both the current and prior years The deduction in the penodis £34 7m The Group considers this
cost to be an adjusting item, despite its recurnng nature, as the charges are significant In nature and value in each period to the results of
the Group

Other (£17.7m)

Other includes profit on the disposal of cur retail business in Hong Kong and charges for potential iabilities for certain employee related
matters inthe current penod The prior penod income related to Liigation settlernents These amounts are considered to be adjusting items
as they are significant in nature and value to the results of the greup in the current pernod

0On 30 December 2017 the Croup completed the disposal of the retail business iInHong Kong and Macau to the Al Futtairm Group for
consideration of HKD360 7m (£33 9m) The profit on disposal of the business was £5 8mincluding the recycling of amounts previously taken
to equity in respect of foreign currency translation and net investment hedging This profit s considered to be an adjusting item as it s
sigrificant in nature to both the results of the Group and the International segment The profit on dispesalis analysed as follows

2018 2017

£m im
Proceeds 339 -
Disposal costs (0.9} -
Net disposal proceeds 33.0 -
Fair value of net assets disposed (28.6) -
Provision for transition services {0.8) -
Net foreign exchange amounts recycled from reserves 2.2 -

Profit on disposal 5.8 -
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6 FINANCE INCOME/COSTS

2018 2007
£m £m

Bank and ather interest receivahle 60 66
Ineffectiveness on financialinstruments 04 03
Pension net finance incorne (see note 11F) 177 293
Finance income 24.1 362
Interest on bank borrowings {1.2) (28)
Interest payable on syndicated bank facility (2.3) 43)
Interest payabie onmedium-term notes (90.0) ©12)
Interest payable on finance leases {1.9) 19)
Ineffectiveneass on financialinstruments (2.3) -
Unwind of discount on Provisions {5.2) (02)
Unwind of discount on partnership liability to the Marks and Spencer UK Pension Scheme (see note 12) (10.9) (12 6)
Finance costs {113.8) (1130)
Net finance costs (89.7) (76 8)
7 INCOME TAX EXPENSE
A. Taxation charge

2018 207

£m m

Current tax
UK corperation tax on profits for the year at 19% (last year 20%)
~current year 65.4 983
—adjustments inrespect of prioryears 7.5 (174)
UK current tax 729 809
Overseas current taxation
- current year 10.3 89
—adjustments in respect of prior years (0.2) 73
Total current taxation 83.0 971
Deferred tax
- ongination and reversal of temporary differences (37.3) 483
-recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses (+4) -
-adustments inrespect of pnor years (3.3) 115
-changesin taxrate {3.5) 04
Total deferred tax (see note 23) (45.3) (364)
Total income tax expense 37.7 607

STRATECIC REPORT

o
ot
e}
o)
=
I
=
I
o
=4

(

FINAN




92
MARKS AN SPFNCFR CROUP R C
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

7 INCOME TAX EXPENSE CONTINUED

B. Taxation reconciliation
The effective tax rate was 56 4% (last year 34 4%) and s explained below

2018 2017
Em £m
Profit before tax 66.8 1764
Notional taxation at standard UK corporation tax rate of 19% (last year 20%) 127 353
Depreciation and other amounts in relation to fixed assets that do not qualify for tax relief 3.0 47
Ctherincome and expenses that are not taxable or allowabte for tax purposes 14.8 on
Retranstation of deferred tax balances due tothe change in statutory UK tax rates (3.5) {39
Overseas profits taxed at rates dlfferent to those of the UK (3.4) (23)
Overseas tax Losses wheretheres no reLlefant]apated in the foreseeable future - 05
Adiustments to the current and deferred tax charges in respect of prior penods 4,2 14
Adiustingiterns
—depreciationand other amounts inrelation to fixed assets that do not qualify for tax relief 8.0 -
- UK store and strategic prograrnme mpairments where no tax reliefs avalable i 6.6 17
~International store closures and impairments i (8.3} 260
- ather strategic programme incomeand expenses that are not taxable or allowabile for tax purposes 34 an
-other : ) 0.2 -
-retranslation of deferred tax balances due to the change in statutory UK taxrates -~ 43
- overseas profits taxed at rates different to those of the UK - (106)
Tatal income tax expense 327 ED7

After excluding adiustments to underlying profit, the underlying effective tax rate was 21 6% {last year 199%)

Other ncorne and expenses that are not taxable or allowable for tax purposes include acharge of £12 7m (2017 £4 1m credit) inrelation
to the Marks and Spencer Scottish Limited Partnership Under this structure tax relief for payments to be made to the Marks &Spencer
UK Pension Scheme inrelation to the first partnershyp interest argse in the first ten years of the structure and some of this benefitis

recaptured in subsequent years

On 15 Septernber 2016, the Finance Bill received Royal Assent to enact the previously announcedreductions in the rate of corporation

tax to 19% from 1 Apnil 2017 and 17% from 1 April 2020 The Croup has continued to remeasure its UK deferred tax assets and uabilities at the
end of the reporting pericd at the rates of 19% and 17% based on an updated expectation of when those balances are expected to unwind
This has resulted in the recognition of a deferred tax credit of £3 5min the income statement and the recognition of a deferred tax charge of

£01man other comprehensive ncome
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7 INCOME TAX EXPENSE CONTINUED

C. Current Tax Reconciliation
The current tax reconciliation shows the tax effect of the mam adjustments made to the Croup's accounting profits n order to arrive at its
taxable profits The reconcilingitems differ from those in Note 78 as the effects of deferred tax timing differences are ignored below

2008 Pl
£m £m
Profit before taxation 66.8 176 4

Notionat taxation at standard UK corporation tax rate of 19% {last year 20%) 127 353

Disallowable accounting depreciabion and other similar items 78.7 902

Deductible capital allowances (70.6) 672)

Adjustments inrelation to employee share schemes 28 10

Adjustments inrelation to employee pension schemes 9.2 7
Qverseas profits taxed at rates different to those of the UK (3.9) 23) &

Overseas tax losses where there 1s no tax relief antic pated in the foreseeable future - 05 E

Other income and expenses that are not taxable or allowable 0.5 38 g

Adjusting iterns E

—depreciation and other amounts in relation to fixed assets that do not qualify for tax relief 9.5 - é

- UK store and strategic programme mpairrments where no tax relief 1s available 44.0 173

—International store closures and Impairments (16.2) 273

- other strategic programme income and expenses that are not taxable or allowable for tax purposes A 18

- pay and pensiens - 254

- other 34 -

- overseas profits taxed at rates different to those of the LUK - (106)
Current year current tax charge 757 1072
Represented by:

UK current year current tax 65.4 983
Qverseas current year current tax 10.3 89
75.7 1072
UK adjustments inrespect of prior years 75 (174)
Overseas adjustments in respect of prior years (0.2} 73
Total current taxation (Note 7A} 83.0 971

8 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of earnings per ordinary share s based on earnings after tax and the weighted average numiber of crdinary shares in issue
dunng the year

The adjusted earnings per share figures have also been calculated based on earnings before adjusting items that are sigruficant innature
and/or quantumand are considered to be distortive (see note 5) These have been presented to provide shareholders with an additional
measure of the Groups’ year on year performance

For diluted earmings per share, the weighted average number of orcinary shares inissue 1s adjusted to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares The Group has four types of dilutive potential ordinary shares being those share cptions granted to employees
where the exercise price s less than the average market price of the Company’s ordinary shares during the year, unvested shares granted
under the Deferred Share Bonus Plan, unvested shares granted under the Restricted Share Plan and unvested shares within the
Perforrmance Share Plan that have met the relevant performance conditions at the end of the reporting perniod
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8 EARNINGS PER SHARE CONTINUED

Details of the adjusted earmings per share are set out below

2018 7
£m £m
Protfit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company 257 n7
Add/(less) (net of tax)
Strategic programmes — UK sto(e astate 264.7 465
Strategic prograrnmes — UK organisation 28.0 203
Strategic programmes — 1T restructure 125 -
Strategic programmes - UK ogistics w7 {92}
Strategic programmes - Changes to pay and pensions . . 10..4 1286
Strategic programmes — International store closures and impairments @y 1208
UK store Impairments, asset write-offs and cnerous lease charges 61.6 413
M&S Bank charges incurred in relation to the insurance mis-seling provisicn 281 353
Other 145 79
Profit before adjusting items attributabie to equity shareholders of the Company 4521 4678
Million Millian
Weighted average number of crdinary shares inissue L . 16240 16231
Potentially dilutive share options under the Croup's share option schemes 54 80
Weighted average number of diluted ordinary shares 16294 16311
' ' ' Pence Pence
Basic earnings per share 16 72
Diluted earnings per share 1.6 72
Adjusted basic earnings per share 278 304
Adjusted diluted earnings per share 27.8 302
9 DIVIDENDS
2018 2mz7 2018 2017
per share pershae £m £m
Dividends on equity ordinary shares i i
Paid final dividend 11.9p 119p 193. 1927
Specatdividend - 46p - 745
Paid interirn cividend 6.8p 580 110.3 1o3
18.7p 23 3p 3034 3775

The directors have approved a final dividend of 119p per share (last year 11 9p per share) whichinline with the requirements of 1AS 10

‘Events after the Reporting Peniod, has not been recogrised within these results This inal dividend of € £193 Im (last year £1931m) will be
paid on 13 July 2018 to shareholders whose names are on the Register of Members at the close of business on 1 June 2018 The ordinary

shares will be quoted ex dividend on 21 May 2018

Acvidend reinvestment plan {DRIP)1s available to shareholders who would prefer to invest ther dividends in the shares of the Cormpany
For those shareholders electing to receive the DRIP the last date for receipt of a new electionis 22 June 2018

10 EMPLOYEES

A. Aggregate remuneration

The aggregate remuneration and associated costs of Group employees (iIncluding Operating Committee) were

2018 2017
Total Total

£m Em

Wages and salanes 1,389.7 1,3338
Social secunty costs o91.7 897
Pension costs 76.7 1003
Share-based payments (see note 13} 18.9 106
Employee weifare and other personnel costs 56.6 471

Capitalised staffing costs (24.7) (28 9)
Total aggregate remuneration’ 1,578.9 15526

1 Excludes amounts recognised with.n adiusting ttems (see note 51 such as the transit op payments the Croup ha: commutted o inrespect of removal of premip and redundancy costs

associated wit~ the UK and International stracegic programmes

Details of key management compensation are given in note 28
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10 EMPLOYEES CONTINUED
B. Average monthly number of employees

2018 2m7
UK stores
—management and supervisory categories 6,004 5617
—ather 66,540 66,385
UK head office
-management and supervisory categories 3,088 3,172
—cther 856 862
UK operations
-management and supervisory categories 89 191
—other 1,153 1,267
QOverseas 6,891 7,445
Total average number of employees 84,621 84,939

if the number of hours worked was converted on the basts of a normal working week, the equivalent average number of full-time employees
would have been 58,928 (last year 53,764)

STRATEGIC REPORT

11 RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group provides pension arrangements for the benefit of its UK employees through the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme (a defined
benefit {DB) arrangement) and Your M&S Pension Saving Pian (a defined contribution (OC) arrangerment)

The UK DB pension scheme operated on a finat pensionable salary basis and s governed by a Trustee board which1s independent of the
Group The UKDB scheme closed to future accrual on 1 April 2017 On closure of the UK DB scheme, allrernaining active memibzers moved
to deferred status whichresulted in a curtailment charge of £1270m in the prior year There will be no further service charge relating to the
scheme and no future monthly employer contributions for current service At year end the UK DB pension scheme had no active members
{last year nil), 60,402 deferred members (last year 62,655) and 51,802 pensioners (last year 51,198)

The most recent actuarial valuation of the Marks and Spencer UK Pension Scheme was carried out as at 31 March 2015 and showed afunding
surplus of £204m No additional funding contributions were made during the year inrespect of benefits already accrued by members, as
the final coentnbution of £28m, (agreed at the 2012 actuanal valuation) was paid in the prior year The UK DB pension scheme willcontinue to
receive ncome from the Scothish Limited Partnership See note 12 for further details

The DC plan s a pension plan under which the Group pays contributions te an independently administered fund Such contributions are
basedupon a fixed percentage of ermnployees pay Tha Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions to the
fund once the contributions have been paid Members' benefits are determined by the amount of contributions paid by the Group and the
member, together with the nvestrent returns earned on the contrnibutions anising from the performance of eachindividual's iInvestments
and how each member chooses to recerve therr retirement benefits As aresult, actuanal sk (that benefits will be lower than expected) and
Investment risk (that assets invested in will not performinline with expectaticns) fall on the employee At the year end, the defined
contribution arrangement had some 54,001 active members {Last year 53,661} and some 18984 deferred mermbers (last year 12,866)

The Group alsc operates a small funded DB pension scherme in the Republic of Ireland This scheme closed to future accrual on 31 Getober
2013 Other retirement benefits also include a UK post-retirement healthcare scheme and unfunded retirement benefits

The total Group retirement bensefit cost was £58 9m {last year £198 4m) Of this, ncorme of £14 7m (last year cost of £148 0m) relates to the UK
DB pension scheme which included a £1270m curtallment charge in the prior year, £68 8m{last year £45 1m) to the UK DC planand £4 8m
(last year £5 3mj}to other retirement benefit schemes

InMarch 2018, the UK DB pension scheme purchased pensioner buy-in policies with twoinsurers covering £1 4bn of UK pensioners’ labilities
which 1s approximately one third of the pensicner portfolic The buy-ins transfer longevity risk to the insurers and reduce the pension risks
being underwntten by the Croup
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11 RETIREMENT BENEFITS CONTINUED
A. Pensions and other post-retirement liabilities

2018 2017

£m im
Total market value of assets i 9,989.3 10,1351
Present value of scheme tabilities ) i (9,029.6) (9,433 3)
Net funded pension plan asset 959.7 7018
Unfunded retirerment benefits ) (3.6) (1.0)
Post-retirernant healthcare (7.9) 80)
Net retirement benefit surplus 948.2 6928
Analysed inthe statement of fhanmal position as
Retirement benefit asset 9707 ~ 7060
Retirement benefit deficit {22.5) (132)
Net retirement benefit surplus a948.2 6928

In the event of a plan wind-up, the pension scheme rules provide M&S with an unconditionat right to a refund of surplus assets assuring
the full settiement of plan labilities In the ordinary course of business, the Trustees have norights to wind up or change the benefits due to
memibers of the scheme As aresult, any net surplus n the UK DB penston scheme s recognised in full

B. Financial assumptions

The financial assumphions for the UK DB pension scheme and the most recent actuarial valuations of the other past-retirement schermes
have been updated by ndependent qualified actuanes to take account of the requirements of IAS 19 Employee Benefits'in order to assess
the tabilities of the schemes and are as follows

2018 2014

% %

Rate of increase in pensions in payment for service 2.0-3.2 20-32
Discountrate ) 2.65 255
Inflation rate ) ‘ AL 320
Long-term healthcare cost increases 715 720

€. bemographic assumptions

The UK post-retirement mortality assumptions are based onan analy$s of the pensioner mortality trends under the scheme for the
penod to March 2015 The specific mortality rates used are based on the VITA lite tables The lfe expectancies underlying the valuation are
as follows

08 207

Current pensioners (3t age 65) —-male . 223 232
—female 25.2 247

Future pensioners - currently in deferred status (&t age 65) —male ) 241 247
—fernale 270 27

D. Sensitivity analysis
The table below summanses the esbmated impact of changes in the principat actuarnial assumptions on the UK DB pension scherne surplus

2018 76}7

£m £m
Decrease in scheme surplus caused by a decrease in the discount rate of 0 25% {70.0} (700)
Decrease In scheme surplus caused by a decreasea in the inflation rate of 0 25% : ~ (25.0 (200)
Increase in scheme surplus caused by a decrease in the average life expectancy of one yeéar 305.0 3700

The sensitivity analysis above s based on a change in one assumption whiie hoiding all others constant Therefore interdependencies
between the assumptions have not been takan mto account within the analysis
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11 RETIREMENT BENEFITS CONTINUED

E. Analysis of assets

The investrment strategy of the UK DB pension scheme is driven by its lability profile, ncluding its inflation-unked pensicn benefits
inaddition to1ts interest in the Scottish Limited Partnership {refer to note 12), the scheme invests in different types of bonds (including
corporate bonds and gitts) and denvative instruments (including inflation, interest rate, cross-currency and total return swaps) in order to
align movermnents in the value of its assets with movements Inits labilities arising from changes in market conditions Broadly the scheme
has hedging that covers 93% of interest rate movements and 91% of inflation moverments, as measured on the Trustees funding
assumptions which use a discount rate derived from gilt yields

By funding its DB pension schemes, the Croup is exposed to the nsk that the cost of meeting its obligations i1s higher than anticipated
This could occur for several reasons, for exampile

- nvestment returns on the schemes assets may be lower than anticipated, especially if falls in asset values are not matched by similar
falls in the value of the schemes’ liabilities

- Thelevel of price nflation may be higher than that assumed, resutting in ligher payments from the schemes

- Scheme members may live longer than assumed, for example due to advances in healthcare Members may also exercise (or not exercise)
options in a way that lead to increases in the schernes’ labilities, for example through early retirement or commutation of pension
for cash

- Legislative changes could also lead to an increzse in the schemes’ liabilities

Inaddition, the Group is exposed to additional risks through its obligation to the UK DB pension scheme via its interest in the Scottish
Lirmited Partnership (see note 12) In particular, under the legal terms of the Partnership, a default by the Croup on the rental payments
to the Partnership or a future change in legislation could tnigger earlier or higher payments to the pension scherne, oran increase inthe
collateral to be provided by the Croup

Thefarvalue of the total plan assets at the end of the reporting pencd for each category 15 as follows

2018 2017
Guoted Unquoted Total Quoted Ungu ted Total
£m £m £Em £m £m £m
Debt investments
-Government Bonds het of repurchase
agreements' 44729 3694 4,842.3 48513 3684 52197
-Corporate Bonds 59 685.4 691.3 56 B963 9019
- Asset backed secunties and structured debt - 339.2 3392 - 5479 5479
Scottish Limited Partnership Interest
(see note 12) - 3454 3454 - 4121 M2
Equity investments
-[Developed markets 460.8 102.8 563.6 1,125 4 1102 1,2356
—Ernerging markets 151.7 - 151.7 268 4 - 2684
Growth Asset Funds
-Clobal Property - 2740 2740 - 2563 2563
-Hedgeand Remsuraﬁce 18.2 406.2 424 .4 - 3220 3220
—Private Equity and Inﬁrastructure - 2225 2225 - 2415 45
Derivatives
—Interest and inflation rate swaps 77 6.4 14.1 06 (295} (289)
~Foreign exchange cdntracts and
other derivatives 0.1 154.8 154.9 13 2029 2042
Cash and Cash equivalents 41.8 92.5 134.3 861 722 1583
Other
-8uylninsurance - 1,2779 1,2779 - - -
-Secure Income Asset Funds - 466.7 466.7 - 3267 3266
—Qther 87.0 - 87.0 094 - 695
5,246.1 47432 9,989.3 54081 3,7270 101351

1 epuwchase agreementswere £920 2m(last year £1 333 9my)

The fair values of the above equity and debt investrnents are based on publicly available market prices wherever avallable Unquoted
investments, hedge funds and rensurance funds are stated at fair value estimates provided by the manager of the investrment or fund
Property includes both quoted and unguoted investments The fair value of the Scottish Limited Partnership interest s based on the
expected cash flows and benchmark asset-backed credit spreads Itis the policy of the scheme to hedge a proportion of interest rate
and inflation risk The scheme reduces its foreign currency exposure using forward foreign exchange contracts

At year end, the UK schemes (UK DB pension scheme and post-retirement healthcare) indirectly held 41,046 (last year 193,506) ordinary
sharesin the Company throughits mvestment in UK Equity Index Funds
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11 RETIREMENT BENEFITS CONTINUED

F. Analysis of amounts charged against profits
Amounts recognised n comprehensive ncome N respect of defined benefit retrament plans are as follows

2018 2017
£m £m
Current service cost 0.3 472
Administration costs 3.5 32
Past service costs — curtallment charge - 1780
Net mterestncome {\7.7) (293)
Total {13.9) 1491
Remeasurerﬁent on the net defined benefit surplus
Actualreturn on scheme assets excluding amounts included in net Interestincome £88§.2 (1,543 8)
Actuaral gain - demographic assumptions (85.3} -
Actuanal loss/(gain) — experience 26.3 (15)
Actuanalioss/(gain) - financial assumptions (230.3) 1,614 2
Components of defined benefit income recognised in other comprehensive income {200.9} 689
G. Scheme assets
Changes inthe fair value of the scheme assets are as follows
2018 ' 207
Em £m
Fair value of scheme assets at start of year 10,1351 85153
interest incoma based on drscount rate 253.4 2849
Actualreturn on scheme assets excludingamounts included in net interest ncome’ o o (88D 11,5438
Employer contributions ) 407 877
Benefits paig (353.9) (298 4)
Administration costs . (3.3) (30
Exchange movement 5.5 A8
Fair value of scheme assets at end of year 9,989.3 10,1351
) Theactualreturnon scherne assetswas again of £184 6 (last year gan of £1,8287m)
H. Pensions and other post-retirement liabilities
Changes inthe present value of retirernent benefit obligations are as follows
ZCHB. 2017
£m £m
Present value of cbligation at start of year 9,442.3 76912
Current service Cost 0.3 472
Administration costs 0.2 02
Curtailrnent charge - 1280
Interest cost 2357 2556
Benefits paid i (353.9) (298 4)
Actuanial lass/{gain} - experience 26.3 (5)
Actuanal (gain) ~ demographic assumptions {85.1) -
Actuarial (gany/loss - financial assumptions ) ) {230.3) 1,614 2
Exchiange movement 5.6 58
Present value of obligation at end of year 9.041.) 9,442 3
Analysed as:
Present value of pension scheme biabilities i 9,029.6 94333
Unfur)ded pension plans . 38 10
Post-retrement healthcare ) ) 79 80
Present value of ohligation at end of year 92,0411 9442 3

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation at 31 March 201815 19 years (last year 19 years)
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12 MARKS AND SPENCER SCOTTISH LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

Marks and Spencer plc 1s a general partner and the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scherne s a irmited partner of the Marks and Spencer
Scottish Limited Partnership {the Partnership) Under the partnership agreement, the Umited partners have no ongoing involvernent in
the management of the business and shall not take any partin the control of the partnership The generalpartner s responsible for the
management and control of the partnership and as such, the Partnership is consolidated into the results of the Croup

The Partnership holds £1 5bn {last year £1 6bn) of properties which have been leasad back to Marks and Spencer ple The Croupretains
control over these properties, ncluding the flexibilty to subsbitute alternative properties into the Partnership The first irited partnership
interest (held by the Marks and Spencer UK Pension Scheme), entitles the Pension Scheme to receive anannual distnbution of £719muntil
June 2022 from the Partnership The second lmited partnership interest (also hald by the Marks and Spencer UK Pension Scheme), entitles
the Pension Scheme to recewe a further annual distnbution of £36 4m from June 2017 untilJune 2031 Allprofits generated by the
Partnershipin excess of these amounts are distributable to Marks and Spencer plc

The partnership babilty Inrelation to the first interest of £335 5m (last year £396 5m) 1s valued at the net present value of the future
expected distnbutions from the Partnership and s included as a lability in the Groups' financial statements as it a transferable financial
instrument Dunng the year to 31 March 2018 an nterest charge of £109m {last year £12 6m}was recogrusedin the income statement
representing the unwinding of the discount mcluded in this cbligation The first umited partnership interest of the Pension Scheme is
included within the UK DB Pension Scheme assets, valued at £345 4m {last year £4121m)

The second partnership nterestis not a transferable financial instrument and therefore s not included as a plan asset within the UK DB
pension scheme surplus reported in accordance with 1AS 12 Sirmilarly the associated Uability 1s not included on the Groups statement of
financial position

STRATEGIC REPORT

13 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

This year a charge of £18 9mwas recognised for share based payments {last year charge of £106m) Of the total share-based payments
charge, £11 Om (last year £109my) relates to the Save As You Earn share option scheme and a charge of £2 3m (last year credit of £36m)
relates to the Performance Share Plan The rernaining charge of £5 6m{last year £3 3rm) s spread over the other share plans Anaddihionat
charge of £1 3m was recogrised in relation to the Annual Bonus Scheme for 2016/17 last year under the Deferred Share Bonus Plan

There s no charge in the current year Further details of the operation of the Group share plans are provided in the Remuneration Report
onpages 50to 62

A. Save As You Earn Scheme

The SAYE scherme was approved by shareholders for a further 10 years at the 2017 ACM Under the terms of the scheme, the Board may offer
options to purchase ordinary shares n the Company once in each financial year to those employees who enterinto Her Majesty's Revenue &
Customs (HMRC) approved SAYE savings contract The Company has chosen to cap the maximum manthly saving amount at £250 whichis
below the £500 per month aliowed under HMRC Approved Schemes The price at which options may be offered is 80% of the average rmid-
market price for three consecutive dealing days preceding the offer date The options may normally be exercised during the six-month
period after the completion of the SAYE contract

2B 2017

Number of Weighted average Numberof Weightedaverage

options exercise price options exercise price

Outstanding at beginning of the year 43,294,094 310.6p 30,154,547 393 3p
Granted 13,351,790 261.0p 28,166,455 26000
Exercised {29,500} 269.7p (1,763,039) 3128p
Forfeited (7,758,295} 307.9p (12,881,484) 391 8p
Expired (5,126,432} 402.5p (382,385) 365 2p
Qutstanding at end of year 43,731,657 2854p 43,294,094 3106p
Exercisable at end of year 4,976,777 362.3p 4,928,971 403 5p

For SAYE share options exercised during the penod, the weighted average share price at the date of exercise was 314 8p (last year 387 4p)

The farr values of the options granted duning the year have been calculated using the Black-Scholes model assuming the inputs shown below

2018 2018 2017 2017 2017

3-year plan 3-yaarplan 3-year plan

3-year plan 2016 modified’ 3-yearplan 2016 medified- 2005 modifien’

Crant date Nov 17 Nov 17 Nov 16 Nov 16 Nov 16
Share price at grant date 298p 298p 335p 335p 335p
Exercise price 261p 432p 260p 432p 369p
Option Ufe:nyears 3 years 3 years 3years 3years 3years
Risk-freerate 0.5% 0.5% 02% 02% 02%
Expectedvolatiity 27.8% 27.8% 28 5% 285% 285%
Expected dwvidend yield 6.3% 6.3% 56% 56% 56%
Fair value of option 42p 32p 66p 190 30p
Incremental fair value of option N/A 10p N/A 17p 36p

Inthe current year, there has been a mod ficat on io the 201 % schem arelsting "o e~ ployees cancelling awards fr om previo us year s insubsatution for swards granted under the 2018
scheme The fair value of the moaified swar ds will be amortised based on the incremental fair value The ncrementalfarr vatus s the difference betweenthe far value of the 2018 options,
beng 42p,and the Fair value of repricec previous awards, ¢ alculated uzing 2012 award assurnptions, keeping theinit at exercise price consistent The farva ue of the modihed ophicns
being 10p for 2016 modified optionsis a ready recogrised ~operatng pro’t

2 Inthe prisr year there was amadificatiomtotr ¢ 2017 sc-eme relating 1o emzloyee: cancelling awards from previo s yearsin substitutiz nlon awards gran ed under the 2017 scheme

The fair value of the modified 7w ds will be amaornised based on rhe incremental farr volue 1he mcremental “arr value s the difference between the fair value of the 2017 oplions, being
B6p,and rhe far value of repriced previaus awards ¢ feutated using 22 7 award gssumphions keeping theiritial exerose pnee consistent fhe fairvalue o™ hem~-difedophons bong

15p for 2016 moedified ophions and 30p for 20 S modified oot ~s 153 readyrecogrised noperating prof t
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13 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS CONTINUED

Volatility has been estimated by taking the historic volatility n the Cornpany’s share price over a three-year penod

The resulting farr value 1s expensed over the service period of three years on the assumption that 10% (last year 10%) of options will lapse
over the service penod as employees leave the Group

Outstanding ophions granted under the UX Employees SAYE Scherne are as follows

Numberof\cptlons Weighted average remaining contractual fe (years)

Options granted 2018 o7 2018 2017 Opbonprice
January 2014 - 4,854,749 - 0z 408p
January 2015 4,703,165 6,280,741 . 0.2 12 369p
January 2016 3,397,156 4,676,198 1.2 22 432p
January 2017 22,925,562 27482406 2.2 a2 260p
January 2018 12,705,774 - 3.3 - 2610

43,731,657 43,294094 2.2 25 285p

B. Performance Share Plan

The Performance Share plan (PSP) s the pnmary long-terrmincentive plan for approximately 120 of the most senior managers within
the Croup It was first approved by shareholders at the 2005 ACM and again at the 2015 AGM Under the plan, annualawards, based cna
percentage of salary, may be offered The extent to which an award vests s measured over a three-year period against financial targets
which for 201718 included Agjusted Earnings Per Share (EPS), Return on Capttal Employed (ROCE), and Total Shareholder Return (TSR)
The value of any dividends eamed on the vested shares dunng the three years will also be paid anvesting Further detaits are set sutn
the Remuneration Report on pages 50 to 62 Awards under this plan have been made in each year since 2005

During the year, 7.880,779 shares (last year 7.569,499) were awarded under the plan The weighted average far value of the shares awarded
was 268 4p (last year 328 0p) As at 31 March 2018 17,624,385 shares (last year 14,816,764) were outstanding under the plan

C. Deferred Share Bonus Plan*

The Deferred Share Bonus Plan {DSBP) was introduced in 2005/06 as part of the Annual Bonus Scheme for approximately 500 of the most
senior managers within the Croup As part of the plan, the managers are required to defer a proportion of any bonus paid into shargs which
will be held for three years There are no further performance conditions on these shares, other than continued employment within the
Groug and the value of any tividends earned on the vested shares during the deferred penod will also be paid on vesting

During the year, 1,892,215 shares (last year 1,563,439) have been awarded under the Planin relation to the annuai bonus The fair value of the
shares awarded was 343 3p (last year 355 80) As at 31 March 2018, 4,248,291 shares (last year 3,033,709) were outstanding under the plan

D. Restricted Share Plan*

The Restricted Share Plan (RSP) was established in 2000 as part of the reward strategy for retention and recruttment of senior managers
who are vitalto the success of the business The Plan operates for senior managers below executive director level Awards vest at the end
of the restricled pencd (typically between one and three years) subject to the participant stillbeing in employment of the Company onthe
relevant vesting date There are no further performance conditions on these shares, other than continued employrment within the Group
and the value of any dividends earned on the vested shares during the deferred perod will also be paid onvesting

During the year, 1,105,428 shares (Last year 321,229) have been awarded under the plan The weighted average fair value of the shares
awarded was 314 Op {last year 326 6p) As at 31 March 2018, 1,555,748 shares ((ast year 888,027) were outstanding under the plan

E. Republic of Ireland Save As You Earn Scherne

Sharesave, the Company’s Save As You Earn scherme was introduced in 2009 to all employees in the Republic of Ireland for a ten-year penad,
after approval by sharehoiders at the 2009 ACM The scheme is subject to Insh Revenue rules which urmit the maarmum monthly saving to
€500 per month The Company chose in 2009 to set a monthly savings cap of €320 per ronth to align the maxmum savings amount to

that allowed within the UK scheme The price at which options may be offered is 80% of the average mid-market price for three consecutive
dealing days preceding the offer date The options may normally be exercised duning the six-month penad after the completion of the
SAYE contract

During the year, 210 486 options {last year 324,768) were granted, at a far value of 41 5p {last year 66 3p) As at 31 March 2018, 644,325 options
(last year 521,837) were outstandingunder the scheme

F. Marks and Spencer Employee Benefit Trust

The Marks and Spencer Employee Benefit Trust (the Trust) holds 2,247.837 last year 2,173,101} shares with a book value of £9 8m (last year
£107m)and a market value of £6 1m {last year £73m) These shares were acquired by the Trust inthe market and are shown as areduction
inretained earnings in the consolidated statement of inancial position Awards are granted to employees at the discretion of Marks and
$Spencer plc and the Trust agrees to satisfy the awards in accordance with the wishes of Marks and Spencer plc under semior executive share
plans describad above Dividends are waived on all of these shares

G. ShareBuy
ShareBuy, the Company's share incentive plan enables the participants to buy shares directly from therr gross salary This scheme does not
attract an{FRS Z charge

= Nilcostoptions - Al DSBP awards and 297,114 of the RSP awards (Last year 321 226)were nilcasTopt ons For the purposes of calc ulating the number of shares awarded, the share price
used s the average of the migd-market price for the five consecutive dealing days preceding the grant date
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14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Computer software
Computer under
Goodunll Brands Software develapmen” Total
£m £m £rm £rm frn
At 2 April 2016
Cost or valuation 1362 1Mz3 1,2720 894 1,6099
Accumulated amortisation and impairments (535) {936) (644 3) {157 (8071}
Net book value az27 187 6277 737 8028
Year ended 1 April 2017
Cpeningnet book value 827 187 6277 737 8028
Additions - - 03 1008 1011
Transfers - - 958 (1076) (118) -
AssetImpairments - - 81 5 10 §
Asset write-offs - - 96) (29 (125) ®
Armortsation charge - 53) (162 1) - (1674) ¥
Other' (55) - - - (55) E
Exchange difference 12 - 02 {on 13
Closing net book value 784 134 5584 588 7080
At 1 Aprit 2017
Cost or valuation 1374 123 1,3683 825 1,7005
Accurnulated amortisation, impairments and write-offs (590) {©89) (8099) (237) (9915)
Net book value 784 134 558 4 588 7050
Year ended 31 March 2018
Opening net book value 78.4 13.4 558.4 58.8 7090
Additions - - 0.2 74.1 74.3
Transfers - - 94.2 (89.2) 5.0
Asset imparrments - - - - -
Assetwrite-offs - - (5.8) {(1.7) (7.5)
Amortisation charge - (5.3} (175.4) - (180.7)
Exchange difference {1.0) - 0.3 (0.2) 09)
Closing net book value 77.4 8.1 471.9 41.8 5992
At 31 March 2018
Cost orvaluation 136.4 12.3 1,400,0 65.6 1,714.3
Accumulated amortisabion and impairments and write-offs {59.0) {104.2}) (928.) (23.8) {1,115.1)
Net book value 774 8.1 4719 41.8 599.2
Goodwill retate to the following groups of cash generating units (CGU's)
per una Ingia UK Total gooduwrill
£m £m £m £&m
Netbook value at 1 April 2017 695 8.2 07 784
Exchange difference - (1.0) - {1.0)
Net book value at 31 March 2018 69.5 7.2 0.7 774

! Otner adustments relate ko the agjustment of the provision va ues for business combinations relazedto the acquisition of bima (Bradfrd} S artinthe orior pericd
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14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS CONTINUED

Impairment testing

Goadwillis not amaortised but s tested annuatlly forimpairment wath the recoverable amount being determined from value in use
calculations Goodwill for India and the UK has been allocated for impairment testing purpeses to groups of cash-generating units (CCUs)
which inctuda the combined retar and wholesale businesses for each tocation

The costs inrelation to the per una brand are £80 0m (net book value £8m) The per una brand1s a definite Ufe Intangible asset amortised
onastraght-line basis over a pencd of 15 years and s only assessed for imparrment where such indicators exist The per una goodwilland
brand are allocated for imparment testing purposestoa single CCU

The key estirmates that management uses In the value in use calculations are expected changes to future cash flows and discount rates

Management esbirnates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect the current market assessment of the time value of money and the
nisks specific to each CGU The pre-tax discount rates are denved from the Group's post-tact werghted average cost of captal adusted for
the specific nisks relating te each CGU

The cash flows used for mpairment testing are based on the Group's latest budget and forecast cash flows, covenng a three-year perniad,
which have regard to histonic perforrmance and knowledge of the current market, together with the Croup’s views on the future achievable
growth and the impact of committed cash flows The cash flows include cngoing capital expenditure required to maintain the store netwaork,
but exclude any growth capital initiatives not commuitted Cash flows beyond this three-year penod are extrapolated using along-term
growth rate based on the Croup's current view of achievable long-term growth The long-term growth rates donot exceed the long-term
growth rate for the UK, the long-term growth rate in the Croup's Clothing & Home business or the long-term growth rate nIndia

Management has performed sensitivity analysis on the key assumptions both with other variables held constant and with other variables
simultaneousty changed Management has concluded that there are no reasonably possible changes in any key assurmphions that would
cause the carrying amounts of goodwill or brands te exceed the value in use for India or the UK

However, the context in which these estimates have been made for the per una CCUI1s moreuncertain due to the significant change in the
UK retait market The foltowing key assumptions would have to change as follows to eliminate the headroom in the per una CGU

- Inthe short-term, assurming that cost reductions are materially in Uine with plan, the key assumption driving the value in use calculated s
the ability to deiver cash flow forecasts Cash flow forecasts in each of the years covered by the three-year plan would have to be 38%
below current expectations to ebrminate the headrcomin the per una CGU,

- Inthe maedium to long-term, the key assumption driving the value in use 1s the ability to generate profitable growth m the context of
significant change in the UK retail market Thisis reflected within the estimate of the long-term growth rate of -3 0% Long-term growth
rates, ncluding a commensurate decuine in cash flows over the period of the Group's three-year plan, would have to decline by 9 4% to
eliminate the headroomin these calculations,and,

- Anincrease of 9 2% in the pre-tax discount rate to 17 8% would eliminate the headroom in the per una CCU
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Assetsinthe
Fixtures, friettings courseof
Land and bulldings ang equiprment COnStruct on Total
£m £m £rm £m
At 2 April 2016
Cost 258816 74763 829 10,5408
Accumulated depreciation, impairments and write-offs (3867 (5,1135) (135) {5;5137)
Net book value 25949 2,3628 694 50271
Year ended 1 April 2017
Opening net book value 2,5949 23628 694 50271
Additions - 762 2090 2852
Transfers 174 1896 (196 2) 108
Disposals ©6) ({1} - {16)
Assetimpairments (116) (68 6) 9 B821)
Assetwrite-offs (E]0)] (8 (z5) {103)
Depreciation charge (163) (394 5) - {410 8)
Exchange difference 100 92 03 195
Closing net book value 2,5878 21719 781 4,8378
At 1 April 20017
Cost 30084 77503 S60 10,8547
Accumulated depreciation, mparments and write-offs (42086) (5,578 4) (179 (6,0169)
Net book value 25878 21719 781 41,8378
Year ended 31 March 2018 ) )
Opening net book value 2,587.8 2,19 78.1 4,837.8
Additions 0.2 56.5 204.6 261.3
Transfers 10.2 186.6 (209.8) {4.0)
Disposals {2.1) (15.4) ) - {172.5)
Assetimpairments (104.8) (103.3) - {208.1)
Assetwrite-offs {16.5) 15 (3.0} (18.0)
Depreciation charge (59.8) {399.8) - {459.6)
Exchange difference 29 (0.8) (0.1} 20
Closing net book value 2,407.9 1,897.2 78.8 4,393.9
At 31 March 2018
Cost 2,963.4 7,059.0 96.8 10,119.2
Accurmulated depreciation, impairments and write-offs {545.5) (5,161.8) (18.0) {5,725.3)
Net book value 24179 1,897.2 788 4,363.9

Assetwrite-offsin the year include assets with gross book value of £784 9r and frul net book value that are no longer in use and have
therefore beenretired

The net book value above includes land and bulldings of £41 6m (last year £42 Im)and equipment of Enil{last year £nil) where the Group
is alessee under a finance lease

Additions to property, plant and equipment duning the year amounting te £nit {last year £nil) were fimanced by finance leases

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Forimparrment testing purcoses, the Croup has determined that each store s a separate CCU, with the exception of cutlet stores, which are
considered together as one CGU Each CCU 1s tested for mpairment at the balance sheet date if any indicators of impairment have been
identfied One of the indicators of iImpairment 1s whether a store s 1dent fied wathin the Croups’ UK store estate programme (see note 5)

The recoverable value of each CCU Is determined to be the tugher of value n use and fair value less costs to sell

The value in use of each COUis calculated based on the Group's latest budget and forecast cash flows, covering a three-year perod, which
have regard to historic performance and knowledge of the current rmarket, together with the Group's views on the future achievable growth
and the impact of committed inibiatives The cash flows include ongaing capitat expenditure reguired to maintain the store network, but
exclude any growth capital inibiatives not committed Cash flows beyond this three-year period are extrapotated using along-term growth
rate for UK stores based onhistonic growth rates and management future expectations, with reference to forecast CDP growth for other
territories These growth rates do not exceed the long-term growth rate for the Group's retail businesses in these territories if the CCU
relates to a store which the Group has been identified as part of the UK store estate programme, the value in use calculated has been
madified by estimation of the futura cash flows up to the point where it s estimated that trade will cease and then estimation of the

timing and amount of costs associated with closure detalled futly nnote 5

STRATECIC REPORT
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT CONTINUED

Impairment of property, plant and equipment continued

The key assumptions in the value in use calculations are the growth rates of sales and gross profit margins, changes inthe operating cost
base long-term growth rates and the nsk-adjusted pre-tax discount rate The pre-tax discount rates are denved from the Croup's weighted
average cost of capital, taking into account the cost of capitaland borrowings, to which specific market-related premium adjustments are
made for each territory The pre-tax discount rates range from 8% to 15% (last year 7% to 21%) If the CCU relates to a store which the Group
has dentified as part of the UK store estate programme, the agditional key assumptions in the value in use calculations are costs associated
with closure, the proceeds and timing of exit

Where appropriate, fair value less cost to sellis determined with regard to the expected rent and yield for each property and reflect the
specific characteristics relevant to each property and the location inwhich it is based The fair values have been determined with the
assistance of iIndependent, professional valuers

During the year, the Group has recognised animpairment charge of £196 2mand no impatrrnent reversal as a result of the announced UK
store estate programme The impairment charge retates to the acceleration in the year of the prograrmmme announced in November 2016
(see note 5) These impairments have been recognised within adjusting items (see note 5)

The Group has performed sensitrvity analysis on the imparment tests associated with the UK store estate programme A deiay of 12 months
Inthe probable date of each store exit would result ina decrease in the iImpairrent charge of £43 2m A 2% reductionin the year 1 sales
growth would result in an increase N the iImpairment charge of £5.5m Neither a 1% increase in the discount rate, a 20 basis point reduction

In gross margin during the penod of trading nor a 2% increase in the costs associated with exiting a store would result in a significant increase
to theimparment charge

During the year the Group has recognised an impairment charge of £119m and no mpairment reversals as aresult of store impairment
testing unrelated to the UK store estate programme The gross impairment charge relates to steres in the UK These impairments have been
recognised withun agjusting items {see nate 5)

The Croup has performed a sensitivity analysis on the key assumptions in the impairment model for those UK stores not expected to
be included inthe UK store estate programme described above A 1% reductioninthe sales growth wouldresult inanincreaseinthe
imparment charge of £1 0m and a 20 basis paint reduction in gross margit would increase the wnpairment charge by £F04m A 100 basis
pont iIncrease In the pre-tax discount rate would increase theimpairment charge by £5 4m

16 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
2018 2017
£m £m
Non-current
Unlisted investrments 2.9 30
Current
Short-term investments' 12.7 145

1 inciudes £5 8m tlast year £5 3mj of Maney market depost held oy Marks and Spencer pic m an ezcrow account as part of the Group’s self-furaed captive insurance scheme

Non-current unlisted investments are carried as avallable-for-sale assets Other financial assets are measured at fair value with changes
ih their value taken to the income statement,

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2018 2017
£m fm
Non-current )
Other receivables 23 151
Prepayments and accrued income 206.7 2190
209.0 2341
Current .
Trade recewvables - o o - nasz ma
Less provision for impairment of receivables (0.4) a7
Trade recewvables-net 1139 1093
Other recevables 309 285
Prepayments and accrued income 163.6 1808
3084 3186

Trade and other receivables that were past due but not impaired amounted to £21 3m (last year £20 8m)and are mainly sterling
denominated The directors consider that the carrying amaunt of trade and other recervables approximates ther fair value Includedin
prepayments and accrued income 1s £28 2m {last year £31 5m) of accrued supplier ncomerelating to rebates which have been earned
but not yet Invoiced Supplier income that has beeninvoiced but not yet settled against future trade creditor balances is included within
trade creditors where there s a nght to offset The remaining amaount s immateriat

18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents are £207 7m (Last year £468 6m) The carrying amount of these assets approximates their far value

The effective Interest rate on short-term bank deposits 1s 0 40% (last year 0 21%) These deposits have an average maturnity of 23 days
(last year eight days)
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19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2018 2017
£m £m
Current
Trade and other payables 8729 9675
Social secunty and other taxes 571 550
Accruals and deferredincome 475.9 5313
1,405.9 1,563 8
Non-current
Other payables ,accruals and deferred ncome 3338 3285
20 BORROWINGS AND OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
2018 207
£m £m
Current
Bank loans and overdrafts'! 88.4 703
Finance lease liabilities 0.3 04
6 250% US$500m medium-termnotes 20177 - 3281
Interest accrued onmedium-term notes 36.9 464
Revaluation of medium-term notes - 728
125.6 5180
Non-current
6125% £400m medium-term notes 20192% 400.1 4002
£125% £300m mediurm-term notes 20212 298.2 2978
3 00% £300m medium-term notes 2023% 2969 2963
4 75% FA00m mediurm-term notes 2025 3975 3671
7125% US$300m medium-termnotes 203734 192.0 1919
Revaluation of medium-termnotes . 38.2 801
Finance lease labilibies 417 483
1,670.6 177
Total 1,796.2 22297
1 Bonkloan: and overaraltsinglnde g rs omgast year LY Omjloa fromthed ledgeLad Park LimiLed | oant venture (soer e 28)
2 Thesenetes are is-ued under Marks andSpencern pl's Lbn coropeat redim- ofm note progran ione andall pay i erest annua by
3 Anlerest on those botds 1s payatle seimi-annuatly
4 LISES00M 3 USEINCm mechutin-tenm ol os exXposure swdappod Lo stening (Nxed-t -Nxed Cross currongyintetest Lat o swapra)
b dhe Gt up otcas onally enters ntoinlenes! swaps o mahageinterest Jale exposur e Atyear end, the £425mi {losl yoar LAZ20 ) was swapped [rom Oxed o floal rag rate
Finance leases

The minimum lease payments under finance leases fall due as shown in the table on the following page The weighted average lease term
for equipment 1s two years {last year three years)and 93 years (last year 95 years) for property Interest rates are fixed at the contract rate

Allleases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered inte for contingent payments The Group's obligations

under finance leases are securad by the lessors’ charges over the leased assets

21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Treasury policy
The Group operates a centralised treasury funchion to manage the Group's funding requirements and financial risks in Line with the Board
approved treasury policies and procedures, and their delegated authonties

The Group's financiabinstruments, other than dervatives, comprise borrowings, cash and iquid resources and varnous items, such as trade
receivables and trade payables that anse directly fromits operations The mamn purpose of these financialinstruments 1s to finance the
Croup's operations

The Group treasury function also enters into dervative transactions, principally interest rate swaps, cross currency swaps and forward
currency contracts The purpose of these transactions 1s to manage the interest rate and foreign currency nisks ansing from the Croup’s
vperations and financing

It remains the Croup's policy not te hold orissue financalinstruments for trading purposes, except where financial constraints
necessitate the need to Liquidate any outstanding investments The treasury function s managed as a cost centre and does not
engage in speculative trading
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Financial risk management

The princpal financial nisks faced by the Croup are lquidity and funding, interest rate, foreign currency and counterparty nsks The policies
and strategies for managing these risks are surnmarised on the following pages

{a) Liquidity and funding risk

The risk that the Group could be unable to settle or meet its obligations at a reasonable price as they fall due

- The Group's funding strategy ensures a mix of funding scurces offering sufficient headroom, maturity and flexibility and cost
effectiveness to match the requirements of the Group

- Marks & Spencer plc 1s financed by a combination of retained profits, bank borrowings, medium-term notes and a committed syndicated
bank faclity

- Operating subsidianes are financed by a combination of retained profits, bank borrowings and intercompany loans

Al year end, the Group had a committed syndicated bank revolving credit facility of £1 1bn set to mature on 15 Apnl 2023, following the
Group's second and finatrequest to extend the facility by one further year The facity contans only one financial covenant, being the ratio
of earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation and rents payable, to interest plus rents payable The covenant s measured
semi-annuatly The Group also has a number of uncommutted faciities avalable to it At year end, these amounted to E100m (last year
£150m), all of which are due to be reviewed within a year At the balance sheet date a sterling equivatent of £nil (Last year £rit) was drawn
under the cormmitted facilifies and £45m (last year £nil) was drawn under the uncommitted facilities

Inaddition to the existing borrowings, the Group has a Furo Medium Term Note programme of £3bn, of which £1 4bn {last year £1 4bn)
wasinissuance as at the balance sheet date

The contractual maturity of the Group’s non-denvative financial labilities (excluding trade and other payables (see note 19) and dervatives
15 as follows

Partnership

latnl* ytathe Total
Marks &  Barrowings Tobal
Bankloans Spencer UK and other Derwative
and  Syndicated Mecum- Finance lease pensicn financial Dervative Derivative assetsand
overdrafts bankfaclty termnotes bk uties (hote 12y vabiitres assets' Lab lities] tabilbes
£m £rm (3] £m £m £m £rm Em £m
Timing of cash flows )
Within one year (703 - (514 2) 25) (719) (6589) 5436 {3734) 1702
Between one and two years - - (880} 26) 719 (1625} 267 (145) 122
Between two and five years - - @isn i (73 ‘(215 &) (11380} 639 (412} 227
More than five years - - (1,3090) (1760) (719)  (1,5569) 5195 (M32) 106 3
(703) - (2,82063) (188 4) (4313 (35163 11537 (842 3) n4g
Effect of discounting - - 7156 1397 348 8901
At 1 April 2017 (703) - (21107) 87 (3965) (2,6262)
Timing of cash flows )
whthi one year {88.4} - {86.1) {2.3} {71.9) (2487) 300 {88.2) {58.2)
Between one and two years - - (486.1) {2.3) {71.9) (560.3) 219 {18.1) 38
Between two and five years - - (466.3) {69) (2155) (6887) 2700 (248.5) 25
Mare than five years - - [,207.2) [168.9) - {1,376} 2231 (198.5) 246
(88.4) - (2,245.7) {180.4) (359.3) {2,873.8) 545.0 (553.3) (8.3)
Effect of discounting - - 585.9 132.4 23.8 7421
At 31 March 2018 {88.4) - {1,659.8) (48.0) {335.5) (2,131.7)

1 Derwative cashflows are disclosed based on actuat settleent All aervatives are ~ettled net, except for currency swaps

The present value of finance lease liabilities s as follows

2018 2014

£m m
Within one year ) (0.3) {C4)
Later than one year and not later than five years {1.1) {(16)
Later than five years (46.6) @67

Total (48.0) (“87)
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Financial risk management continued

(b) Counterparty risk

Counterparty nsk exists where the Group can suffer financialloss through the default or non-performance of the financal institutions with
whomit transacts

Exposures are managed in accordance with the Croup treasury policy which lirmits the value that can be placed with each approved
counterparty to minimise the nsk of loss The rminimum long-term rating for all counterparties 1s long-term Standard & Poor's (A-)/Moody's
((A3)/(BBB+/Baal for commutted lending banks)) In the event of a rating by one agency being different tc the other, reference willbe made
to Fitch to determine the casting vote of the rating group Inthe absence of a Fitch rating the lower agency rating will prevail Limits are
reviewed regularly by senior management The credit nsk of these financial instruments s estimated as the fair value of the assets resulting
from the contracts

The table below analyses the Group's short-term investments and dervative assets by credit exposure excluding bank balances, store cash
and cashin transit

ABAs AAA AA AA- As A A BB8. Total

£m £m £n £m £m £m £m fm £m

Short-term investments' - - - 174 1493 1850 - - 3517
Derrvative assets? - - - 628 841 190 - 410 2069
At 1 Apnil 2017 - - - 802 2334 2040 - 410 b58 6
AAA: AAA AA AA- A+ A A- BBB. Total

£m £Em £m &m Em £m £m £m £m

Short-term investrments' - - 26 9.8 336 79 2.7 1.5 58.1
Derivative assets? - - - - - 8.0 - 29 10.9
AL 31 March 2018 - - 26 98 336 15.9 27 44 69.0

1 Incluaes casnon deponit ano money market funds held by Marks & Spencer Scatuish Lirruted Partnerstup, Marks & Spencer plc and Mark: & Spercer Cenerali~surance Excludes cashin

handand intranzit £149 6m {last year £116 9m}
2 Sta~dard &Poor s equivalent rating shawn as reference to the ma,onty credit rating of the counterparty from ether Standard & Pcor's, Moody's or Fitch where applicable

The Group has a very {ow retail credit nsk due to transactions principally being of high volume, low value and short maturnity

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date was as follows trade recevables £114m {last year £111m), otherreceivables
£33m(last year £44m) cash and cash equivalents £208m {last year £469m)and dernvatives £34m (last year £220m)

(c) Foreign currency risk

Transactional foreign currency exposure arises prnimarily from the import of goods sourced frorm overseas suppliers and also from the
export of goods from the UK to overseas subsidianes The rmost significant exposure 1s to the US dollar, incurred in the sourcing of Clothing &
Home products from Asia

Croup Treasury hedges these exposures princpatiy using forward foreign exchange contracts progressively based on dynamic forecasts
from the business Hedging begins around 15 months ahead of the start of the season, with between 80% and 100% of the nsk hedged nine
months before the start of the season

Other expesures ansing from the export of goods to ovarseas subsidianes are also hedged progressively over the course of the year
before they are incurred As at the balance sheet date, the gross notional value in stering terms of forward foreign exchange sell or buy
centracts amounted to £1,.963m (last year £ 2023m) with a weighted average matunty date of six menths (last year six months}

Gains and losses in equity on forward foreign exchange contracts designatedin cash flow hedge relationships as at 31 March 2018 witlbe
released to the (ncome statement at various dates over the following 17 months (last year 17 months) from the balance sheet date

The Croup previcusly used a combination of foreign currency debt and foreign exchange contracts to hedge its net balance sheet
transtation exposure by currency ansing frem investment in overseas operations The treasury policy was changed during the current
finanoal year and the Croup no longer hedges these Last year, €26rm and HK$190m of foreign exchange contracts were in place hedging
averseasnet assets

The Croup also holds a number of cross currency swaps to designate its fixed rate US dellar debt te fixed rate sterling debt These are
repcrted as cash flow hedges

The Croup also hedges foreign currency intercompany loans where these exist Forward foreign exchange contracts inrelation to the
hedging of the Group's foreign currency intercompany loans are designated as held for trading with farr value moverments being recogrised
in theincome staternent The corresponding fair value movement of the Intercompany loan balanceresultedina £3 3m gain (last year

£2 3m gain) in the income statement As at the balance sheet date, the gross notional value of intercompany loan hedges was £217m

(last year £367my)
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Financial risk management continued

{c) Foreign currency risk continued

After taking into account the hedging derivatives entered into by the Croup, the currency and interest rate exposure of the Group's financiat
Liabilities excluding short-term pavables and the lability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme, s set out below

2018 2017

Fixed rate Floating rate Total Fixed raze Floating rate Tatal
£m £m £m £m Em £m

Currency .
Sterling 1,276.2 516 1,787.8 1,7278 4823 22201
Euro 6.5 - 6.5 66 o7 73
Other 0.1 1.8 1.9 01 22 23
1,282.8 513.4 1,796.2 1,7345 4957 22297

The floating rate sterling and euro borrowings are Uinked to Interest rates related to LIBOR These rates are for periods between one and
sxrnonths

As at the balance sheet date and excluding finance leases, the fixed rate sterling borrowings are at an average rate of 4 7% (last year 5 0%}
and the weighted average time for which the rate is fixed is six years (last year six years)

(d) interest rate risk
The Groupis exposed to nterest rate risk in relation to sterling, US doltar and euro variable rate financial assets and babilities

The Group's policy 1s to use dervative contracts where necessary to maintain a mix of fixed and floating rate borrowings to manage this nisk
The structure and maturity of these derivatives correspond to the underlying borrowings and are accounted for as far value or cash flow
hedges as appropriate

Al the balance sheet date, fixed rate borrowings amounted to £1,282 8m (last year £1,734 5m) representing the public bond 1ssues and
finance leases, amounting to 71% (last year 78%) of the Group's gross borrowings

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as foliows

2018 207
% %
Committed and uncommitted borrowings 1.0 03
Medium-termnotes ) 4.7 50
Finance leases 4.3 43
Derivative financial instruments
2018 2017
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabibties
£m £m £m £m
Current
Cross-currency swaps - cash flowhedges - - 726 -
Forward foreign exchange contracts -cash flow hedges 51 {73.6)} 891 Qo0
- held for trading 20 (0.2) o7 15
- net investment hedges - - o7 -
71 {73.8) 1631 (10.5)
Non-current
Cross-currency swaps -cash flow hedges - {26.7) 140 -
Forward foreign exchange contracts - cash flowhedges 0.4 (4.0) 13 08)
Interest rate swaps - fair value hedges 26.7 - A5 -
27.1 (30.7} 568 (08)

The Group holds anurmber of interest rate swaps to re-designate its sterling fixed debt to floating debt These are reported as far value
hedges The ineffective pornon recognised in the profit or loss that anses from fair value hedges amounts to a £0 4rm gain (last year £0 3m)
as the gain on the hedged iterns was £15 0m (last year £0 3m) and the movement on the hedginginstrurments was £14 6m loss (tast year £nil)

The Group halds a number of cross currency interest rate swaps to re-designate its USD to GBP fixed debt These are reportedas

cash flow hedges The ineffective porbion recogrised in the prefit andloss that anises from the cash flow hedges amountstoa £2 3mloss
(Last year £nil) as the gain on the hedged items was £24 9m (last year £nil} and the movernent on the hedging instruments was £272mloss
{last year £nil}
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Sensitivity analysis

The table below illustrates the estmated iImpact on the income statement and equity as a result of market movements in foreign exchange
andinterest rates inrelation to the Group’s financial instruments The directors consider that a 2%+/-{last year 2%) movement ininterest and
a 20% +/- (last year 20%) weakening in sterling against the relevant currency reprasents a reasonable possible change However this analysis
1s for lllustrative purposes only

The table excludes financial instruments that expose the Croup tointerest rate and foreign exchange nsk where such ariskis fully hedged
with another financialinstrument Alse excluded are trade receivables and payables as these are aither sterling denominated or the foraign
exchangeriskis hedged

Iinterest rates: the impact in the income statement due to changes ininterest rates reflects the effect on the Group's floating rate debt as at
the balance sheet date The impact in equity reflects the fair value movement in relation to the Group's transactional foreign exchange cash
flow hedges and the net investrnent hedges at the balance sheet date The impactin equity reflects the fair value movernentinrelation tc
the Group's cross-currency swaps

Foreign exchange: the impact from foreign exchange movements reflects the change in the fair value of the Group's transacticnal foreign
exchange cash flow hedges and the net nvestrent hedges at the balance sheet date The equity iImpact shown for foreign exchange
sensitivity relates to derivative and non-derivative financial nstruments hedging net investments This value 1s expected to be fully offset
by the re-translation of the hedged foreign currency net assets leaving a net equity impact of zero

2% decreasein 2% Increase In 20% weakening  20% strengthening

interestrates interest rates In sterling nsterling
£m £m £m £m
At 1 April 2017
Impact on ncome staternent. gainfloss) 78 @n - -
Impact on other comprehensive incorme (loss)/gain 22) 03 246 4 (164 3)
At 31 March 2018
Impact on ncome statement gain/{loss) 8.9 (9.1) - -
Impact on other comprehensive income (loss)/gan {15.6) 10,6 215.7 (222.4)

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

The following tables set out the financial assets and financial labilities which are subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting
arrangements and similar agreements Amounts which are set off against financial assets and liabilities in the Group's balance sheet are set
out below For trade and other recervables and trade and other payables, amounts not offset in the batance sheet but which could be offset
under certain arcumnstances are also set out

Net financlal  Related amounts

Crossfinancial  assets/(labilites) not zet off in
Gross finanoial {babilities)/ par staterment of the staterment of
assetsfliabil nies) assets set off financial postion financia position ~et
£ £m im £m £m
At 1 April 2017
Trade and other recevables 251 (228) 23 - 23
Dervative financial assets 2199 - 2199 (M3 2086
Cash and cash eguivalents 424 (416) 08 - o8
2874 (64 4) 2730 (13 2117
Trade and other payables (2792) 228 (256 4) - (256 4)
Dervative financial liabilties (113) - M3 113 -
Bank loans and overdrafts (103 9) 416 ©623) - 6273)
(394 4) 644 (3300) 13 (3187)
Net financial  Related amounts
Gross financial  assets/{labilties) not set off in
Gross financial (liabilities)/  per statement of  the statement of
assets/{Uabilities) assets set off  financial position  Ainancial position Net
£m £m Em £m Em
At 31 March 2018
Trade and other receivables 31.3 (29.9) 1.4 - 1.4
Derivative financial assets 34,2 - 342 (34.2) -
Cashand cash equivalents 46.3 {46.0) 0.3 - 0.3
1.8 {75.9) 359 (34.2) 1.7
Trade and other payables {276.4) 299 (246.5) - (246.5)
Dervative financral labibities (104.5) - (104.5) 34.2 (70.3)
Bank loans and overdrafts {82.5) 46.0 (36.5) - (36.5)

{463.4) 75.9 (387.5) 34.2 (353.3)
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Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities continued

The gross financial assets and babilities set outin the batance sheet primanly relate to cash pocling arrangernents with banks Amounts
which do not meet the critena for offsetting on the balance sheet but could be settled netin certain crcumstances principally relate to
denvative transactions under ISDA (International Swaps and Dervatives Association) agreements where each party has the option tc settle
amounts onanet Basisin the event of default of the other party

Fair Value Hierarchy
The Croup uses the following herarchy for deterrmining and disclosing the fair value of financialinstruments by valuation technique

- Level 1 quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities,

- Level 2 not traded in an active rmarket but the farr values are based on quoted market prices or alternative pricing scurces with reascnable
levels of price transparency The Croup's level 2 financial instruments includes interest rate and foreigr exchange derivatives Farr value s
calculated using discounted cash flow methodology, future cash flows are estimated based on forward exchange rates and interest rates
{from cbservable market curves)and contract rates, discounted at arate that reflects the credit nsk of the various counterparbes for
those with along matunty, and

- Level 3 technigues which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded farr value that are not based on observable market
data Nolevel 3 instruments were In place at the year end

At the end of the reporting peniod, the Croup held the following financialinstruments at fair value

20%8 2017
Levell Level 2 Level 3 Totak Level 1 Level 2 Leval3 Total
£m £Em £m £m £m £m Em £m
Assets measured at fair value
Finanaizlassets at farr value
through profit orloss
-trading dervatives - 20 - 2.0 - 07 - a7
Dervatives used for hedging - 32.2 - 322 - 2192 - 2192
Short- term investments - 13.7 - 13.7 - 145 - 145
Liabilities measured at fair value
Finanaal babilities at farr value
through profit or loss
—trading dervatives - (0.2) - {0.2) - (15) - (1s)
Derwatives used for hedging - (104.3) - {104.3) - 98) - ©@8)

The Marks & Spencer UK DB Pension Schemes holds a number of financialinstruments which make up the pensicn asset of £9,989 3m
(lastyear £10,135 Im) Level 1 and Level 2 financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income amounted to
£7152 4m {last year £8,620 2m) Addrtionally, the scheme assets include £2,8369m {last year £1,444 9m} of Level 3 financial assets
Seenote 11 forinformation on the Croup's retirernent benefits

There were no transfers between the levels of the fair value hierarchy Inaddition to the above, the Group has £99m (last year £3 0m)in
unbisted equity securities measured at fair value {see note 16)

The following table represents the changes in Level 3 instruments held by the Pension Schemes

2018 o7

£m m

Opening balance 1,444.9 1,219)
Farr value (loss)/gain recognised in other comprehensive income (74.9) 006
Additional investment/{derecognition) 1,466.9 1252
Closing balance 2,836.9 14449

Fair value of financial instruments

With the exception of the Croup’s hixed rate bond debt and the Partnership Lability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme, there were
no material differences between the carrying value of non-derivative financial assets and financial latilities and therr fair values as at the
balance sheet date

The carrying value of the Croup's fixed rate bond debt {level 1 equivalent) was £1,6599m {last year £2,1107m), the far value of this debt was
£1,761 Om {last year £2,2367m)
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Capital policy
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concernin order to provide optimal returns
for sharehclders and to maintain an efficient capital structure toreduce the cost of capital

In doing so the Group's strategy 1s to mantan a capital structure commensurate with an investment grade credit rating and to retan
appropriate levels of lguidity headroom to ensure financial stability and flexibility To achieve this strategy the Group regularty monitors
key credit metrics such as the geaning ratio, cash flow to net debt and fixed charge cover to maintain this position Inaddition, the Group
ensures a combination of appropnate committed short-term iguidity headroom with a diverse and balanced long-term debt matunty
profile As at the balance sheet date the Croup's average debt matunty profile was six years (last year seven years) Dunngthe year the
Groupmaintained an investment grade credit rating of Baa3 (stable) with Moody's and BBB- (stable) with Standard & Poor's

In order to mamntain or realign the capital structure, the Croup may adjust the number of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, 1ssue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt

22 PROVISIONS

Property Restructuring Other 2018 w7
£m £m Em £m £m
At 1 April 2017 1287 1016 304 260.7 6860
Providedin the year 135.2 237 28.1 187.0 2460
Released in the year (12.6) (12.9) {3.3) (28.8) (263)
Utiised during the year (23.5) (85.9) (23.6) (123.0) (302)
Exchange differences 0.3 1.9 - 2.2 34
Discount rate unwind 5.2 - - 5.2 02
Reclassification fromtrade and other payables - - (1.4) {(1.4) 16
At 31 March 2018 2333 284 30.2 2919 2607
Analysedas
Current 98.8 1472
Non-current 193.1 1135

Property provisions relate to onerous lease contracts and dilapidations primanily arising as a result of the closure of stores inthe UK,
aspart of the UK Store Estate strategic programme, together with the centralisation of the Lendon Head Office funcbions into one building
These prowvisions are expected to be utilised over the period to the end of each specific lease

Restructuning provisions relate o the estimated costs associated with the Internaticnat Exit strategy and the strategic programme to
transition to a single tier UK distribution network These provisions are expected to be utilised within the next year

Other provisions include amounts inrespect of potential lakilities for employee-related matters The utiisation during the year primarily
related to the payment of transition amounts in respect of pay and premia

Pilease see note 5 for further information on these provisions

23 DEFERRED TAX

Deferrad tax 1s provided under the balance sheet labiuty method using the tax rate at which the balances are expected to unwind of 19%
and 17% as applicable {last year 19% and 17%) for UK differences and local tax rates for overseas differences Details of the changes to the UK
corporation tax rate and the mpact on the Croup are described in Note 7

The mavements in deferred taxassets and labilities (after the offsetting of balances within the same Junsdiction as permitted by IAS 12 -
‘Income Taxes?) durnng the year are shown below

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities):

Landand Capital Other short-
buldings  atloewances in Panzior term
EMmporary excess of tempgrary tempeorary Total UK Owverseas
differences deprecstion differences dffererces deferredtax deferred tax Total
£m £m £m £m £rm fm £m
At 2 April 2016 (46 B) {801) (205 5) (19 (334 3) (33) (3376)
Credited/(charged) to ncome statement 35 177 145 14 371 ©on 364
Credited/(charged) to equity/
other camprehensive Income - - 216 48 264 &2 212
Other Balance Sheet movement — - - (16) {16) 02 (18)
At 1 April 2017 {43 3) 624) (1694) 27 (272 4) ©4) (281 8)
At 2 April 2017 (43.3) (62.4) (169.49) 2.7 (272.4) (9.4} (281.8)
Credited/(charged) to income statement 3.0 33 1.2 1.3 43.6 17 453
Credited/(charged) to equity/
other comprehensive ncome - - (39.8) 19.9 (19.9) 05 (19.4)
Other Balance Sheet movernent 1.4 - - - 14 (1.2} 0.2

At 31 March 2018 (33.9) {20.3)  (208.0) 239 {247.3) (84)  (255.7)
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Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) continued
Other short-term term temporary differences relate mainly to employee share options and financialinstruments

The deferred tax lability on land and buitdings temporary differences 1s reduced by the benefit of capital losses with a gross value of
£283 2m (last year £254 5m)and a tax value of £63 8m {last year £48 4rm) Due to uncertainty over therr future use, nobenefit has been
recognised inrespect of trading losses carried forward in overseas jurisdictions with a gross value of £80 1m {last year £1479m)and a tax
value of £16 9m (last year £34 2m)

No deferred taxis recognised nrespect of undistributed earnings of overseas subsidianes and joint ventures with a gross value of £48 4m
(last year £38 2rmj unless a matenal lability 1s expected to arise on distribution of these earnings under applcable tax legistation Thereisa
potential tax Lability in respect of undistnibuted earnings of £11 5m {last year £9 0rn) however this has not been recogrised on the basis the
distnbution can be controlled by the Croup

24 ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL

2018 mz?
Shares Em Shares £
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares of 25p each
At start of year 1,624,727846 X 406.2 1622964807 405 8
Shares issued on exercise of share cptions 29,500 - 1,763,039 04
At end of year 1,624,757,346 4062 1624727846 406 2

Issue of new shares
29,500 (Last year 1,763,039) ordinary shares having a nominal value of £00m (last year £04m) were allotted dunng the year under the terms
of the Company’s schemes which are described innote 13 The aggregate considerationreceived was £Q 1m (last year £5 5my

25 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

A. Capital commitments

2008 2017

Em £m

Commitments inrespect of properties in the course of construction 121.8 1564
Software capital commitments 17.2 1o
139.0 1674

B. Other material contracts

Inthe event of termination of our trading arrangernents with certain warehouse operaters, the Group has a numiber of options and
commitments to purchase some property, plant and equipment, at values ranging from hustorical net book value to market vatue,
which are currently owned and operated by the warehcuse operators on the Group's behalf

Seenaote 12 for detals on the partnership arrangement with the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme

C. Commitments under operating leases
The Croup leases various stores, offices, warehouses and equipment under non-cancellable operating lease agreements The leases have
varying terms, escatation clauses and renewal rights

2008 2017
£m £m

Total future minimum rentals payable under non-cancetlable operating leases are as follows
Within one year 2885 3420
- Later than one year and not later than five years 1,026.1 1,159
- Later than five years and not tater than ten years 896.8 a64 1
- Later than ter years and not later than 15 years 503.8 4219
- Later than 15 years and not later than 20 years 3046 2853
—Later than 20 years and not later than 25 years i i 1494 1668
- Later than 25 years 1,026.8 10695
Total 4,196.0 43655

The total future subtease payments to bereceived are £274m (last year £346m)

Of the total commitments under operating leases disclosed above, £172 5m (2017 £1291my)s atready provided for onthe balance sheet as
anerous lease provisions with regards to stores identified as part of the UK store estate programme Inretabion to the International strategic
programme, in 2017, £70m of total comrmitments under operating leases are already provided for withregards to expected lease exit costs
No commitrnents remainin the current year relating to the International strategic prograrmme
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26 ANALYSIS OF CASH FLOWS GIVEN IN THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Cash flows from operating activities

2018 2017
£m £m
Profit on ardinary activities after taxation 291 157
Income tax expense 377 607
Finance costs 1n3.8 1130
Finance ncome (24.1) (36 2)
Operating profit 156.5 2532
{Increase)/decrease innventories (38.2) 539
Decreasef(increase) In receivables 28.8 {99
Decrease inpayables (87.4) {515) -
Adjusting iterns net cash outflows {153.1) (368) §
Non-cash share-based payment charges 189 106 &
Depreciation, amortisation and write-offs 580.6 5895 %
Defined benefit pension funding (41.4) (366) E
Adjustingitems non-cash (34.7) 44 n
Adjusting operating profit tems 514.1 4374
Cash generated from operations 9441 1,165 7

Adjustingitems net cash cutflows relate to the utiisation of the provisions for international store closures, strategic programme costs
associated with both the UK store estate, UK organisation, UK logistics, IT recrganisation and changes to pay and pensions Adjusting items
non-cash relate to the reduchon in M&S Bank ncome for the impact of the financial product mis-selling provision

27 ANALYSIS OF NET DEBT
A. Reconciliation of movement in net debt

Exchange and
At 2 April other non-cash At 31 March
2017 Caszh flow mavernents 2018
£m £Em £m £m
Net cash
Bank loans, overdrafts and syndicated bank facility {see note 20) (703) s - (88.4)
Less armounts treated as financing (see below) 79 438 - 51.7
(62 4) 257 - (36.7)
Cash and cash equivalents (see note 18} 4686 (2574) (35 207.7
Net cash per statement of cash flows 406 2 (2317 (35) 171.0
Current financial assets (see note 16) 145 {08) - 13.7
Debt financing
Bank loans, and overdrafts treated as finanang (see above) {79) (438) - {51.7)
Medium-terrm notes (see note 20) (1,911 4) 3282 (15 (1,584.7)
Finance lease liabilibies (see note 20) 487) 26 19 {48.0)
Partnership liability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme (see note 12) (3874} 596 - (327.8)
Debt financing (2,355 4) 3466 (34 (2,012.2)
Net debt {19347) 141 69) (1,827.5)
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27 ANALYSIS OF NET DEBT CONTINUED

B. Reconciliation of net debt to statement of financial position

2008 2017
£m £m
Statement of financial position and related notes
Cash and cash eguivalents {(see note 18} 207.7 4686
Current financial assets (see note 16) 13.7 145
Bank loans and overdrafts (see note 20} (88.4} (703}
Mediurn-term notes - net of hedging denvatives (1,621.7) (1,9578)
Finance lease labilities {see note 20) ) (48.0) (48.7)
Partnership liability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme (see note 12 and 21) {335.,5) (396 5)
‘ (1,872.2) (1990 2
Interest payable Included within related borrowing and the partnership babilty to the Marks & Spencer UK
Pansion Scherne 44.7 555
Total net debt (1,822.5) (10,9347

28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACYIONS

A. Subsidiaries

Transactions between the Company and its subsidianies, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consoldation and are not
disclesed inthis note Transactions between the Company and its subsidianes are disclosed in the Company's separate financial staternents

B. Hedge End joint venture

Aloan of £5 0mwas received from the joint venture on 9 October 2002 Itis repayable on five business days' notice and was renewed on

31 December 2017 Interest was charged on the loan at 20% until 31 December 2009 and 0 5% thereafter
C. Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme

Detalls of other transactions and balances held with the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme are set out innotes 11 and 12

D. Key management compensation

The Croup has deterrmined that the key management personnel constitute the Board and the members of the Operating Committee
For the prior year, the members of the Board were constdered to be key management personnel for the whole year, and members of the

Operating Committee with effect from November 2016 when the terms of reference of the Operating Committee were ratified

2018

m?

£m £m
Salaries and short-term benefits 7.9 81
Share-based payments 0.4 -
Total 83 81
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at Anal
31 March 2018 L ApriL20t 7
Noles £m rm
Assets
Non-current assets
Investments In subsidiary ungdertakings C6 9,260.3 9,249 3
Total assets 9,260.3 ©,2493
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Amounts owed to subsidhary undertakings 2,550.6 25522
Total liabilities 2,550.6 25522
Net assets 6,709.7 65,6971
Equity 'g
Ordinary share capital 406.2 4062 i
Share prermium account 416.4 4164 t_;
Capntal redemption reserve 2,210.5 2,2105 E
Merger reserve 1,397.3 1,3973 E
Retained earnings 2,279.3 22667
Total equity 6,709.7 65,6971

The Company's profit for the year was £305 Om (last year £379 0mj

The financial staterments were approved by the Board and authorised for issue on 22 May 2018 The financial statements also comprise the
notes onpages 116to 118

Steve Rowe Chief Executive Officer

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES {N SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Ordinary Share premiurr Capital redemprior Merger Retaned
share capita account reserve reserve earnngs Total
£Em £m £m £m £m £m

At 3 April 2016 4058 4113 22105 1,3973 22517 656766
Profit for the year - - - - 3790 3790
Dividends - - - - (3775) (3775)
Capital contribution for share-based
payments - - - - 135 135
Sharesissued on exarcise of employee share
opticns 04 51 - - - 55
At 1 April 2017 406.2 416.4 2,2105 1,397.3 2,266.7 6,697
At 2 Aprit 2007 406.2 4164 2,2105 1,397.3 2,266.7 6,697
Profit for the year - - - - 305.0 305.0
Dividends - - - - {303.4) (303.4)
Capital contribution for share-based
payments - - - - 1.0 1.0
At 31 March 2018 406.2 4164 2,210.5 1,397.3 2,279.3 6,709.7

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

52 weeks ended 52 weeksended

31 March 2018 1 AorL20v7
£m frn

Cash flow from investing activities

Dividends receved 305.0 3790

Net cash generated from investing activities 305.0 3790

Cash flows from financing activities "

Shares issued on exercise of employee share options - 55 %

Repayment of intercompany loan {1.6) 70 E

Equity cividends paid {303.4) (3775) 7

Net cash used in financing activities {(305.0) (3790} £

Net cash inflow from activities - -
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning and end of year - -

FIN AN
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C1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company’s accounting policies are the same as those set out innote 1 of the Group financial statements, except as noted below

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less, where appropriate, provisions for impairment The Company grants share-based
payrments to the employees of subsidiary companies Each perniod the fair value of the employee services received by the subsidiary as a
capital contribution from the Company is reflected as an addition to investments in subsidiaries

Leans from other Group undertakings and all other payables are initially recorded at fair vatue, which 1s generally the proceeds received
They are then subsequently carmied at amortised cost The loans are non-mnterest beanng and repayable on demand

Sources of estimation uncertainty

Impairment of investments in subsidiary undertakings

The carrying value of the investment in subsidiary undertakings 1s reviewed for impatirment on an annual basis Therecoverable amount
is deterrmined based on value in use which reguires the deterrminabon of appropriate assumptions (which are sources of estimation
uncertainty)in relation to the cash flows over the three-year strategic plan period, the long-term growth rate to be applied beyond

this three-year period and the nsk-adjusted pre-tax discount rate used to discount the assumed cash flows to present value

Estimation uncertainty anses due to changing economic and market factors, the channel shift from stores to onling, increasing
technological advancement and the Groug's ongoing strategic transformation programmes

The Company's financial nskis managed as part of the Group's strategy and policies as discussed in note 21 of the Group financial statements
Inaccorgance with the exemption allowed by Sectron 408(3) of the Cormpanies Act 2006, the Company has not presented its ownincome
staterment or staternent of comprehensive ncome

C2 EMPLOYEES

The Company had no employees during the current or prior year Directors received emaluments inrespect of their services tothe
Company during the year of £999,922 (last year £936,000) The Company did not operate any pension schemes during the current or
preceding year

C3 AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

Auditor's remunerabion inrespect of the Company's annual audit has been borne by 1ts subsidiary Marks and Spencer plc and has been
disclosed on a consolidated basis in the Company’s consolidated financiat statements as required by Sechion 494(4)() of the Companies
Act 2006

C4 DIVIDENDS

2018 2017 2018 2017
per share pershae £m £m

Dividends on equity ordinary shares
Pad final dividend 1n.9p 1n9p i 193.1 1927
Special dividend - a46p - 745
Pad intenim dividend 6.8p 68p 110.3 103
18.7p 233p 3034 3775

The directors have approved a final dvidend of 11 9p per share {last year 11 9p per share) which in ine with the requirernents of IAS 10
‘Events after the Reporting Penod’, has not been recogrised within these results Thus final dividend of ¢ £193 Im(last year £193 Im) will be
paid on 13 July 2018 to shareholders whose names are on the Register of Members at the close of business on 1 June 2018 The ordinary
shares will be guoted ex dividend on 31 May 2018

Adividend reinvestment plan (DRIP) 1s avallable to shareholders who would prefer to invest therr dividends in the shares of the Company
For thase shareholders electing to receive the DRIP the last date for receipt of anew election s 22 June 2018

C5 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company has recewved dividends from Marks and Spencer ple of £305 Om (last year £379 0m}and decreased ts loan
frorn Marks and Spencer ple by £1 6m {last year £70m) The outstanding balance was £2,550 6rmn (last year £2,552 2m)andis non-interest
bearing There were no other related party transactions

C6 INVESTMENTS

A, Investments in subsidiary undertakings

2018 2017

£m Em
Beginning of the year ~ 92493 92358
Additional investment in subsidiary undertakings relating to share-based payments 11.0 135
End of the year 9,260.3 924973

Shares in subsidiary undertakings represent the Company's investmeant (n Marks and Spencer ple The directors believe that the carrying
value of the investments s supported by ther underlying net assets
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

C6 INVESTMENTS CONTINUED

A. Investments in subsidiary undertakings continued
Sensitivity analysis has been performed on the impairment testing of the carrying value of investments The following key assumptions
would have to change as follows in order to eliminate the headrcom within the impairment test

- the cash flow forecasts in each of the years covered by the three-year forecast would have to be 28% below forecast,

- thelong term growth rate of cash flows would have to decline to -$% per annum, or

- thepre-tax discount rate would have toincrease to 179%

The directors do not consider that any of these scenarios are reasonably Ukely

B Related undertakings

In accordance with Section 409 of the Compames Act 2006, a full list of related undertakings, the country of incorporation and the effective
nercentage of equity owned, as at 31 March 201815 disclosed below

Subsidiary undertakings registered in the UKY

Proportion Proportion Proportion Proportion
ofshares  of shares of shares  of shares
held bythe held by held by the ~eld by
Company  subsitiary Company  subsidiary
Name ShareClass (%) {%) Narng Share Class (%) {%)
Amethyst Leasing (Holdings) Ltrited EY Ordinary - 100 Marks and Spencer Pension Trust £1 Ordinary 100
Hedge End Park Limited £! Ordinary - 50 Investments Limited
Registered Office 33 Holborn London, ECIN 2HT Marks and Spencer Pension Trust Limied® FLAOrd ary B0 -
MaS Limited £l Ordinaty - 351 £1BOrd nary - -
Manfard {Textiles) limited £1 Ordinary - 100 £1C Orcdmary - -
Marks & Spencer Company Archive CIC £1 Ordinary - 100 Marks and Spencer plo £0250rdinary 100 -
Marks & Spencer Outlet Limited £10rdinary - 00 Marks and Spencer Property Developments Limited  £1 Crdnary - 100
Marks & Spencer Simply Foods Limited L1 Ordinary - 00 Marks and Spencer Scottish Limrted Partnership™ Patniershipinlerest - it
: Registered Office 2-28 St Nicholas Street
Marks and §parksanrted {_l Ordinary - 100 Aberdeen, ABIO 1B
Marks and Spencer {Northem Ireland) Limited £10rdinary - 100 Marks and S Shared 5 Limited £1 Crinar _ 100
Registered Gifice BLaganbank Road, Balfast, BT1 3LR rks and Spencer red Services Limite L Lranaty
o . N Minterton Services - 1
Marks and Spencer {(Property Investments) Limted  £1 Oidinary - (&) inkertan Servic Limsted - £1 Crdinary 0o
i el - 1
Marks and Spencer Chester Limtted £1Ordinary _ 100 Mafks gnd Spep:zr (Bradfard) ltzmlted %‘ Crdinary 1]
oo o . i £1Crd - 100
Marks and Spencer France Limitsd £1Crdinary - g RubyProperties {Enfield) Limmed . wrdnary
N - . Michai ites) Limited £1 Crehrar 1
Marks and Spencer Guernsey Investments LLP Partnarshig nterest - 100 st chal (Textites) Limite: - . ronary 0o
- - - X Ol - 100
Marks and Spencer Internationat Holdings Limited  £1 Ordinary - wo St Michastfinance ple £l Srewnary

UK registered subsidiaries exempt from audit
The following UK subsidiaries will take advantage of the audit exernption set out within section 479A of the Companies Act 2006 for the year
ended 31 March 2018 Unless otherwise stated, the undertakings lsted below are registered at Waterside House, 35 North Wharf Road,

London, W2 INW, United Kingdemn, and all have a single class of ordinary share with anominal value of £1

Propartion Proportion
of shares of shares
Proportion of hela by Proporuonof heldy
sharesheldbythe subsidary  Company sharesheldbythe s.badiary Company
Name Company (%) (%) Nurnber Namea Company (%) (%) Number
Amethyst Leasing {Propertwes) Limited - 00 4246934 Marks and Spencer 2005 - 100 5502588
Busyexport Limited - 00 4411320 (Parman House Kingston Store} Limited A
2 Lu - 100 5502544
Marks and Spencer (Inial L&) Linited 1530 . scasas  MMarksand Spencer 2005 {Pudsey Store] Limited
Registered Office No 2 Lachrin Sguare, Marks and Spencer 2005 - 100 5502502
96 Fountainbridge Edinburgh Midlothian, EH3 80A (Warnington Gemini Store} Limuited
Marks and Spencer {Property Ventures) Limited - 100 5502512 Marks and Spencer Hungary Limsted - e 8540784
Marks ang Spencer 2005 {Brooklands Store) Limited - 100 5502608 Marks and Spencer Investments - 1o 4963061
Marks and Spencer 200% - 160 5502519 Marks and Spencer Property Holdings Limited - 100 2100781
[Chest 1l Limited
{Chester Satellite Store) Limite Ruby Properties (Cumbernauld) Limited - e 4922798
Marks and 5| 2005 {Chester Store) Limited - 00 5502542
nd Spencer 2005 § r Store) Li Ruby Properties (Hardwick} Limited - 100 4716018
Marks and Spencer 200% - 100 5502598
{Frfe Road Kingston Store) Limted Ruby Properties (Long Eaton) Limited - toe A716031
Marks and Spencer 2005 - o SLU2EAE Ruby Properties (Tharncliffe) Luruted - 100 47610
{Clasgow Sauchiehall Store] Limited Ruby Properties {Tunbridge) Limited - 100 4716032
Marks and Spencer 2005 (Hedge End Store) Limited - 00 5502538 Simply Food {Property Investments) - 100 5507543
Marks and Spencer 2005 (Kensington Store) Limted - 100 BR07478 Simply Food {Property Ventures) Limited - 100 2239/99
Marks and Speacer 2005 - 1041 DI
(Kingston-on-Thames Satellte Store) Limted
Marks and Spencer 2005 - 100 5502520

(Kingsten-on-Thames Store) Limited

The Company wil, guaranteethe debts and lazilties of the above UK subsidisry undertakings at the balance sheet dafe of £5 1mim accordance wiln sechion 479C of the Companies Act 2006
The Compary has asses. ea the probability of los- undert~e quarantee asre~ate

() All companies registerad at Waterside House, 32 North W=art Road London, W2 NW, United Kingdorn unless oternwize stited
1) In 1ccordance with the art cles of assomation of Marks and Spencer Penaion irus” Livmited, the ~alders »f B and C Ordinar y sharesare both drectors of that company
(i} Marks and Spencer {Inibali FJLimited and Marks and Spencer Pencion Tru -t Limited are he limited partners, Marks and Spencor oloisthe Cenera' Par ner
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C6 INVESTMENTS CONTINUED

B Related undertakings continued
International subsidiary undertakings®

Praportien Proportion
of shares of shares
held by held by
subsidiary subsidiary
Name Registered Address Country Share Class {3) Narme Registered Address Country Share Class (%)
Marks and Spencer AuraraPlace B Phillp Street  Australia AUD 2 Orainary 100 Supreme Tradelinks FirstFlear Anand Bhawan India INR1QCrdnary 100
(Australia) Pty Limited  Sydrey, NSW 2000, Australia Private Limited Sansar Cnandra Road Japur
302001 ind
Marks ahd Spencer  “thi loor,37 i Royale, telgium, €71 Ordnary 100 e
{Belgium) SPRL 1000 Uy ssels, Belgum Aprell Limited 24-29 Mary Street, kreland €125Crdinary 100
Dublin 1, Ireland
Marks & Spencer Brunswick Square ¥ Cerrman Canada Common 100 uptin L. lretan .
Canada incorparated  StreetSuite 170G, Saint-John Marks and Spencer 24-27 Mary Street, {reland €1 25Crennary 100
{in Lpudation) New Beunswick, E2L 4W3 mfg:‘:;: 190 gretand) Limzed Dubhn L iretand
c
Canada - Marks and Spencer 31 Ahaa Haam Strest Israel NIS Grd nary 00
Class B oa Osrael) Limited THLAVIV 5202 Iracl
Meferenc e N
y Prer Una ltala SRL aGigtto 25-59100 Ital; Q I
Marks & Speqcer Brunswick Squere, | German  Cahada Common 100 Gn hquldatllq‘:) ;‘ra:oglta:l)y‘s 5 g Faue oo
Holdings Canada Street Suite “700, Sart- John N '
Incoyporated Sew Brunswnck, E21 4w, EBSSA 100 Marks and Spencer 15 Esplanade, St Helier Lersey £1 Ordinary 00
{in Uiqudation) Canads Preference (Jersey) Limvted JEIIRE Jersey
Marks & Spencer Inc Brunswck Square 1 Cermain  Canada Comman 160 UAB MSF Lithvama Coedimine o 206 Vilnas Lithiara 2890 Cndnany 100
Streel Sute 170C, Sant-John Lithuarua
Ne Lk L2L A
C;:;:,:mw' w3 Marks and $pencer CfO FurofastGlobalLirmites Montenegro € Crdinary 100
Montenegro DOO 112 Bul Svetag Petra
Marks and Spencer Unit03-04, 6/F ECO City 1785 China Registered 00 Pedgorica Cetingskog, 8100 Padgorica
{Shanghai) Limited 1788 West “an Jing Road Capital (under liguidation) Montenegro
Shanghan China
M & 5 Mode PHrs o acdplein 266 ~otherlreds Cloncrdinary 103
Marks and Spencer Room 2090, Block 1 HKRI China Regisrered 100 International 8 10978 Ametardam
Commercial Tokoo Hu, 788 Shimen No One Capital Netherlands
i hovyAnDistoed
{Shanghar} Ld Sg;(’jgril.;\]c;u‘\nals " Marks and Spencer Pring Bernhardplein 200 1097 Netheviands €4500rdinary 100
B : (Nederland) BV B, Amsterdam Netherlands
Marks and Spencer Prara 4, Michle, Vyskocilova Crech Repubhc CZK 1000 00
2 1284 - Republ Orahnan Marks and $pencer BV  Prins Bernhardplen 1087 J8  Nethedands €100 Crd nary 100
Czech Republica s 8174 Czech Republic nay Arnstordarm, Nethertands
CZKIoQ ot0 [}
OVd-na\:y Marks and Spencer Prins Bernhardplaay 1092 0B,  Nethorlands £10000 Crd nary 100
Mederland (Retal) BV Amsterdarn Netharlands
LRI .4
Orclnsary Marks and Spencer Prins Bernhardplein 200 1097 “etherlands €450 Ord nary 100
. Stores BV JB,Amsterdam Netherlands
Marks and Spencer Vyskocilova 148174, 14 Crech kepublic Reqistered 00
Corvren SR Faaas et ciechgggqu Py b Marksand Spencer UL Mars/arkowska 1044127 Poland PINGDDE 100
' PolandSpzoo 6 =M Won ssowa Poland Orelinary
Ou MSF Estonia Pald skimnt 102 Talin £stona Reqisterad 100
s 13)52; Elstcma glcapr‘lal Marks & Spencer Averidada Liberdade 249, Portuga €1 Orchnary 100
N ' {Portugall Lda 1250-143 Lisben Portugal
And A cdelal ] c-dAntin [ rance €16 Ordinge 10
ndes SARI I::(;;l“;u: | ,::,::.‘u' At fr reny Marks and Spencer Anchor Plaza, No 262 TimisparaRomania RON 1830 100
' Romania SA Boulevard, 3rd Flaor premises Crdnary
Marks & Spencer 33-39Ermou Street, Athens,  Craee €3 Crehnary B0 (0 bquedation) nce -1 Bt [¥-trn ), Bucharest
Marinopaulos Creece
Creece SA Marks and Spencer Dog PatrisaLumumbe no 70, Serba RSDQuatas 100
Beograd {in Lquidation) 11000 Belgrade
lgnazsa Lmited eritage Hall Le Marchant Cuern:e: £ Crdnar 9395 N
o ™ S::_Ealgsl Poter Pory 20 EINEY ey Marks and Spencer 77 Robmsern Road #13-00 Singapore Mo Par valye 100
XA N Cuetneay {Smgapore] InvestmentsRobinson 77 Singapore 063396 Ordinary
Pte itd Singapore
Marksa encer ui d Al Fee: Cuense £1 Ord 00
TG Chomed amroas MiesesFees Rl b Grdinary MSESlovakia SRO  faanskacesta 16 Bralisliva, 821 Slovakia Reaqistered 00
04, Slovakia capral
Teranis Limited Hertage Hall LeMarchart Cuemse £1 Ordinar; 3999 . N
i e verpor uemsey #lbirdinary Marks and Spencer  Woolworths House 93 SouthAfrica ZAR 2 Ordnary 100
Y1 44y Cuemsey (SA) (Pty) Limited Longmarket Street Cape Town
. B0, South Africa
M 5. Ceneral Heritage Hall Lo Marehan! CLpTne Fartrnotshy 1043
Insnranc:'L P S!Dr(e":tusct Peter Port, ! Y ;te,;:: MBS (Span) 5.1 Calle FuencarralNo 119 Spain €1 Ordinary 100
Tl 4HY Guernsey | 28010 Modiid, Spain
Marks and Spencer SJ[;W‘D“J)Q YOF, Tower 5"4 Hong Kon MDY Erdinar - “1oa Marks and Spencer 1011 Supalx Crand Towur “harland THB 10000 100
(Hong Knngs)p The Cateway écantun Road 9 & Y {Thailand) Limited 24thFloor,Rama 3 Road Grdinary
Investments Limited Kexwloon, Hong Kong Kwaeng Chongnons,, Kheg
Yargwa Bangkok
Marks and Spencer lehervandtbi-s2 117 Hurngary U 2805060 (00 (LS 16120 Thadand
Kft B ost, HUNGO .
(Hungary) ud3pest, Hungary Gueta Marks and Spencer HavalamKars sistanbul Turkey TRl 2600 oD
Marks and Spencer Tower C RMZ Millenia 4th Floor India (NRIC Oreinacy 100 Clathing Textile [Ny Licarel Merke A2 ok rednary
(ndi3} pvt Limited ~ake Wing #1 Murphy Road TradingL LC Kal 11 Vesilkay, Baks <oy,
Bangaiore 560008 India Istanbul, Turkey
Marks and Spencer 4rh Floor Court Housa, Ircha INRI0Class & 51
Reliance india Pvt Ltd | okrnanya Hlak Marg Chotn N
aloe, MU, 400 902, ki (NI 10 Class 3 o
INR 10Class T d

NOTE Anumber of the companies listed are legacy companies whichna longer serve any operaticnal purpose
{1 The shares of allinternational subsidiary underta<ings are beld by companes withinthe Group other taan the Company (Marks and Spencer Croup plc)
(n}INR 10 Class € shares 100% cwned by Jv partrer

{m) No chare caortal as the company iz lmited by g.arantee
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GROUP FINANCIAL RECORD

2018 2017 2016 2014 204
52 weeks 52 weeks S3weeks 52 weeks 52 weeks
£m £m Em £m Em
Income statement
Revenue'
UK 96110 54417 94708 92231 9,1557
International 1,087.2 11803 10846 1,088 3 1,1540
10,698.2 10,6220 10,555 4 10314 10,3097
Operating profit/{loss)'
UK 23.2 3276 6273 6406 6003
International 133.3 (74 4) @432 607 942
Total operating profit 156.5 2532 5841 7013 6945
Net interest payable (1074) (1061} (106} (ng) (125 8) ’g
Pension finance income 17.7 293 153 105 nv E
Profit on ordinary activities hefore taxation 66.8 176 4 4888 6000 5804 g
5
Analysed between E
Profit before tax after adjustingitems 580.9 6138 6896 6612 6229
Adjustments to reported profit (514.1) 4374) (200 8) 612) 425)
Income tax expense (37.7) (607) (844) (1183} (74 4)
Profit after taxation 29.1 157 404 4 4817 5060
2018 paslir 2016 2015 2014
52 weeks 57 weeks 53 weeks 52 week: 52 weeks
Basic earnings per share' Frofit after tax/
Weighted average
ordinary shares ini1ssue 1.6p 72p 249p 297p 325p
Adjusted basic earnings Adjusted basic earnings/
per share' Weighted average ordinary
shares inissue 27.8p 304p 35Cp 331p 3272p
Dividend per share declared
in respect of the year 18.7p 1870 187p 180p 170p
Cwidend cover Adjusted earmings per share/
Dividend per share 1.5x 16x 19x 18x 19x y
Retail fixed charge cover Operating profit before %
depreciation and operating -
lease charges/Fixed charges 3.8x 34x 37x 36x 34x &
Statement of financial position §
Net assets (£rm) 2,954.2 31504 34434 3,988 27067
Net debt? (£rm) 1,827.5 1,9347 21383 2,2232 24636
Capital expenditure (Erm) 3005 3312 5251 5266 710
Stores and space
UK stores 1,035 979 914 gh2? 798
UK selling space (m sqg ft) 176 174 170 168 166
International stores 428 454 AG8 480 455
International seling space (m sq ft) 5.2 59 61 60 58
Staffing (full-time equivalent)
UK 53,367 53562 52,388 52,247 54,678
International 5,729 6,207 6,507 6,849 6,498

| Basedon contmuing operations
7 Excludesaccruedinterest
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GLOSSARY
Reconciling
Closest equivalent items to statutory
APM statutory meagure measure Definition and purpose

Income Statement Measures

Like-for-likerevenue Movement in Sates from non Uke-

growth revenue perthe  for-like stores
Income Statement
M&S comrevenue/  None Not applcable
Onlinerevenue
Revenue growthat  None Not applicable
constant currency
International owned Movementin Sales from closure
retainedand franchiserevenue perthe  markets
revenue growth at Income Staternent
constant currency
Crossmargin Gross profit Certain
margin’ downstream
logistics costs
{see Note 2)
Adjusting items Naone Notapplicable
EBIT before EBIT? Adjustingitems

adjusting items {see Note 5)

The period on penod change inrevenue (excluding VAT) from stores which
have been trading and where there has been no significant change in
footage for at least 52 weeks and online sales The measure 1s used widely
nthe retail ndustry as zn indicator of sales performance It excludes the
impact of new stores, closed stores or stores with significant footage
change

FY1718  FY 16017
£m £m %
UK Revenue
Like-for-like 92522 93388 ©9
Netnew space 3588 1029
Statutory Total 9,611.0 9,441.7 1.8

Total revenue through the Croup's online platforms These revenues

are reported within the relevant UK and International segment results

The growth Inrevenues on a year-on-year basis is a good indicator of the
performance of the online channeland s a measure used within the Croup'’s
incentive plans Refer to the Rermuneration Report for explanation of why
this measure I1s used within incentive plans

The period on penod change inrevenue retranslating the previous year
revenue at the average actual periodic exchangerates usedin the current
financiat year This measure s presented as a means of elminating the
effects of exchange rate fluctuations on the penod-on-penod reported
results

FY17/18  FY 1617
£m £m %
International Revenue
At constant currency 10872 1,213 (102
Impact of FXretranslation - (310}
At reported currency 10872 1,803 7

The period on pericd change in revenue relating to those nternational
markets in which the Group continues to trade subsequent to the
completion of the International exit strategy retranslating the previous
year revenue at the average actual peniodic exchange rates usedin the
current financial year This measure 1s presented as a means of elminating
the effects of the International exit programme and exchange rate
fluctuations on the penod-on-period reported results

FY 1718 FY 18017
£m m %

International Revenue
Reported currency 1,0872 11803 (79)

Owned exit 664) (1923)

COwned retained and franchise 1,0208 9880 33
Impact of FXtranslation 235
Owned retained and franchise at constant
currency 11,0208 101156 09

Where referred to throughout the Annual Report, gross marginis calculated
as gross profit before adjusting items on a management basis dvided by
revenue The gross profit used inthis calculation s based onan internal
measure of margin rather than the statutory margin, which excludes certain
downstream logistics costs This s akey internal managerment metric for
assessing category performance

Those items which the Group excludes from its adjusted profit metrics in
order to present a further measure of the Group's performance Each of
these items, costs or incomes, 1s considered to be significant in nature and/or
quantum or are consistent with iterns treated as adjusting in prior periods
Excluding these items from profit metrics provides readers with helpful
additionalinformation on the performance of the business across pericds
because itis consistent with how the business performance s planned by,
andreported to the Board and the Operating Committes

Calculated as profit before the impact of adjusting terns, net finance costs
and tax This measure 1s used in calculating the Return on Capttal Employed
for the Groug
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GLOSSARY CONTINUED

L
Reconciling
Closest equivalent items to statutory
APM statutory measure measure Definition and purpose
Income Statement Measures continued
Profit before tax Profit beforetax  Adustingitems Profit before the impact of adjusting items and tax The Group considers this
and adjusting items {see Note 5) to be animportant measure of Group performance and is consistent with

Adjusted earnings Earnings per share Adjustingitems
per share (see Note 5)

Adjusted diluted Dilutedearnings  Adjusting items

how the business performance s reported and assessed by the Board and
the Operating Committee

This 1s a measure used within the Groug's Incentive plans Refer to the
Rermuneration Report for explanation of why this measure 15 used within
incentive plans

Profit after tax attributable to owners of the parent and before the impact of
adjusting items, divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
inissue dunng the financial year

This s a measure used within the Group’s Incentive plans Refer to the
Remuneration Repoert for explanation of why this measure s used

Profit after tax attrbutable to owners of the parent and before the mpact of
adjusting iterns, divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
inissue during the financiat year adjusted for the effects of any potentially
dilutive options

Total income tax charge for the Croup excluding the taximpact of agjusting
itemns divided by the profit before tax and adjustingitems This measure s an
indicater of the ongoing tax rate for the Group

earnings per share  pershare (see Note 5)
Effective tax rate Effectivetaxrate Adjustingitems and
before adjustingitems therr taximpact
(see Note 5)
Balance Sheet Measures
Net debt None Reconcilation
of net debt

(seenote 27}

Capital employed Net assets Refer to definition

Net debt comprises total borrowings (bank, bonds and finance lease
lizbilities net of accrued interest), net dervative financial instruments
that hedge the debt and the Scottish Limited Partnership liability to the
UK pension scheme less cash, cash equivalents and unbisted and short
terminvestrments

This measure 1s a good indication of the strength of the Croup's balance
sheet position and i1s widely used by credit rating agencies

The net total of assets and Uabilities as reported in the annual financial
staterment excluding assets and labitibes inrelation to investment property,
net retirement benefit position, dervatives, current and deferred tax
Labilities, Scottish Limited Partnership bability, non-current borrowings

and provisions in respect of adjusting iterms

This measure 1s used in the calculation of return on capital emploved

Cash Flow Measures

Free cash flow Net cash inflow See Financial
from operating Review
activities

Free cash flow Netcashinflow  See Financiat

pre-shareholder fromoperating  Review

returns activities

The cash generated from the Group’s operating activities less capital
expenditure and interest paid

This measure shows the cashretained by the Group in the year

Calculated as the cash generated from the Croup's operating activities less
capital expenditure and interest paid excluding returns te shareholders
(dvidends and share buylrack)

This measure shows the cash generated by the Group during the year that
15 avallable for returning to shareholders and s used within the Group's
incentive plans

Other Measures

Capital expenditure  None Not applicable
Return on capital None Not applicable
ermployed

Calculated as the purchase of preperty, plant and eguipment, Investment
property and intangible assets during the year less proceaeds fromasset
disposals excluding any assets acquired or disposed of as part of abusiness
combrnation

Calculated as being EBIT before adjusthing items divided by the average
of opening and closing capital employed which are defined above
The measures usedin this calculation are set out below

FY 1718 FY 16017

£m £m
EBIT before adjusting iterns 6706 6906
Average capital employed 47853 50316

This measure s used within the Group's incentive plans Refer to the
Remuneration repaort for explanabion of why this measure s used within
incentive plans It s calculated year-on-year

1 Gross profit marg niz not definedwithin IFRS butis awadely scceotea profit meazure beng denved fesm revenue less cost of sales divide by revenue
7 FBIMisnotde nedw hinlf RS butis 3 wdelyarcep.ed profit measure beng ear~ 13- tefore inrerest and tax
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MARKS AND SPENCFR GROUP PLC

I IMPORTANT NOTICE

NOTICE OF
ANNUAL GENERA
MEETING 2018

WEMBLEY STADIUM, WEMBLEY
LONDON HA9 OWS

. Tuesday 10 July 2018 at 11am

THIS DOCUMENT IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are inany doubt as to the action you should take, you should immediately consult
your stockbroker, bank rmanager, solicitor, accountant or other independent professional
adviser authorised under the Financial Services and Markets Act 20001f you are restdent
In the United Kingdom cr, If you reside etsewhere, another apprognately authonsed financial
adwiser If you have sold or otherwise transferred all your shares in the Company, please
forward this docurnent and the accompanying form of proxy to the purchaser or transferee,
or to the stockbroker or other agent through whom the sale or transfer was effected,
for transmission to the purchaser or transferee
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NOTICE OF MEETING 2018

DEAR SHAREHOLDER

"lam pleased to invite
shareholders to the
16th Annual General

Meeting of Marks and
Spencer Group plc”

AMANDA MELLOR /¢ 51 Fi sk

M&S WEBSITE

Cur corporate website,
marksandspencer.com/thecompany,
15 the principal means we use to
communicate with our shareholders
There s awealth of Information

online including

A copy of our full Annual
Report, which includes
our Strategic Report.

All the latest M&S news,
press releases and investor
presentations.

A detailed account of
our approach to corporate
governance at M&S.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (*AGM™}

VOTING

The ACM Is an important day i our calendar
andis the Board’s opportunity to present
the Company's performance and strategy
to shareholders and to listen and respond
to your questions

The ACM will be held at Wembley Stadium,
Wernbley, London, HAS OWS This venue
offers superb facllities and s accessible
by bus, ratand tube

More details about the day and how to
get there, including a map, can be found
on page 129 of this Notice.

The formal Notice of Meeting follows this
letter The meeting will start at 11am, with
light refreshments available before the
meeting and following its conclusion
After the meeting,alunch bagwillbe
provided for you to enjoy either at the
venue or dunngyour onward journey

I you cannct attend the meeting, we would
still Like to understand the themes and
issues of concern to you, as shareholders
You may send your comments by e-mail

to chairman@marks-and-spencer.com
with the heading ACM 2018

YOQUR VOTE COUNTS

Your vote s important tous Youcan

- Register your proxy vote electronically
by logging on to cur Registrar's website,
sharevote.couk, or by using the service
offered by Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited
for members of CREST

- Complete and return the enclosed
proxy form

- Attend and vote at the AGM

The accompanying proxy form invites you
to vote inone of three ways for each of the
resciutions ‘for, agamnst’ or ‘vote withheld'

Voting onallresclubons willbe by way of a
polt Your vote counts whether you are able
to attend the meeting or not and we think
poilvoting s the most dermnocratic approach
as the proxy results are added to the votes
of shareholders present

The results of the voting wilt be announced
through aRegulatory Information Service
and will be published on ocur website
marksandspencer.com/thecompany

on 10July 2018 or as soon as reasonably
practicable thereafter

ifyou have already voted by proxy youwill
still be able to vote at the meeting and your
vote on the day willreplace your praviously
lodged proxy vote

in 2017 all resolutions were passed at the
meeting with votes ranging from 89 57%
t09999% In favour

EXPLANATORY NOTES

An explanahon of each of the resolutions
being proposed at the ACM s set out on
the following pages
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EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE RESOLUTIONS

TO RECEIVE THE REPORTS AND ACCOUNTS 1

The Board asks that shareholders receive the Strategic Report,
Directors' Report, and the financial staternents for the 52 weeks
ended 31 March 2018, together with the report of the auditor

APPROVAL OF THE DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT 2

The Directors' Remuneration Report s provided on pages 50t0 62
of the Annual Report It sets ocut the pay and benefits receved by
each of the directors for the year ended 31 March 2018 In line with
legislation this vote willbe advisory and in respect of the overall
remuneration package

.
FINAL DIVIDEND 5

The Board propeses a final dividend of 11 9p per share for the year
ended 31 March 2018 f approved, the recommended final dividend
witl be paid on 13 July 2018 to all shareholders who were onthe Register
of Membersat the close ofbusiness on 1 June 2018

4-9

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The directors believe that the Board contmues to mamntam an
appropriate balance of knowledge and skills and that all the non-
execubtive directors are independent in character and judgement
This follows a process of formal evaluation which confirms that each
director makes an effective and valuable contribution to the Board
and demonstrates commitrnent Lo the role including making
sufficient time available for Board and Committee meetings and
other duties as reguired) In accordance with the UK Corporate
Covernance Code andininewith previcus years, s\l directors witl
again stand for election or re-election, as relevant, at the ACM

this year Biographies are avallable on pages 26 and 27 of the
Annual Report, with further details available on our website,
marksandspencer.com/thecompany

APPOINTMENT OF FUTURE DIRECTORS 10 = 12

On 10 January 2018, the Company announced that Hurmphrey
Singer would join the Board as Chief Finance Officer,and on 21 May
2018, the market was notifed of the proposed appointments of
Kate Brekerstaffe and Pip McCrostie as a Non-Executive Directors

Humphrey is an expernenced Finance Cirector with an extensive
track recordin finance roles inretaill and brands

Katie has wide-ranging expenence of retail transformation from
acareerina varety of functions in leading UK retailers and
consumer companies

Pipbrings extensive experence of inance and transactions frem
a career at Ernst & Young where she transformed and led the
Clobal Corporate Finance business

The Board s pleased to recommend Hurmphrey, Katie and Pip for
election by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and they
willbe formally appointed to the Board following therr election

Biographical details are given on pages 26 and 27 of the
Annual Report

APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

OF AUDITOR 13 - 14:

Onthe recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board
proposes inresolution 13 that Deloitte LLPbe re-appointed as
auditor of the Company

Resolution 14 proposes that the Audit Committee be authorised
ta deterrmine the level of the auditor's remuneration

RENEWAL OF THE POWERS OF THE BOARD
TO ALLOT SHARES

15

Paragraph (A) of this resolution would give the directors the
authonty to allot ordinary shares of the Company upto an
aggregate nominalamount equal to £135,397,323 (representing
541,589,293 ordinary shares of 25p each} This amount represents
approximately one-third of the Company’s 1ssued share caprtal

as at 21 May 2018, the latest prachicable date before the publication
of this Notice

In Uine with guidance 1ssued by the Investment Asscciation {*IA7),

paragraph {B) of this resolution would give the directors authority ,
to allct ordinary shares i connection with anightsissuein favour

of ardinary shareholders up to anaggregate norminalamount
equalto £270,794,647 (representing 1,083,178,587 ordinary shares),
as reduced by the nominalamount of any shares issued under
paragraph (A) of this resolution This amount (before any reduction)
represents approximately two thirds of the issued ordinary share
capital of the Company as at 21 May 2018, the latest practicable
date before the publication of this Notice

Theauthonties sought under paragraphs (&) and (8) of this
resolution will expire on the date of the AGMIn 2019 or on

1 Octoper 2019, whichever s sooner The directors have no present
intention to exercise either of the authonties sought under this
resolution except, under paragraph (&), to satisfy options under
the Cornpany's share option schemaeas, however, the Board wishes
to ensure that the Company has maximurn flexibility Inmanaging
the Group's capitalresources

As at the date of this Notice, no shares are held by the Company
N treasury

DISAPPLICATION OF PRE-EMPTION .
RIGHTS IN CERTAIN CIRCUMSTANCES 16
The directors are also seeking authonty te allot ordinary shares

for cash without first offering them to existing shareholders in
proportion to therr existing holdings

The power set out Inresolution 16 would be lmited to

(@ allotments or sales in connection with pre-emptive offers, or
(b) otherwise up to an aggregate nominal amount of £20,309,599
(representing 81,238,394 ordinary shares) This aggregate nominal
amount represents approximately 5% of theissued crdinary
share capital of the Company as at 21 May 2018, being the latest
practicable date before the publication of this Notice

Inrespect of the power granted under resolution 16(B), the directors
confirm their intention to follow the provisions of the Pre-Empticn
Group’s Statement of Principles regarding cumulative usage of
authonties within arolling three-year period where the Principles
provide that usage in excess of 75% of the issued ordinary share
capital of the Company should not take place without prior
consultatron with shareholders

The directors have no current intention to allot shares except In
connectionwith employee share schemes

The Company has 1ssued 8,589,748 ardinary shares representing
053% of Issued share capital over the past three years ona
non-pre-emptive basis

If approved, the authonty sought under this resclution will expure
onthe date of the ACM In 2019 or on 1 October 2019, whichever
15 so0Ner
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EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE RESOLUTIONS CONTINUED

AUTHORITY FOR THE COMPANY TO
PURCHASE ITS OWN SHARES

17

AUTHORITY TO MAKE
POLITICAL DONATIONS

19

Authonity s sought for the Company to purchase up to 10% of its
1ssued ordinary shares, renewing the authority granted by the
shareholders at previous ACMs

The directors have no present intention of exercising the authority
to purchase the Company's own shares, however, this authonty
would prowide thern with the flexibility to do 5o in the future, ifthe
prevailing market conditions made such purchases in the best
interests of shareholders generally

Ordinary shares purchased by the Company pursuant to this
authonty may be held in treasury or may be cancelled It remains
the Company's intentien to cancel any shares it buys back rather
than hold thermin treasury The Company currently holds no shares
intreasury The minimum price, exclusive of expenses, which may
be pad foran ordinary share s 25p The maximurm price, exclusive
of expenses, which may be paid for an ordinary share 1s the

highest of

0 anamount equal to 105% of the average rmarket value foran
Ordinary Share for the five busimess days immediately preceding
the date of the purchase,and

{i1) the hugher of the price of the last ndependent trade and the
highest current Independent bid on the trading venues where the
purchase s carried out

The Company has opticns cutstanding over 43 milbion ordinary
shares, representing 2 65% of the Company's issued ordinary
share capitalas at 21 May 2018, the latest practicable date before
the publication of this Notice

If the existing authority given at the 2017 ACM and the autharity
now being sought by this resolution were to be fully used, these
options would represent 2 94% of the Company’s ordinary share
capitalinissue at that date

18

NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETING

Inaccordance with the Companies Act 2006 (the "2006 Act™),
the notice penad for general meetings (other than an AGM) 1s
21 clear days notice unless the Company

() has gained shareholder approval for the holding of general
meetings on 14 clear days hotice by passing a special resolution
at the mostrecent AGM, and

(1} offers the facility for all shareholders to vote by electromic means

The Company would ke to preserveits ability to call general
meetings (other than an ACM) on 14 clear days' notice This shorter
notice pertod would not be used as a matter of routing, but only
where the flexibility 1s mented by the business of the meeting and
15 thought to bein the interests of shareholders as a whole

Resolubion 18 seeks such approval and, should this resclution be
approved, it will be vatid until the end of the next AGM This 1s the
same authority that was sought and granted at last year's ACM

The 2006 Act prohibits companies from making any political
donations to EU political organisaticns or independent candidates,
orincurring EU political expenditure, unless authorised by
shareholders inadvance

The Company does nat make, and does notintend to make,
donations to EU political organisations or independent
election candidates, nor does it incur or intend to incur any
EU poltical expenditure

However, the defintbions of political donations, polibical
organisations and political expenditure used in the 2006 Act
areverywide As aresult, this can cover activities such as
sponscrship, subscnptions, payment of expenses, paid leave for
employees fulfiluing certain pubklic duties, and support for bodies
representing the business commurity in pelicy review or reform

Shareholder approvalis being sought on a precautionary basis
only, to allow the Company and any company which, at any time
dunng the penad for which this resclution has effect, 1s a subsidiary
of the Company, to continue te support the community and put
forward its views to wider business and government interests,
without running the nsk of inadvertently breaching legislation

The Board s therefore seeking authority to make political
donations to EU political organisations and independent election
candidates not exceeding £50,000 In total and to ncur EU political
expenditure not exceeding £50,000 N total In Line with best
prachice guidelines published by the |A, this resclution 1s put to
sharehclders annually rather than every four years as required

by the 2006 Act For the purpases of this resolution, the terms
‘molitical donations, ‘political organsations’, iIndependent etection
candidate’ and ‘political expenditure’ shall have the meanings
given to themin sections 363 to 365 of the 2006 Act

RECOMMENDATION

Your directors believe that the proposats describedabove
arenthe best interests of the Company and its shareholders
asawhole and recommend you to give them your support
by voting in favour of all the resolutions, as they intend to
inrespect of therr own beneficial shareholdings

Yours faithfully,

e

Amanda Mellor Croup Secretary
7 June 2018
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MARKS AND SPENCER GROUP PLC

NOTICE OF MEETING
10 JULY 2018

Notice is hereby given that the Annual
General Meeting of Marks and Spencer
Group plc (the “Company”) will be held
at Wembley Stadium, Wembley, London,
HAS OWS on Tuesday 10 July 2018 at
11am (the “AGM") for the purposes

set out below.

Resclutions ! to 15and 19 will be proposed
as ordinary resolutions, andresolutions 16
to 18willbe proposed as spedial resclubions

1. To receive the Strategic Report, Directors
Report, and the financial statements for the
52 weeks ended 31 March 2018, tegether
with the report of the auditor

2. Toapprove the Directors’ Remuneration
Report

3.To declareafinal dividend of 119p per
ordinary share

To elect the following directors who are
seeking annualre-election inaccordance
with the UK Corporate Covernance Code

4. Archie Norman

B.Steve Rowe

6.Vind Banga

7. Allson Brittain

8. Andy Halford

9. Andrew Fisher

To appoint the following directors with
effect from 10 July 2018

10.Humphrey Singer

11. Katie Bickerstaffe

12. PipMcCrostie

To view our Board biographies go to
the Investors section of our corporate
website, marksandspencer.com/
thecompany

13. Toresolve that Deloitte LLP be,ands
hereby, re-appointed as auditor of the
Company to hold office unbil the conclusion
af the next generalmeeting at which
accounts are laid before the Company

14.To resolve that the Audit Committee
determine the remuneration ofthe
auditor onbehalf of the Board

15. DIRECTORS AUTHORITY TO
ALLOT SHARES

Toresolve that the directors be and

are hereby authonsed generally and
unconditionally to exercise all the powers
of the Cempany to allot shares in the
Cornpany and (o grant nghts to subscribe
for or convert any security into shares in
the Company

{A) Up te ancminalamount of £135,397,323
{such amount to be reduced by any
allotments or grants made under paragraph
(B)below In excess of such sumy, and

(B) Compristng equity securities (as defined
N section 560(1) of the Comparies Act
2006) up toanormmat amount of
£270,724,647 (suchamount to bereduced
by any allotrments made under paragraph
(A)above) inconnection with an offer by
way of anghts issue

{f) To ordinary shareholders In proportion
{asnearly as may be practicabie) ro ther
existing holcings, and

{ii) To holders of other equity secunities as
required by the rights of those securities
orasthe directors otherwise consider
necessary,and so that the directors may
mMpose any Wmigs or restneions and make
any arrangements which they consider
necessary or appropriate to deal with any
treasury shares, fractional entitlements,
record dates, legal, regulatory or practical
problems in, or under the laws of, any
territory or any other matter

Theauthorties conferred on the directors
to allot securities under paragraphs (A) and
(B) will expire on the date of the ACM of the
Company to be held in 2019 or on 1 October
2018, whichever is sconer, unless previously
revoked or varied by the Company, and such
authonty shali extend to the making before
such expiry of an offer oran agreement that
would or might require relevant securities
to be alictted after such expiry, and the

directors may allot relevant secunties n
pursuance of that offer or agreement as
if the authonty conferred hereby had
not expired

16. DISAPPLICATION OF
PRE-EMPTION RICHTS

Toresolve as aspecialresolution that,
subject to the passing of resolution 15,
thedirectors be empowered toallot equity
securities {@s defined in the Companies Act
2006) for cash unider the authonty given

by that resclubon (set out i this Nobice of
Meeting), and/or to sell ardinary shares held
by the Company as treasury shares for cash,
as If section 561 of the Companies Act 2006
did not apply to any such allotment or sale,
provided that such authority be imited

(A} Ta the allotment of equity secunties and
sale of treasury shares in connechion with
an offer of, or nvitation to apply for, equity
secunties {butin the case of the authority
granted under paragraph (B) of resclution
15, by way of a rights issue only)

{i) To ordinary shareholders in proportion
(as nearly as may be practicable) to their
existing holdings, and

{ii) To holders of other equuty secunties
as required by the rights of those
securnities or as the directors otherwise
consider necessary,

and so that the directors may Impose
any bmits or restrictions and make any
arrangements which they consider
necessary or appropriate to deal with any
treasury shares, fractional entitlements,
record dates, legal, regulatory or practical |
problems in, or under the laws of, any

territory or any other matter, and

(B} In the case of the authority granted
under paragraph (A) of resolution 15 andfor
inthe case of any sale of treasury shares,
tothe allotment of equity securities or sale
of treasury shares (otherwise than under
paragraph (A) above} up toanominal
amount of £20,309,59% and shall expire at
the conclusion of the ACM to be held in 2013
or on 1 October 2019, whichever 1s sooner
{unless previously revoked or vared by the
Company in general meeting), provided that
the Company rmay before that date make
offers, and enter into agreements, which
would, or might, require equity securities to
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NOTICE OF MEETING CONTINUED

be allotted (and treasury shares to be sold)
after the authorty ends and the directors
may allot equity securities (and sell treasury
shares) under any such offer oragreement
as If the authority had not ended

17. COMPANY’S AUTHORITY TO
PURCHASE ITS OWN SHARES

To resolve as aspecialresclution that the
Company Is authorised for the purposes

of section 701 of the Companies Act 2006
to rake one or more market purchases (as
defined in section 633(4) of the Companies
Act 2006) of its ordinary shares of 25p each
("Crdinary Shares”), such power tobe imited

(A} Toa maximum number of 162m
Ordinary Shares

(B} By the condition that the rrurimum price
which may be paid for an Ordinary Shares
25p and the maximum price which may be
paidforan Ordinary Share s the highest of

(i}an amount equal to 105% of the average
rmarket value of an Crdinary Share for the
five business days mmediately preceding

the day on which that Ordinary Share s
contractedto be purchased,and

(ii) the higher of the price of the last
independent trade and the highest.
current ndependent bid on the trading
venues where the purchase I1s carried out,
in each case, exclusive of expenses,

such power to apply untilthe end of the
ACM to be hetdin 2019 oruntil 1 October
2019, whichever is sconer, but iIneach case
so that the Company may enterintoa
contract to purchase Ordinary Shares which
will or may be completed or executed
wholly or partly after the power endsand
the Company may purchase Ordinary
Shares pursuant to any such contract

as If the power had not ended

18. CALLING OF GENERAL MEETINGS
ON 14 DAYS’ NOTICE

Toresclve as aspecrairesolutionthat a
general meeting other than an Annual
Ceneral Meeting may be called onnot
less than 14 clear days notice

NOTES

19. POLITICAL DONATIONS

Toresolve that inaccordance with section
366 of the Companies Act 2006 the
Company andany company which, at any
time durning the period for which this
resoluticn has effect, s a subsidiary of the
Company, be and are hereby authonsed

(i) to make pclitical donatiens to EU political
organisations or Independent election
candidates not exceeding £50,0001N

total, and

(i) incur EU political expenditure not
exceeding £50,0001n total, n each case
dunng the pencd commencing on the date
of this resolubion and ending on the date of
the AGM of the Company to be heldin 2019
or on 1 October 2019, whichever 1s sooner

By corder of the Board
Amanda Mellor, Group Secretary
7 June 2018, L ondeon

Registered office Waterside House, 35
North Wharf Road, London W2 TNW

Registeredin England and Wales
No 4256886

1. Biographies of the directors seeking
election are given inthe Annual Report on
pages 26 and 27, including membership of
the principal committees The terms of the
current directors’ service contracts are such
that all executive director appomtments
rmay be termmated by the Company giving
12 months notice and by the individual
gwving six months’ notice, non-executive
directors have agreements for service
which can be terminated on three months'
notice by either party, the Charrman has

an agreerment for service which requires
six months notice by either party

2. Registered Shareholders Members are
entitled to appoint a proxy to exercise all or
any of their nghts toattend, speak and vote
on therr behalf at the AGM Members may
appoint more than one proxy inrelation

to the ACM provided that each proxy 15
appointed to exercise the nghts attached
to a different share or shares held by that
shareholder Aproxyneednotbea
shareholder of the Company A proxy
formwhichmay be used to make such
appointment and give proxy Instructions
accompanies this Notice If you do not have
aproxy formand believe that you should
have one, or If you require additional proxy
forms (to appoint more than cne proxy),
please contact our shareholder helpline
on 0345 6090810 or, alternatively, you may
photocopy the enclosed proxy form Please
ndicate the number of sharesinrelabion to
which eachproxy)s authorisedtoactinthe

box below the proxy holder's name Please
also ndicate f the instructions one of
multiple Nstructions being given,and ifa
proxy 1s beng appointed for less than your
full entitlement, please enter the number of
shares in relation to which each such proxy s
entitled toact in the box below the relevant
proxy holder's name The proxy form
accompanying this Notice assumes you
wish to vote on all your shares in the same
way Tovote only part of your holdingor
tovote some shares cne way and some
another, please contact the shareholder
helpline All proxy forms must be signed
and should be returned together

3. If youwould like to submit your vote
electronically, please visit sharevote.co.uk,
where there are fullinstructions, and submit
your vote by no later than 11am on Friday 6
July 2018 You are advised toread the terms
and conditions of use If you return paper
and electronic instructions, those received
last by the Registrar before 11am on Friday 6
July 2018 will take precedence Electronic
communication facilties are available to all
shareholders and those that use themwilt
not be disadvantaged

4. In the case of joint holders, where more
than one of the joint holders purports to
appoint aproxy, only the appointment
submitted by the most senior hotder will
be accepted Senicrity s determined by
the order inwhich the names of the joint
holders appear in the Company's register
of memnbersinrespect of the joint holding
(the first-named being the most senior)

5. Te be valid, any proxy form or other
instrurent appointing a proxy must be
receved by post (during normal business
hours only) or by hand at Equiniti, Aspect
House, Spencer Road, Lancaing, West Sussex,
BN92 6DA no later than 11amon Friday

& July 2018

6. The return of a completed proxy form,
other suchinstrument or any CREST proxy
instruction (as described in paragraph 14
onpage 128) willnot prevent a shareholder
attending the AGM and voting in person if
hefshefthey wishes to do so

7. Indirect Shareholders Any personto
whorm this Notice s sent who is a person
nominated under section 146 of the
Companies Act 2006 to enjoy information
nghts (@ “Nominated Person™ may, under
an agreement between him/her and the
shareholder by whom he/she was
nominated, have aright to be appoeinted
{or to have someone else appointed)asa
proxy for the AGM If a Nominated Person
has ne such proxy appontment right or
does notwish to exerciseit, he/she may,
under any such agreement, have anght to
give Instructions to the shareholderas to
the exercise of voting rights

8, The statement of the nghts of
shareholdersin relation te the appontment
of proxies in paragraphs 2 to 6 does not
apply to Nominated Persons Thenghts
describedin these paragraphs can conly be
exerased by shareholders of the Company
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9. To be entitled to attend, speak, and vote
at the meeting (and for the purpose af the
determination by the Company of the votes
they may cast), shareholders must be
entered on the Register of Members of the
Company by 6 30pm on Friday 6 July 2018
{or,inthe event of any adjournment, & 30pm
on the date which s two working days pnor
to the adjourned meeting) Changes to the
Register of Members after the relevant
deadune shall be disregarded in
determining the nights of any person to
attend, speak and vote at the meeting

10. The following documents are avartable
farinspection at an agreed time at the
Company's registered office Waterside
House, 35 North Wharf Road, London

W2 INW Pleasering +44 [0} 208718 9888
dunng normalbusiness hours onany
weekday (excluding public holidays)
These documents will also be avallable for
inspection at Wembley Stadium, Wembley,
London HAS OWS from 10am on 10 July 2018
untilthe conclusion of the ACM

{iy Copies of the executive directors’
service contracts

{iiy Copiesofthe non-executive directors’
letters of appointment

{ii}} Copres of the directors' Deeds
of Indemnity

(V) A copy of the Articles of Associabion
of the Company

11. Shareholders are advised that, unless
otherwise specified, the telephone
numbers, website and emalladdresses set
outin this Notice or proxy forms are not

1o be used for the purpose of serving
information or docurnants on the Company,
Including the service of documents or
information relating to proceedings at

the Company’s AGM

12. Asat 21 May 2018 (the latest practicable
date before the publication of this Netice)
the Cornpany’s issued share capital consists
of 1,624,767,881 ordinary shares carrying one
vote each Therefore, the total voting nghts
inthe Company as at 21 May 2018 are

1,624 767,881

13. CREST members who wish toappointa
proxy or proxies through the CREST
electronic proxy appointment service may
do so for the AGMand any adjournment
thereof by using the procedures described
nthe CREST manual CREST personal
members or other CREST sponsored
rnembers, and those CREST members
who have appointed a service provider,
should refer to their CREST sponsor or
voting service provider, who willbe able to
take the appropriate action on ther behalf

14. In order for a proxy appointment or
instruction made using the CREST service

to be valid, the apprepnate CREST message
(a'CREST proxy instruction’y must be
properly authenticated in accordance

with Euroctear UK &Ireland Lirnited’s
specifications and must contan the
information required for such instruction,

as descnbed inthe CREST manual (available
via euroclear.com) The message, regardless
of whether it constitutes the appointment
of a proxy orisanamendment to the
instruction given to a previously appointed
proxy must, in order to be vabd, be
transmitted so as to be received by Equiniti
{ID RAIS) by 11am on Fniday 6 July 2018 For
this purpose, the time of receipt will be
taken to be the time (as determined by the
time starmp applied te the message by the
CREST Application Host) from which Equinite
1s able to retrieve the message by enquiry to
CREST In the manner prescribed by CREST
After this fime,any change of Instructions to
proxies appointed through CREST should be
communicated to the appointee through
other means

15. CREST members and, where applicable,
their CREST sponsors, or voting service
providers should note that Eureclear UK &
Ireland Limited does not make available
special procedures in CREST for any
particular message Normal system timings
and lUmitations will, therefore, apply in
relation to the input of CREST proxy
nstructions Itis theresponsibility of

the CREST member concerned to take

{or,if the CREST memberis a CREST personal
mermnber, or sponsored mermber, or has
appomnted avoting service prowvider, to
procure that his/her/therr CREST sponsor

or voting service provider(s) take(s)) such
action as shall be necessary to ensure that a
rmessage s transmitted by means of the
CREST system by any particular time Inthis
connection, CREST mernbers and, where
applicabile, their CREST sponsors or voting
systemn providers are referred in particular
tothose sections of the CREST manual
concerning practicallmitations of the
CREST gystern and timings

16. The Comipany may treat as mvalida
CREST proxy instruction n the arcumstances
set out in Regulation 35(5)@) of the
Uncertificated Secunties Regulations 2001

17. Any corporation which 1S amember
canappoint one or Mmore corporate
representatives who may exercise on

its behalf all of its powers as amember,
provided that they do not doscinrelation
tothe same shares

18. Under section 527 of the Companies
Act 2006, members meeting the threshold
requirements set out in that section have
the nght to require the Company to publish
onawebsite a statement setting out any
rmatter relating to

{i) the audit of the Company’s accounts
(including the auditor's report and the
conduct of the sudit) thatare to be laid
before the AGM, or

{iiy any circurnstance connected with an
auditor of the Company ceasing to hold
office since the previous meeting at which
annual accounts andreports were laid
naccordance with section 437 of the
Companies Act 2006 The Company may
not require the shareholders requesting any
such website publication to pay Its expenses
1IN complying with sections 527 or 528 of the
Companies Act 2006 Where the Company
18 required to place a statement on awebsite
under section 527 of the Companies Act
2006, it must forward the staterment to the
Cornpany's auditor not later than the time
when it makes the statement avalable

on the website The business which may

be dealt with at the ACMincludes any
statement that the Company has been
required under section 527 of the Companies
Act 2006 to publish ona website

19. Any member attending the meeting

has the nght to ask guestions The Company
must have cause to answer any such
question relating to the business being
dealt with at the meeting but no such
answer need be given I

{A}to do sowould interfere unduly with the
preparation for the meeting or involve the
disclosure of confidentialinformation,

{B) the answer has already been given on
awebsite inthe form of an answer to a
question, or

{C)it1s undesirable Inthe interests of the
Company or the good order of themeeting
that the question be answered

20. A copy of this Notice and other
information required by section 311A of
the Companies Act 2006, can be found at
marksandspencer.com/thecompany

21. Please see the letter dated 7 June 2018
from the Group Secretary onpages 123 to
125 for further explanatory notes
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AGM LOCATION

TUESDAY 10 JULY 2018

Wembtey Stadium,
Wembley,
London HAS OWS

Live webcast from
11am via our website
marksandspencer.com/
thecompany

M&S

EST 1084

TRAVEL FROM THE STATION TO
THE VENUE

Following feedback dunng last year's
meeting we have looked again at the
shareholder journey from the station to
the venue Unfortunately, due to location
restrictions, we are unable to offer support
fromthe station and you will be required
to make your own way to the venue Please
be advised that this is at least a ten minute
walk If you are unable to make this
unassisted, please dec ensure that you
have arranged alternative transport

There s a paid-for carpark available to
sharehclders and taxis are permitted

to drop-offin front of the venue

ADMISSION

TRANSPORT

Admission will be through the Club
Wembley Main Entrance on Level B2
(see map above) Please plantoarrive
before 10 30am to allow enough time
for registration and security clearance,
bringing your attendance card with yvou

This 15 either attached to your proxy form
or, for those registered for electronic
communications,is attached to the email
you will have received Thiswill help us to
register you maore swiftly

SHAREHOLDERS WITH DISABILITIES

TIMINGS

Date: Tuesday 10 July 2018

9.30am  Doorsopen, registration
begins Question Desk opensin
the Bobby Moore Room on
levet 1 Tea and coffee avallabte

10.15am  Doors tothe Great Hall open
Please make your way to
the Great Hallon level 3
where hosts will direct
you toyour seats

11.00am AGMbegins

1.00pm  (approximately) ACGM closes

Theresults of the poll willbe
released to the London Stock
Exchange once collated

Wernbley Stadium s easily accessible by
wheelchair users and has Uft access inside
There will also be an assisted heanng loop
systemin The Creat Hall For further
information on the facilities at the venue,
please call Wembley Stadium direct on
020 8795 9748 or 020 8795 9660

SECURITY

Security measures will be in place to ensure
your safety Please note that bag searches
will be in operation and any items deermed
inappropriate will be removed and stored
until the end of the event Itis highly
uniikely, but should it be reguired, body
searches may also be in operation Flash
photography s not allowed at the AGM

Wembley Stadium s well served by
numercus public transport Links

Inline with our Plan A commitrnents, we
recormmend that shareholders use these
to travel to the meeting if possible

London Underground and Main Line
Railway Stations Wernbley Stadium s
sarved by three stations

- Wembley Park (600m walk} -
Jubilee and Metropolitan bnes Thereis
only one LiIft to street level at this station,
s0 please allow sufficient time to make
your way to the venue

- Wembley Stadium (750m walk) -
on the Chiltern Main Line, inking London
Marylebone and the Midlands,
Oxfordshire and Buckingharmshire

- Wembley Central {2km walk) -
Bakerleo line and London Overground
Bus routes 83,92 and 182 run towards
Wembley Stadium from stop CM

For furtherinformation regarding your
journey, please contact Transpert for

L ondon travelnformationon 0343 222
1234, or visit tflgovuk

CAR PARKING

For thosewho wish to lravel to the AGM

by car, there 1s parking available inthe
Yellow Car Park The location of the car park
15 indicated cn the map abbove Parkingis
operated by APCOA and car park spaces
are pay on foot machines on departure

The postcode s HA9OEG
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

ANALYSIS OF SHARE REGISTER

Ordinary shares
Asat 31 March 2018, the Company had

162,250 registered holders of ordinary shares Their shareholdings are analysed below It should

be noted that many of our private iInvestors hold their shares through nominee companies, therefore the actual number of shares held
privately willbe lngher than indicated below

Percentage Number of Percentage

Number of of total ordinary of 1zsued
Range of sharehclding shareholders shareholders shares share capital
1- 500 85,304 5257 16,054,377 099
501-1 000 30922 1906 23,142,759, 142
1,001 - 2,000 23,732 1463 34129521 230
2,001 -5000 15,736 970 48,101,629 296
5,001 - 10,000 4,051 250 27912783 172
10,001 - 100,000 1964 121 486,238,368 285
100,001 - 1,000,000 402 025 136,053,851 837
1,000,001 - Highest 139 o8 1,293,064,058 7959
Total 162,250 10000 1,624,757,346 100.00

Percentage Number of Percentage

Number of of tetal ordinary ofissued
Category of shareholder shareholders shareholders shares share capital
Private 157,312 9696 178,948977 1101
Instituttonaland corporate 4938 304 1445808369 8899
Total 162,250 100.00 1,624,727,346 100.00
USEFUL CONTACTS
Marks and Spencer Group plc Registrar/Shareholder queries Additional documents
Registered Office Eguiniti Lirnited, Aspect House, Spencer Aninteractive version of cur
Waterside House, 35 North Wharf Road, Road, Lancing, West Sussex BN99 6DA, Annual Reportis availlable online at
LondonW2 INW Unitad Kingdom marksandspencercomy/annualreport2018

Telephone +44 (020 7935 4422
Registered in England and Wales
(no 4256886)

General queries
Custorner queries 0333014 8555
Shareholder gueries 0345 6090810

Or,emall
chairman@®marks-and-spencer.com

Telephone 0345 609 0810and cutside

the UK +44{0)121 415 7071 Additicnally, the Annual Report

{which cantains the Strategic Report)

Online help.shareview.co.uk 15 avallable for download in pdf format
{from here, you will be able to securely at marksandspencer com/thecornpany
emall Equinitiwath your enquiry) Alternatively, call0800531 697
Students Group Secretary and

Please note, students areadvised to Head of Corporate Governance
source information from our website Amanda Mellor

2018/19 FINANCIAL CALENDAR AND KEY DATES

31 May 2018

1 June 2018

10 July 2018

13 Jul.y' 2018

7 November 2018*
15 November 2018*
16 November 2018*
January 2019*

11 January 2019*

Ex-divmdend date — Final dividend

Record date to be eligible for the final dvidend

Annual General Meeting (11am)

Final dividend payment date forﬁhe yearto 31 March 2018
Results - Half Year!

Ex-dividend date — Intenm dividend

Record date to be eligible for the interm dwidend
Results, Quarter 3 Trading Updatet

interim dividend payment date

1 Thosewhohaveregisteredfor electronic communicabion or news alerts at mar

* Prowisional dates

comy wi {recense notification by email when this 1s avaidable
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION CONTINUED

SHAREHOLDER QUERIES

DIVIDENDS

The Company's share register 1s maintamned
by our Registrar, Equiniti Shareholders with
queriesrelating to their shareholding should
contact Equinits directly using one of the
rnethods listed above For maore general
gueries, shareholders should consult the
‘Investors section of our corparate website

MANAGING YOUR SHARES ONLINE

Shareholders can manage thair holdings
online by registering with Shareview, a
secure cnbine platform provided by Equinit
Registration s a straightforward process
and allows shareholders to

- Sign up for electronic shareholder
communication

- Recewve trading updates by emal

- View all of ther shareholdings n one place

- Update their records following a change
of address

- Have dwidends paid into their

bank account

Vote in advance of Cormpany

general meetings

M&S encourages shareholders to sign

up for electromic communication as the
reducticn in printing costs and paper
usage makes a valuable contribution to our
Plan Acommitrnents Itisalse beneficiat to
shareholders, who canbe notified by email
whenever we release trading updates to
the London Stock Exchange, which are

not mailed to shareholders

To find out maore nformation about the
services offered by Shareviewand to
register, please visit shareview.co.uk

Subject to the retevant Board and
shareholder approvals, dividends are paid
inJanuary and July each year Shareholders
who receve their dividend payments
directly into their bank accounts will receive
anannual Dividend Confirmation’in
January, covering both dividend payments
rmade during the tax year

DUPLICATE DOCUMENTS

Many shareholders have more than one
account onthe share register and receive
duplicate documentationfromusasa
result If you fallinto this group, please
contact Equiniti to combine your accounts

SHAREGIFT

If you have a very small shareholding that
1s uneconomical to sell, you may want

to consider donating it to ShareCift
(Registered charity no 1052686),a chanty
that specialises in the donation of small,
unwanted shareholdings to good

causes You canfind out more by

visiting sharegift.org or by calling

+44 (0)207 9303737

SHAREHOLDER SECURITY

Anncreasing number of shareholders have
been contaching us toreport unsolicited and
suspicious phone calls receved frorm purported
‘brokers who offer to buy their sharesata
price farin excess of their market value Itis
unlikely that firms authorised by the Financiat
Conduct Authonty (FCA) willcontact you
with offers Uke this As such, we believe these
calls arepart of a scam, commonly referred
tcas a'bailer roormn’ The callers obtain your
details from publicly avallable sources of
inforrmation, including the Company's share
register,and can be extrernely persistent
and persuasive

Shareholders are cautioned to be very wary
of any unsolated advice, offers tobuy shares
ata discount, sell your shares at a premium
or reguests to complete confidentiality
agreements with the callers Remember, if it
sounds too good to be true, it probably is!

More detalled nformation and guidance 1s
avallable on our corporate website We also
encourage shareholders toread the FCAs
guidance on how to avoid scams at fea.org.
uk/consumers/scams Anoverview of current
common scams s available on the Action
Fraud website actionfraud.police.uk

WEBCAST

For shareholders unable toattend the AGM,
the meeting wili be webcast live from 1100am
via our corporate website Thiswillbe
publicly avallable to all internet users and
willalso be avalable to view online after the
event Toregister to view the webcast, please
wisit the website and follow the relevant Uinks
Shareholders attending the ACM should

be aware that the proceedings of the
rmeetingwill be filmed for the purpcses of
this webcast M&S reserves the nght te
retain and use footage or stills forany
purposes, including Annual Reports,
marketing matenals and other publications
If you have any queries about the AGM or
the contents of this docurment, please call
Marks & Spencer Group Secretanat on
+44(0)20 8718 9888



132

MARKS AN SPFNCFR CROUF PRI C

INDEX
A Page E Page N Fage
Accounting poticies 81 Earmings per share 93 Nomination Committee 34
Adjustingitems 89 Employees 94 p
Appointrment and retirement Employees with disabitties 66
of directors 26-27,63  Equalopportunties €6 PlanA 19
Audit Committee Report 36-41 Principalnsks and uncertanties 24
Auditor 40 F Prefit and dividends 64
Auditar’s remuneration 88 Power toissue shares 65
Auditor’s report 68 E:g:ggg lg;gg;e/costs ]é"é Polticaldonations 66
Annual Ceneral Meeting 67
Financial assets 104 R
B Financial instruments 105
Financial Llabilities 105  Risk management 22-24
Board 26 Financialreview 15 Remuneration policy 46
Borrowing faciities 105 Fixedcharge cover 119 Remuneration Committee 61
Business model 10 G Remuneration Report 50
C Clossary of alternative s
Capital commitments 112 gi:riormance measures 120 Segmentalinforrmation 87
gconcern 67
Capital expenditure é; Goodwill 83 Shareholder information 130
Colleague involvernent Share capital 64,112
Cor\fl.tcgts af interest 63 Grocernies Supply Code of Practice 66 Share sctrx)emes 56,99
Corporate governance 25 g Significant agreements 65
Cost of sales 88 Staternent of cash flows 80
Critical accounting judgements B6  Hedgingreserve 79  Staterment of comprehensive ncome 77
Staternent of financial position 78
D | Subsidiary undertakings 116
Deadlineas for exercising voting rghts 65  Income staternent 77 T
Deferredtax 12 Intangible assets 101
Depreciation 83,86,103  Interestsinvoting nghts 64  Taxabion 17
Denvatives 106  Internaticnal Financial Reporting Total shareholder return 58
Diluted earnings per share 77 Standards Bl  Tradeand cther payables a3
Directers’indemnities 63  Inventories 84 Tradeandotherrecewvables 83
Directors’ interests 57 Investment property 78  Transfer of secunities 64
Directors responsibilities 67
Directors’ single figure of K v
[)elgz‘[lgsir?;f;nformanon to auditor A4, gg Key performance indicators 1N-14  Vanation of rights 65
Dividend cover ne Viability statement 67
Dwidend per share 94 M
Market and custorner insights 6,7
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Page
Consolidated income statement 77 7 Incometaxexpense 91 21 Fnancialinstruments 108
Consolidated statement of 8 Earningspershare 93 22 Provisions m
comprehensive Income 77 9 Dwdends 94 23 Deferredtax m
Consolidated statement of 10 Employees 94 24 Ordinary share capital 12
financial position 78 11 Retirement benefits 95 25 Centingenciesand commitments 112
Consolidated statement of 12 Marksand Spencer 26 Analysis of cash flows givenmthe
changes inequity 79 Scottish Limited Partnership g9 statement of cash flows 113
Consolidated cash flow staterment 80 13 Share-basedpayments 99 27 Analysis of net debt 13
14 Intangibleassets 101 28 Related party transactions 114
Note 81 15 Property, plant and equipment 103
; g\ccounth? pfolicrest a7 16 Other financiatassets 104 Company financial statements 15
egmentalinformation 88 17 Tradeand otherrecevables 1064  Notestothe company
:_ E’:&Tég;?:?;;non a8 18 Cashandcashequivalents 104 financial statements 116
19 Tradeand other payables 105
5 Adustingitems B9 20 Borrowingsand other
6 Financeincomefcosts 91 financial iabilties 105



FSC

wwaneon
REGYCLED

Papar macs from
ehcyChel DML

FEC* CO16448

This repert s printed on Cocoon preprnt 100 offset,a 00% recye ad
paper mMade from post-consumer waste Cocoon s manufactredio
the cerbified environmental managerne -t systern IS0 14001

Desigdnied g wd produe ool by Friend www foendstudio com
Prinled by PLE o onr

CHICo ~ur are |50 14001 certified CarbonNeutral® Alcoho Mres



We can trace ALL our
beef right back to every
farm and animal

We're the only national retailer who can say that.

WE TRACE IT SO YOU CAN TRUST IT



